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Price To Public Underwriting Praceeds To
Class Interest Rate Per Note Discount Per Note  {ssuer Per Note
Al 3-month EURIBOR plus 0.08% annually 140% 0.175% €45.912.50
A2 3-month sterling LIBOR phs 0.08% annually 100% 0.175% £49,912.50
B1  3-month EURIBCR plus 0.25% annually 100% 0.275% €49,862 50
B2  3-month sterling LIBOR plus 0.25% annually 100% 0.275% E49,862.50
€1 3-month EURIBOR plus 0.45% annually 100% Q.400% €49 800 .00
2 3-month sterling LIBOR plus 0.45% annually 100% 0.406% £49,800.00

@  The ultimate source of payment on the notes will be collectiens on consurner credit and charge card
accounts owaed by Barclaycard and opéned in the United Kingdom,

. The transaction documents will be governed by the laws of England and Wales

® A separate currency swap for the Class Al, Class Bl and Class C1 notes will be used to convert the
sterling amounts received from the series 05-3 medium term note certificate into eure amounts for
payment on the notes.
Please consider carefully the risk factors beginning on page 16 in this prospectus.
A note is not a deposit and neither the notes nor the underlying receivables are insured or guaranteed by any
United Xingdem govermmental agency.
The notes offered in this prospectus will be obligations of the issuer only. The issuer will anly hiave a limited
poot of assets to satisfy its abligations on the notes. The notes will not be obligations of Barclays Bank PLC
or any of its affiliates.
Nene of the notes offered hereby have been or will be registered under the United States Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any US. state securities laws, The notes may not be offered or
sold within the United States or te. or for the account or benefit of, LS. persons {as defined in Regulation §
under the Securities Act {"Regulation 5"}, except pursuant ta an exemptlon from, or in a transactien not
subject 10, the registration reguirements of the Securities Act and applicable U.S. state securities laws. The
notes are belng offered and sold only cutside the Urited States in compliance with Regulation § and the
applicable laws of the jurisdictions where those offers and sales cccur. See "Underwriting”.
This prospectus 1§ given in compliance with the prospectus rules made by the UK Listing Authority under the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended by the Prospectus Reguiations 2005 for the purpase of
giving information with regard to the issuer and the notes. We have applied to the UK Listing Authority to
have the notes related to series 05-3 listed and to the g¢f't edged and fixed interest market of the London
Stock Exchange plc to have the notes for series 05-3 admitted to trading, The gilt edged and fixed interest
market of the London Stack Exchange is a regulated market for the purpose of fnvestment Services Directive
16/93/22/EC {the “regulated market of the Londen Stock Exchange”).

Underwriters of the Class A Notes

Barclays Capital
Morgan Stanley BNP Paribas Merrilt Lynch & Co.
UBS Investment Bank Goldman Sachs & Co. Citigroup

Underwriter of the Class B Notes ond Class C Notes
Barclays Capital
17 October 2005




Impartant Notice About information Presented in This Prospectus

We include cross-references to captions in this prospectus where you can find {urther related
discussions. The following table of contents provides the pages on which these captions are
located.
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Prospectus Summary

The following is a brief overview of the key aspects of the Class A1 notes, the Class A2 notes
(together, the Class Al notes and the (tass A2 notes are the Class A notes) the Class 81 notes, the
Class B2 notes (together, the Class BT notes and the Class B2 notes are the Class B notes), the
Class C1 notes, and the Class C2 notes (together, the Class C1 notes and the Class C2 notes are the
Class € notes), which we refer to as the notes. We refer to the Class A1 notes, the Class B1 notes
and the Class C1 notes as the euro notes. We refer to the Class A2 notes, the Class B2 notes and
the Class €2 nates as the sterling notes. You need to read all of this prospectus to fully understand
the terms of the notes.

Series Structure

Initial Principal
Class of Notes Balance % of Total
Class Al €650,000,000 35%
Class A2 £700,000.000 55%
Class B1 €72,500,00 4%
Class B2 £15,000,000 1%
Class C1 €68,000.000 4%
Class C2 £18,000,000 1%
Chass 41 Noles Chrss A2 Niies Class BI Notes Cion #2 motes Clats 7 Notes Chags £2 wates
Antirpared £aungs “Aaa” from Moody's  ~Aas” from Moodys A1 from Moody's  "AIT rom Maody's  “Baal” from “Ba1" from
anaAAATfrom  and "AAA"from  and TAT from and “A” fram oody's Maody's
Standard & Poort  Standard 8 Poory  Stamdard Standard and “BRA" kom and “BRE" from
& Poors. & Poort’s, Slandard & Podr's  Standard & Paor's.
Credd Enhardement; Subordinauionaf the  Subotdination of the  Subordination of the  Subardination of the  Soread Account. Spread Actount
Class B noLes and Class B notes and Class € notes. Cass C rotes
Class € notes. Class € nales.
interest Kate, 3-month EURIBOR,  3-month steriing  3-month EURIBOR,  J-morth sterting  3-manth EURIBOR.  3-month sterling
phus G.OA per Cent,  LIBOR, plus 0.08 per  phus 025 per ¢ent,  WIBOR, phss 025 per  phos (145 per cent.  LIBOR, phet 045 per
anmualy, eacept for  cent anqwially, annually. except for  cent. annually, annuaily. except for  cent annually,
e Ayl interest excepl for the Arst the Rrst imares excepn for the first  the first interest encept for the froy
periad where interest period perind where mnerest period penod where "itereR period
ELRIBOR il be where siering ELRIBOR wifl be where sterimg EURIBOR will b where sterittg
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Interpoiabion of I- 0N the knewr nterpobition of 2 g0 the linear Interpolation of 7+ 0N e Rnear
month snd 3-month mterpolation of - month and 3-month  cerpolation of 2+ month and 3-morth  interpotabion of 2-
ELRIBOR. onth and -manth  £LRIBOR. month and 3-month  ELRIBOR. monh and 3-month
stezhng LIBOR Aering LIBOK Heding LIBOR
INIBrt ACCryal Method: Actuali 360 Actual /3657366, Actual /360, Actual/365/366, Actual/360, Aciual/365/366.
Interest Payment Dates: The 15th dsy of The 15t dayof The 15th day of The 13th day of The 15t day of Tha 15th gay of
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Program Structural Summary
The following is a brief summary description of the Barclaycard securitisation program, of which
your will form a part

Barclaycard, a division of Barciays Bank PLC {called “Barclays™), has previously assigned all of its
present and future beneficial interest in receivables in designated revolving credit and charge card
accounts owned by Barclaycard and opened in the United Kingdom. Cnly the receivahles were
assigned. The accounts were retained by Barciaycard.

The receivables were assigned to a special purpose company, incorporated in jersey, Channel
Islands, actfng as receivables trustee. The receivables trustee holds the receivables on trust for
Barctaycard, as transferor beneficiary and excess interest beneficiary, and a special purpose
subsidiary of Barclays called the "MTN lssuer”, as investor beneficiary. Barclaycard will transfer jts
entitlement tc receive excess interest attributable to series 05-3 to the MTN Issuer.

The receivables trustee may issue multiple series of investor certificates to the MTN Issuer, Each
series of investor certificates will represent an undivided beneficial interest in the receivables trust.
They will entitle the MTN Issuer to payments of interest and principal payvable from collections on
the receivables,

The MTN Issuer will inance its acquisition of an undivided beneficial interest in the receivables
trust, evidenced by the issuance of each series of investor certificates, by issuing series of lfmited
recourse medium term notes or certificates to individual issuers and credit enkancement providers,
if any. The limited recourse nature of the medium term notes or certificates will ensure that the
MTN Issuer is only ever liable under a series of medium term notes or certificates for payments of
principal and interest equal to what is paid under the corresponding series of investor certificates.
The issuers, in turn, will finance their purchases of each series of medium term notes or certificates
by issuing series of notes to investors. Your serles of notes, series 05-3, will be the tenth series of
notes issued under this program.




Structural Diagram of Barciays Bank PLC Securitisation Program
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1 Barclays Bank PLC will transfer excess interest attributable to series 05-3 to the MIN Issuer pursant 1o an agreement between beneficiaries.
2 Series 99-1 was repaid in full on 15 November 2002,




The Issuer

Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 10) PLC is a public limited company incorporated in England and
Wales. Its registered office is at 1 Churchill Piace, London E14 SHP. Its telephone number is +44
{0)207 116 1000,

The Issuer Is a newly created special purpose company. One share of the issver is held by a share
trustee under the terms of a share declaration of trust. The remaining issued shares of the Issuer
are held by Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited. The shares of Gracechurch Card (Holdings)
Limited are in turn held by SFM Corporate Services Limited as trustee for a charitable trust, The
purpose of the issuer is to issue the notes which represent its asset-backed debt obiigations. The
issuer will not engage in any unrelated activities.

This prospectus is given in compliance with the prospectus rules made by the UK Listing Authority
under the Financial Service and Markets Act 2000, as amended by the Prospectus Regulations 2005
for the purposes of giving Information about the issuer and the notes. The issuer accepts
responsibility for the information contained in this document. To the best of the knowledge and
belief of the issuer, which has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the
information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and dees not omit anything
likely to affect the import of such Information. The Issuer accepts responsibility accordingly.

The Note Trustee, Principal Paying Agent and Agent Bank

The note trustee, principal paying agent and agent bank is The Bank of New York. The note trustee
will act as trustee for the noteholders under the trust deed. The principal paying agent will make
payments or the notes. The agent hank will calculate the interest rate on the notes. The Bank of
New York, Londen Branch's address is One Canada Square, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom. its
telephone number is +44 (0)207 57G 1784.

The Notes

In this document, we are offering three classes of notes, each divided into two tranches:

e Class A1 flpating rate asset-backed notes with an initial principal balance of €650,000.000,
{lass A2 floating rate asset-backed notes with an initial principal balance of £700,000,000.
Class B1 floating rate asset-backed notes with an initial principal balance of €72,500,000,
Class B2 floating rate asset-backed notes with an initial principal balance of £15,000,000.
Class C1 floating rate asset-backed notes with an initial principal balance of £68,000,000.
Class €2 floating rate asset-backed notes with an initial principal balance of £18,000,000.

The notes represent asset-backed debt obligations of the issuer. The notes are secured by
payments received by the issuer from the series 05-3 medium term note certificate and payments
received from the swap counterparty. The issuer’s ability to make these payments wili ultimately be
dependent. upon collections Barclaycard receives on the receivables.

We will issue the notes under the trust deed. The notes wiil also be subject to a paying agency and
agent bank agreement. The security for the notes will be created under a deed of charge and a
pledge agreement between the issuer and the note trustee. The terms and conditions of the notes
will be contained in the trust deed.

The Class B notes will be subordinated to the Class A notes. The Class C notes will be subordinated
to both the Class A notes and the Class B notes. The Class A1 nates will rank part passu with the
Class A2 notes, The Class B1 notes will rank pari passu with the Class B2 notes. The Class C1 notes
will rank parl passu with the C2 notes.

If there is an event of default under the notes, the nate trustee, on your behalf, can appaint a
receiver of the issuer who would continue to collect amounts paid by the MTN Issuer under the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate, The note trustee would also be able to sell the series 05-
3 medium term note certificate. In addition, pursuant to the trust deed, the note trustee may give
an enforcement notice to the issuer declaring the notes to be immediately due and payable. A
declaration that the notes have become immediately due and payable will not, of itself, accelerate
the timing or amount of redemption of the notes.

In this prospectus, we will refer to the owners of inierests in the Class A notes, the Class 8 notes
and the Class C notes as the Class A noteholders. the Class B noteholders and the Class C
notehalders, respectively, and together as the noteholders.
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Previous Series

Nine previous series of ngtes have been fssued by nine previous note issuers, Gracechurch Card
Funding {No, 1} PLC through Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 2) PLC respectively, in relation to the
receivables trust. The first serles, called series 99-1, was issued on 23 November 1999 and repaid in
November 2002, Series 99-1 is described in more detail at Appendix G. The second series, called
02-1, was issued on 24 October 2002. The third series, called 03-1, was issued on 8 April 2003.
The fourth series, called 03-2, was issued on 13 June 2003. The fifth series, called 03-3, was issued
on 18 September 2003. The sixth series, called 04-1, was issued on 1 March 2004. The seventh
series, called 04-2 was issued on 23 Novemnber 2004. The eighth series, called 05-1, was issued on
27 June 2005 The minth series, called 05-2, was \ssued on 20 September 2005. Series 02-1, Series
03-1, Series 03-2, Serles 03-3, Series 04-1, Series 04-2, Serigs 05-1 and Serjes 05-2 are described in
mare detail at Appendix G.

The proceeds of the series 99-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC to
purchase, respectively, corresponding series of medlum teren notes issued in three classes, which we
shall refer 1o as the “serfes 99-1 medium term notes”, issued by the MTN Issuer, The secies 99-1
medium term notes issued by the MTN Issuer were called the Class A medium term note, the Class
B medium term note and the Class C medium term nate, respectively, The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 99-1 medium term nctes in the receivables trust by paying
the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an aggregate
investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the MTN Issuer to
payments arising out of its entitlement 1o receivables in the receivables trust.

The Class A medium term note, the Class B medium term note and the Class C medium term note
were each secured in favour of a trustee for the benefit of the secured creditors in relation to the
Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class € notes of series 93-1. The security for each Class of
notes issued for series 99-1 was the Class A medium term note, the Class B medium term note and
the Class C medium term note, respectively. Series 99-3 was finally repaid in full on the interast
payment date falling in November 2002.

The proceeds of the series 02-1 notes were wsed by Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 2) PLC to
purchase 2 corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 92-1 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of {he series 02-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds t¢ the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 02-1 medium term rote certificate is secured in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the secured creditors in relation te the Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class C notes of
series 02-1. The security for each Class of notes issued for series 02-1 is the series 02-1 medium
term note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 02-1 will not be cross-
collateralised with the security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 03-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 3) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
"series 03-1 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 03-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 03-1 medium term note certificate is secured in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the secured creditors in relation to the Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class C notes of
series 03-1. The security for each Class of notes issued for series 03-1 is the series G3-1 medium
term note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 03-1 is not cross-collateralised
with the security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 03-7 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 03-2 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series (3-2 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
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aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlernent to receivabies in the receivables trust.

The series 03-2 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the Class A notes, the Ciass B notes and the Class C notes of series
03-2. The security for each Class of notes issued for series 03-2 is the series 03-2 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 03-2 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 03-3 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
"series 03-3 medium term note certificate”, Issued by the MTN lIssuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 03-3 medlurmn term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables twrustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 03-3 medium term note certificate Is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class € notes of series
03-3. The security for each Class of notes Issued for series 03-3 is the series 03-3 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 03-3 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series (4-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5} PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series (04-1 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN lssuer. The MTN lssuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the serfes 04-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entities the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 04-1 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class C notes of series
04-1. The security for each Class of notes issued for series 04-1 is the series 04-1 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 04-1 is not cross-collaterised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series D4-2 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 7) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 04-2 medium term note certificate,” issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 04-2 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
agyregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN lIssuer to payments arising out of its entltlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 04-2 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee far the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class C notes of series
04-2. The security for each Class of notes issued for series 04-2 is the serfes 04-2 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 04-2 is not cross-callaterialised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 05-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 8) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 05-1 medium term note certificate,” Issued by the MTN issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 05-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the preceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor intérest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement 1o receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 05-1 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the henefit of
the noteholders in relation to the Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class C notes of series
05-1. The security for each Class of notes issued for series 05-1 is the series 05-1 medium term
note cerfificate. The security for the notes issued for series 05-1 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes.
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The proceeds of the series 05-2 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shail refer to as the
“series 05-2 medium terrn note certificate,” issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 05-2 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN lIssuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 05-2 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relatlon to the Class A notes, the Class B notes and the Class C notes of series
05-2. The security for each Class of notes issued for series 05-2 is the series 05-2 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 05-2 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes,

The Closing Date
we will issue the notes on or about 20 October 2005,

The MTN lssuer and Initial Invester Beneficiary

The MTN Issuer and initial Investor beneficiary is Barclaycard Funding PLC, a public limited
company incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered office is located at 1 Churchill Place,
London E14 5HP. The MTN lssuer is a subsidiary of Barclays.

The MTN Issuer was established to issue sertes of secured limited recourse medium térm notes or
certificates under a programme,

The Medium Term Note Certificate

On the closing date, the MTN issuer will sell to the issuer one limited recourse medium term note
certificate issued as a series under its medium term note or certificate programme. This limited
recourse medium term note certificate, in the amount of £1,273,702,600, will be called the series
05-3 medium term note certificate. The series 05-3 medium term note certificate is governed by
English law and is subject to the English courts in the event of proceedings relating to the series
05-3 medium term note certificate.

The issuer will make payments of interest and principal on the Class A notes, the Class B notes and
the Class C notes from payments of interest and principal made by the MTN Issuer on the series
05-3 medium term note certificate, including MTN Issuer additional interest payments, and from
amounts paid by the swap counterparty. The issuer wifl also make payment of the deferred
subscription price in respect of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate out of unutilised MTH
Issuer additional interest payments received by it

If an event of default occurs under the series 05-3 medium term note certificate, the security
trustee, on behalf of the issuer as hoelder of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate, may
appoint a receiver of the MTH Issuer who would continue to collect amounts paid on the investor
certificate. The security trustee would also be able to sell the investor certificate. In addition,
pursuant to the Series 05-3 Supplement the security irustee may give an enforcement notice to the
MTN tssuer declaring the serles 05-3 medium term note certificate to be immediately due and
payable. A declaration that the series 05-3 medium term note certificate has become Immediately
due and payable will not, of itself, accelerate the timing or amount of redemption of the series 05-
3 medium term note certificate.

The Security Trustee

The security trustee is The Bank of New York. The security trustee will act as trustee for the holder
of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate under the security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash
management agreement.
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The Receivables

The receivebles consist of amounts charged by cardholders te designated MasterCard” and VISA*
revolving credit and charge card accounts of Barclaycard originated or acquired in the United
Kingdom for the acquisition of merchandise, services and cash advances. The receivables also
include the periodic finance charges and fees charged to the credit and charge card accounts and
interchange. )
The Initial Transferor, Servicer, Trust Cash Manager, MTN Issuer Cash Manager and Excess Interest
Beneficiary

Barclays Bank PLC originates or acquires the credit and charge card recelvables through its
business unit, Barclaycard. Barclaycard's principal place of business is located at 1234 Pavilion
Drive, Northampton NN4 750, United Kingdom, Barclaycard has previously transferred its present
and future interest in the credit and charge card receivables to the receivables trustee,

Bar¢laycard is the initial transferor of the receivables trust.

Barclaycard currently services the receivables in the receivables trust, Barclaycard may not resign as
servicer, but its appointment as servicer may be terminated and a successor servicer may be
appointed In its place if a servicer default occurs. In the future additional transferors, if any, may
act as co-servicers.

Barcfaycard was also appointed as the initial trust cash manager to manage the bank accounts of
the receivables trustee for each series of investor certificates. Barclaycard may not resign as trust
cash manager, but its appointment as trust cash manager may be terminated and a successor trust
cash manager may be appointed in its place if a trust cash manager default accurs. In the future
additional transferors, if any, may act as co-trust managers.

Barclaycard wiil be the excess interest beneficiary of the receivables trust, but wili transfer its
entiflernént to the portion of the excess interest attributable to series 05-3 to the MTN Issuer
under an agreement between beneficiaries.

Barclays Bank PLC has also been appointed as MTN Issuer cash manager pursuant to the security
trust deed and the MTN Issuer cash management agreement dated 23 November 1999, The MTN
Issuer cash manager may not resigh unless its activities are no longer permissible under the
applicable law. No such resignation shall become effective until a successor MTN Issuer cash
manager shall have assumed the respensibilities and obligations of the MTN Issuer cash manager.

Barclays Bank PLC is a bank incorporated in England and Wales and has a long term unsecured
debt rating of Aai by Moody's and AA by Standard and Poor's. its head office is located at 1
Churchill Place, London £14 5HP, United Kingdom. It is regulated in the United Kingdom by the
Financial Services Authority, Its telephone number is +44 (03207 116 1000.

The Receivables Trustee

Gracechurch Receivables Trustee Limited, the receivables trustee, 15 a private limited liability
company incorperated under the laws of Jersey, Channel Islands on 29 September 1599, its
registered office is located at 26 New Street, St Helier, jersey [EZ 3RA. The shares of the
receivables trustee are held by a professional trustee company - not affiliated with Barclays - as
trustee on trust for charitable purposes. This means that any profits received by the receivables
trustee, after tncome amounts have been paid in meeting the costs and expenses of the receivables
trustee, will be available to be dividended to the trustee for distribution for charitable purposes or
to charitles exclusively for charitable purposes selected at the discretion of the receivables trustee,
The payments on your notes will not he affected by this arrangement, The recejvables trustee acts
as trustee of the receivables trust

The Receivables Trust

The receivables trust was established on 1 November 1999 under the terms of a declaration of
trust under which Barclays and the MTN Issuer each received an undivided interest in the trust
property equal to the proportion of their contributions to the receivables trust. The declaration of
trust was amended and restated by a declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement
on 23 November 1999. The declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement has been
*  masterCard and VISA are US federally registered servicemarks of MasterCard international inc. and VISA USA Inc. respectively

and are registered trademarks in the United Xingdom of MasterCard Intermational Inc. and VISA International Service
Assodlation,
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and will be supplemented by seties supplements for each series of investor cerlificates issued by
the receivables trust.

The receivables trustee has been established far the purpase of acquiving credit and charge card
receivables of Barclaycard and any additional transferors and to hold those receivables and the
collections from them on trust for the beneficiaries under the terms of the receivables trust set out
in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and to make payments on the
investor certificates. The receivables trustee may issue other series of investor certificates,
representing undivided beneficial interests in the receivables trust, from time to time. The
receivables trustee may not engage in any unrelated activities.

The tnvestor Certificate

The MTN Issuer will pay the proceeds of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate to the
receivables trustee to acquire a separate, undivided beneficial interest in the receivables trust of
which eight are outstanding. This undivided beneficial interest will be the tenth series of the
receivables trust and will be represented by the investor certificate. The receivables trustee may
issue other series of investor certificate(s) from time to time.

The MTN issuer will make payments of principal and interest on the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate from payments received on the Investor certificate. The payments on the investor
certificate will be made from payments of principal and interest on the receivables,

The receivables trustee will be entitled to use the proceeds of the Investor certificate paid to it by
the MTN Issuer — together withh monies paid to it by the other neneficiaries of the receivables trust
- to accept an offer by the transferor to assign to the receivables trusiee the present and future
receivables generated by the designated credit and charge card accounts of the transferor.

The investor cerlificate will entitle the MTN Issuer 1o receive payment of a designated portion of
collections of the credit and charge card receivables assigned by the transferor to the receivables
trustee, The MTN lssuer will use those coltections for the redemption of the series 05-3 medium
term note certificate.

If a pay out event occurs, the rapid amortisation period or the regulated amortisation period may
begin, which could cause an early redemption of your notes. If Barclays as the transferor
beneficiary or the excess interest beneficiary were to become insolvent, the receivables trustee may
ke required to liguidate the receivables. In addition, some breaches of representations made by the
transferor will require the transferor to repurchase the receivables.

The Swap Counterparty

The swap counterparty for the euro notes will be Barclays Bank PLC, its investment banking
division in the United Kingdom. The swap counterparty’s address is 1 Churchill Place, London El4
SHP, United Kingdom.

Swap Agreements

Barclaycard's cardholders will make payments to Barclaycard in pounds sterling. Accordingly,
payments on the investor certificate and the series 05-3 medium term note certificate will also be
made in sterling. So that you can receive payments on your Class Al notes, Class B1 notes and/or
Class C1 notes in euro, the issuer will enter into swap agreements with the swap counterparty.

Under the swap agreements for the Class Al notes, Class Bi notes and Class C1 notes, the issuer
will pay to the swap countecparty the sterling amounts received in refetion to the Class A3 Investor
interest, the (lass B Investor interest and the Class C1 Investor Interest, less certain amounts
representing the issuer's costs and expenses and required earnings and less MTN Issuer additional
interest payments not required to pay amounts owing to the swap counterparty, and the swap
counterparty will contvert those sterling amounts into euro.

Optional Early Redemption

The issuer has the option 1o redeem all of the remaining notes when their principal balance is
reduced to less than 10 per cent. of their original principal balance.

Iif an optional early redemption occurs, you wil! receive a final distribution equal to the entire
unpaid principal balance of your notes plus any accrued and unpaid interest.
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Notices

Any notices that are required to be given by the term of your notes will be deemed to be validly
given if they are published in the Financial Times or ancther leading English language daily
newspaper in London.

U.S. Transfer Restrictions

The notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not at any
time be offered, sold or otherwise transferred in the United States or to, ar for the account or
benefit of, any US. person (as defined in Regulation S), except as described under "Underwriting".

Ratings of the Notes

Each Class of notes will be rated by Moody's Investors Services Limited and Standard & Poor's
Ratings Group. In this prospectus, we wiil refer to Moody's Investors Services Limited as Moody's
and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group as Standard & Peor's, both of which we will refer to together
as the rating agencies.

On issue, the issuer expects the notes to be assigned the following ratings:

Class A1 Class A2 Class 81 Class B2 Class C1 Class €2

Moody's Aaa Aaa Al Al Baal Baa?
Standard & Poor's AAA AAA A A BEB BBB

Application for Admission to the Official List and Admission to Trading

The issuer has applied to have the notes listed on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and
admitied to trading on the London Stock Exchange. The issuer expects the netes to be approved
for listing on or about 20 October 2005.

Stabilisation

In connection with this issue of notes, Barclays Bank £LC (the “‘Stabilising Manager) or any person
acting for it may over-allot notes provided that the aggregate principal amount of the notes
aliotted does not exceed 105 per cent. of the aggregate principal amount of the notes or effect
transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the notes {or any class of them) at a
level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the
Stabilising Manager {or persons acting on behalf of the Stabilising Manager) will undertake
stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adeguate
public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the notes is made, and, if begun, may be ended at
any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue of the notes and 60
days after the date of the allotment of the notes.



Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk factors before deciding to invest in the notes

offered by this prospectus.

You May Not Be Able to Sell
Your Notes

Allocations of Charged-Off
Receivables Could Reduce Your
Payments

The Class B Notes and the Class
C Notes Bear Additional Risk
Because They Are Subordinated

Inability of Nateholders to
Receive the Full Percentage
Allocation of Principal Collections
During the Regulated
Amaortisation Period Could Delay
Payments on Your Notes or
Cause a Loss on Your Notes

There currently is no secondary market for the notes. The
underwriters expect, but are not obligated, to make a market in
the notes, If no secondary market develaps, you may not be able
to sell your notes prior to maturity. We cannot offer any
assurance that one will develop or, if one does develop, that it
will continue.

We anticipate that the servicer will charge off or write off as
uncollectable some of the receivables. Each Class of investor
interest in the receivables trust will be aliocated a portion of those
charged-off receivables. If the amount of charged-off receivables
allocated to the investor interest exceeds the amount of funds
available to cover those charge-offs, the investor interest will be
reduced. This couid cause the holders of the notes to not receive
the full amount of principal and interest due to them. Any loss will
be borne by the noteholders in the order of suberdination of the
notes, with the Class C notes bearing the first losses, followed by
the Class B notes and finally the Class A notes. See "Series 05-3:
Defoulted Receivables; Investor Charge-Qffs”; “Barclaycard and
the Borclgycard Card Portfollo: Delinquernicy Experfence Securitised
Portfolio” and “'Barcloycord and the Borclgycord Cord Portfolio:
Loss Experience Securitised Portfolio.”

The Class B notes are subordinated in right of payment of
principal and interest to the Class A notes. Principal payments to
the Class B noteholders will nof be made until the Class A
nateholders are paid in full. On each payment date interest is paid
1o the Class A noteholders before payments of interest are made
to the Class B noteholders. This could cause the Class B
noteholders not to receive the full amount of principal or
interest due {o them.

The Class C notes are subordinated in right of payment of
principal and interest to the Class A notes and the Class B notes.
Principal payments to the Class C noteholders will not be made
until the Class A noteholders and the Class B noteholders are paid
in full. On each payment date interest is paid to the Class A
noteholders and the Class B8 noteholders before payments of
interest are made to the Class C notehelders. This could cause the
Class C noteholders not to receive the full amount of principal or
interest due to them.

Some series 05-3 pay out events will cause the start of the
regulated amortisation period rather than the rapid amortisaticn
period. During a regulated amortisaticn pericd, not all of the
principal colfections allocated to the investor interest may be used
to make payments of principal to the MTN Issuer as they would be
during a rapid amortisation period. Instead, principal payments to
the MTN Issuer — and thus ultimately on your notes - will be
limited 1o the controlied deposit amount. This could cause you 1o
receive payments of principal more slowly than you would during
arapid amortisaticn period. Since some of the series 05-3 pay out
gvents that result in the start of a requlated amortisation period
are caused by a deterioration in the performance of the
receivabies, a delay in the principal payments on your notes
could expose you to an increased risk of losses on your notes or a
delay in payment on your notes.
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Grouping of the MTN Issuer with
Barclays for Tax Purposes Could
Jeopardise the Bankruptcy
Remote Status of the MTN lssuer
Caustng an Earty Redemption of
Your Note or a Loss on Your
Naotes

issuance of Additional Series May
Adversely Affect Your Rights by
Diluting Your Voting Power

Contractual provisions will be contained in the security trust deed
and MTN lIssuer cash management agreement and the other
agreements to which the MTN Issuer is a party by which the other
parties to thase agreements agree not to take any actions against
the MTN Issuer that might lead to its bankruptcy. Furthermore,
the MTN Issuer will be contractually restricted from undertaking
any business other than in connection with the financings
described in this prespectus. In particular, the MTN Issuer will
be expressly prohibited from incurring any additional
indebtedness, having any employees, owning any premises and
establishing or acquiring any subsidiaries, Together, these
provisions ensure that the likelihood of the MTN Issuer
becoming insolvent or bankrupt is remote,

Notwithstanding the steps that have been and may be taken to
ensure that the insolvency of the MTN Issuer will be remote, the
MTN lssuer is included in the Barctays Group registration for VAT
purpGses. As a company included in that group registration,
broadly, it will be liable, on a joint and several basis with afl other
companies in the VAT group registration, for the VAT liability of
the representative member of the VAT group - Barclays Bank PLC
- arising only during the MTN Issuer’s period of membership.
Accordingly, these secondary liabilities for VAT could increase
the likelihood of the MTN Issuer becaming insolvent. In addition,
there are provisions in the UK tax code that are designed to
enable the UK HM Revenue and Customs to collect corporation
tax from one member of a group where another member of the
group has failed %o discharge certain taxes due and payabie by it
within a specified time period.

If the MTN Issuer were required to pay any VAT due from the
representative member of the Barclays VAT group or to become
liable for corporation tax fiabifities of another member in the
Barclays Group, which the MTN Issuer was unable to meet, the UK
HM Reverue and Customns could seek to put the MTN lssuer into
insolvency. This could cause an early redemption of your notes or
a loss on your notes.

The MTN Issier has issued nine previous series {of which eight
remain outstanding as series 95-1 was repaid in November 2002)
and may issue additional series of medium term notes or
certificates in connection with the issuance of other series of
investor certificates. The holder of the medium term notes or
certificates of each serfes — including the issuer — may require the
MTN Issuer, as investor beneficiary, to take action or direct
actions to be taken under the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement or a supplement. However, the consent
or approval of holders of a percentage of the total principai
balance of the medium term notes or certificates of all series
might be necessary to reguire or direct those actions. These
actions include terminating the appointment of the servicer under
the beneficiaries servicing agreement or the trust cash manager
under the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement. Thus, the holder of any new series of medium term
notes or certificates will have voting rights that will reduce the
percentage interest of the issuer as holder of the series 05-3
medium term note certificate. Holders of medium term notes or
certificates of other series - or persons with the power to direct
their actions - may have interests that do not coincide with the
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Insoivency of the Transferor May
Result in an Inability to
Repurchase Receivables

Insolvency of the Issuer, the MTN
Issuer or the Receivables Trustee
Could Cause an Early Redemption
of Your Notes or a Loss on Yeour
Notes

Application of the Consumer
Credit Act 1574 and Qther
Legislation May Impede
Collection Efforts and Could
Cause Early Redemption of your
Notes or a Loss on your Notes

interests of the Issuer - or the persons with the power to direct
the |ssuer. This may restrict your abllity to ultimately direct the
MTN Issuer to take the actions referred to above.

None of the MTN [ssuer, the receivables trustee or the issuer has
undertaken or will undertake any investigations, searches or other
actions to verify the details of the receivables - other than steps
taken by the Issuer to verify the detalls of the recelvables that are
presented in this prospectus - or to establish the creditworthiness
of any cardholder on the designated accounts. The MTN Issuer,
receivables trustee and the Issuer will rely solely on the
representations given by the transferor to the receivables
trustee about the receivables, the cardholders on the designated
accounts, the designated accounts and the effect of the
assignment of the receivables.

If any representation made by the transferor about the
receivables proves to have been incorrect when made, the
transferor will be required to repurchase the affected
receivables from the recelvables trustee, If the transfercr
becomes bankrupt or insolvent, the recelvables {rustee may be
unable to compel the transferor to repurchase receivables, and
you could incur a loss on your notes or an early redemption of
your notes.

The ability of each of the issuer, the MTN issuer and the
receivables trustee to meet its obligations under the notes, the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate and the receivables
securitisation agreement and the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement will depend upon their continyed
solvency.

A company that has assets in the United Kingdom will be insolvent
if it fiabilities exceed its assets or if it is unable to pay its debts as
they fall due. Each of the issuer, the MTN Issuer and the
receivables trustee have been structured so that the likelihood
of their becoming insolvent is remote. Each of these entities will
be contractually restricted from underiaking any business other
than in connection with the financings described in this
prospectus. They each will be expressly prohibited from
incurring any additional indebtedness, having any employees,
owning any premises and establishing or acquiring any
subsidiaries. Contractual provisions witl be contained in each of
the agreements other than your notes, to which each of these
entities is a party which will prohibit the other parties to those
agreements from taking any actions against these entities that
might lead to their insolvency. Together, these provisions help
ensure that the likelihcod of any of these entities becoming
insalvent or bankrupt is remote.

Notwithstanding these actions, it is still possible that the issuer,
the MTN Issuer or the receivables trustee could become insolvent.
If this were 10 occur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an
early redemption of your notes.

Thers is an increasing volume of fegislation that is applicable to
consumer credit in the United Kingdom. In addition, there are
proposals 1o amend existing legislation. Of particular importance
are the Consumer Credit Act 1974 (the “Consumer Credit Act™)
and the Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regulations 1999
(the "Regutations™). The Consumer Credit Act and Regulations
are administered by, amongst others, the Office of Fair Trading
{the "OFT"). The Consurner Credit Act and Regulations apply, in
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whole or in part, to the transactions cccurring on the designated
accounts and to the credit or charge card agreements. The effect
of the application of the Consumer Credit Act and the Regulations
on the relevant underlying credit or charge card agreements may
result in adverse consequences for your investment in the nates,
because of the possible unenforceability of, or possible liabilities
for misrepresentation ¢r breach of contract in relation to, an
underlying credit or charge card agreement.

As is common with many other UK credit card issuers, some of
Barclaycard's credit and charge card agreements do net comply
in ali respects with the Consumer Credit Act, the Regulations or
other related legislation,

In addition, Barclaycard, in common with many other UK credit
card issuers, has received and expects to continue to receive
correspondence from and to have discussions with, the OFT in
relation to concerns the OFT may raise from time to time in
respect of compliance of Barclaycard's credit and charge card
agreements with the Consumer Credit Act, the Regulations or
ather related legislation, or any other concerns that the OFT may
have I respect of Barclaycard's credit and charge card
agreements or Barclaycard’s advertising, marketing or
administration thereof.

if a credit or charge card agreement has not been executed or
modified in accordance with the Consumer Credit Act, it may be
unenforceable against a cardholder without a court order — and in
some instances may be completely unenforceable. The transferor
gives no guarantee that a court order could be obtained if
required.

with respect to those credit or charge card agreements which
may not be compliant, such that a court order could not be
obtained, the transferor estimates that this would apply to less
than 1 per cent of the aggregate principal receivables in the
designated accounts on 3% December 2004, Barclaycard does not
anticipate any material increase in the percentage of these
receivables in the securitised portfolio, In respect of those
accounts that do not cemply with the Consumer Credit Act it
will still be possible to collect payments and seek arrears from
cardholders who are falling behind with their payments, The
transferor wili have no obligation to repay or account to a
cardholder for any payments received by a cardholder because of
this non-compliance with the Consumer Credit Act. However, if
losses arise on these acceunts, they will be written off and borne
by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based on
their interests in the receivables trust. Accordingly, if this were to
occur. you could suffer a loss on your notes or an early
redemption on your notes.

Transactions involving the use of a credit card in the United
Kingdom may constitute transactions under debtor-creditor-
supplier agreements for the purposes of section 75 of the
Consumer Credit Act. A debtor-creditor-supplier agreement
includes an agreement by which the creditor, with knowledge
of its purpase, advances funds to finance the debtor's purchase of
goods or services from a supplier.

Section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act provides that if a supplier
breaches a contract between the supplier and a cardholder in a
transaction under certain debtor-creditor-supplier agreements,
or if the supplier makes a misrepresentation about the contract,
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Department of Trade and
Industry ("DTI") White Paper
dated December 2003 in
Connection with its Review of
Consumer Credit

Consumer Credit Regulations
made since the DTI published its
White Paper in December 2003

the creditor may alse be liable to the cardholder for the breach or
misrepresentation, An example of a supplier's breach of contract
would include the supplier seliing the cardhoider merchandise
that is defective or unsuitable for its purpose. In these
circumstances, the cardholder may have the right to reduce the
amount owed to the transferor under his or her credit or charge
card account. This right would survive the sale of the receivables
to the receivables trustee. As a result, the receivables trustee may
not receive the full amount otherwise owed by a cardholder.
However, the creditor will not be Hable where the cash price of
the item or service supplied underiying the claim is £100 or less,
or greater than £30,000.

The receivables trustee has agreed on a limited recourse basis to
indernnify the transferor for any loss suffered by the transferor
from a cardbolder claim under section 75 of the Consurner Credit
Act. This indemnity cannot exceed the original outstanding
principal balance of the affected charges on a designated account.

The receivables trustee's indemnity will be payable only from and
to the extent of excess spread on the receivables. Any amounts
that the transferor recovers from the supplier will reduce the
transferor's loss for purposes of the recejvables trustee’s
indemnity. This is described under “Series 05-3: Aggregate
Investor indemnity Amount”. The transferor will have rights of
indemnity against suppliers under section 75 of the Consumer
Credit Act. The transferor may also be abie to charge-back the
transaction in dispute to the supplier under the operating
regulations of VISA or MasterCard.

If the transferor's loss for purposes of the receivables trustee's
indernnity exceeds the excess spread available to satisfy the loss,
the transferor interest in the receivables trust will be reduced by
the amount of the excess loss.

Satisfaction by the receivables trustee of any such indemnity
payment {as described abave) could have the effect of reducing
or eliminating excess spread which might otherwise have been
available to the MTN Issuer. These consequences couid result in
wou incurring a loss on your investment or an early redemplion of
your notes.

In its White Paper dated December 2003, the DTI the UK
Government department responsible for consumer credit,
indicated that the Government proposed to take varicus actions
o address matters of concern to it in this area. Since then a
number of changes have been made by subordinate legislation
under the Consumer Credit Act.

Two sets of regulations that are particularly pertinent to
Barclaycard have been made during 2004 pursuant to the
Consumer Credit Act. The Consumer Credit (Advertisements)
Reguiations 2004 ("Advertisements Ragulations™) were made in
lune 2004 and came into force on 31 October 2004. They replace
regulations made in the period 1989-2000 in relation to the
advertising of consumer credit. The Consumer Credit
{Agreements) (Amendment) Regqulations 2004 (“Agreements
Regutations) were mace in June 2004 and came into force on
31 Maw X035,

The ¢, -usements Reguiations + tals a new statutory regime
govc . the content of mare-lay materials that promote
consamer credit, The Advertisements Regulations require every
credit agvertisement to be made in plain and intelligible language,
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Consumer Credit Bill introduced
into Parliament on 18 May 2005

be easily legible or clearly audible as the case may require and
specify the name of the advertiser. The Advertisements
Regulations prescribe information that has to be included in a
credit advertisement, In addition, the Advertisements Regulations
provide certain assumptions which must be applied when
calculating a total charge far credit and prescribe the manner
in which the total charge for credit and any stated annual
percentage rate must be disclosed. The Advertisements
Regulations are, broadly observed, stricter than the regulations
that they have replaced. it is unclear whether they will make it
materially more difficult to originate new accounts, but it is
possible that that might be their effect.

The possible unenforceability of, or possible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation to an
underlying credit or charge card agreement may result in
unrecoverable losses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. If losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
borne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficlary based
on their Interests in the receivables trust. Accordingly, if this were
to occur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an earty
redemption on your notes.

The Agreements Regulations amend the Consumer Credit
(Agreements) Regulations 1983 (1983 Regulations™). The
Agreements Regulations set out the order in which the
prescribed content of documents comprising a credit or charge
card agreement {including any variations to such agreements
which create a modifying agreement under section 82(3) of the
Consumer Credit Act) is to be glven and the place of the signature
and separate boxes required under the 1983 Regulations and the
Agreements Regulations. An additional form of consent is
required by the Agreements Regulations where a cardholder
purchases certain insurance products on ¢redit, In common with
the Advertisements Regulations, the Agreements Regulations
contain new prominence and legibility requirements and new
requirements in relation to the calculation and description of an
annhual percentage rate.

The possible unenforceability of, or possible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation to an
underlying credit or charge card agreement may result in
unrecoverable losses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. i Josses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
borne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based
on their interests in the receivables trust. Accordingly, if this were
to ocour, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an early
redemption on your notes.

Follawing the Generat Election held on 5 May 2005, the new
Government has introduced on 18 May 2005 a bill to amend the
Consumer Credit Act (the "Bill'). The BIll is substantially in the
same form as a bili introduced in the last Parliament. That bill did
not obtain sufficient Parliamentary time to become law before
Parliament was dissolved in order to hold the general election,

The Bill, if enacted, will, Inter afig, introduce into the Consumer
Credit Act a concept of an “unfair relationship”. This appears to
be a broad concept. A court would be entitled to look at any
aspect of a credit relationship in order to determine whether
unfairness exists. Under the Bill, remedies would include requiring
the creditor to pay back sums to the debtor that had previously
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Proposal for a second Et)
Directive refating to Consumer
Credit

EU Directive concerning Unfair
Commerdial Practices

Failure to Notify Cardholders of
the Transfer of Recefvables Could
Delay or Reduce Payments on
Your Notes

been paid by the debtor to the creditor. These provisions of the
Bill are intended to apply to all credit agreements regardless of
when entered into.

The Bill will also extend the ombudsman scheme under the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 to licensees under the
Consumer Credit Act. The extensicn of the ombudsman scheme
will allow a cardholder who has a complaint to raise it with the
ombudsman, provided that the complaint falls within the
consumer credit furisdiction conferred upon the ombudsman,

The possible unenforceability of, ar possible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation to an
underlying credit or charge card agreement may result in
unrecoverable losses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. If losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
borne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based
on their interests in the receivables trust. Accordingly, If this were
to occur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an early
redemption on your notes.

The Eurcpean Commission made a proposal for a new consurmer
credit directive in September 2002. The existing directive (87/
102/EEC) is now regarded by the European Commission as out of
date. Progress on agreeing a new directivé has been slow. The
European Parliament has recently appeared to be considering
some actions in relation to a new directive. The timetable for
further developments is unclear.

Directive 2005/29/EC concerning unfair business 1o consumer
commercial practices was made on 11 May 2005. This is a
directive of general application and is not confined to consumer
credit or other financial services. It is ant/cipated that the DTI will
lead implementatlon of this directive into UK faw. The directive is
due to be implemented by 12 June 2007, coming into force (with
same transitional provisions) no later than 12 December 2007
The directive is intended to achieve a high level of consumer
protection across the EU through harmonization of relevant EU
laws, The directive has a substantial focus on advertising and saleg
promotion practices. Whether its implementation would require
changes to, for example, the Advertisements Regulations remains
to be determined. Any such changes might have an adverse
impact on the ability of ¢redit and charge card issuers, such as
Barclavcard, to promote their products and services.

The possible unenforceability of, or possible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation to an
underlying credit or charge card agreement may result in
unrecaverable Josses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. if losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
borne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based
on their interests in the receivables trust. Accerdingly, if this were
to occur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an early
redemption on your notes.

The transfer by the transferor to the receivables trustee of the
enefit of the receivables is governed by English law and does not
give the receivables trustee {ull iegal title to the receivables.
Notice 16 the cargholders of the transfer would perfect the Jegal
title of the receivables trustee to the receivables. The receivables
trustee has agreed that notice of the transfer will not be given to
cardholders unless the transferor's long-term senior unsecured
indebteaness as rated by Moody's. Standard & Poor’s or Fitch
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Competition in the UK Credit
Card Industry Could Lead to
Early Redemption of Your Notes

Social, Legal, Political and
Economic Factors Affect Card
Payments and Are Unpredictable

were to fall below Baa2, BEB or BBB, respectively. The lack of
notice has several legal conseguences that could delay or reduce
payments on your notes.

Until notice is given to a cardholder, the cardholder will discharge
his or her obligation under the designated account by making
payment to the transferor.

Prior to the insolvency of the transferor, unless notice was given
to a cardhoider who Is a depositor or other creditor of the
transferor, equitable set-offs may accrue in favour of the
cardhoider against his or her obligation to make payments to
the transferor under the designated account. These rights may
resuit in the receivables trustee receiving reduced payments on
the receivables. The transfer of the benefit of any receivables to
the receivables trustee will cantinue to be subject bath to any
prior equities that a cardholder had and to any equities the
cardholder may become entitled to after the transfer. Where
notice of the transfer is given to a cardhelder, however, some
rights of set-off may not arise after the date notice is given.

Failure to give notice to the cardholder means that the receivables
trustee would not take priority over any interest of a later
encumbrancer or transferee of the transferor's rights who has np
notice of the transfer to the receivables trustee. This could lead to
a Joss en your notes.

Failure to give notice to the cardholder also means that the
transferor or the cardholder can amend the card agreement
without obtaining the receivables trustee’s consent, This could
adversely affect the receivables trustee’s interest in the
receivables, which could lead to a loss on your notes.

The credit and charge card industry in the United Kingdom is
highly <ompetitive. There is increased competitive use of
advertising, target marketinig and pricing competition in interest
rates and cardholder fees as both traditional and new card issuers
seek to expand or enter the UK market and compete for
customers.

New card issuers may rely on customer loyalty and may have
particular ways of reaching and attracting customers. For
example, major supermarket retailers are promoting the use of
their own cards through extensive in-store campaigns and jow
introductory interest rates. Also, in the last few years a number of
new card issuers have entered the UK market from the United
States and have sought to build market share primarily through
aggressive pricing. As a result of this competition, certain
competitars offer cards to selected customers at lower interest
rates than those offered by Barclaycard,

This competitive environment may affect the originator’s ability
to originate new accounts and generate new receivables. If the
rate at which new receivables are generated declines significantly
and if the transferor is unable to nominate additional accounts or
product lines for the receivables trust, a series 05-3 pay out event
could accur. A series 05-3 pay out event could result in an early
redemption of yaur notes,

Changes in card use, payment patterns, amounts of yield on the
card portfolio generally and the rate of defaults by cardholders
may result from a variety of social, legal, political and economic
factors in the United Kingdomi. Social factors include changes in
public confidence levels, attitudes toward incurring debt and
perception of the use of credit and charge cards. Economic
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Reduction in the Rate of
Interchange Caused by Potential
Adverse Regulatory Rulings May
Adversely Affect Payments on
Your Notes

factors include the rate of inflaticn, the unemployment rate and
relative interest rates offered for various types of loans. Political
factors Iinclude lobbying from interest groups, such as consumers
and retallers, and government initiatives in consumer and refated
affairs. There is currently significant politicai Interest In the
consumer credit market and, in particular, credit cards. For
example, a recent report by the Treasury Select Committee in
credit card charges is placing significant public pressure on credit
card issuers to increase disclosure of charges. 1t is also calling for
the introduction of a standardised approach to the calculation of
interest rates. Since October 2003, the OFT has been investigating
the level of default charges applied by the credit card industry.
These are fees charged when @ tustomer pays late or goes over
their credit limit. Barclaycard, atfong with other credit card issuers,
has been cooperating with the investigation, The OFT issued a
press release on 26th July 2005 stating that their provisionai
conclusion was that these fees are excessive and need to be
reduced to be fair. The OFT have given Barclaycard. and seven
other credit card companies, three months to provide suitable
undertakings regarding the basis of future default charges or
otherwise to address the concerns of the OFT. Over the next
months, it is anticipated that Barclays will continue to work with
the OFT to address its concerns. We are unable to determine and
have no basis on which ta predict accurately whether, or to what
extent, social, legal, political or economic factors, including the
above-noted OFT investigation and correspondence, will affect
the future use of credit, default rates, the vield on the card
portfolio generally or cardhalder repayment patterns.

Barclaycard receives fees catled “interchange” from the banks
that clear transactions for merchants as partiai compensation for
amongst other things, taking credit risk and absorbing fraud
losses, See “The Recefvables.” The OFT have been conducting an
examination of whether the rates of interchange paid by retailers
in respect of MasterCard credit and charge cards in the United
Kingdom are too high. In connection with this investigation, the
OFT have recently announced a decision with respect to an
agreement (which agreement is ne longer in effect) regarding the
rate of interchange for MasterCard credit and charge cards. The
decision indicated that the agreement constituted a collective
agreement on price with respect to the level of interchange fees,
and afso stated that the agreement resuited in the unjustified
recovery of certain costs. The OFT have indicated that its
examination will consider the agreement currently in effect with
respect to rates of interchange to be paid in respect of
MasterCard credit and charge cards. If an OFT decislon similar
10 that reached regarding the old agreemem (s reached with
respect to the current agreement, or if agreement is reached on a
fower rate of interchange, such decision or agreement will
adversely affect the yield on UK credit card portfolios. The OFT
have also announced an investigation intc rates of interchange in
respect of VISA cards, This investigation is in the prefiminary
stages and the OFT have announced that it intends to reach its
preliminary conciusions regarding this investigation shortly. The
European Commission issued a decision on 24 July 2002
concluding that an examination of the level of cross-border
interchange within the European Union in respect of VISA credit
and charge cards was toa high and required VISA ta undertake a
phased reduction In the rate of interchange to be paid by retallers
in the futiire, We note that the European Cornmission will be free
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Electronic Commerce Directive

to re-examine thls issue after 31 December 2007. In addition, the
Europeann Commission is presently investigating MasterCard's
rules and agreement, in particular on the interchange fees. A
reduction in the rate of interchange as a result of these findings
could affect the future yield on the card portfolio and adversely
affect payment on your notes.

with effect from (for the most part) 21 August 2002, the E-
Commerce Directive (the “ECD") has been effected in the United
Kingdom by a number of statutory instruments and implementing
rules including, but not limited to, the Electronic Commerce (EC
Directive) Regulations 2002 (which apply to non-FSA regulated
entities), the Electronic Commerce Directive (Financial Services
and Markets) Regulations 2002, as amended (which apply to FSA
regulated entities) and the creation of the Electronic Commerce
Drirective sourcebook ("ECO™) in the FSA Handbook.

In essence the ECD aims to free up cross-border “information
society services” by requiring Member States toc apply the
principie of “country of origin” regulation to services provided
using electronic means. "Information society services” are defined
as “any service normally provided for remuneration, at a distance
by means of electronic equipment for the processing (inciuding
digital compressicn) and storage of data, and at the individual
request of a recipient of a service” and will therefore include (but
are not limited to) web-based cnline information. Under the
principle of “country of crigin”, a firm providing cross-border
“information society services” must comply with the applicable
rules in the country from which it is providing the services and the
country into which it Is providing the services cannot impose
additional restrictions. As such, in providing “information society
services" {whether in the UK or In another EEA state), the Seller
will be required to comply with applicable rules in the United
Kingdom ({including, but not limited to, the United Kingdom
financial promotions regime).

The ECD also requires Member States to impose disclosure and
other rules on firms offering “information society services" before
any contract Is entered into. The information to be disclosed
includes, but is not limited to, contact details and background
information in respect of the service provider, a varlety of
information which is required to be provided in a clear and
unambiguous manner and disclosure of information to the
recipient on how to conclude contractual arrangements.

Failure to comply with the ECO rules could result in, amongst
other things, disciplinary action by the FSA and possible claims
under section 150 of FSMA for breach of FSA rules. Under the
Electronic Commerce (EC Directive) Regulations 2002 the
information disclosure requirements are enforceabfe, at the suit
of any recipient of a service, by an action against the service
provider for damages for breach of statutory duty. in addition,
where a person has entered into a contract to which the
Electronic Commerce (EC Directive) Regulations 2002 apply and
the service provider has not made available means of allowing
him to identify and correct input errors prior to concluding the
contract, the recipient will be entitled to rescind the contract
unless a court having jurisdiction in respect of the particular
contract orders otherwise on the application of the service
provider, The Electronic Commerce (EC Directive} Regulations
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A Change in the Terms of the
Recelvables May Adversely Affect
the Amount or Timing of
Collections and May Cause an
Earty Redemption of Your Notes
or a Downgrade of Your Notes

Principal on Your Notés May Be
Paid Earlier Than Expected -
Creating a Reinvestment Risk to
You - or Later than Expected

Credit Enhancement May Be
Insufficient to Prevent a Loss &n
Your Notes

2002 also enable an application to be made for 2 court order to
stop an infringement of the information disclosure requirements
which harms the collective interests of consumers,

Only the receivables arising under the designated accounts are
transferred to the receivables trustee. The originator wlll cantinue
to own those accounts. As the ownper of the accounts, the
originator retains the right to change the terms of the accourits,
For example, the originator could change the monthly interest
rate, increase or reduce the credit limnits on the accounts, reduce
or eliminate fees on the accounts or reduce the required
minimum menthly payment.

The originator may change the terms of the accounts te maintain
its competitive position in the UK credit and charge card industry.
Changes in interest and fees could lower the amount of finance
charge receivables generated by those accounts. This could cause
a pay out event to occur, which might cause an early redemption
of your notes. This could also cause a reduction in the credit
ratings on your notes.

The receivables in the receivables trust may be paid at any time
and we cannot assure you that new receivables will be generated
or will be generated at levels needed to maintain the receivables
trust, To prevent the early redemption of the notes, new
receivables must be generated and added to the receivables
trust or new accounts must be nominated for the receivables
trust. The receivables trust is required to maintain a minimum
amount of receivables. The generaticn of new receivables or
receivables in new accounts is affected by the originator’s ability
to compete in the current industry environment and by
customers changing borrowing and payment patterns. If there Is
a decline in the generation of new receivables or new accounts,
you may be repaid your principal befere the expected date.

One factor that affects the lavel of finance charges ane principal
collections is the extent of convenience usage. Convenience use
means that the cardhelders pay their account balances in full on
or prior to the due date. The cardholder, therefore, avoids alt
finance charges on his or her account An increase in the
convenien<e usage by cardholders would decrease the effective
yield on the accounts and could cause a pay out event and
therefore possibly an early redemption of your notes.

No premium will be paid upon an early redemption of your notes.
If you receive principal on your notes earlier than expected, you
may not be able to reinvest the principal at a similar rate of
return.

Alternatively, a decrease in convenience usage may reduce the
principal payment rate on the accounts. This could result in you
receiving the principal on your notes later than expected.

Credit enhancernent for your notes is limited. The only assets that
will be available to make payment on your notes are the assets of
the issuer pledged to secure payment of your notes. if problems
deveiop with the receivables, such as an increase In lesses on the
receivables, or if there are problerns in the collection and transfer
of the receivables to the trust, or if the swap counterparty falls to
make paymenis on the swap agreement, it is possible that you
may not receive the full amount of interest and principal that you
would atherwise receive.
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Issuance of Additional Series by
the Receivables Trustee on Behalf
of the Receivables Trust May
Adversely Affect Payments on
Your Notes

Credit Quality of the Receivables
Trust’s Assets May Be Eroded by
the Addition of New Accounts
Which Could Adversely Affect
Collections of Receivables

Interest Rate Payable on the
Series 05-3 Medium Term Note
Certificate May Increase Without
a Corresponding Change in Card
Rates Potentially Causing a Loss
on Your Notes or Early
Redemption of Your Notes

Series 05-3 Is the tenth serles (of which only eight are
outstanding) created within the receivables trust. Additional
series may from time to time be created within the receivables
trust. Any new series of investor certificates - and medium term
notes or certificates and nates — will also be payable from the
receivables in the receivables trust. The principal terms of any
new series of investor certificates will be contained in a new series
supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement. The terms of a new series contained
in the new supplement tc the declaration of trust and trust cash
management will not be subject to your prior review ar consent.

The principal terms of a2 new series may include methods for
determining investor percentages and allocating collections,
provisions creating different or additional security or other
credit enhancement for the new series, provisions subordinating
the new series toc other series, and other amendments or
supplements to the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement that apply only to the new series. It is
a condition to the issuance of a new series that each rating agency
that has rated any debt ultimately payable from a prior series of
investor certificates that is outstanding - including ycur notes -
confirms in writing that the issuance of the new series will not
resuit in a reduction or withdrawal of its rating.

However, the terms of a new series could adversely affect the
timing and amounts of payments on any ather outstanding series,
including series of which your notes are a part.

The transfercr may designate additional credit or charge card
accounts as designated accounts and offer the receivables trustee
an assignment of the receivables arising under the additional
accounts. The transferor may be required at times to nominate
additional accounts as designated accounts, These accounts may
include accounts that were originated or acquired using criteria
that are different from those applicable to the accounts from
which recefvables were originally assigned to the receivables
trustee. For example, they could be criginated at a different date
with different underwriting standards, or they could be acquired
from another institution that used different underwriting
standards. Consequently, there can be no assurance that
accounts that become designated accounts in the future will
have the same credit quality as the designated accounts on the
closing date. This could adversely affect collections on the
receivables. If this occurred you could suffer a loss on your notes.

In line with the rest of the UK market, Barclaycard may apply
differential interest rates to each product offering, some of which
may be fixed for predetermined periods. The majority of the
designated accounts have monthly interest rates that are
constant, except for Barclaycard's ability to change the interest
rate at its discretion. The interest rate paid on the series 05-3
medium term note certificate will be based on the London
interbank offered rate for deposits in sterling, which changes
from time to time. Accordingly, the interest payable on the series
05-3 medium term note certificate could increase without a
corresponding increase in the amount of finance charge
collections. If this occurred, you could suffer a foss on your
notes or a pay out event could occur causing an early redemption
of your notes,
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Commingling ef Collections with
Transferor May Delay or Reduce
Payments on Your Notes

If the Transferor Opts to Treat a
Portion of Principal Receivables
as Finance Charge Receivables,
an Early Redemption of Your
Notes Could Occur or Could Be
Delayed

Exercise of Regulatory Call
Option will Result in Mandatary
Call on Class B Notes and Class C
Notes

Collectlons from cardholders for the designated accounts and
other Barclaycard cardholders will initially be paid to an operating
account of the transferar. The transferor has declared a trust aver
the operating account in favour of the receivables trustee for
collections that are deposited in it. Collections on the designated
accounts witt be transferred to the trustee collection account
within two business days of being identified.

For the limited time that collections on the designated accounts
are in the operating accaunt, they may be commingled with other
funds of the transferor or future beneficiaries and they may be
untracezble. Consequently, if the transferor were to become
insolvent, there may be a delay in the transfer of collections to the
receivables trustee if the transferor - or a liquidator or
administrator of the transferor - attempted to freeze the
operation of the operating account pending completion of any
rights of tracing. This could uitimately cause a delay or reduction
in the payments you receive on your notes.

The transferor may opt to cause a percentage of receivables that
would ctherwise be treated as principal recejvables to be treated
as finance charge receivables. If the transferor were to exercise
this option, it could prevent a pay out event from occurring
because of a reduction of the portfolio yield, which could defay an
early redemption of your notes at a time when the performance
of the receivables is deteriorating. Once this optien is exercised,
the transferor may also reduce the percentage or stop using the
percentage at any time. However, this option, if exercised, will
reduce the aggregate amount of principal receivables, which may
increase the likelihood that the transferor will be required to
designate additional accounts from which receivables will he
assigned to the receivables trustee. If the transferor were unabie
to designate additional accounts, a pay out event ¢ould occur and
you could recelve payments of principal on your notes before you
expect them.

In the event of the occurrence of a regulatory call event (as
defined below), the reguiatory call option (as defined below) is
required 10 be mandatorily exercised. If a regulatory call event
occurs, the issuer shall as soon as practicable following the
occurrence of such regulatory call event by not less than thirty
and not more than sixty days prior notice to the note trustee and
noteholders call all, but not some only, of the Class B notes and
the Class C notes, such call to be exercisable on the Interest
Payment Date following any such notice. On such Interest
Payment Date following any such notice, if you are a holder of
Class B notes and/or Class C notes, you are required to sel! alt of
your Class B notes and/or Class C notes (as applicable) to the
issuer (or any assignee of the regulatory cali option), pursuant to
the option granted to the issuer by the note trustee on your
behalf (see condition number 6 of the notes}. Such notice must
confirm that there will be sufficient funds available to satisfy all
obligations in connection with the exercise of such call option,
The regulatery call gption is granted to acquire all, but not some
only, of the then outstanding Class B notes and Class C notes, plus
accrued interest (if any}y on them, for a purchase price equal to
the then par value of the Class B notes and Class C notes. This is
called the “regulatory call option”. A “regulatory call event”
means the delivery to the issuer and the note trustee of a notice
from Barclays Bank PLC which states that the regulatory capital
treatment for Barclays Bank PLC applicable in respect of the
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If Optional Early Redemption
Occurs, It Will Result in an Early
Redemption of Your Notes
Creating a Reinvestment Risk

if Cardholders Are Concentrated
in a Geographic Region,
Economic Downturn in that
Region May Adversely Affect
Collections of Receivables

Adoption of the Euro by the
United Kingdom Would Have
Uncertain Effects on Your Notes

Taxable Nature of the MTN
Issuer or the Issuer Could Cause
a Loss on Your Notes

transaction to which the issuance of the Class B notes and Class C
notes relates has become materially impaired by the
implementation of the reform of the 1988 Capital Accord (in
conjunction with proposals put forward by the Basel Committee
on Banking Supervision and to be implemented for credit
Institutions pursuant to the EU Capital Adequacy Directive).
Immediately following the issuance of the notes, the issuer
intends to trrevocably novate its rights and obligations under the
regulatory call option to Barclays Bank PLC and accordingly in the
event of such assignment the exercise of the regulatory calf
option will require you to sell your Class B notes and/or Class C
notes (as applicable) to Barclays Bank PLC.

when the total principal balance of the notes is reduced to less
than 10 per cent. of their ariginal principal balance, the issuer has
the option to redeem the notes in full. This early redemption may
result in an early return of your investrment. No premium will be
paid in the event of an exercise of the early redemptian optior. If
you receive principal on your notes earlier than expected, vou
may not be able to reinvest the principal at a rate of return similar
to that on your notes.

If the receivables trust has a high concentration of receivables
from cardholders located in a single region, an economic
downturn in that region may have a magnified adverse effect
on the receivables trust because of that concentration. This
prospectus contains a geegraphic breakdown of accounts and the
amount of receivables generated in the regions of the United
Kingdom. See “The Recelvables: Geographic Distribution of
Accounts - Securiftised Portfolio”

As determined from postcode information for the location of
cardholders as of 31 August 2005, the three largest
concentrations of cardholders as at 31 August 2005 were
London representing 19.2 per cent. of total outstanding
bafances, the South East of England with 16.6 per cent. of total
cutstanding balances and the East of England with 11.3 per cent,
of total outstanding balances. No other region cutrently accounts
for more than 9 per cent. of the outstanding balance of the
receivables. These concentration levels may change in the future.

Future adverse economic conditions affecting any of these
regions or any of the other regions, however, could adversely
affect the performance of the receivables which could result in a
loss on your notes.

Before your notes have matured, the euro could become the
lawful currency of the United Kingdom. If that were to happen, all
amounts payable on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate
—including the sterling payments owed to the swap counterparty
on the swap agreements may become payable in eure. If the series
05-3 medium term note certificate is outstanding when the euro
becomes the lawful currency of the United Kingdom, we intend to
make payments on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate
and the swap agreements according to the then market practice
of payment on debts or, as the case may be, swaps. We are
uncertain what effect, if any, the adoption of the eurc by the
United Kingdom may have on your notes.

The United Kingdom tax authorities are currently engaged in
consultations with the securitisation industry regarding changes
to the tax rules that are applicable to “securitisation companies”
such as the MTN Issuer and the issuer, with those changes being
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Change in the Taxable Nature or
Basis of Taxation of the
Receivables Trustee, MTN issuer
or Issuer Could Cause a Loss on
Your Notes

Limited Nature of Credit Ratings
Assigned to Your Notes

expected to take effect in refation to the MTN issuer and the
issuer as of the commencement of 2007. This is part of a wider
review of the UK tax legislation, the purpose of which is to ensure
that taxpayers do net suffer unsustainable tax anomalies as a
result of the transition to accounting under International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") (or under new UK
accounting standards based on IFRS). The UK tax authorities
have indicated over a considerable period that their general palicy
is to preserve the tax neutrality of securitisation companies such
as the MTN Issuer and the issuer. However, if the relevant revised
tax rules, when introduced, do not maintain such tax neutrality,
the MTN lIssuer or the issuer, as the case may be, may in
consequence be subject to corporation tax on a greater amoundt,
and you could suffer losses on your notes as a result.

If the taxable profits of the MTN lIssuer ar the issuer are greater
than expected, because either the profit shown in the profit and
lass account is greater than 1 baslis point of the princlpal amount
outstanding, or non-deductible expenses or losses are greater
than expected. the MTN Issuer or the issuer, as the case may be,
will be subject to corporation tax an the greater amount at the
maximum rate of currently 30 per cent, and you could suffer
iosses on your notes as a result

The structure of the issue of the notes and the ratings which are
to be assigned to them are based on English law, reguiatory,
accounting and administrative practice in effect as at the date of
this prospectus, and having due regard to the expected tax
treatment of the issuer and the MTN Issuer under United Kingdorm
tax law and the published practice of HM Revenue and Customs
("HMRC") in force or applied in the United Kingdom as at the date
of this prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of
any possible change to English law, regulatory, accounting or
administrative practice in the United Kingdom or to United
Kingdom tax law, or the interpretation or administration thereof,
or to the published practice of HMRC, as applied in the United
Kingdom after the date of this prospectus.

If there is a relevant change of law in the United Kingdom or
lersey, or change of practice of HMRC, or change in the
accounting treatment of the MTN lIssuer or the issuer, this
could result in the taxable profits of the MTN Issuer or the issuer
being greater than expected and yau could suffer losses an vour
notes as a result

No specific transaction rulings on this issue will be obtained from
HMRC. In addition, there is no case law authority on a number of
features of the transactions that raise difficult questions.

Each credit rating assigned to your notes reflects the rating
agency's assessment only of the likelihood that interest and
principal will be paid to you by the final redemption date, hot that
it wili be pald when expected or scheduled. These ratings are
based on the rating agencies’ determination of the value of the
receivabies, the refiability of the payments on the receivables, the
creditworthiness of the swap counterparty and the availability of
credit enhancement,

The ratings do not address the following:

® the likelihood that the principal or interest on your notes will
be redeemed or paid. as expected, on the scheduled
redemnption dates:
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Ratings Can Be Lowered or
Withdrawn After You Purchase
Your Notes

Termination of the Swap
Agreements Could Result in an
Early Redemption of Your Notes

& the possibility of the impasition of United Kingdom or
European withholding tax;

the marketability of the notes, or any market price; or

® that an investment in the notes is a suitable investment for
you.

A rating is not a recommendation to purchase, hold or sell notes.

Any rating agency may lower its rating or withdraw its rating if, in
the sole judgement of the rating agency, the credit guality of the
notes has declined or is in question or for other tangible and
intangibie reasons. If any rating assigned to your notes is lowered
or withdrawn, the market value of your notes may be reduced.

Pursuant te the swap agreements the swap counterparty may
assign the swap agreements to a replacement swap counterparty
If the long-term credit rating of the swap counterparty is
withdrawn or reduced below “"A1” by Moody's or its short-term
credit rating is withdrawn or reduced below “P-1" by Moody's or
its short-term credit rating is reduced below “A-1+" by Standard
& Poor's and the swap counterparty has not remedied the event
of conducted such other actions {such as collateralisation aor the
abtaining of a guarantor) set out under the terms of the swap
agreements. We cannot assure you, however, that the swap
counterparty will be able to find a replacement counterparty and
assign the swap agreements in this event or that the ratings of
your notes will not be withdrawn or recuced in this event.

A swap agreement may be terminated, but oniy if the issuer has
been directed to do 50 by the relevant noteholders, if as a result of
a change in applicable faw, witinholding taxes would be imposed -
by any jurisdiction — oh payments to the issuer under the series
05-3 medium term note certificate or on any payments made or
required to be made to the issuer by the swap counterparty or by
the issuer to the swap counterparty under the swap agreement
and there are nol any reasonable measures that the swap
counterparty or the issuer can take to avoid their impaosition. In
addition, a swap agreement may be terminated, but oniy if the
issuer has been directed to do so by the relevant noteholders, if as
a result of a change in applicable law, the issuer or any paying
agent has or will become obligated to deduct or withhold
amourits from payments on the related Class of notes 1o be made
to any of the related noteholders on the next Interest Payment
Date. for any tax, assessment or other governmental charge
imposed by the United Kingdom or any political subdivision or
taxing authority of the United Kingdom on the payments and
there are no reasonable measures the Issuer can take ta avoid the
tax or assessment.

A payment default by the swap counterparty or a default in the
payment in respect of interest by the issuer to the swap
caunterparty, if funds are available to the issuer to make that
payment, will result in a termination of a swap agreement, The
swait agreements may alsc terminate following a material breach
of a representation or covenant by the swap counterparty. the
insolvency of the issuer or the swap counterparty or changes in
law resulting in illegality.

The swap agreement may also be terminated if certain other
events described under “The Swop Agreements: Common
Pravisions of the Swap Agreements” oceur.
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Change In Law May Result in
Withholding Taxes on Swap
Payments or the Series 05-3
Medium Term Note

Certificate and this May Reduce
the Amount You Are Paid on
Your Notes

Change in Law May Result in
Withhalding Taxes oh Your Note
and this May Reduce the Amount
You Are Paid on Your Notes

The termination without replacement of any of the swap
agreements will result in an event of default under the euro
nates and a pay out event that results in a rapid amortisation
period. We cannot assure you that any of the swap agreements
will not terminate prior to the payment in full of the principal
balance of the eurc notes. If any of the swap agreements
terminates prior to the pavment In full of the principal balance of
the euro notes, you could receive payments of principal on the
euro notes before you expect them.

The issuer and the swap counterparty will each represent and
warrant in each swap agreement that, under current applicable
law, each of them is entitfed to make ali payments required to be
made by them under the swap agreement free and clear of, and
without deduction for or on account of, any taxes, assessments or
other governmenta! charges - which we refer to as withhoiding
taxes. However, neither the issuer nor the swap counterparty will
be required to indemnify the other party for any withholding
taxes imposed on payments under a swap agreement as a result of
a change In applicable law.

If any withholding taxes would be imposed - by any jurisdiction -
on payments to the issuer under the series 05-3 medium term
note as a result of a change in applicable law, then the MTN Issuer
additional interest payments, to the extent available, will be used
to cover the shortfall in the amounts available for payment to the
noteholders caused by the amount withheld (after the amounts
related to the eure notes are converled at the spot exchange rate
to euro). if the MTN Issuer additional interest payments are not
sufficient to cover the shorfall, then payments to first the Class €
noteholders, second the Class B notenoiders and finally the Class
A noteholders (pro rata and pari passu among the notes of each
Class} will be reduced by the amount withheld that is not covered
by the MTN Issuer additional interest payments.

If any withholding tax would be imposed - by any jurisdiction - on
any payments made or required to be made by the swap
counterparty to the issuer or by the issuer to the swap
counterparty under a swap agreement as z result of a change in
applicable law and the abligation to deduct ar withhold cannot be
avoided by the swap counterparty or the issuer, then the amount
to be paic by the other party will be reduced also pro rata by any
amount witbheld for any withhoiding taxes, In that event the MTN
issuer additional interest payments, to the extent available, wil be
converted at the spot exchange rate n euro to cover the shortfall
in the amounts available for payment on the euro notes caused by
the amount withheld. f the MTN Issuer additional interest
payments are not sufficient 10 cover the shorifall, then
pavments to first the Class C1 noteholders, second the Class B1
notehoiders and finally the Class Al noteholders will be reduced
by the amount withheld that is not covered by the MTN Issuer
additional interest payments. See “The Swop Agreements -
Toxation”.

Alternatively, the issuer may terminate the swap agreement but
only if it has been directed to do 50 by the relevant noteholders.
See "The Swap Agreements”.

{f any UK withholding taxes are imposed on any payments made
or required to be made by the issuer or any paying agent on any
Class of notes, then payments to that Class of noteholders will be
reduced pro rata by any amount withheld for any withholding
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Payment of an Early Termination
Payment to the Swap
Counterparty May Reduce
Payments on Your Notes

You will not Receive Physical
Notes, Which May Cause Delays
in Distributions and Hamper Your
Ability to Pledge or Resell the
Notes

taxes, and in addition, if the relevant ncteholders so elect to direct
the issuer, the issuer will terminate the swap. See "The Swap
Agreements.”

if a swap agreement is terminated befare its scheduled
termination date, the issuer or the swap counterparty may be
liable to make an early termination payment to the other party.
The amount of any early termination payment will be based on
the market value of the terminated swap agreement. This market
value will be computed on the basis of market guotations of the
cost of entering into a swap transaction with the same terms and
conditions that would have the effect of preserving the respective
full payment obligations of the parties. Any early termination
payment could, if the sterling/euro exchange rate has changed
significantly, be substantial.

Any early termination payment made by the issuer to the swap
counterparty under a swap agreement will be made first from
MTN Issuer additional interest payments and second from
repayments of principal on the series 05-3 medium term ncte
certificate equal to the amount of principal repayments received
by the issuer on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.
That could cause the sterling amounts available for conversion to
euro, and possibly payments on the eurc notes to be reduced —
perhaps substantially. If the amount of available MTN Issuer
additional interest payments and repayments of principal on the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate is insuffictent to pay the
early termination payment under the relevant swap agreement,
the balance of the early termination payment will be paid to the
extent that such amounts are available on the next Interest
Payment Date together with interest. See “The Swaop
Agreements”.

Unless the global ncte certificates are exchanged for individual
note certificates, which will only occur under a limited set of
circumstances, your beneficial ownership of the notes will an}y be
registered in book-entry form with Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg. The iack of physical notes could, among other
things:
& result in payment delays on the notes because we will be
sending distributions on the notes to Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg instead of directly to you:

& make it difficult for you to pledge or otherwise grant security
over the notes if physical notes are required by the party
demanding the piedge or other security; and

# hinder your ability to resell the notes because some investors
may be unwilling to buy notes that are not in physical form.
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Introduction

You can find a listing of the pages where terms used in this prospectus are defined under the
caption "Index Of Terms For Prospectus” beginning on page 166.

Currency Presentation

References throughout this document to “£”, “pounds”, “sterling” or “pounds sterling” are to the
lawful currency of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Morthern Ireland. References in this
document to “euro” ar "€ are to the single currency introduced at the third stage of European
Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Communities, as
amended by the Treaty on European Union.
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The Issuer

The issuer was formed in England and Wales on 10 August 2005 under the name of Sequingrove
PLC with registered number 5532418 as a public company with limited liability under the
Companles Acts 1985 and 1989, which is alse the primary legislation under which the issuer
operates. It passed a special resclution to change its name o Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10)
PLL on 30 September 2005. lts registered office and principal place of business are located at 1
Churchill Place, London E14 5HP, United Kingdom (tel: 0207 1161000). The lIssuer has no
subsidiaries.

The issuer was incorporated with an authorised share capital of £50,000, comprising 50,000
ordinary shares of £i each. Twe ordinary shares were allotted for cash, and fully paid, on
incorporation. On 30 Septernber 2005, 49,998 ordinary shares were resolved to be allotted and on
30 Septemnber 2005 were each quarter paid, 49,999 shares are held by Gracechurch Card (Holdings)
Limited and one share is held by a share trustee under the terms of a share declaration of trust.
The Issuer has a fiscal year end date of 31 December. There is nc loan capital, berrowing, other
indebtedness, contingent liabilities or guarantees as at the date of this prospectus in respect of this
campany. There has been no material change in the capitallsation, indebtedness, guarantees and
contingent liabilities and the issuer has not traded since 10 August 2005.

The issuer was formed principally to:
issue the notes;

&  enter into all financial arrangements in order to issue the notes;
e  purchase the series 05-3 medium term note certificate; and
o enter into all the documents necessary to purchase the series 05-3 medium term note

certificate.

Directors and Secretary

The following sets out the directors of the issuer and their business addresses and principal
activities, Because the issuer is organised as a special purpose company and will be largely passive,
it is expected that the directors of the issuer in that capacity will participate in its management to
a limited extent.

Name Nationality Business Address Principal Activities

Paul Gerard Turner British 1234 Pavilion Drive, Finance Director,
Northamptan NN4 756 Barclaycard

SFM Directors Limited British 35 Great St. Helen's, Director of special
London EC3A 6AP purpose companies

SFM Directors (No. 2) Limited British 35 Great St Helen's, Director of special
London EC3A BAP purpose companies

John Llewellyn-fones is an altemate director to Paul Gerard Turner. His principal activity is Financial
Controiler, Barclaycard. His business address is 1234 Pavilion Drive, Northampton NN4 75G.

The directors of SFM Directors Limited and SFM Directors (No. 2) Limited are Jonathan Keighiey,
James Macdonald and Robert Berry. Their principal activities include the provision of directors and
corporate management services to structured finance transactions as directors on the boards of
SFM Directors Limited and SFM Directors {No, 2} Limited, The business address of the directors of
SFM Directors Limited and SFM Directors (No, 2} Limited is 35 Creat St. Helen's, London EC3A
GAP.

Barcosec Limited will provide the issuer with general secretarial, registrar and company
administration services. The fees of Barcosec Limited for providing such services wili be included in
the MTN Issuer Costs Amounts. See "Series 05-3: Allocation, Coiculation and Distribution of Fincnce
Charge Collections to the MTN Issuer”.
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The secretary of the issuer:

Name Business Address
Barcasec Limited 1 Churchili Place, London E14 SHP

The net proceeds of the sale of the notes (after converting the euro proceeds received from the

eurc notes to sterling under the swap agreements) together with a drawing under the expenses

loan agreement will be used by the issuer to purchase the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate, The issuer will be prohibited by the trust deed and the terms and conditions of the
notes from engaging in business other than:

®  the business described in this prospectus;

&  preserving and exercising its rights under the notes, the deed of charge, the paying agency
and agent bank agreement, the trust deed, the expenses loan agreement, the swap
agreements, the corporate services agreement and the underwriting agreements for the notes;
and

& purchasing the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.

The issuer's ability 1o incur, assume or guarantee debt will also be restricted by the trust deed and
the terms and conditions of the notes.

Barclays does not own, directly or indirectly, any of the share capital of the issuer.

Capitalisation and Indebtedness

As at the date of this prospectus, the issuer has no loan capital outstanding or created but
unissued, no term loans outstanding and no other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of
borrowings guaranteed or unguaranteed, secured or unsecured nor any contingent liabilities.

Two ordinary shares were allotted for cash, and fully paid, on incorporation. On 30 September
2005, 49,998 ordinary shares were resolved to be allotted, and on 30 September 2005 were each
quarter paid.

Management's Discussien and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Gperations
Sources of Capital ond Liquidity
The issuer’s source of capital will be the net proceeds of the offering of the notes.

The issuer's primary sources of liquidity will be paymenis of interest and principal cn the series
©5-3 medium term nole certificate and borrowings under the expenses loan agreement.

Resuits of Operations

As of the date of this prospectus, the issuer does not have an operating history. The Issuer has not
traded since its date of incorporation being 10 August 2005. Because the issuer does not have an
operating history, we have not included in this prospecius any historical or pre forma ratio of
earnings to fixed charges. The earnings on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate, the
interest costs of the notes and the related operating expenses will determine the issuer's results of
operations in the future. The income generated on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate
will be used to pay principal and interest on the notes.

Litigation

There are nio, nor since the issuer's incorporation om 10 August 2005 have there been any,
governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are pending or
threatened of which the issuer is aware, which may have, or have had in the recent past. a
significant effect on the issuer's financial positior or profitability.

Use Of Proceeds

The net proceeds of the issue of the notes (after exchanging the net euro proceeds of the euro
notes for sterling calculated by reference to the relevant euro swap rate) will be £1,271,263,280.
The fees and commissions payable on the issue of the notes in an amount equal to £2,438,721 will
be deducted from the gross proceeds of the issue. The issuer will use its reasonable endeavours to
make a drawing under the expenses loan agreement of at least an amount equal to the fees and
commissions payable on the notes, such that the net proceeds and such expenses loan drawing will
in aggregate be equal to £1,273,702.000. The issuer will use the net proceeds of the issue of the
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notes together with the drawing under the expenses loan agreement to purchase the series 05-3
medium term note certificate from the MTN Issuer on or about 20 October 2005 - called the
“closing date”.

Expenses Loan Agreement

On the closing date, the issuer — as borrower - will enter into a loan agreement with Barclays - as
lender — under which Barclays will lend to the Issuer up to a maximuem amount of £3,300,000 to
be used by the issuer to meet Its costs and expenses relating to issuing the notes. This loan
agreement s called the “expenses loan agreement”. The amount outstanding under the expenses
loan agreement will bear interest at the rate of 3-month sterling LIBOR reset on each payment
date in respect of the expenses loan agreement plus a margin of 1.35 per cent. per annum. except
for the first payment of interest which shall be calculated at the rate of the linear interpolation of
2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR. The payment of interest under the expenses loan agreement
will be paid quarterly on the 15th day of January, April, July and October of each year. To the
extent the Issuer has insufficient funds left after making all payments of principal and interest on
the notes, the amount of that interest will be deferred until the next Distribution Date, The
principal amount outstanding under the expenses lpan agreement will not fall due for repayment
until all principal, interest and other amounts due on the notes have been paid In full. The
principal amount outstanding under the expenses loan agreement wili be repaid out of amounts
received by the issuer on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate, which wil} include MTN
Issuer additional interest amounts.




The MTN Issuer

The M7TN Issuer was formed in England and Wales on 13 August 1990 as Barshelfca (No. 28}

Limited. with registered number 2530163, as a company with limited liability under the Companies

Acts 1985 and 1989, which is the primary legislation under which the MTN lssuer cperates. It re-

registered as a public limlted company and changed its name to Barclaycard funding PLC an 19

October 1999. Its registered office and principal place of business are located at 1 Churchill Place,

London E14 5HP, United Kingdom (tel: 0207 1161000). The MTN lssuer has an interest in a non-

qualifying special purpose entity the results of which are included in the financial statements of the

MTN Issuer.

‘The MTN lssuer has a fiscal year end of 31 December. The board of directors approved a change

in the fiscal year end from 14 Decermnber to 31 December to align the fiscal year end with that of

Barclays Bank PLC. Al reports after 14 December 2002 have been and will be prepared on the

basis of the new fiscal year. The period from 15 December 2002 to 31 December 2002 is less than

one month and is covered in the annual report for the period ended 31 December 2003.

The comparability of the 2004 information with the prior period, as presented, has been impacted

by the factors noted belew that are not attributable to the transition period arising on change Iin

the fiscal year end.

0On 15 November 2002 the $3bn series 99-1 asset backed notes that were consolidated in the

financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC were redeemned in full.

When compared to the corresponding prior periods, the financial information for 2003 therefore

excludes interest and other fees in respect of series 99-1 together with foreign exchange

differences on the series 53-1 asset backed notes in issue and the gains and Josses on derivative

instruments that matured on the redemption of the series 99-1 notes,

The series 02-1, series 03-1, series 03-2, series 03-3, series 04-1 and series 04-2 issued after

14 December 2002 and that are still in issue as at 31 December 2004 are not consolidated in the

financial statements of the MTN lssuer.

The MTN Issuer was formed principally to:

e issue medium tern notes or certificates from time {o time in series;

e  enter into the financial arrangements to issue the medium term notes or certificates;

& purchase series of investor certificates from time to time representing a beneficial interest in
the receivables trust; and

e enter into the documents and exercise its powers connected to the above.

The MTN Issuer has not engaged in any activities since Its incorporation other than the above.

The £12,502 called up share capitai of the MTN Issuer comprises 49,998 ordinary £1 shares that

have been autharised, issued and quarter called and paid and 2 ordinary £1 shares that have been

authorised. issued and fully paid up.

Barctays halds 75 per cent. of the issued share capital of the MTN Issuer, representing 51 per cent.

of the issued voting share capital and a 49 per cent. entitiement to distributable profits. The

remaining share capital is held by Structured Finance Management Limited.

The annual accounts of the MTN Issuer for the last three financial years have been audited.

Capitalisation and Indebtedness

Sei out below is the unaudited capitalisation and indebtedness statement of the MTN Issuer as at
the date of this prospectus extracted without material adjustment from its audited financial
statements as at 31 December 2004 under UK GAAP adjusted for the series 05-1 medium term
note certificate issued on 21 June 2005, series 05-2 medium term note certificate issued on 20
September 2005 and series 05-3 medium term note certificate to be issued on 20 October 2005.
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Share Capital

Total authorised and issued share capital (being 2 fully paid shares and 37,438
quarter

paid A ordinary shares and 12,500 quarter paid B ordinary shares) £12,502
Loan Note Certificate (issued 18 October 2002)*

£643,624,895 series 02-T floating rate medium term note certificate due 2007 £643,624,895
Loan Note Certificate {issued 8 April 2603)*

£637.064,407 series 03-1 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2008 £637.064,407
Loan Note Certificate (issued 19 june 2003)*

£599,448,507 series 03-2 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2006 £599,448,507
Loan Note Certificate (issued 18 September 2003)*

£628,140,704 series 03-3 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2006 £628,140,704
Loan Note Certificate (issued 11 March 2004)*

£404,312,668 series 04-1 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2007 £404,312,668
Loan Note Certificate (issued 23 November 2004)*

£405,405,405 series 04-2 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2007 £405,405,405
Accrued fees and charges 264,492
Interesy payable 8.490,511%
Capitalisation and indebtedness as at 31 December 2004 3,326,764,091
Loan Note Certificate (issued 21 June 2005)*

£824,764,942 series 05-1 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2008 £824,764.942
Loan Note Certificate (issued 20 September 2005)*

£815.239,545 series 05-2 floating rate mediurn term note certificate due 2008 £815,239.545
Loan Note Certificate (now being issued)*

£1,273,702,000 series 05-3 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2010 £1,273,702,000
Total capitalisation and Indebtedness 2,913,706,487

* Under US GAAP, the Loan Note Certificates described above (Series 02-1, Series 03-1, Series 03-2, Series 03-3, Series (4-1, Series
04-2, Series 05-1, Series 05-2 and Series 05-3) have been derecognised in the balance sheet of the MTN Issuer. Each of the Loan
notes is issued on = secured basis.

There are ne other outstanding loans or subscriptions, allotments or options in respect of the MTN
Issuer, Save as disclosed berein, as at the date of this prospectus, the MTN Issuer has no loan
capltal outstanding, There are no guarantees, other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of
borrewings guaranteed or unguaranteed, secured or unsecured, no unsecured or guaranteed issued
loan capital or contingent fiabilities in respect of the MTN Issuer.

There is no goodwill in the balance sheet of the MTN Issuer, nor will any goodwil! need to be
written off upan the issue of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate,
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Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Barctaycard Funding PLC and its subsidiary (together the “Group”) are
fundamental to understanding management's discussion and analysis of results of operations and
financial conditions. The Group has identified two policies as being significant because they require
management to make subjective and/or complex judgements about matters that are inherently
uncertain.

(a) Derivatives

The fair value of cross currency swaps used by the Croup is determined using a discounted cash
flow model as quoted marked prices are not available. Since these swaps do not qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No.133 due to the lack of underlying documentation, the derivatives are
recorded on the balance sheet at falr value with changes reflected in the income statement. The
main areas of Judgement in applying this model are estimating future cash flows and choosing an
appropriate discount rate for the instrument. The use of different pricing models and assumptions
could produce materially different estimates of fair value. This will resuit in changes in the carrying
value of the derivative on the balance sheet and therefore a different amount reported in the
income statement.

{b) Derecognition of financial assels

Where Barctaycard Funding PLC is a transferor of financial assets to an SPE, the assets sold are
derecognised and the SPE is not consclidated on its balance sheet when the assets are: (1) legally
isolated from the Company’s creditors, (2) the accounting criteria for a sale are met, and (3) the
SPE is a qualifylng special-purpose entity {Q5PE) under SFAS 140. When an SPE does not meet the
formal definition of a QSPE, the decision whether or not to consdlidate depends on the applicable
accounting principles for non-QSPEs, including a judgmental detérminaticn regarding the nature
and amount of investment made by third parties in the SPE.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The MTN Issuer was formed principally to issue medium term notes or certificates in series (and to
enter into the financial arrangements for such issue) and to purchase series of investor certificates
from time to time representing a beneficial interest in the receivables trust (and toc enter into
documentation and exercise powers in relation to such issue and purchase}. The MTN Issuer has
not engaged in any activities since its incorporation other than the above.

Unless otherwise specified, the selected financial statistics and the results presented and discussed
below in relation ta the MTN Issuer are presented both on a consolidated basts under US CAAP.
The MTN issuer had no operations prior to the issuance of the series 959-1 medium term notes in
November 1999 and accardingly all selected financial statistics and resuMs presented and discussed
below are from this date.

The earnings onh its interest in the receivables trust properly, the interest costs of the issued term
advances it pays te the issuer pursuant to the series 05-3 medium term note certificate and the
interest costs of the previous term advances it pays to the previous issuers pursuant to the series
02-1, 03-1, 03-2, 03-3, 04-1, 04-2, 05-1 and 05-2 medium term notes and the related operating
expenses are the principal components of the MTN Issuer's results of operations. The income
generated on its interest in the trust properly will be used to pay interest and repay principal on
the series 05-3 medium term note certificate to the issuer and on the series 02-1, 03-1, 03-2, 03-3,
04-1, 34-2. 05-1 and 05-2 medium term note certificates to the previous issuers.
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The following are selected financial data in relation to the MIN lIssuer. Other than the dollar/
sterling exchange rate information, the financial data has been extracted, without material
adjustment, from its audited financial statements for each of the three years ended 14 December
2002, the audited financial statements for the period ended 3% December 2003 and the audited
financial statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2004. The dollar/sterling exchange rates have
been extracted from Bloomberg Service under USD-GBP Currency HP,

Year ended  Period ended
37 Decernber 31 December Year ended 14 December

2064 2063 2002 2001 2000

Net income 146,437 94,940 16717 7,713 &7i2
Common Stock 12,502 12,502 12,502 12,502 12,502
Number of Shares 50,000 50,000 50.000 50,000 0,000
Dividend per share 28 2 Nl Nib Nil
Shareholders' equity 35,505 28,068 34028 29911 22,198
Average shareholders' equity’ 32,287 31,598 32020 26,055 18.842
Total assets 313,572 619,186 169,626 691244222 674654273
Average total assets® 466380 334406 345706924 682943248 645039051
Nel tacome a5 a pergentage of:
— Average lota! assets 3% 24% 0.005% 0.001% 0%
- Average sharehelders” equity 454% 300% 52% IT% 36%
Average shareholders’ equity a5 a

percentage of average total assets T 8% 0.009% G004% 0.003%
Average US doflar exchange rate used in preparing the accounts

(being the average dally exchange rate during the year ended

37 Decemnber} 0.5460 0.6120 0.6661 0.6543 0.6603
Chosing US dollar exchange rate during the year ended 31 December 05182 0.5600 0.6209 0.6875 0.6638
High US dollar exchange rate during the year ended 11 December 0.5640 0.6434 Q71 0.7282 07153
Low US doliar exchange rate dunng the year ended 31 December 05182 0.5600 06209 0.6650 0.6047

{1) Average shareholders’ equity is calculated as the average of the opening and clesing shareholders’ equity for the period,
{2) Average total assets Is calculated as the average of the apening and closing assets for the period.

The ratic of earnings to fixed charges for the MTN Issuer is as follows: {a) for the year ended
31 December 2004, 101.25%; (b} for the period ended 31 December 2003, 102.21%; (¢) for the
year ended 14 December 2002, 292.50%: (d} for the vear ended 14 December 2001, 147.11%: (e)
for the year ended 14 December 2000, 220.79%. The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is
calculated as the ratio of total revenue to servicing fees and interest payable for the period.

The changes in net income, shareholders’ equity and total assets {(and hence to average
shareholders’ equity and average total assets) between 2001 and 2002 were predominately
atiributable to (a) the redemption of the Series 99-1 Leoan Capital on 15 November 2002 and (b)
the Issue of the Series 02-1 Loan Nete Certificates on 24 October 2002 (driving increases in net
income but with the Loan Mote Certificate being derecognised in the balance sheet of the MTN
issuer).

The changes in net income, shareholders' equity and total assets (and hence to average
shareholders' equity and average total assets) between the year ended 14 December 2002 and the
period ended 31 December 2003 were predominantly attributable to {a} the redemption of the
Series 99-1 Loan Capital on 15 November 2002; (b) the issue of the Series 02-1 Loan Note
Certificate on 24 October 2002 (driving increases in net income for the full period in 2003}; and
{c) the issue of the Series 03-1, Series 03-2 and Series 03-3 Loan Note Certificates on 8 April 2003,
19 June 2003 and 18 September 2003 respectively {driving increases in net income during 2003).
The Serles 02-1, Series 03-1, Series 03-2, Series 03-3, Series 04-1, Series 04-2, Series 05-1 and
Series 05-2 Loan Note Certificates have been derecognised in the balance sheet of the MTN Issuer.

The changes in net income, shareholders' equity and total assets (and hence to average
shareholders’ equity and average total assets) between the period ended 31 December 2003 and
the year ended 31 December 2004 were predominately attributable to the issue of the Series 03-1,
Series 03-2, Series 03-3, Series 04-1 and Serles 04-2 Loan Note Certificates on 8 April 2003, 19 June
2003, 18 September 2003, 11 March 2004 and 23 November 2004 respectively {driving increases in
net income during 2004. The Series 02-1, Series 03-1, Series 03-2, Series 03-3, Series 04-1, Series
G4-2, Series 05-t and series 05-2 Loan Note Certificates have been derecognised in the balance
sheet of the MTN Issuer).

For the £643,624,895 series (12-1, the £637 064,407 series 03-1, the £599,448,507 series 03-2, the
£628,140704 series 03-3, the £404,312,668 series D4-1, the £405405405 series 04-2, the
£824,764 941.99 series 05-1 and the £815,239,545 series 05-2 limited recourse medium term note
certificates following the accumulation period of principal collections due in 2007, 2008, 2006,
2006, 2007, 2007, 2008 and 2008 respectively, the MTN Issuer will pass the amounts received on
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repayment of its share of the investor Interests in respect of series 02-1, series 03-1, series 03-2,

series 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1 and series 05-2 from the recefvables trustee to the

refevant issuer of the 02-1, 03-1, 03-2, 03.3, 04-1 series, series 04-2 and series 05-1 and  series

05-2 respectively.

In the perieds up until 2007, up until 2008, up until 2006, up wntil 2006, up until 2007, up unti

2007, up until 2008 and up until 2008 the MTN issuer passes amounts received from the receivable

trustee in connection with the investor Interest to the series 02-1, the series 03-1, the series 03-2,

the series 03-3, the series 04-1, the series 04-2, the series 05-1 and the series 05-2 issuers,

respectively, the rate of return on which is at a varjable rate of interest, as outlined below. The

payment of interest and repayment of principal on the advance to the investor certificates is

dependent upon payment of interest and repayment of principal due under the credit card

receivables held pursuant to the receivables trust, and is therefore subject to the risk of non-

payment of the credit card receivables. Certain events could alter the exposure and change the

payment profile or any other financial positions including the rapid amortisation period as triggered

by a pay-out event see "Risk factors”.

The £643,624,895 series 02-1 medium term note certificate has the foilowing interest rates:

e for the first interest period from 24 October 2002 to 15 December 2002, the interest rate
applicable was an interpolatiors between one and two month sterling LIBOR - plus 0,19345%.

® for the second interest period, from 15 December 2002 to 15 January 2003, the interest rate
applicable was one month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.19345%.

o for the third and subsequent monthly interest pericds, the interest rate applicable is 3-menth
sterling LIBOR — pius 0.15345%.

The £637,064,407 series 03-1 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

o for the first interest period from 8 April 2003 to 15 June 2003, the interest rate applicable
was an interpolation between two and 3-month sterling LIBOR — plus 0.20214%.

e for the second and subsequent monthly interest perfods, the interest rate applicable is 3-
month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.20214%.

The £599.448,507 series 03-2 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

o for the first interest period from 19 June 2003 to 15 August 2003, the interest rate applicable
was an interpolation between one and two moenth sterling LIBOR — plus 0.14065%.

e  for the second interest period from 15 August 2003 to 15 September 2003, the interest rate
appiicable was one month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.14069%.

e for the third and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable is 3-month
sterling LIBOR - plus 0.1406%%.

The £628,140,704 series 03-3 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e for the first interest period from 18 September 2003 to 15 November 2003, the interest rate
applicable was an interpolation between one and two menth sterling LIBOR - plus 0.1129%.

e for the second and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable is 3-
month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.11259%.

The £404.312.668 series 04-1 medium term nate certificate has the following interest rates:

®  for the first interest period from 11 March 2004 te 17 May 2004, the interest rate applicable
was an interpolation between two and 3-month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.1076%.

e for the second and subsequent monthly interest periods. the interest rate applicable is 3-
month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.1076%.

The £405,405,405 series 04-2 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

o for the first interest period from 23 Nevember 2004 to 18 January 2005, the interest rate
applicable was an interpclation between one and two month sterling LIBOR — plus 0.0647%.

e For the second and subseguent mortaly interest perieds. the 1aterest rate applicable was 3-
maontn steriing LIBOR plus — 0.0647%.

The £824,764,942 series 05-1 medium ter= note certificate has the fouawing interest rates:

o for the first interest pericd from 21 June 2005 to 15 August 2005, the interest rate applicable
will be an interpolation between one and two month sterling LIBOR - plus G.0530%.
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# for the second interest period from 15 August 2005 to 15 September 2005, the interest rate
applicable will be one month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.0530%.

e for the third and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable will be 3-
month sterling LIBOR - plus 9.0530%.

The £815,239,545 seties 05-2 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e for the first interest period from 20 September 2005 to 15 November 2005, and for each of
the 15 December 2005 and the 17 January 2006 interest payment dates, the interest rate
applicable will be an interpolation between three and four month sterling LIBOR - plus
0.0551%;

® for the fourth and subsequent monthly interest periods up to and including July 2008, the
interest rate applicable will be 3-month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.0551%.

e for the interest period commencing in July 2008, the interest rate applicable will be two
month sterling LIBOR — plus 0.0551%

The £1,273,702,000 series 05-3 medium term note certificate will have the following interest rates:

» for the first Calculation Period from the closing date to 15 December 2005, the interest rate
applicable will be a linear interpofation of 2-month serling LIBOR and 3-month sterling LIBOR
- pius 0.1228%;

¢ for the second Calculation Perlod from 15 Decernber 2005 to 16 lanuary 2006, the interest
rate applicable will be a linear interpolation of 2-month sterling LIBOR and 3-month sterling
LiIBOR - plus 0.1228%;

+ o for each subseguent Calcuiation Period. the interest rate applicable will be 3-month sterling
LIBOR - plus 0.1228%.

The trend in payments passed from the MTN lIssuer to the relevant issuers in relation to the series
02-1, series 03-1, series 03-2, series 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1 and series 05-2
mediurn terrn note certificates and subsequent issuances are related to fluctuations In sterling
LIBOR.

The MTN lIssuer considers related parties to be entities which the MTN lIssuer can significantly
influerice or has an ownership interest in that allows it influence to an extent that the other party
might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. Examples of refated parties
include affiliates of the company: entities for which investments are accounted for by the equity
method by the MTN (ssuer; trusts for the benefit of employees, principal owners of the enterprise;
its management; and members of the immediate farmilies of principal owners of the enterprise and
its management.

Parties are considered to be related if one party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with an enterprise.

The related party transactions of the MTN issuer comprise some transfers in relation to the
investor interest; derivative transactions; bank accounts; and loan arrangements.

The MTN Issuer's primary source of liquidity are payments of principal and interest on the series of
investor certificates,

Recent Accounting Developments

1. Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities — An interpretation of ARB No. 51" (“FIN 46"). The pronouncement was revised in
December 2003 and re-issued as FIN 46-R. This pronouncement modifies the framework for
determining consolidation of certain entities that meet the definition of a variable interest entity
("VIE"). This is met where the entlty either does not have sufficient equity of the appropriate
nature to support its expected losses, or its equity investors lack certain characteristics which
would be expected to be present within a controlling financial interest. Entities which do not meet
this definition would continue to apply the voting interest model.

The provisions of FIN 46-R are immediately effective for VIEs created or acquired after 31 January
2003. The Group originally adopted FIN 46 for all VIEs created or acquired after 31 January 2003
during the year ended 31 December 2003. The Group has adopted FIN 46-R for all VIES, including
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those created or acquired pricr to 31 January 2003 from 1 lanuary 2004. The adoption of FIN 46-R
did not have a material effect on the Group’s financial position or result of operations,

FIN 46-R requires transitional disciosure which includes the maximum risk of loss an entity can
incur in relation to VIEs that it has a significant interest in. The maximum exposure to loss
represents a “worst case” scenario in the event that all such vehicles simultaneously fall. It does
not provide an indication of ongoing exposure which is managed within the company’s risk
management framework.

The variable interest entities that the Group is involved with, provide financing to the company via
the issuance of asset backed debt. The proceeds of the debt issuance from the series 99-1 issuer
were used to purchase intercompany notes. The Group used the proceeds of the debt issuance
from the series 02-1 issuer, the series 03-1 issuer, the series 03-2 issuer, the series 03-3 issuer, the
series 04-1 issuer, the series 04-2 issuer, the series 05-1 and the series 05-2 issuer to purchase
beneficial interests in pools of credit card receivables,

The proceeds of the series 99-1 notes were used by the 99-1 issuer to purchase, respectively,
corresponding series of medium term notes issued by the MTN lssuer. The purchase was deemed a
financing transaction between the two parties and consequently the accounts of series 99-1 issuer
were consolidated inte those of the MTN Issuer.

The proceeds of the series 02-1 notes were used by the 02-1 issuer to purchase from the MTN
issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 03-1 notes were used by the 03-1 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved,
QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 03-2 riotes were used by the 03-2 issuer {o purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US CAAP.

The proceeds of the series 03-3 notes issued on 18 September 2003 were used by the 033 issuer
to purchase from the MTN Issuer one limited recourse medium termn note certificate. The structure
of this transaction achieved QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 04-1 notes were used by the 04-1 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer cne limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 04.2 notes were used by the 04-2 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under LS GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 05-1 notes were used by the 05-1 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one iimited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 05-2 notes were used by the 05-2 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse term note ¢ertificate. The structure of this transaction achieved QSPE
status under US GAAP.

The total assets of these vehicles as at 31 December 2004 was £3.341,988,242 (31 December 2003:
£2,524,067,873) of which £13,519 (31 December 2003: £13,519) was afready consolidated by the
Group under US GAAP. As at 31 December 2004, maximum exposure to loss was £3,326,475,079
{31 December 2003: £2,512,778,653).

2. Accounting For Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity
In May 2003, the FASE issued SFAS No. 1590, Accounting For Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabllities and Equity. The Statement improves the accounting for certain
financial instruments that, under previous guidance. issuers could account for as equity and
requires that these instruments be classified as liabilities in statements of financia! position. This
Staternent is effective prospectively for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31,
2003 and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15,
2003. This statement shall be implemented by repeorting the cumulative effect of a change in an
accounting principle for financial instruments created before the issuance date of the Statement
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and still existing at the beginning of the interim period of adaption. The impact of adopting this
statement did not have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations.

Directors and Secretary

The following sets out the directors of the MTN lssuer and their business addresses and principal
activities, Because the MTN Issuer is organised as a special purpose company and will be largely
passive, it is expected that the directors of the MTN Issuer in that capacity will participate in its
management to a limited extent.

Name Nationality Business Address FPrincipal Activities

Paul Gerard Turner British 1234 Pavilion Drive, Finance Director,
Northampton NN4 75G Barclaycard

John Llewellyn-Jones British 1234 Pavilion Drive, Financial Controller,
Northampton NN4 75G Barclaycard

SFM Directors Limited British 35 Great St. Helen's, Director of special
London EC3A 6AP puUrpose companies

Jonathan Keighley, James Macdonald and Robert Berry are the directors of 5FM Directors Limited.
SFM Directors Limited is also a director of the issuer. Paul Cerard Turner is also a director of the
issuzer and John Llewellyn-jones is an alternate director of the issuer.

The secretary of the MTN Issuer is:

Name Business Address
Barcosec Limited 1 Churchill Place, tondon E14 SHP

The directors of Barcosec Limited are Michelle Amey, Alison Bibby, Marie Smith, David Blizzard,
Clare Carson, Patrick Gonsalves, Sarah Sanders, Kathryn Silverwood and Toby Vero. The business
address of the directors of Barcosec Limited is 1 Churchili Piace, London E14 5HP. Barcoser Limited
will provide the MTN Issuer with general secretarial, registrar and company administration services.
The fees of Barcosec Limited for providing such services will be inciuded in the MTN lssuer Costs
Amounts. The business address of the directors of SFM Directors Limited is 35 Creat St. Helen's,
Londan EC3A 6AP. See “Series 05-3: Allocation, Calculation and Distribution of Finance Charge
Collectlons to the MTN Issuer”,

The initial subscription proceeds of the sale of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate wil! be
used by the MTN lIssuer to acquire a certificate representing a beneficial interest in series 05-3 of
the receivables trust - called the “investor certificate”. The deferred subscription price payable for
the series 05-3 medium term note certificate will be used by the MTN Issuer to pay deferred
consideration to Barclaycard for the transfer of its entitlement to receive excess interest
attributable to series 05-3.

Litigation

There are ne, nor since the MTN issuer’s incorperation on 13 August 1990 have there been any,
governmenta!, legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are pending or
threatened of which the MTN Issuer is aware, which may have, or have had in the recent past,
covering at least the previous 12 months, a significant effect on the MTN {ssuer’s financial position
or profitability,
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The Receivables Trustee

The receivables trustee was formed under the laws of Jersey, Channel Islands on 29 September
1999. Its registered office is at 26 New Street, St Helier, lersey 2 3RA and you can inspect its
memorandum and articles of association at the offices of Clifford Chance Limited Llability
Partnership at 10 Upper Bank Street, tondon E14 5)l, United Kingdom.

All of the issued share capital of the receivables trustee is held by a trust company formed in
Jersey, Bedell Trustees Limited, on the terms of a general charitable trust

The receivables trustee was formed principally to:

®  act as a trustee of the receivables trust;

® purchase and accept transfer of the receivables from the transferor;

& issue series of investor certificates from time to time on behalf of the receivables trust; and
& enter into transaction documents incidental to or relating to those activities,

Directors and Secretary

Bedell Trust Company Limited, a company formed under the laws of lersey, provides the
receivables trustee with company secretarial, registrar and company administration services. Its fees
for providing these services are included in the fees paid to the receivables trustee. See the section
"The Receivables Trust: Trustee Payment Amount”. The company secretary is Bedell Secretaries
Limited, a company formed under the laws of Jersey.

The following sets out the directors of the receivables trustee and their business addresses and
principal activities. The receivables trustee is organised as a special purpose company and is largely
passive, engaging only in the types of transactions described in this prospectus. The receivables
trustee is managed and controlled by its directors in Jersey; however it is expected that it will
require only a small amount. of active management.

Name Nationaolity Business Address Principal Activities

Paul Gerard Turner British 1234 Pavilion Drive, Finance Director,
Narthampton NN4 75G Barclaycard

Shane Michae! Hollywood British 26 New Street, St. Heller, Advocate of the
lersey JE2 3RA Royal Court of Jersey

Richard Charies Gerwat British 26 New Street, St. Helier, Advocate of the
lersey JE2 3RA Royal Court of Jersey

Shane Michael Hollywood and Richard Charles Gerwat are also directors of Bede!l Trustees Limited,
Bedell Secretaries Limited and Bedell Trust Company Limited, partners in the Bedell Group,
Partrnership {which ultimately owns the aforesaid companies) and partners in the law firm Bedell
Cristin.

The directors of the receivables trustee do not have a specific term of office but each may be
remgved by a resolution passed at a shareholders’ meeting.

Barclays Bank PLC does not own, directly or indirectly, any of the share capital of the receivables
trustee.

Management and Activities

The receivables trustee has been established specifically to act as trustee of the receivables trust. s
activities are restricted by the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and the
refated supplements.

Since it was formed, the receivables trustee has;
& engaged in activities incidental to the declaration of the receivables trust;

#  obtained the necessary consumer credit licence and data protection registrations in the United
Kingdom and/or lersey;

& authorised and executed the documents that it is a party to in order to establish the
receivables trust;

& purchased and accepted transfers of the receivables from the transferors;
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issued certificates to beneficiaries in respect of their interests in the receivables trust;
established and maintained a register of the entitlements of beneficiaries under the receivables
trust;

engaged in activities Incidental to the transfer to it of receivables under the designated
accounts; and

authorised and executed the other documents to which it is party.

The receivables trustee has not engaged in any activities since its incorporation other than the
above and matters incidental to the above,

The receivables trustee has made a number of covenants in the declaration of trust and trust cash
managernent agreement, including that it will not without the prior written consent of each of the
beneficiaries of the receivables trust:

carry on any business other than as trustee of the receivables trust and will not engage in

any activity or do anything at ali except:

(1) hold and exercise its rights in the trust property of the receivables trust and perform its
obligatiors for the receivables trust's property;

(2) preserve, exercise and enforce any of its rights and perform and observe its ahligations
under the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement, the receivables
sale agreement, the master definitions schedule, each supplement and each other related
document, inciuding any documents secured directly or indirectly by a series of investor
certificates issued under the receivables trust, any mandate and other agreement about a
Trust Account or a bank account in which the receivables trustee has a beneficial
interest, the trust section 75 indemnity, and any other document contemplated by and
executed in connection with any of the preceding documents. We refer to these
documents collectively as "relevant documents™;

{3) pay dividends or make other distributions to the extent required by applicable law;

{4) use, Invest or dispase of any of its property or assets in the manner provided in or
contemplated by the relevant documents; and

(5) perform any and all acts incidental to or otherwise necessary in connection with (1), (2).
{3) or {4) above;

incur any debt other than debt that is described by this prospectus or a supplement or

contemplatéd by the relevant documents;

give any guarantee or indemnity in respect of any debt;

create any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other encumbrance securing any obligation of
any person or other type of preferential arrangement having similar effect, over any of its
assets, or use, invest, sell or otherwise dispose of any part of its assets, including any uncalled
capital, or undertaking, present or future, other than as expressly contemplated by the
relevant documents:

consolidate or merge with any other person or convey or transfer its properties or assets to
any person;

permit the validity or effectiveness of the receivables trust to be supplemented, amended,
varied, terminated, postponed or discharged - other than as expressly contemplated in the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement or in any supplement; or

have an interest in any bank account other than a Trust Account and its own bank account
opened for the purpase of receiving and making payments to be made otherwise than in its
capacity as receivables trustee - including paying the servicing fee to the servicer or cash
management fee to the trust cash manager and the annuai fee due to Bedell Trust Company
Limited for the proviston of corporate services to the receivables trustee.

Litigation

There are no, nor since the receivables trustee’s incorporation on 29 September 1999 have there
been any, governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are
pending or threatened.of which the receivables trustee is aware, which may have, or have had in
the recent past. covering at least the previous 12 months, a significant effect on the receivables
trustee’s financial position or profitabillty.
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Barclays Bank PLC

Barclays Bank PLC will perform the following roles in connection with the issuance of the notes:
initial transferor;

servicer;

cash manager for the receivables trust and the medium term notes and certificates;
transferor beneficiary and excess interest beneficiary;

Sswap counterparty;

lender under expenses loan agreement; and

an underwriter.

Business

Barclays Bank PLC is a public limited company registered in Engtand and Wales under number
1026167. The liability of the members of Barclays Bank PLC is limited. It has its registered head
office at 1 Churchilf Place, Londen E14 5HP. Barclays Bank PLC was incorporated on 7 August 1925
under the Colonial Bank Act 1925 and on 4 October 1971 was registered as a company limited by
shares under the Companies Acts 1948 to 1967, Pursuant to The Barclays Bank Act 1984, on 1
lanuary 1985, Barclays Bank PLC was re-registered as a public limited company and its name was
changed from “Barclays Bank International Limited” to “Barclays Bank PLC™.

Barclays Bank PLC and its subsidiary undertakings (taken together, the “Barclays Group™) is a major
glabal financial services provider engaged in retail and commercial banking, credit cards,
investment banking, wealth management and investment management services. The 8arclays Group
alsp operates in many other countries around the world. The whale of the issued ordinary share
capital of Barclays Bank PLC is beneficially owned by Barclays PLC which is the ultimate holding
company of the Barclays Group and one of the largest financial services companies in the world by
market capitzlisation.

The short-term unsecured obligations of Barclays Bark PLC are rated A-1+ by Standard & Poor's, P-
1 by Moody's and F1+ by Fitch Ratings Limited and the long-term obligations of Barclays Bank PLC
are rated AA by Standard & Poor’s, Aal by Moody's and AA+ by Fitch Ratings Limited.

From 2005, the Barclays Croup will prepare financial statements on the basis of IFRS. Based on the
unaudited interim financial information as at and for the period ended 30 june 2005, prepared in
accordance with IFRS, the Barclays Group had total assets of £850,388 million, total net loans and
advances of £272,348 million, total deposits of £302,253 million, and total shareholders' equity of
£22,050 million (including minority interests of £200 million). The profit before taxation of the
Barclays Group for the period ended 30 June 2005 was E2,690 million after charging an
impairment loss on leans and advances and other credit risk provisions of £706 million.

The Barclays Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 31 Decermnber 2004 were
prepared fn accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {UK GAAP). On this
basis, as at 31 December 2004, the Group had total assets of £522,253 million, total net loans and
advances of £330,077 million, total deposits of £328,742 million and shareholders' funds of £18,271
million (including £690 millien of non-equity funds}. The profit before tax under UX GAAP for the
year ended 31 December 2004 was £4,612 milllon after charging net provisions for bad and
doubtful debts of £1.091 million.

The annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended 33 December 2004 of Barclays PLC and
Barclays Bank PLC is on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the Securities and
Exchange Commission has been furnished with the interim report orr Form 6-K for the semi-annual
period ended 30 June 2005 of Barclays PLC and Barciays Bank PLC. Barclays will provide, without
charge to each person to whom this prospectus Is delivered, on the request of that persan, a copy
of the Form 20-F and Form 6-K referred to in the previous sentence. Written requests should be
directed to: Barciays Bank PLC, 1 Churchill Place, London E34 5HP, England, Attention: Barclays
Group Corporate Secretariat.

None of the Class A notes. the Class B notes or the Class C notes will be obligations of Barclays
Bank PLC or any of its affiliates,
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Credit Card Usage In The United Kingdom

The United Kingdom credit card market is the largest and most developed in Eurppe. The total
papulation of the United Kingdom is approximately 58 million with the adult population accounting
for about 60 per cent. of this. It is estimated that 49 per cent of the adult British population holds
at least one credit card.

The number of cards issued has grown by 38 million since 1993 to about 72.5 millicn today. Of
these, about 64 per cent. carried the VISA service mark and 36 per cent the MasterCard service
mark.

Credit and charge card purchases in the UK, in the twelve months to June 2005, totailed almost
E154 billion, UK credit card borrowings have more than doubled since 1994, and were
approximately £66 billion in June 2005.

UK consumers use their card in a variety of ways. Figures from a trade organisation in England
show that in March 2005, the average transaction was for about £81. In March 2005, about 17 per
cent, of Barclaycard transactions were in relation to travel, compared with 16 per cent. in the
household sector, 11 per cent. on motoring and 5 per cent. in hotels.

Barclaycard and the Barclaycard Card Portfolio

General

Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC, is one of the leading credit card businesses in Europe.
In addition to its operations in the United Kingdem, Barclaycard is active in Germany, Spain, USA,
Greece, France, Italy, Portugal, Ireland and across Africa. Barclaycard offers a full range of credit
card services to individual and corporate customers, together with card payment facilities to
retailers and other businesses. Barclaycard now incorporates ali of the Group’s UK unsecured and
card lending products and expertise. Barclaycard is based in Northampton, England and has in
excess of 6000 employees. In 1966, Barclaycard issued the UK's first credit card and as of 30 June
2005 Barclaycard, on a managed basis, had £24,801,836,850 of gross customer receivabies in the
UK and the rest of Europe, including consumer loans. Of this amount, £9,280,255,249 were
MasterCard and viSa credit and charge card receivables originated in the UK and included in the
receivables trust. Barclaycard offers over 30 credit card products and services to individual and
corperate customers, The average UK customer has had a Barclaycard for approximately 9 years.
An enabling Act introduced by Barclays was passed bv the UK Parliament following Barclays
acquisiticn of Woolwich PLC. This Act facilitates a reorganisation of Barclays Croup's iegal
structure, invelving, depending on Barclays determining in the future to use all or any of the
powers that are conferred by the Act, the transfer of certain undertakings and parts of
undertakings within the Barclays Group. The undertakings could include Barclaycard, which is a
division of Barclays Bank PLC.

The receivables being securitised come from transactions made by MasterCard and VISA card
accountholders.

A cardholder may use his or her card for both purchases and cash advances. A purchase is when
cardholders use their cards to acquire gocds or services. A cash advance Is when cardholders use
their cards to get cash from a financial institution or automated teller machine or use credit card
cheques issued by Barclaycard drawn against their credit fines. Cardholders may draw against their
credit lines by transferring balances owed to other creditors to their Barclaycard accounts.

See “Senicing of Recelvables and Trust Cash Management” for a description of how Barclaycard
services receivables included in the securitisation. Barclaycard undertakes ail the processing and
administering of accounts making use of external suppliers as appropriate. In particular, initial
datacapture of applicants is undertaken by ASTRON (Business Processing Solutions), an outsource
partner of Barclaycard, and cardholder postal payment processing is also undertaken for
Barclaycard by ASTRON (Business Processing Solutions).

Acquisition and Use of Credit Card Accounts

Barclaycard uses a brand led, value driven marketing strategy to focus new origination campaigns.
This process is assisted by the use of financial forecasting models for each method it uses to solicit
cardholders. Barclaycard recruits a significant proportion of its customers by introductions from
Barclays branches. It also uses, among others, targeted mailing, media inserts and the internet.
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when received, credit application details are screened by a combination of system based checking,
external credit bureau data and manual verification, where appropriate.

Barclaycard uses a range of application scorecards to assess the credit quality of new account
applications, each of which are tailored towards different market segments. Scorecards are derlved
using a cornbination of factors in respect of each relevant customer including their Barclays
account history, annual Incame, time at and place of residence, current employment and credit
bureau data. A proprietary cash flow mode! Is used to help determine the acceptance score levels
for each scorecard. Acceptance score levels are reviewed at least quarterly by committee.

Barclaycard aims to maximise enterprise value through managing the relationship between volumes
and margins. Recent yleld experience reflects adjustments to interest rate discounts and fee waiver
thresholds to optimise this position.

The initial limit of an account is determined using credit score and other applicant characteristics
including income matrices. Initial limits are set at comparatively low levels. Limits are increased in
a controlled and regular manner using behaviour score and credit bureau data. Behaviour scoring
was introduced in 1989 and is one of the key tools used by Barclaycard in risk management and
underpins all risk decisions applied to accounts once they have been opened. Barclaycard currently
use behaviour scerecards developed in conjunction with Fair 1saacs International UK Corporation, an
independent firm experienced in developing credit scoring models.

The behavicur scorecards are monitored using retrospective sampling which allows a comparison of
actual to expected performance over predetermined time periods. This analysis allows the
effectiveness of the scorecards to be measured on a regular basis, and underpins the decisions on
scorecard development.

Credit limits are adjusted based upon Barclaycard's continuing evaluation of an accouni holder's
credit behaviour and suitability using a range of statistical models.

Each cardholder has a card agreement with Barclaycard governing the terms and conditions of
their MasterCard or VISA account Under each card agreement, Barclaycard is able, if It gives
advance notice to the cardholder, to add or change any terms, conditions, services or features of
the MasterCard or VISA accounts at any time, This includes increasing or decreasing periodic
finance charges, or minimumn payment terms. Each card agreement enables Barclaycard to apply
charges to current cutstanding balances as well as to future transactions.

Barclaycard regularly reviews its credit and charge card agreement forms to determine their
compliance with applicable law and the suitability of their terms and conditions. If they need to he
updated or amended, this will be done on a timetable consistent with the issues identified.

Description of Processing

Barclaycard settlement systems have links to VISA and MasterCard to enable cardholder
transactions to be transferred. Barclaycard also acquires transactions from merchants. Transactions
acquired in this way relating to Barclaycard cardheiders are passed to the card account processing
systerns directly rather than via VISA or MasterCard.

Billing and Payment
Barclaycard generates and mails monthly statements to cardholders which give details of the
transactions for that account.

Cardholders get up to 56 days interest free on purchases before they are required to make A
payment.

At the moment, cardholders must make a monthly minimum payment which is at least equa! to
the greater of:

& 2 per cent. — on platinum and gold, 2.5 per cent. - on classic, 3 per cent. — on initial, student,
graduate and chaice - of the statement balance; and

®  the stated minimum payment, which is currently £5.

Notwithstanding the above, in the case of the Premier Card, Barclaycard's charge card product,
cardholders must pay the statement balance in full, which is collected via direct debit 14 days after
the date of the statement.

Certain eligible cardholders may be given the option to take a payment holiday.
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Barclaycard charges late and over-imit fees as well as charges for returned cheques and returned
direct debits. Charges may alsoc be made, to a lesser extent, for copy statements and copy
vouchers, Whilst Barclaycard does not charge an annual fee on all products, annual fees can be up
to £150 on those products on which an annuzl fee is charged. Barclaycard also assesses a cash
advance fee which ranges from 1.5 per cent to 2.5 per cent, with minimum charges ranging fram
£2 to £2.50,

The finance charges on purchases assessed monthly are calculated by multiplying the account’s
average daily purchase balance cver the billing period by the applicable monthly rate. Finance
charges are calcuiated on purchases from the date the purchase is debited to the relevant account.
Manthly periodic finance charges are not assessed on purchases if all balances shown in the biliing
statement are paid by the date they are due. This is usually 25 days after the billing date.

The finance charges on cash advances assessed monthiy are calculated by multiplying the account's
average daily balance of cash advances over the billing period by the applicable monthly rate.
Finance charges are calculated on cash advances from the date of the transaction - except for cash
advances by use of credit card cheques, where finance charges are usually calculated frem the date
the transaction is debited to the relevant account.

The interest rates on Barclaycard's credit card accounts may be changed by Barclaycard and are
not currently linked to amy index. This is market practice in the United Kingdom, At the moment,
the standard annual percentage rate of charge for purchases on accounts ranges from 8.9 to 25.9
per cent. (excluding introductory offers). Barclaycard may sometimes offer temporary promotional
rates. Barclaycard also offers activation pregrams and other incentives.

Pricing decisions are based upon:

®  actual and anticipated movements in underlying interest rates;
e  marketing sirategies and recruitment campaigns; and

e  competitive envircnment.

English law does not prescribe a maximum rate that may be charged as interest for a debt.
However, the obligation to make interest payments will not be enforceable to the extent that the
interest rate is extortionate. An interest rate will be extertionate if it requires the debtor or a
relative of the debtor to make payments — whether unconditionally or on certain contingencies -
which are grossly exorbitant, or which otherwise grossly contravene ordinary principles of fair
dealing. Barclaycard believes that the interest rates charged on its cards do not contravene any
laws relating to extortionate credit agreements.

Delinquency and Loss Experience

An account is contractually delinguent if the minimum payment is not received by the due date
indicated on the custormer's statement An actount dees not actually become delinguent until a
new customer statement is sent foliowing a missed payment on the account. Once an account is
recognised as delinquent, the account is electronically flagged as delinquent, The basis upon which
the account is transferred to a collections team within Barclaycard may include the product type,
the age of the account, the amount outstanding, the past performance and behaviour score, and
any information that is available from external credit bureaus or Barclays Bank. The collections
team utilise a strategic decision making process to determine the timing and type of contact that
will be made to the customer in respect of the delinquency.

Efforts to deal with delinquent receivables occur at each stage of delinquency, Activities include
statement messages, telephone calls, formal letters, SMS Text Messages, calling cards, tele-messages
and e-mail. This process is normally completed after anywhere between 120 and 180 days of
delinguency, at which point an account is charged-off. Accounts are automatically charged off at
180 days of delinquency unless there is specialist activity in place. An account may be charged off
before it is 180 days delinquent This decision is based upon an assessment of the likelihood of
recovery and rehabilitation of the individual account and may occur at any point in the process. In
certain circumstances, in particular where notification of bankruptcy or death is received, charge-
off is after 90 days. In addition, there are instances where accounts are not charged-off after 180
days of delinquency because of the presence of “speciallst activities”. Specialist activities include
insurance claims, authorised user disputes, voucher disputes and complaints. Barclaycard may
reduce the minimum repayment terms for an account and place the account on a repayment
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program if it is believed that this would improve the likelihood of returning the accourt to
performing status,

As part of any recovery activity, accounts may be passed to external debt collection agencles to
seek recovery.

Once charged-off, a portion of the receivables are typically sold to debt coflection agencies to
maximise recoveries. Post charge-off account rehabilitation may occur where improved credit
circumstances and significant recovery occurs. However, charging privileges can only be re-instated
once the cardholder has been accepted for a new account,

The following tahles set forth the delinquency and loss experience of Barclaycard's securitlsed
portfatio of VISA and MasterCard credit and charge card accounts denominated in pounds sterling
- calied the “securitised portfolio” — for each of the periods shown. The securitised portfotio
includes platinum, go!d and classic VISA and MasterCard credit cards and the Premier VISA charge
card. The securitised portfolio currently does not include the portfolic of credit card accounts
acquired by Barclaycard with Barciays PLC's purchase of Woolwich in October 2600 or the portfolio
of credit card accounts purchased from Providian's UK operations in April 2002 or the portfolic of
store card accounts purchased from Clvdesdale Financial Services in May - 2003, Because the
economic environment may change, we cannot assure you that the delinquency and loss experience
of the securitised portfolio will be the same as the historical experience set forth below,

The delinquency statistics are obtained from billing cycle information as opposed to month end
positions.
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£S

Tabie Currency - GBP
Recetvables Cutstanding

Receivables Delinquent:;
30-59 Days

#0-89 Days

90-119 Days

120-14% Days

150 Days of more

Total

Naotes

Delinquency Experience Securitised Portfolio

As gt 30 fune 2005 As ot 31 December 2004 As at 31 December 2003 As of 31 December 2002 As of 37 December 2001 As of 31 December 2000
Percentage of Percentage of Petcentage of Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
Totat Toig! Totol Total Totel Toto! Total Total fotat Totaf Total Total
Recefvabies  Receivobles  Recelvables  Recefvobles  Recelvobfes  Recefvobles  Recefvables  Receivables  Recelvables  Recevables  Recelvobles  Recelvables

9,280,255,249 9.570542.329 8.800.951,299 8,134.903,782 7.486.117.963 7.502,452.285

242,347,265 2.61% 198,840,674 2.08% 207010453 2.35% 15546149 1.91% 164,292,364 419% 189,371,628 2.52%
106,387 839 1.15% 95,983 432 1.00% 9920270 1.04% 66,573,435 082% 83,167 801 1.071% #7,542,594 1.17%
72,562,001 0.79% 64,996,729 0.68% £0,220,345 0.68% 41,953,754 0.52% 49,797,514 0.67% 47 185,100 0.63%
60,011,457 0.65% 51,264,718 Q54% 47,130,304 0.53% 26,300,258 0.32% 30585515 041% 32,390,920 0.43%
63451.767 0.68% 49072167 051%  37.899.570 043% 44,022,007 0.54% 50072586 0.67% 38501570 051%
545,760,359 5.88% 460,157,720 481% 444,181,042 504% 334310951 411% 377915880 5.05% 394995812 526%

(1) Receivable delinguent balances are as at the latest hilling date before the dates shown. The percentages are computed as a percentage of total receivahies as at the date shown,
(2) Includes accounts on repayment programmes.



¥S

Loss Experience Securitised Portfolio

f months ended Year ended
30 fune 31 December 31
Tahle Currency - GEP 2005 2004
Average Receivables Quistanding 9.317.568,527 8,789.036.883 82
Total Gross charge-offs 267,290,255 478,032,471 4
Recoveries 58,551,615 119,717,964
Total net charge-offs 208,738,640 358,314,507 3
Total net charge-offs a5 a
percentage of average
receivables outstanding 4.48% 4.08%

Netes
(1) Average receivables outstanding is the average monthiy receivable balance duting the periods indicated.
{2} Kecevables are total recevables generated from the portfolio, induding fmanre charges and principat,

Year ended
Decermber
2003
74,226,639
19,075,172
94,921,378
24,153,794

3.92%

Yeor ended
31 December
2002
7466182635
413,019,402
83,583,630
329.435,772

4.41%

Year ended
31 December
2001
7230220277
275,553,687
67,564,936
207,988,751

2.88%

Year ended
31 December
2000
6,8350081,134
303,082,666
64,702,065
238,380,601

3.49%



THE RECEIVABLES

Assignment of Receivables to the Receivables Trustee

Under the terms of a receivables securitisation agreement dated 23 November 1999 arx! amended
and restated on 7 July 2000 - which we will call the “receivables securitisation agreement” -
Barclaycard as the initial transfercr offered on 23 November 1999 - called the “Initial closing date”
- to the receivables trustee an assignment of all receivables that had arisen or would arise in
accounts originated under the designated product lines, where such accounts were In existence an
or before October 1999 - called the “pool selection date”. Under the terms of a deed of
assignment of receivables dated 7 [uly 2000, called the “Future Receivables Transfer”, Barclaycard
as initial transferor assigned to the receivables trustee all receivables that would arise on all
accounts opened on or after 1 August 2000 on certain product lines designated in the Future
Receivables Transfer. An account of the initial transferor will be designated as a “designated
account” if the account has been originated under and continues to conform to the credit card
and charge card preducts described in this prospectus, comes within a product line named in an
accepted offer or transfer and has not been identified on the initial transferor's system as being
excluded from such accepied offer or transfer. Only credit and charge card products available to
the transferor’s individual account holders may be designated.

Under the terms of the Future Receivables Transfer whenever Barclays creates a new preduct line,
Barclays will be able, if it so chooses, to allocate to that product line one of the codes referred to
in the Future Receivables Transfer, being a code which has not previously beer allocated to any
product line. By allocating, or not allocating, one of those codes to the new product line, Barclays
will be able to choose whether or not to nominate the receivables on that product line as being
included in the sale to the receivabies trustee. If Barclays chooses to make a nomination, it will be
able to do so by allocating one of the relevant preduct line codes to the product line in question.
Once one of the relevant product line codes has been attached to a particular product line, all
receivables arising thereafter on all accounts opened thereafter on that product line will be
included in the sale to the receivables trustee in accordance with the terms of the receivables
securitisation agreement. Further, where Barclaycard acquires new portfolios of credit card
accounts, it can elect to transfer those portfolios cnto one of the product codes referred to in the
Future Receivables Transfer, and if those accounts are eligible, to designate those accounts and to
include the receivables arising on those accounts in the sale to the receivables trustee.

It for any reason there are receivables from designated accounts that cannot be assigned to the
receivables trustee, the transferor will held those receivables, and any collections on those
receivables, on trust for the receivables trustee. These collections will be treated as if the
receivables had been properly assigned.

Under the terms of the receivables securitisation agreement, the transferor also has the right to
select accounts that conform to the conditions in the first paragraph abave and that are not
designated and nominate them to be designated accounts by offering the receivables trustee an
assignment of all future and existing receivables in these accounts. These accounts are called
“additional accounts’”. An additional account will be treated as a designated account from the date
on which its receivables are offered to the receivables trustee, assuming that such offer is accepted.
This date is called the “addition date”. When additicnal accounts are nominated the transferor
mmust, amengst other things:

& provide the receivables trustee with a certificate stating that it is solvent;

e confirm. in the document that offers to assign the receivables in the additional accounts to
the receivables trustee, that:

(1} the offer of the receivables in the additional accounts meets the Maximum Addition
Amount criteria; or

(2) if the offer does not meset the Maximum Addition Amount criteria, the rating agencies
have confirmed that the designation of additional accounts will not result in a reduction
or withdrawal of the current rating of any outstanding debt that is secured directly or
indirectly by the recelvables in the receivables trusi, inciuding your notes;

& obtain a legal opinion addressed to the receivables trustee about any receivables from a
jurisdiction cutside of the United Kingdom;
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s in relation to a nomination made in accordance with the terms of the Future Receivables
Transfer, obtain a legal opinion addressed to the receivables trustee in respect of the Future
Receivabies Transfer in a form satisfactory to the recelvables trustee.

Any of these preconditions rmay be waived by the receivables trustee if the rating agencies confirm
in writing that the waiver will not result in the reductlon or withdrawal of their rating on any
refated beneficiary debt. At the time that it is nominated, each additional account must also meet
the eligibility criteria as at the time of its designation. These criterfa are explained in “-
Representotions™ below. Additional accounts may have been originated or purchased using
underwriting standards that are different from the underwriting standards used by Barclaycard in
selecting the original designated accounts, As a result, additional accounts that are selected in

future may not have the same credit quality.

“"Maximum Addition Amount” means, for any addition date, the number of additional accounts
originated by the transferor after the pool selection date and nominated as additional accounts
without prior rating agency confirmation that would either:

e for any three consecutive monthly periods starting with the monthly period beginning on the
first day of the month before the paol selection date, exceed 15 per cent. of the number of
designated accounts at the end of the ninth monthly period before the start of such three
monthly periods;

e for any twelve-month period, be equal to 20 per cent of the designated accounts as of the
first day of the twelve-month period, or if later, as of the pool selection date.

Notwithstanding what we just said, if the total principal balance of receivables in the additional
accounts described in either of the two prior bullet peints is more than either:

(1) 15 per cent. of the total amount of eligible principat receivables determined as of the later of
the pool selection date and the first day of the third preceding monthly period, minus the
amount of eligible principal receivables in each additionat account that was pominated since
the Tater of the initial cfosing date and the first day of the third preceding rnonthly period —
calculated for each additional account on its additicn date; or

{2} 20 per cent, of the total amount of eligible principal receivables as of the later of the initial
closing date and the first day of the calendar year in which the addition date occurs, minus
the total amount of eligible principal receivables in each additional account that was
nominated since the later of the initial closing date and the first day of the calendar vear,
calculated for each additional account as of its addition date,

then the Maximum Addition Amount will be the lesser of (1) or (2} above.

Every offer of receivables to the receivables trustee under the receivables securitisation agreement

will comprise offers of the following:

e al! existing receivables in the designated accounts;

e ali future principal receivables under the designated accounts. until the first to occur of (1}
the time a designated account becomes a redesignated account, (2) the receivables trust is
terminated or (3) an Insolvency Event occurs;

e all future finance charge receivables under those designated accounts that have accrued on
receivables that have been assigned to the receivables trustee as described in the two prior
bultet points;

e if capable of being assigned, the benefit of any guarantee or insurance policy obtained by the
transferor for any obligations owed by a cardholder on a designated account: and

e  the benefit of all amounts representing Acquired Interchange for the refevant monthly peried.
The transferor will ensure that each redesignated account is identified on the transferor's computer
system on the date that a designated account becomes a redesignated account.

Throughout the term of the receivables trust, the designated accounts from which the receivables
will arise will be the designated accounts plus any additional accounts designated by the transferor
from time to time. minus any redesignated accounts,

Existing receivables and future receivables arising under the designated accounts are either
principal receivables or finance charge receivables. “'Principal receivables” are receivables that are

nat finance charge receivables. Principal receivables are amounts owing by cardholders for the
purchase of merchandise or services and from cash advances, including foreign exchange
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commissions charged for merchandise and services payable, or cash advances denominated in, a
currency other than sterling. They are reduced by any credit balance on the designated account on
that day,

"Flnance charge receivables” are amounts owlng from cardholders for transaction fees, periodic

finance charges, special fees and annual fees - see "~ Special Fees and Annual Fees” below - and

any interchange and Discount Option Receivables.

Under the receivables securitisation agreement, each offer of receivables made by the transferor

may be accepted by paying the purchase price for the offered receivables. If the receivables trustee

chooses to accept the offer, payment for existing receivabies has to be made no later than the
business day following the cate ort which the offer is made. Alternatively, the parties can agree to

a longer period of time for payment. Payment for future receivables that become existing

-receivables must be made no later than two business days after the date of processing for those

receivables. Alternatively, the partles can agree to a longer period if the rating agencies consent.

Payment is made monthly for the assignment of the benefit of Acquired Interchange to the

receivables trustee.

A "business day” is a day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions

in London, England, (i) are authorised or obliged by law or executive order ta be closed and (i} on

which the TARGET System is open.

It was agreed between the transferor and the recefvables trustee that, for the purposes of the offer

made on the initial closing date:

{1} the receivables trustee was entitled to use the collections in the designated accounts before
the date that the offer was accepted as if the offer had been accepted on the initial closing
date;

{2} the amount paid on the initial closing date for the designated accounts egualled the
outstanding face amount of all existing principal receivables, together with an obligation of
the receivables trustee to pay for all future receivables generated on the designated accounts
that were part of the offer on an ongoing, daily basis when those future receivables are
generated,

The payments in {2} are net of any payments made in {1), subject to a minimum of £1.

The amount payable by the receivables trustee to the transferor if it chooses to accept an offer or
to make payment for any future receivables will be reduced by the amount of any shortfall in the
amount funded by the transferor as a beneficiary, providing that the Transferor Interest is
increased accordingly.

Redesignation and Removal of Accounts
Each designated account will continue to be a designated account until such time as the transferor
reclassifies it as being no longer a desigrated account - called a “'redesignated account”.

A designated account becomes a redesignated account on the date specified by the transfercr. No

designated account wiil become a redesignated account this way unless (1) it has become a

cancelied account, a defaulted account or a zerc balance account or (2) the transferor delivers an

officer’s certificate confirming the following conditions are satisfied:

«  the redesignation will not cause a Pay Out Event to occur;

e the transferor has represented that its selection procedures for the selection of designated
accounts for redesignation are not believed to have any material adverse effect on any
investor beneficiary;

®  the rating agencies have confirmed that the action will not result in a downgrade in rating of
any outstanding debt that is secured directly or indirectly by the receivables in the receivables
trust; and

® the transferor and the servicer can certify that collections equal to the outstanding face
amount of each principal receivable and the outstanding balance of each finance charge
receivable have been received by the receivables trustee on all receivables assigned for that
account other than any receivabies charged off as uncollectable.

A "cancelled account” is a designated account that has had its charging privileges permanently
withdrawn. A “defaulted account” is a designated account where the receivables have been charged
off by the servicer as uncoliectable in line with the credit and charge card guidelines or the usual
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servicing procedures of the servicer for similar credit and charge card accounts. A “zero balance
account” is a designated account that has had a nil balance of recelvables for a considerable period
of time and has been identified by the Servicer as a zero balance account under the credit and
charge card guideiines or the usual servicing procedures of the servicer.

Redeslgnated accounts include all accounts that become cancelled accounts, defaulted accounts and
zero balance accounts from the date on which they are redesignated in any of these ways. The
principal receivables that exist before the date of redesignation will be paid for by the receivables
trustee. Any future receivables that come into existence after that time will not be assigned to the
recejvables trustee as set out in the receivables securitisation agreement. No recelvable that has
been assigned to the receivables trustee will be reassigned to the transferor except in the limited
circumstances described under the heading - Representations”.

Until money has been received for the assigned receivables that have not been charged off, a
redesignated account wil not be identified as having been removed. The amount identified will be
equal to the outstanding face amount of each principal receivable and finance charge receivable.
Once these payments have been teceived or any teassignmeni has occurred, the account will be
identified to indicate that it has become a redesignated account.

Discount Option Receivables

The transferor may. by giving at least thirty days' prior notice to the servicer, the receivables
trustee and the rating agencies, nominate a fixed or variable percentage - called the “Discount
Percentage” - of principal receivables in the designated accounts. If a Discount Percentage has
been nominated previously, an extension to the period for which it applies can be applied for in
the same way. From the date and for the length of time stated in the notice:

s the amount payable by the receivables trusiee to accepl an offer of receivables will be
reduced by a percentage amount equai to the Discount Percentage; and

®  a percentage of the principal receivables equal to the Discount Percentage will be treated by
the receivables trustee as finance charge receivables. These are called “Discount Option
Receivables™.

The nominaticn of a Discount Percentage or increase in the time it is in place will be effective oniy
if the rating agencies consent to the proposed nomination or increase and confirm that it will not
result in the downgrade or withdrawal of the current rating of any debt that is secured directly or
indirectly by the receivables in the receivables trust, including your notes. The transferor must also
provide the receivables trustee with a certificate confirming:

#  that the performance of the portfolio of designated acceunts, in their reasonable opinion, is
not generating adequate cash flows for the beneficiaries of the recejvables trust and the size
of the Discount Percentage is not intended solely to accelerate distributions to the excess
interest beneficiary; and

#  that the transferor is sofvent and will remain so fellowing the nomination or increase.

The transferor may have different reasons to designate a Discount Percentage. The finance charge
coilections on the designated accounts may decline for various reasons or may stay constant. The
notes have interest rates that are varizble and that could increase. Any of these variables could
cause a Series 05-3 Pay Out Event to occur based in part on the amount of finance charge
collections and the interest rate on the notes. The transferor could avoid the occurrence of this
Series 05-3 Pay Qut Event by designating a Discount Percentage, causing an increase in the
amount of finance charge collections, The transferor, however, is under no obligation to designate
a Discount Percentage and we cannot assure you that the transferor would designate a Discount
Percentage to avoid a Series 05-3 Pay Out Event.

Special Fees and Annual Fees

The transferor charges special fees - currently late and over limit fees — on its credit or charge
card accounts. These special fees as well as additiona) special fees may be assessed at one time or
on an ongeing basis. Certain of the receivables assigned or to be assigned to the receivables
trustee include annual fees on a small number of the designated accounis. Any special fees and
annual fees that are charged on designated accounts are regarded as finance charge receivables
and collections of these special fees are treated as finance charge collections, The transferor may,
however, decide that these special fees or annual fees will be viewed as principal receivables and
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coliections on them will be allocated accordingly. This can be done only if the transfercr certifies
that it has an opinion from legal counsel that the special fees or annual fees amount to repayment,
for United Kingdom tax purposes, in whole or in part of an advance to a cardhoider.

Interchange

Members participating in the VISA and MasterCard associations receive fees called “Interchange” as
partial cornpensation, for amongst other things, taking credit risk and absorbing fraud losses. Under
the vISA and MasterCard systems, interchange is passed from the banks that clear the transactions
for merchants to card Jssuing banks. Interchange fees are calculated as a percentage of the amount
of a credit or charge card transaction for the purchase of goods or services. This percentage varies
from time to time.

On each transfer date the transferor will deposit intc the Trustee Collection Account an amount
equal to the interchange received for the preceding monthly peripd. This amount is called the
“"Acquired Interchange”. Interchange Is received by Barclaycard on a daily basis and is posted to
the general ledger with a flag identifying the product to which it refates. The amount of Acquired
Interchange applicable to the receivables in the trust is arrived at monthly by interrogation of the
general lecdger, All interchange relating to products included in the trust is extracted and posted to
the Trustee Collection Account.

Reductions in Receivables, Early Collections and Credit Adjustments

If a principal receivable that has been assigned to the receivables trustee is reduced - for reasons
other than because of Section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act or a credit adjustment - after the
offer date because of set-off, counterclaim or any other matter between the cardholder and the
transferor, and the transferor has received a benefit, then the transferor will pay an amount equaf
to that reduction to the receivables trustee, Simitarly, if an existing receivable has already been
assigned and the transferor has received full or partial payment of that receivable before the date
that the recefvable was purportedly assigned, then the transferor will pay the amount of that
collection to the receivables trustee.

If any principal receivable assigned to the receivables trustee is reduced for credit adjustment
reasons after the offer date. then the transferor witl pay that amount to the receivables trustee. A
credit adjustment is the outstanding face amount of a principal receivable that:

e was created by virtue of a sale of merchandise that was subsequently refused or returned hy
a cardhalder or against which the cardholder has asserted any defence, dispute, set-off or
counterclaim;

® s reduced because the cardholder had received a rebate, refund, charge-back or adjustment:
or

& s fraudulent or counterfeit.

Alternatively, instead of paying these amounts to the receivables trustee, the transferor can reduce
the Transferor Interest by the amount of the credit adjustment, but not befow zero.

Representations

Each offer of receivables to the receivables trustee under the receivables securitisation agreement
and the Future Recetvables Transfer inciudes representations by the transferor about the offer or
transfer of the existing receivables and the future receivables. The representations for the existing
receivabies were or will be given as of the pool selection date or an addition date, as applicable,
and the representations for the future receivables are given on the date they are processed. and
include, in each case, that:

e unless identified as an ineligible receivable, the receivable is an eligible receivable and has
arisen from an efigible account in the amount specified in the offer or daily actlvity report, as
applicable;

& each assignment passes good and marketable title for that receivable to the receivables
trustee, together with the benefit of all collections and other rights in connection with it, free
from encumbrances of any person claiming on it through the transferor to the receivables
and, unless such receivable does not comply with the Consumer Credit Act, nothing further
needs to be done to enfarce these rights in the courts of England and Wales, Scotland or
Northern Ireland, or any permitted additional jurisdiction, without the participation of the
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transfercr, except for payment of any United Kingdom stamp duty and giving a notice of
assignment to the cardholders and subject to any firnitations arising on enforcement in the
Jurisdiction of the relevant cardholder; and

»  the assignment complies with all applicable laws on the date of assignment.

If a representation relating to the eligibility criterla given in connection with any princlpal
recelvable proves to be incorrect when made, then the transferor 1s obliged to pay the receivables
trustee an amount equa! to the face value of that receivable on the following business day. A
receivable of this type will afterwards be treated as an ineligibte receivable.

The transferor's obligation to pay amounts due as a result of any breach of a representation can
be fulfiled, in whole or in part. by a reduction in the amount of the Transferor Interest, The
Transferor interest, however, may not be reduced below zero. f the ansferor meets a payment
obligation in this way, the receivables trustee will have no further claim against the transferor for
the breached representation, However, a breach of a representation may result in a Series 05-3 Pay
Out Event.

it

® all principal receivables arising under a designated account become ineligible as a result of
incorréct representations;

& that account has become a redesignated account; and
o the transferor has complied with the payment obligations for the principzl receivabiles;

then the transferor can require the receivables trustee to reassign all those receivables to the
transferor.

The receivables trustee has not made and will not make any initlal or periodic examination of the
receivables to determine if they are eligible receivables or if the transferor's representations and
warranties are true.

The term “efigible account” means, as of the pool selection date, an addition date or date on
which the account is opened. as applicable, a ¢redit or charge card account:

e where the cargholder is not a company or partnership for the purposes of Section 349(2) of
the Income and Corpaoration Taxes Act 1988;

e which, except in the case of a future designated account as defined in any offer or a relevant
account as defined in the Future Receivables Transfer, was in existence and maintained with
the transferor before it became a designated account;

e which is payable in pounds sterling or the currency of the permitted additional jurisdiction
where the account is in a permitted additional jurisdiction, as applicable;

e which is governed by one of the transferor's standard form card agreements or, if it was
acquired by the transferor, it is originated on contractual terms not materially different from
that standard form:

o which is governed in whole or in part by the Consumer Credit Act and creates legal, valid and
binding obligations between the transferor and the cardholder which, except in the case of aa
account on which restricted eligible receivables arise, is enforceable against the cardholder in
accordance with the relevant card agreement and the Consumer Credit Act, subject to
bankruptcy laws, general principles of equity and limitations on enforcement in any
cardholder jurisdiction and was otherwise created and complies with all other appiicabie laws;

e where the cardholder's most recent billing address is located in England, Wales, Scotland,
Northerns Ireland, or a permitted additicnal Jurisdiction or a restricted additicnal jurisdiction;

¢ which has not been classified by the transferor as counterfeit, cancelled, fraudulent, stolen or
last;

¢ which has been originated or purchased by the transferor;

®  which has been operated in all material respects in accordance with the transferor’s policies
and procedures and usual practices for the operation of its credit and charge card business;
and

e the receivables in respect of which have not been charged off by the transferor on the date
the account is specified as a designated account.
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If ali these conditions have not been satisfied, then an account may still be an eligible account if

each rating agency gives their approval.

A ‘“restricted eligible receivable” is a receivable arising on an eligible account, the terms of which

fail to comply with the Consumer Credit Act, such that a court would have no discretion to grant a

court order.

A "defaulted receivable” is any recelvable In a defaulted account.

A “permitted additional jurisdiction” is a jurisdiction - other than England, Wales, Scotland and

Northem Ireland - agreed by the transferor and the receivables trustee, and which each rating

agency has confirmed in writing that its inclusion as & permitted additional jurisdiction will not

result in its withdrawing or reducing its rating on any related beneficiary debt.

A “restricted additional jurisdiction” is a jurisdiction - other than England, Wales, Scotland and

Northern Irefand or a permitted additional jurisdiction ~ which tegether with each other account

with a billing address in that jurisdiction and any other jurisdiction other than England, Wales,

Scotland, Northern ireland or a permitted additional jurisdiction represent less than 5 per cent. by

outstanding receivables balance.

A "natice of assignment” means a notice given to a cardholder of the assignment of the

receivables — and the benefit of any guarantees — to the receivables trustee.

An “eligible receivable” means a receivable that:

&  has arisen under an eligible account;

®  was originated under one of the fransferor’s standard form credit or charge card agreements
and is governed, in whole or in part, by the Consumer Credit Act, or else, if the related
account was acquired by the transferor, contractual terms that are materially the same as the
standard form credit or charge card agreements and are governed, in whole or in part, by the
Consumer Credit Act;

was otherwise created in compliance with ail other applicable laws;

& was originated in accordance with the transferor’s policies and procedures and usual practices
for its credit and charge card business;

® s not a defaulted receivable as at the offer date or addition date, as applicable;

is free of any encumbrances exercisable against the transferor arising under or through the
transferor or any of its affiliates;

. to which the transferor has good and marketable title;

¢ is the legal cbligation of the cardholder, enforceable - except in the case of restricted eligible
receivables — in accordance with the terrns of the credit or charge card agreement, subject to
bankruptcy, general principles of equity and limitations on enforcement in any cardholder
jurisdiction; and

& is not currently subject to any defence, dispute, event, set-off, counterclaim or enforcement
order,

As is market practice in the United Kingdom for credit and charge card securitisation transactions,

principal receivables that are delinquent will still constitute eligible receivables if they comply with

the eligibility requirements, See the table captioned “Delinquency Experience — Securitised Portfolio”

in “Barclaycard and the Barclaycard Card Portfolio - Delinquency and Loss Experience” above for

data showing the percentage of delinquent receivables.

“Ineligible receivables” means principal receivables which arise under a designated account but
which do net comply with all the criteria set out in the definition of eligible receivables as at the
pool selection date or an addition date, as applicable.

Amendments to Card Agreements and Card Guidelines

The transferor may amend the terms and conditions of its standard form card agreements or
change its policies and procedures and usual practices for its general card business. These
amendments may include reducing or increasing the amount of monthly minimum required
payments required ar may involve changes to periodic finance charges or other charges that would
apply to the designated accounts. See “Risk Factors: A Chonge in the Terms of the Recelvables May
Adversely Affect the Amount or Timing of Collections and Moy Cause an Early Redemption of Your
Note or o Downgraode of Your Notes”.
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Summary of Securitised Portfolio

The tables that follow summarise the securitised portfolio by various criteria as of the billing dates
of accounts in the month ending on 31 August 2005, Because the future composition of the
securitised portfolio may change over time, these tables are not necessarily indicative of the
composition of the securitised portfolio at any time after 31 August 2005.
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Balance Bonding

Credit Balance

Nii Bafance

£0.01 to £5,000.00
£3.000.07 to £10.000.00
£10,000.01 to £15,0600.00
£15,000.01 to £20,000.00
£20.000.01 1o £25.000.00
£25,000.01 and aver

Grand Total

Credit Limit

Lip to £500.00

£500.01 to £1,000.00
£1,000.01 to £1,500.00
£1.500.01 10 £2,000.00
£2,000.01 to £2,500.00
£2.500.01 to £3.000.00
£3,000.01 to £3,500.00
£3.500.01 to £4,000.00
£4,000.01 to £4,500.00
£4,500.01 to £5,000.00
£5.000.01 to £10.000.00
£10.000.01 w £15,000.00
£15.000.01 to £20.000.00
£20,000.01 to £25,000.00
£25.000.01 and aver

Crand Total

Composition by Account Balance

Securitised Portfolio

Percentoge of Percentage

Totol Number  Total Number of Total
of Accounts of Accounts Recehobles Recehables
444,432 4.5% (£20,654 967} (0.2%)
3547722 36.2% €0 0.0%
5397776 55.1% £5.864,291,i55 63.6%
371,082 18% E2548294217 W 5%
37,452 24% E427.777.423 4.8%

4066 0.0% £68,738,857 0.8%

1,i38 0.0% £25, 213360 0.3%

339 0% £18.028.197 0.2%
9,804,187 100.0%  £5,931,688,341 100.0%

Composition by Credit Limit
Securitised Portfolio

Percentage of Percenitoge

Tolol Number  Total Number of Tatal
of Accounts of Accounts Recefvables Recevabies
1.019.382 10.4% E170.617.022 1.5%
955412 97% £252,338,01 28%
790,785 8.0% £263,445,298 9%
604,685 6.2% £310941 852 35%
664,275 6.8% £326.049,687 3.6%
igz2m 8.0% (383650402 4.3%
1,018,892 10.4% £632,631,249 7%
652,287 &7% £469,151,558 5.3%
445,227 4.6% £406,560,760 4.6%
471,457 4.8% £475632028 53%
2051174 209% £3,951.550,609 44.2%
289,551 30% £1,056,560,174 1.8%
41,923 0.4% £148,372.447 1.7%
11175 0.1% £58,082,642 0.7%

372 0.0% £26,064,602 0.3%
9,804,187 100.09%  £8,531,68834) 100.0%
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Account Age

0 to 3 Months

3 to 6 months

6 10 9 menths

9 to 12 months
12 to 15 months
15 to 18 months
18 to 21 months
21 to 24 months
2 to 3 years

310 4 years
410 5 years
5to 10 years
Over 10 years

Gerand Total

Region

East

East Midlands
London

MNorth East
North West
Northern [reland
Rest of UK
Scotland

South East
South West
Wales

West Midlands
Yorks & Humb
Uniknown Pastoous
MNon-LK

Grand Total

Composition by Account Age

Sacuritised Portfolio

Percentage af Percentage
Totol Number  Tatal Mymber af Tatal
of Accounts of Accounts Recetvables Recehobles
95,343 1.0% £51,781.1710 2.6%
152,566 15%  £139,300,041 1.6%
136322 1.4% £120,112,705 1.3%
296,363 30% (243776271 2.7%
409,596 42% £368 306,057 41%
158,871 1.6% £119.573,310 1.3%
159.173 16%  [i26825387 4%
315.090 32%  £247553401 28%
934,191 95% £757.669,539 8s5%
751,684 7% £620,897.438 0%
421,032 43% (333122827 3.7%
1,537,468 19.8% £1,989,521 458 223%
4,036 388 41.2% (31813248797 27%
9R04,187 1000% £8,931688341 100.0%
Geographic Distribution of Accounts
Securitised Portfolic
Percentage of Percentage
Tatal Number Total Number af Total
of Accounts of Accountis Recetvables Recehables
Tz A% DNIARRS 11 3%
586,198 £0% £533287,584 0%
1747205 178%  £1.714393,604 i93%
524,048 53% £453,847 915 51%
BED,778 90%  E779,714.004 8.7%
124777 1.3% £108,445,003 1.2%
38727 0.4% E37.802,872 04%
364.257 3%  EJG4.896.002 1%
1553529 159% £1.482352,116 16.6%
796,004 8.1%  £704.536.593 9%
441,135 4.5% €359,858,1%0 4.0%
787,667 80%  £6B88,358.837 7.7%
600,850 6.1%  £535462.416 6.0%
13476 0.3% £34,478,135 0.4%
215396 1% £120588.101 14%
9.804,187 1000% 18931 688,341 100.0%




Maturity Assumptions

On each transfer date during the Controlled Accumulation Period an amount equal to the
Controlled Deposit Amount witl be deposited in the Principal Funding Account untjl the balance of
the Principal Funding Account equals the fnvestor Interest. Although it is anticipated that principal
collections will be available on each transfer date during the Controlied Accumulation Perlod to
make a deposit of the Controlled Deposit Amount and that the Investor Interest will be paid to the
MTN Issuer on the series 05-3 schedyled redemption date, aliowing the MTN Issuer to redeem the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate fully, no assurance can be given that sufficient principal
collections will be available. If the amount required to pay the thvestor Interest in full is not
available on the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date, a Series 05-3 Pay Qut Event will occur and
the Rapid Amortisation Period will begir.

If a Regulated Amortisation Trigger Event occurs during the Controlled Accumulation Period, the
Regulated Amortisation Period will begin, If any other Pay Qut Event occurs during the Controlled
Accumulation Period, the Rapid Amortisation Period will begin. In each case, any amount on
deposit in the Principal Funding Accognt will be paid to the MTN Issuer for the Investor Interest on
the first payment date relating to the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation
Period. In addition, to the extent that the Investor Interest for each Ciass has not been distributed
in full, the MTN Issuer will be entitled to monthly distributiens of principal collections during the
Rapid Amortisation Pericd equal to the Awvailable !nvestor Principal Collections until the Investor
Interest has been distributed in full or, during the Regulated Amortisation Period, an amount equal
te the Controlled Deposit Amount until the |rvestor Interest has been distributed in full. A Pay Out
Event occurs, either automatically or after specified notice, after a Trust Pay Qut Event or a Series
05-3 Pay Qut Event occurs, See “The Receivobles Trust: Trust Pqgy Out Events” and “Series 05-3:
Series 05-3 Pay Out Events”. If a Series 05-3 Pay Out Event occurs, it will automatically trigger an
earfy redemption event under the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.

The following table presents the highest and lowest cardholder monthly payment rates for the bank
pertfolio during any month in the period shown and the average cardholder manthly payment
rates for all months during the perlods shown. These are calculated as a percentage of total
opening receivables balances during the periods shown. The payment rates are based on amounts
which would be deemed payments of principal collections and finance charge coilections for the
related accounts.

Cardholder Monthly Payment Rates
Securitised Portfolio

& months ended Year Ended 31 December
30 june 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Lowest Month 18.58% 20.10% 20.68% 19.61% 20.83% 21.16%
Highest Month 20.82% 25.50% 24.84% 26.26% 26.34% 26.09%
Menthly Average 20.04% 21.86% 22.79% 2297% 2342% 2391%

Collections may vary from month to month due to:

®  seasonal variations;

. promotional offerings - such as payment holidays;
® general economic conditions; and

. payment habits of individual cardhatders,

There is no guarantee that the future monthly payment rates for the securitised portfolio will be
similar to the historical experience set forth in the table above or that there will be encugh
principal collections to deposit the Controtled Deposit Ameunt into the Principal Funding Account
each month to fully redeem your notes by the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date. If a Pay Out
Event occurs, the average life and maturity of your notes could be significantly reduced, since you
may start receiving principal distributions before the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date.

Because there may be a slowdown in the payment rate below the pavment rates used to determine
the Controlled Oeposit Amount or a Pay Out Event may occur which would start the Rapid
Amortisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation Period, there is no guarantee that the actual
number of months elapsed from the closing date to the final Distribution Date for your notes will
equal the expected number of months. As described under “Series 05-3: Postponement of

65



Controfled Accumulation Period”, if the servicer shortens the Contrelled Accumulation Period there
is no guarantee that there will be enough time to accumulate all amounts necessary to fully pay
the Investor Interest on the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date. See “Risk Foctors: Principal on
your Notes May Be Paid Earfier Than Expected - Creating o Reinvestment Risk to You - or Loter
than Expected”.

Receivables Yield Considerations

The gross revenues from finance charges and fees billed to accounts in the portfclio of credit and
charge card accounts for each of the six months ended June 2005, the calendar years ended 31
Decernber, 2004, 31 December, 2003, 31 December, 2002, 31 December, 2001 and 3% December,
2000 are presented in the following table,

Prior to the creation of the receivables trust, Barclaycard recorded yield information on an accruals
basis, which includes earned but not necessarily paid finance charges and fees. A system change to
allocate cash in priority against finance charges ahead of principal was made in October 1999, This
resufted in increased yield in 2000. Cash vyields from 2000 onwards include principal and interest
recovered on charged-off accounts, which typically results in higher cash vields than accrual yields.
The vield on both an accrual and » cash basis will be affected by many factors, including the
monthly periodic finance charges on the receivables, the amount of the annual fees and other fees,
changes in the delinquency rate on the receivables and the percentage of cardholders who pay
their balances in full each month and do not incur monthly periodic finance charges. For example,
the transferor could change the monthly interest rate applied to the accounts or reduce or
eliminate fees on the accounts. See “Risk Factor: A Change in the Terms of the Recelvables May
Adversely Affect the Amount or Timing of Collections and May Cause an Early Redemption or a
Downgrade of Your Notes”

The following table sets forth the revenue for the securitised portfolio of card accounts. The
revenue is comprised of monthly perindic finance charges, card fees, special fees, annual fees and
interchange. These revenues vary for each account based on the type and volume of activity for
each account. See “Barclavcard and the Barclaycord Card Portfolio”.
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Cardholder Monthly Accrued Yields Bank Portfolio’

6 months ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

30 june 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2005 2004 2003 2062 2001 2000

Finance charges and fees™ ? £ 722782667 £1,356,642,484 £1314,105516 £1,243,628,614 £1,247,138637 £1,413.692116

Average receivables oulslanding® £5,317.568,527 £8,789,036,883 £8,274,226,639 £7 466,182,635 E7,230,221277 £6,835,091,131

Yield from finance charges and fees® 15.51% 15.44% 15 .88% 16.66% 17.25% 20.68%

Interchange £ 80080223 £ 176,211,134 £ 1914053583 £ 187437923 £ 186525567 £ 183408157

Yield from interchange® 1.72% 2.00% 2% 2.51% 2.58% 2.68%
Yleld from finance charges, fees and

Interchange 17.23% 17.44% 18.20% 19.17% 19.83% 23.37%

Revenues vary for each account based on type and volume of activity for each account. See “Barciaycard and the Barclaycard Portfolio”,

All percentage data are presented on an annualised Dasis.

Finance charges and fees are comprised of monthly periodic finance charges. annual fees and other card fees.

Accrued finance cherges and fees are presented net of adjustments made pursuant to Barclaycard's normal servicing procedures.

Average receivables outstanding is the average monthly receivabie balance during the periods indicated.

vield fram finance charges and fees is the result of dividing the annualised accrued finance charges and fees by the average receivables outstanding for the period.

ikt from interchange in the result of didding anmualised revenue attributable 1o interchange rerrived during the period by the average receivaples outstanding for the period,
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The Receivables Trust

General Legal Structure

The receivables trust was constitted on 1 November 1999 and 15 a trust formed under English law
by the receivables trustee as trustee and Barclays as irust cash manager, initial transferor,
transferor beneficiary and excess interest beneficlary. The receivables trust was declared for the
financings described in this prospectus. The terms and conditions of the receivables trust are
contained in the declaration of trust dated 1 November 1994 as amenhded and restated by the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement dated 23 November 1999, and
supplemented by the series supplements to the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement, which are governed by English law. This section will describe to you the material terms
of the receivables trust and declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement. The terms
of the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement may be varied or added to by
executing a supplement — but only for the series of investor certificales issued under the
supplement. A precondition to the receivables trustee entering into a supplement is cbtaining
confirmation from the rating agencies that entering into the supplement will not result in any
rating agency withdrawing or downgrading its tating of any debt that is ultimately secured by the
receivables in the receivables trust, Under the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement, the receivables trustee holds all of the receivables trust’s property on trust for:

& the initial transferor beneficiary and the excess interest beneficiary as the initial beneficiaries
of the trust; and

s for any other person who may become an additional transferor beneficiary or additional
beneficiary of the trust as allowed by the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement.

Other than the excess interest beneficiary and a transferor beneficiary, the two categories of
bereficiary are:

& an investor beneficiary, which may include any investor beneficiary subordinate to another
investar bteneficiary as a pravider of credit enhancement; or

e an enhancement provider for a series of investor certificates, if provided for in the supplement
far that seties.

The excess interest beneficiary and the initial transferor beneficiary are the initial beneficiaries of
the receivables trust. Any subsidiary of the initial transferor that, with the prior written consent of
ali existing beneficiaries of the receivables trust, accedes to the receivables securitisation agreement
as an additional transferor will upon its accessicn become an additiona) transferor beneficiary of
the receivables trust

By making payments to the recefvables trustee as a contribution to the receivables trust’s property,
as set out in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement, other persons can
form a series of the receivables trust. These persons are called additional beneficiaries. When
payment is made, the additional beneficiaries will be given a certificate evidencing a beneficial
interest in the receivables trust w0 show that they are an investor. This process s called an
acquisition and the certificate is called an investor certificate. When an acquisition takes place a
notice will be given that will list the parties to the acquisition and anyone who is providing credit
enhancement for the series of investar certificates, called an enhancement provider. A new
supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement will govern each new
series of the receivabies trust that is created.

Two types of acguisition may be made:

e the transferor beneficiary may direct the receivables trustee, in exchange for tendering the
certificate it holds showing its entitlement to the receivabies trust’s property - called the
“transgferor certificale” - 10 issue a new series of investor certificates and to reissue the
transferor certificate evidencing the transferor's heneficial entitlement to the receivables trust’s
property. This is known as a “transferor acquisition”. Series 05-3 will be the tenth series of
investor certificates issued Dy the receivabies trust and will be created by a transferor
acquisition occurring on the closing date. The first series investor centificate (for series 99-1)
is no longer in existence as series 99-1 was fully paid out in November 2002.
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the second type of acquisition which may be made is an investor acquisition where, if the
supplement permits, an investor beneficlary together with the transferor beneficiary may
direct the receivables trustee, in exchange for tendering their investor certificates and the
transferor certificate to issue cne or more new investor certificates and a reissued transferor
certificate. The supplement for series 05-3 does not provide for an investor acguisition,

The receivables trustee will authenticate and deliver a series of investor certificates only when it
has first received:

a supplement signed by the parties to the new series, including the receivables trustee and
the transfercr beneficiary, specifying the principal terms of the series;

the credit enhancement, if any, and any agreement by which an enhancement provider agrees
to provide credit enhancement - series 05-3 has subordination and the Spread Account as
cregit enhancement and will not have an enhancement provider or an enhancement
agreement;

a solvency certificate from the transferor and any additional transferors;

written confirmation from the rating agencies that the proposed acquisition will not result in
the reduction or withdrawal of their ratings on any notes issued by the issuer or any other
issuer of any serfes of notes that is ultimately secured by the receivables in the receivables
trust - called "related beneficiary debt”;

written confirmation from each additional beneficiary and enhancement provider, if any, that:

(1) its usual place of abode is in the United Kingdom and it will be within the charge to
United Kingdom corporation tax for all amounts regarded as interest for UK tax purposes
received by It under the transactions contemplated by the series of investor certificates;
or

{2y it is a bank, as defined for purposes of Section 349{)(a) ¢f the Income and Corporation
Taxes Act 1988, and it wili be within the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax for
all amounts regarded as interest for UK tax purposes received by it under the series of
investor certificates;

the existing transferor certificate and, if it is an investor acquisition, the applicable investor
certificates;

an officer’s certificate provided by the transferor certifying either:
{1 that:
e each (lass of related beneficiary debt issued as part of the acquisition and

described in the related supplement will be rated in one of the three highest rating
categories by at least one rating agency recoghised in the United Kingdom;

e each investor beneficiary — other than any enhancement provider - will have
associated with it, either directly or indirectly, a Class of related beneficiary debt;
and

e the enhancement for each series will be provided by any combination of
subordination, a letter of credit, a cash collateral loan, a surety bond, an insurance
policy, or a spread or reserve account funded from excess finance charge
collections ultimately reverting to the excess interest beneficiary or transferor to
the extent not utilised as enhancement, but through no other means; or

(2) it has determined that, based on legal advice, the acquisition is in the best interests of
the transferor beneficiary and its affiliates.

Each supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash managernent agreement will specify the
principal terms for its series of investor certificates, including the accumulation period or
amortisation period for the payment of principal. For each series these may be of different lengths
and begin on different dates. Enhancement is specific to each series and wili be held and used by
the receivables trustee only for the benefit of the relevant series. Certain series may be
subordinated tc other series, and Classes within a series may have different priorities. Whether or
not a series or Class is subordinated will be set out in the related supplement. Series 05-3 will not
be subordinate to any other series. There will be no !imit on the number of acquisitions that may
be performed.
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The receivables trustee will not be able to arrange for additional supplements without obtaining
the consent of all the beneficiaries constituting each existing series. Even if the receivables trustee
receives all these consents, no acquisition will be effective unless the rating agencies confirm that
the additional supplement will not result in the reduction or withdrawal of their rating of any
related beneficiary debt.

The Receivables Trust's Property

The property of the receivables trust will include all present and future receivables located on the
Triumph accounting system or any cther accounting system used by the transferor from time to
time, arising under ali MasterCard and VISA credit and charge card accounts of Barclaycard's
individual cardholders on designated product lines that have not been identified as non-designated
accounts and that are denominated in pounds sterling with a billing address within England, Wales,
Scotland, Northern Ireland or a permitted additlonal jurisdiction or a restricted additional
jurisdiction. we refer to these accounts as the “"designated accounts'. See "The Receivables:
Representations”. The receivables have been and will continue to be assigned to the receivahles
trustee under the receivables securitisation agreement between Barclaycard as transferor and the
receivables trusiee. The receivables securitisation agreement is governed by English law,
Occasionally some accounts may be removed from the pool of designated accounts. These
accounts we refer to in this prospectus as the “redesignated accounts”.

The transferor is required to ensure that any of Barclaycard's credit and charge card accounts that
are to be excluded from or otherwise outside the scope of the offer or transfer to the receivables
trustee under the receivables securitisation agreement or that are to be removed from the pool of
designated accounts are identified on its computer system pricr to the date of offer or the date of
transfer,

The property of the receivables trust will also include:

& all monies due in payment of the receivables under designated accounts from time to time;

& all proceeds of the recelvables and proceeds of any guarantees and insurance policies for the
receivables — to the exteri thal they are capable of assignment - including proceeds of
disposals by the receivables trustee of charged-off receivables to Barclaycard:

the benefit of any Acquired Interchange; see "The Receivables: Interchange™,

all monijes on deposit in the Trust Accounts;

any credit enhancement for the benefit of any series or Class of beneficiary; and

all monies provided by beneficiaries of the receivables trust to fund the purchase of
recgivables, until these monies are applied as intended.

The receivables are divided inio eligible receivables and ineligible receivables. Each investor
beneficiary, the excess interest beneficiary and the transferor beneficiary are beneficially entitled to
interests in the pool of eligible receivables.

The transferor beneficiary is beneficially entitled to the entire pool of ineligible receivables and is
solely entitled to all collections af ineligible receivables.

The total principal amount of the interest of the investor beneficiary in a series is called the
“investor interest” of that series and reflects that series' entitiement to principal receivables, The
investor beneficiaries’ aggregate entitlement under the receivables trust is called the “aggregate
investor interest” and comprises the aggregate of each entitlement under each series supplement.

* 8 8 9

The total amount of the interest of the transferor beneficiary in the receivables trust is called the
“Transferor interest” and reflects the transferor beneficiary’s entitlement to principal receivables not
allocated te each outstanding series,

General Entitlement of Beneficiaries to Trust Property

The transferor beneficiary and each investor beneficiary will acquire undivided interests in the
receivables trust by making payments in favour of the receivables trustee. Some of the receivables
trust's property that will constitule credit enhancement may be specified as being the beneficial
entitlement of particuiar beneficiaties or particular series oniy. The beneficiaries of the receivables
trust are each beneficially entitied to share in the receivables trust's property and each beneficiary,
other than an enhancement provider, has or will acquire interests in the pool of eligible receivables
- called the “tligible Receivables Pool”. See "Serfes 05-3" for a descripticn of the beneficial
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entitlement of the issuer to receivables and for a description of the manner in which collections
will be alipcated to the issuer.

tnder the receivables trust as originally created, the beneficial entitlement of Barclaycard as the
excess interest beneficiary to the property of the receivables trust at any time was called the
“Excess Interest”. The Excess Interest consisted of a beneficial entitlement to the residue of the
finance charge collections and Acquired Interchange for each monthly period after amounts have
been allocated to each beneficiary forming part of that series or group of series, if applicable, and
have been used to make payments to the enhancement provider, if it is not a beneficiary. These
payments will include amounts deemed to represent finance charge collections as stated in the
supplement for the series

Because Barclaycard will transfer its entitlement to the portion of the excess interest attributable to
series 05-3 to the MTN Issuer, the portion of the excess interest attributable to series 05-3 wilt be
paid to the MTN Issuer.

To understand the beneficial entittement of the transferor beneficiary and each additional transferor
beneficiary you have to understand the definition of “‘Transferor Percentage”. The Transferor
Percentage is the percentage equal to 100 per cent less the sum of the applicable Investor
Percentages of each outstanding series,

The aggregate beneficial entitiement of the transferor beneficiary at any time consists of the
following:

o the Transfercr Percentage of eligible principal receivables; the Transferor Percentage is
calculated for this purpose using the Floating Investor Percentage for the Investor Percentage
of each serjes;

o the Transferor Percentage of finance charge receivables; the Transferor Percentage is
calculated for this purpose using the Floating Investor Percentage as the Investor Percentage
far each series:

all ineligible receivables; and

all monies held in the Trust Accounts that represent investment earnings on permitted
investments made using monies deposited in those Trust Accounts, unless something else is
provided for in the supplement; the supplement for series 05-3 does not provide for
something else.

"Permitted investments” means the fellowing:

® demand or time deposits, certificates of deposit and other short-term unsecured debt
obligations at or of any institution that has unsecured and unguaranteed debt obligations of
A-1+ and P-1 by Standard & Poor's and Moody's; and

¢ short-term unsecured debt obligations - including commercial paper - issued or guaranteed
by any body corporate whose unsecured and unguaranteed debt obligations are A-1+ and P-3
hy Standard & Poor's and Moody's.

The aggregate beneficial entitlement of the transferor beneficiary to any other trust property at
any time Is equal to the proportion that the Transferor Interest bears to the amount of eligibie
principal receivables at that time, The initial transfercr beneficiary’s and each additional transferor
beneficiary's entitiement to the aggregate beneficial entitlement of the transferor beneficiary is
equal to its proportionate share described in the transferor certificate.

Allocation and Application of Collections
The following accounts have been opened by the receivables trustee at 1234 Pavillion Drive,
Northampton, NN4 75G, England:

® a collection account calied the “Trustee Coilection Account”, which is where principal
collections and finance charge coliections are credited; and

e the acquisition account called the “Trustee Acquisition Account”, which is where amounts are
credited that can be used to purchase beneficial interests in receivables for the investor or
transferor beneficiaries.

The Trustee Acquisition Account, the Trustee Coliection Account and any additional bank accounts
of the recetvables trust that the receivables trustee may open for particular beneficiaries are
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collectively called “"Trust Accounts”. The receivables trustee will have legal title to the funds on
depeosit in each Trust Account.

Collections from cardholders for designated accounts and cardholders for other card accounts of
Barclaycard are initially paid to Barclaycard's bank accounts befgre being cleared on & same-day
basis to a bank account called the “Barclaycard Operating Account”, The Barclaycard Operating
Account s currently held by Barclaycard at its branch jocated at 1234 Pavlllion Drive, Northampton
NN4 75G, England. The transferor has declared a trust over the Barclaycard Operating Account.

All meney in the Barclaycard Operating Account will be held on trust for the receivables trustee
and transferred to the Trustee Collection Account within two business days after processing. All
money in the Trustee Coliection Account will be treated as collections from receivables of
designated accounts unless it has been incorrectly paid into the account Incorrect payments will be
deducted from the appropriate collections on the business day on which the errar is naotified to the
receivables trustee,

Amounts incorrectly categorised as principal collections of eligible receivables but which are really
collections of ineligible receivables will be given back te the transferor beneficiary, afler making
adjustments for errors but before allocating armounts of principal collections that are property of
the receivables trust. The receivables trustee will treat all morey deposited in the Trustee
Collection Account as property of the receivabies trust unless notified otherwise by the trust cash
manager.

The Eligible Receivables Pool and the Transferar Interest are increased or decreased, as applicable,
te account for the errors made.

Eligible principal receivables in defaulted accounts are allocated between the transferor beneficiary
and each series of investor certificates in accordance with their respective beneficial entitlements to
the property of the receivables trust at the time the account becomes a defaulted account. Credit
adjustments for principal receivables are allocated to the transferor beneficiary as a reduction of
the Transferor Interest until the Transferar Interest reaches zero. Ineligible principal receivables in
defaulted accounts reduce the transferor's interest in ineligible receivables — called the “Transferor
Ineligible Interest” — until it reaches zero.

Callections that are property of the receivables trust are categorised as:
e  principal coliections;

e  finance charge collections; or

& ineligible collections.

If a Discount Percentage is nominated by the transferor, the Discount Percentage of principal
coliections will be treated as finance charge coliections, The transferor has no current intention to
nominate a Discount Percentage. See "The Receivables: Discount Option Receivables”.

If the related supplement says so, each series will also be entitled to a portion of Acquired
Interchange. Series (3-3 will be aflocated a partion of Acguired Interchange as described in "Serfes
05-3". To the extent that any Acquired Interchange is not allocated to all those series, it will be
aliocated to the transferor beneficiary.

Each series will be entitled to receive varying percentages of principal collections, finance charge
collections and receivables in defaulted accounts. Each of these percentages is called an “Investor
Percentage”, The transferor beneficiary will be entitled to its applicable Transferor Percentage of
principal coltections and finance charge collections and receivables in defaulted accourts. The
excess interest beneficiary is entitled to finance charge collections allocated to a series that are not
allocated to:

&  any other beneficiary, whether or not a member of that series; or
®  any enhancement provider, as set out in the supplement refating to that series.

Each supplement will set out, for its series, the entitiement of each investor beneficiary to principal
collections, finance charge collections and Acquired Interchange.

The transferor may fulfii any obligation to make payments to the receivables trustee for principal
receivables for which it has breached a warranty by:

s  reducing the Transferor interest - but not below zero; and
& increasing the Transferor Ineligible Interest,
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Hawever, if the Transferor Interest would be reduced below zero, the transferor must make a
similar payment in immediately available funds to the receivables trustee under the declaration of
trust and trust cash management agreement and the receivables securitisation agreement.

The receivables trustee will pay the trust cash management fee (which is inclusive of VAT) to the
trust cash manager from payments made by the beneficiaries and this amount will be deducted
from the transferor beneficiary's and each series’ portion of the finance charge collections.

The receivables trustee will transfer money daily from the Trustee Collection Account in the

following priority:

{1} the amount of any incorrect payments notified to the receivables trustee not previously
allocated as collections, to the Barclaycard Operating Account, after which the transferor
beneficiary will own the money absolutefy:

(2) the amount of ineligible collections notified to the receivables trustee not previously allocated
as principal collections, to a bank account opened in the name of the transferor to deposit
the cash proceeds of the purchase price of the receivables, called the “Barclaycard Proceeds
Account”. after which the transferor beneficlary will own the money abselutely;

(3) the total amount of principal coliections allocated to the investor interest of any cutstanding
series, minus the Investor Cash Available for Acguisition of that series from the Principal
Collections Ledger to the account specified in the supplement for that series;

(4) the total amount of Investor Cash Available for Acquisition and Transferor Cash Available for
Acquisition needed on that day from the ledger of the Trustee Collection Account for
principal collections - called the “Principal Collections Ledger” - to the Trustee Acquisition
Account;

(5) the Transferor Percentage of finance charge coilections and the amount of Acquired
Interchange deposited in the Trustee Collection Account not allocated to the investor interest
of any outstanding series, from the ledger of the Trustee Collection Account for finance
charge collections — called the “Finance Charge Collections Ledger” - to the Barclaycard
Proceeds Account, or as the transferor beneficiary may direct, after which the money will be
owned by the transferor beneficiary absolutely; and

(6) each finance charge amount and all Acquired Interchange allocable to any outstanding series,
from the Finance Charge Collections Ledger to any account that may be specified in the
supplement for that series

Acquiring Additional Entitlements to Trust Property and Payments for Receivables
To understand what a revoiving period is, see “Series 05-3: Allocation, Calculation and Distribution
of Principal Coflections to the MTN issuer”,

During the revolving period for a series, the receivables trustee will use the portion of principal
collections ailocated to the investor beneficiaries of that series and which is available to fund the
acquisition of the beneficial entitlement to receivables to pay for the purchase of the beneficial
entitlernent to receivables that are eligible. These available principal collections are called “Investor
Cash Available for Acquisition”. No Investor Cash Available for Acquisition will be used to fund
ineligible receivables.

On any day a series may be allocated more money for acquisitions than is needed to purchase
existing or future receivables that are eligible and available for a seties to fund. In that case, that
series will use the excess Investor Cash Available for Acquisition to acquire available Transferor
Interest from the transferor beneficiary and, if allowed under its supplement, investor interest from
other designated series. Any money left over will be used to fund acquisitions on subsequent
business days,

The transferor beneficiary will fund the amount payable by the receivables trustee for ail the
existing and future receivables that all series are unable te fund plus the amount of any ineligible
receivables that need to be funded. Consequently, the amount payable by the receivables trustee to
the transferor for all existing and future receivabies It is purchasing on any business day will be
funded first by the series to the extent of all of the Investor Cash Available for Acquisition and
then by the transferor beneficiary to the extent of the Transferor Cash Available for Acquisition.
“Transferor Cash Avallable for Acquisition™ for any day means an amount equal to the Transferor
Percentage of principal collections processed on that day,

73




On each business day after making all adjustments, the beneficial Interest of each series In the
Eligible Receivables Pool:

& will be decreased hy the amount of princlpal collections aliocated to that serles that
constitutes Investor Cash Available for Acquisition; and

®  will be increased by the amount of Investor Cash Avallable for Acquisition used by the
recefvables trustee to pay for existing and future receivables and the amount of Investor Cash
Available for Acquisition allocated to the Transferor Interest or the investor interest of other
series to increase the proportion of the beneficial interest of that series.

These changes will not affect the beneficial entitiement of:
®  any beneficiary to monies credited to any Trust Account to which it Is beneficially entitled; or

®  any series to monies credited to any Trust Account to which the beneficiaries constituting
that series are together beneficialty entitled.

On each business day after making all adjustments, the beneficial interest of the transferor
beneficiary in the Eligible Recevables Pool:

¢ will be decreased by the amount of principal collections and investor Cash Available for
Acguisition allocated to the ransfercr beneficiary; and

& will be increased by the amount of Transferor Cash Available for Acquisition and the increase
in the Transferor Interest resulting from the decrease described in the prior bullet point.

However, any change in the beneficial interest of the transferor beneficiary in the Eligible
Receivables Pool will not affect the beneficial entitlement of the transferor beneficiary to money
cradited to any Trust Account to which it is beneficially entitled.

The investor interest of each series and the beneficial interest in the receivables trust of each
additional beneficiary will increase or decrease as described in the related supplement.

Cn each business day, after making all adjustments, the Transferor Interest:

[ will be decreased by the amount of Transferor Cash Availabie for Acquisition not used ‘o pay
for new receivables and Investor Cash Available for Acquisition transferred to the transferor
beneficiary by credit to the Barclaycard Proceeds Account; and

¢  will be increased by the purchase price payable to the transferor by the receivables trustee to
be funded by the transferor beneficiary.

These changes will not affect the beneficial entitlernent of the transferor beneficiary to money
credited to any Trust Account to which it is beneficially entitled.

Other adjustments to the Transferor Interest are explained in “The Receivables Trust: Allocation and
Application of Colfections”.

Non-Petition Undertaking of Beneficiaries

Each beneficiary of the receivables trust, including Barciaycard as transferor beneficiary and excess
interest beneficiary, the transferor, the trust cash manager and any successor trust ¢ash manager,
by entering into a supplement, wiil agree with the receivables trustee for itself and as trustee that
it will not attempt to take any action or legal proceedings for the winding up, dissolution or re-
organisation of, or for the appointment of a receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, trustee,
liguidator. sequestrator or similar officer for, any Investor beneficiary, the receivables trustee or the
receivables trust. These parties will also agree not to seek to enforce any judgments against any of
those persons,

Trust Pay Out Events

The following is a list of what we refer to in this prospectus as the “Trust Pay Out Events™

{1 the transferor consents or takes any corporate action to appoint a receiver, administrator,
administrative receiver, liquidator, trustee or similar officer of it or over all or substantiaily all
of its revenues and assets;

{2} proceedings are started against the transferor under any applicable liquidation, Insolvency,
composition or re-organisation or similar laws for its winding up, dissolution, administration
or re-organisation and the proceedings are not discharged within 60 days. or a receiver,
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administrator, adrninistratlve recelver, liquidator, trustee or similar officer of it or relating to
all or substantially all of its revenues and assets is legally and validly appointed and is not
discharged within 14 days:

(3) a duly authorised officer of the transferor admits in writing that the transferor beneficiary or
excess interest heneficiary is unable to pay its debts when they fali due within the meaning of
Section 123(1) of the Insolvency Act 1986 or the transferor makes a general assignment for
the benefit of or a composition with its creditors or voluntarily suspends payment of its
obligations to gererally readjust or reschedule its debt:

(4} the transferor cannot transfer recéivables in the designated accounts to the receivables trust
in the manner described in the receivables securitisation agreement;

{5) the transferor stops being either a resident in the United Kingdom for tax purposes or liable
for United Xingdom corporation tax; or
{6) either:

e a change in law or its interpretation or admiristration results in the receivables trustee
becoming liable to make anmy payment on account of tax - other than stamp -duty
payable in the United Kingdem for the transfer of receivables under the receivables
securitisation agreement; or

& any tax authority asserts a tax liability or takes other actions against Barclays or any of
its subsidiaries in relation to the transaction which would have an adverse affect on
them which is more than trivial, If Barclays obtains an opinion of counsel stating that
the tax liability would be due. This event will be treated as occurring when Barclays, as
transferor beneficiary, gives written notice of it to the receivables trustee.

The Trust Pay Out Events in paragraphs (1), {2) and (3) are called “Insolvency Events”. if an
Insolvency Event occurs, a Pay Qut Event will occur for each series, each beneficiary within a series
and for the transfercr beneficiary. 1f any other Trust Pay Out Event occurs, a Pay Qut Event will
occur for each series and each beneficiary within a series. Trust Pay Out Events will occur without
any notice or other action on the part of the receivables trustee or any beneficiary, as scon as the
event happens.

A “Pay Out Event” for series 05-3 means a Trust Pay Out Event or one of the events listed in
“Series 05-3: Series 05-3 Pgy Out Events”.

After an Insolvency Event, future receivables, other than finance charge receivables accruing for
principal receivables that have been assigned to the receivables trustee, will no longer be assigned
to the receivables trustee. The receivables trustee will not be entitled to accept any more offers of
receivables after an Insolvency Event. Finance charge receivables accruing on principal receivables
that have been assigned to the receivables trustee before the Inselvency Event will still he part of
the receivables trust's property and finance charge collections from them will continue to be
allocated and applied as set out In the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement
and each supplement.

The receivables trustee will notify each beneficiary if an Insolvency Event occurs and will dispose of
the receivables on commercially reasonable terms, unless within 60 days of that notice beneficiaries
representing more than 50 per cent of the Investor interest of every series, both the transferor
beneficiary and the excess interest beneficiary ~ in each case, if not subject to an !nsolvency Event
- and every other person identified in any supplement disapproves of the liquidation of the
receivables and wishes to continue with the receivables trustee accepting offers and purchasing
receivables under the receivables securitisation agreement. Mopey from this sale will be treated as
collections on the receivables and will be distributed in accordance with the provisions of the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and each supplement. See “Series
05-3".

Termination of the Receivables Trust
If the receivables trust has not already been dissolved after an Insolvency Event, then the transferor
beneficiary can instruct the receivables trustee to dissolve the receivables trust when:

e the total amount of all of the investor interests is reduced to zero;
e there are no finance charge collections or other trust property allocated to any beneficiaries
other than the transferor beneficiary or the excess interest beneficlary; and
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. no beneficiary is committed to fund payments to the transferor for purci'tases of receivables
by the receivables trust,

After the receivables trust is dissolved, all of the receivables trust's property will be controlled by
the transferor beneficiary as residual beneficiary, and the receivables securitisation agreement will
be terminated.

For the purposes of Section 1 of the Perpetuities and Accumulations Act 1964, the duration of the
perpetuity period for the recelvables trust’s property will be a period ending not later than 80
years from the date of execution of the declaration of trust and cash managerment agreement. Any
property of the recejvables trust after this period will vest in the current beneficiaries in
accordance with their entitlements to the receivables trust's property at that date.

Amendments to the Declaration of Trust and Trust Cash Management Agreement

The ceclaration of trust and trust cash management agreement may be amended with the prior
consent of each related beneficiary, No amendment will be effective unless each rating agency has
confirmed that the amendment will not result in a reduction or withdrawal of its then curremt
rating of any outstanding related beneficiary debt.

Mo investor beneficiary will consent to any proposed amendment unless instructed to do so by
notehalders helding in total not less than two thirds of the mediuwm term notes or tertificates then
outstanding of each outstanding series adversely affected. The investor beneficiary may not consent
to any proposed amendment that would:

&  reduce or delay required distributions to any investor beneficiary for the affected series;

# change the definition or the manner of calculating the investor interest, the Investor
Percentage or the investor default amount of the affected series or any Class of the affected
series; or

®  reduce the percentage required to consent to any amendment, unless instructed to do so by
all the noteholders of the medium term notes or certificates then cutstanding of the affected
series,

Disposals
Beneficiaries may not transfer or dispose of their beneficial entitlements in the receivables trust or
create any encumprance over its beneficial entitlenent, except that:

& the transferor beneficiary or the Excess interest beneficiary may dispose of the Transferor
tnterest or the Excess Interest by transferring all or substantially all of its properties and assets
to any person, if that person also expressly assumes the duties and obligations of the
transferor, the transfercr beneficiary and the excess interest heneficiary under the relevant
documents; after the transfer, the new person will be the person used to determine if an
Insolvency Event has occurred;

¢ the transferor beneficiary or the excess interest beneficiary may transfer or create any
encumbrance over the whole or any part of the Transferar lnterest or the Excess Interest with
the consent of investor beneficiaries representing in total more than one-half of the total
investor interest of each series; however. the rating agencies must first confirm that the
transfer or encumbrance will not result in a downgrade or withdrawai of its rating of any
autstanding refated beneficiary debt: and

e any beneficiary — except for the transferor beneficiary or the excess interest beneficiary — may
wransfer 2t or any part of their beneficial entittement or grant an encumbrance over their
beneficial entitlement with the prior written consent of the transferor bemeficiary, which
consent will not be unreasonably withheld; however, the receivables trustee must first receive
confirmation in writing from the person to whom the transfer will be made or for whom the
encumbrance will be granted or created, that it complies with the criteria referred to in the
fifth and sixth prerequisite to the completion of an Issuance as referred to on page 70 in "-
Generof Legol Structure” above,

The receivables trustee will, upen the direction of ali of the beneficiaries, be authorised to reassign
to Barclaycard the beneficial interest in defaulted receivables for a purchase price equal to the
amount received or recovered, if any, by Barclaycard from those defaulied receivables less the fees,
costs and expenses incurred by Barclaycard in the recovery of that amount.
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Trustee Payment Amount

The receivables trustee will be paid its remuneration, which is inclusive of VAT (if any), and
reimbursed and indemnified (under the terms of the declaration of trust and trust cash
managerment agreement) for any costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with its duties
and activiies as receivables trustee, including the part of these costs and expenses that represents
VAT (if any) out of the property of the receivables trust allocated to the investor beneficiaries, The
receivables trustee will be pald monthly in arrears cn each transfer date the amounts certified by
the trust cash manager to the receivables trustee by the end of any monthly period as being due
to It for that monthly period. This payment is calied the "Trustee Payment Amount”. The
proportion of the Trustee Payment Amount to be paid by series 05-3 and the MTN issuer is
described in “Serfes 05-3: Trustee Payment Amount”.
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Servicing of Receivables and Trust Cash Management

General - Servicing

Barclaycard was appointed on the initial closing date by the beneficiaries of the receivables trust as
initial servicer under the terms of the beneficiaries servicing agreament. Any additional transferor
beneficiary or beneficiary must accede to the beneficiaries servicing agreement. The servicer will
service, administer and manage the recelvables and request and receive payments on the
receivables using its usual procedures and normal market practices for servicing credit and charge
card receivables comparable to the recelvables in the designated accounts. The servicer has full
power and authority, acting alone or through any other party properly designated, to undertake all
actions concerning the servicing, administration and management of the receivables it considers
necessary or desirable.

The servicer's duties Include carrying cut all servicing, administratlon and management functions in
relation to the receivables and, insofar as the interests of the beneficiaries are affected, the
designated accounts in accordance with Barclaycard's policies and procedures from time to time
and in accordance with normal market practice, insofar as conslstent with Barclaycard's policy and
procedures. These functions include:

®  carrving out valuations of receivables on designated accounts for the purpose of determining
whether any receivables should be charged off in accordance with Barclaycard's credit and
charge card guidelines;

®  ensuring that the interests of the beneficiaries are taken into account in making decisions
regarding the granting of credit to obligors;

& on its own behalf, preparing and keeping its qwn records as regards all of these matters,
including in particular but without limitation, the matters referred to i the first two bullet
points above:

&  monitoring payments by obligors and notifying obligors of overdue payments; and
e crediting and debiting obligers' accounts as appropriate.
The servicer will at all times be required to take ali practicable steps to:

®  ensure that payments made to the transferor by obligors are received into the Barclaytard
Operating Account;

o  identify any funds in the Barclaycard Operating Account which are required to be iransferred
to the trustee collection account for the benefit of the beneficiaries; and

& ensure that such funds are so transferred when required.

The servicer will not resign from its obligations and duties as servicer under the beneficiaries
servicing agreement unless its performance is no longer permitted under applicable faw and there
is no reasonable action that it could take to make it permissible. The servicer's resignation will nat
be effective until a successor servicer has been properly appointed. Barclaycard, as initlal servicer,
performs account processing and administration in-house, but has subcontracted some cardholder
payment processing services, which are undertaken on Barclaycard's behalf by ASTRON (Business
Processing Solutions).

The servicer will indemnify each investor beneficiary against all reascnable loss, liability, expense,
damage or iniury caused by the servicer's fraud, wilful misconduct or negligence in performing its
servicing functions. However, the servicer will not indemnify any investor beneficlary:

o if any acts or omissions are caused by the negligence, fraud or wilful misconduct of that
investor beneficiary or its agents;

¢ for any liabilities, costs or expenses of the receivables trust for any action taken by the
receivables trustee at the request of any investor beneficiary of any series to which that
investor beneficiary belongs;

& for any loss, claims or damages that are incurred by any of them acting in their capacity as
beneficiaries, including those resuiting from defaulted accounts; or

e for any liabilities, costs or expenses arising under any tax law, or any penalties or interest
caused by a failure to comply with any tax law, payable by it in connection with the
beneficiaries servicing agreement to any tax authority.
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The directors, officers, employees or agents of the servicer and the servicer itseif will not be under
any liability to the receivables trustee, the receivables trust, the investor beneficiaries. any
enhancement provider or any other person under the beneficiaries servicing agreemént or any
related provider except in the case of intentional wrongdeing, bad faith or gross negligence in
performing its duties under the beneficiaries servicing agreement.

Any persor inte which the servicer may be merged or consolidated, or any person succeeding to
or acquiring the business of the servicer in whole or in part, after executing a supplemental
agreement to the beneficiaries servicing agreement and the defivery of a legal opinion, will become
the successor to the servicer or co-servicer with the servicer under the beneficiaries servicing
agreement.

General — Trust Cash Management

Barclaycard was appointed on the initial closing date by the receivables trustee as initial trust cash
manager under the terms of the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement. The
trust cash manager will carry out cash management functions in refation to the receivables on
behalf of the receivables trustee.

The trust cash manager's duties include but are not confined to:
& making calculations on the allocations of receivables; and

& advising the receivables trustee to transfer money between the Trust Accounts and o make
withdrawals and payments from the Trust Accounts as set forth in the declaration of trust
and trust cash management agreement.

The trust cash manager will not resign from its obligations and duties as trust cash manager under
the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement unless its performance is no longer
permitted under applicable law and there is no reasonable action that it can take to remedy the
situation, The trust cash manager's resignation will not be effective untll a successor trust cash
manager has been properly appointed.

The trust cash manager will indemnify the receivables trustee and the receivables trust against all
reasonable loss, liability, expense, damage ar injury, in each case including VAT, if any, caused by
its fraud, wilful misconduct or negligence in performing its cash management functions. However,
the trust cash manager will not indemnify the recelvables trustee:

e if any acts or omissions are caused by the negligence, fraud or wilful misconduct of the
receivables trustee or its agents;

e for any liabilities, costs or other expenses of the receivables trust for any action taken by the
receivables trustee at the request of any investor beneficiary of any series to which that
investor beneficiary belongs:

e for any losses, claims or damages Incurred by the receivables trustee in its capacity as a
beneficiary of the receivables trust; or

o  for any liabilities or other costs of it or the receivables trust arising under any tax law or any
penalties or interest caused by a failure to comply with any tax law, payable by it or the
receivables trust in connection with the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement to any tax autharity.

The directors, officers and other employees and agents of the trust cash manager and the trust
cash manager itself will not be under any liability to the receivables trustee or the receivables trust
or any pther person under the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement except
in the case of intentionai wrongdoing, bad faith or negligence in performing its duties under the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement,

Any person into which the trust cash manager may be merged or consolidated, or any person
succeeding to or acquiring the business of the trust cash manager in whole ar in part, after
executing a supplemental agreement to the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement and the delivery of a iegal opinion, will become the successor to the trust cash manager
or co-trust cash manager under the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement.

Servicing and Trust Cash Manager Compensation

The servicer is ertitled to receive an annuat fee from the beneficiaries for each monthly period.
This fee is called the “servicing fee” and is payable monthly on each transfer date, to the extent
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that those monies are avallable. Any amounts payable in respect of the servicing fee will be
inclusive of VAT, if any. The servicing fee will be equal to one-tweifth of the preduct of:

e (.75 per cent., or if Barclays Bank PLC is the servicer, such other percentage which the rating
agencies have confirmed will not result in a downgrade or withdrawal of the rating of the
notes or any related beneficiary debt and legal counsel has confirmed that such percentage
will not prejudice tax treatment of the receivables trust or the beneficiaries; and

e the average daily total outstanding face amount of principal receivables during that monthly
period.
The share of the servicing fee payable by the receivables trustee to the servicer for series 05-3 on
any transfer date is called the “investor servicing fee” and will be equal to
»  one-twelfth of the product of:
{1} 0.75 per cent; or
(2} another percentage agreed with the investor beneficiaries as long as Barclaycard Is the
servicer provided that the rating agencies confirm in writing that the new percentage
will not cause them to reduce or withdraw their then current rating on any related
beneficiary debt; and
o the Adjusted Investor Interest as at the last day of the monthly period before that transfer
date.

On the first transfer date after the closing date the investor servicing fee will be £1,09%,222.

The balance of the servicing fee not payable in respect of series 05-3 or any other series will be
payable by the transferor and is called the “transferor servicing fee”. If the servicer is also the
transferor beneficiary in any monthly period, the transferor servicing fee for that monthiy period
will not be payable,

The trust cash manager is entitled to receive a VAT inciusive fee from the receivables trustee for
each monthly period. This fee is cafled the “"trust cash management fee” and is payable monthly on
each transfer date. The trust cash management fee will be equal to one-twelfth of the product of
the sum of the annuzl fees in each supplement as being the investor trust cash management fees
for each series.

The share of the trust cash management fee payable by the receivables trustee to the trust cash
manager for series 05-3 on any transfer date for which series 05-3 agrees to indemnify the
receivables trustee is called the “investor trust cash management fee” and will be equal to one-
twelfth of £6,000. The trust cash management fee can be any other amount that the receivables
trustee may agree to as long as Barclaycard is the trust cash manager provided that the rating
agencies confirm in writing that the new amount will not cause them to reduce or withdraw their
then current rating on any reiated beneficiary debt.

On the first transfer dale afier the closing date the investor trust cash management fee will be
£690.

The balance of the trust cash management fee, in respect of which the receivables trustee is not
indemnified by series 05-3 or any other series, will be payable by the transferor and is called the
“transferor trust cash management fee”. If the trust cash manager Is also the transferor beneficiary
in any monthly period, the transferor trust cash management fee fer that manthly period wili not
be paid.

Termination of Appointment of Servicer

The appointrrent of a transferor as servicer under the beneficiaries servicing agreement and the

appointment of any person as joint servicer to replace anyone then acting as the servicer - called a

“successor servicer” — will terminate when a servicer default occurs and is continuing.

“Servicer default” means any one of the following events:

(1) failure on the part of the servicer duly to observe or perform in any respect 2ny other
covenant or agreement of the servicer contained in the bereficiaries servicing agreement, ot
any other relevant document, that has a material adverse effect on the interests of the
investor beneficiaries of any outstanding series; this fallure will constitute a servicer default
only if It remains unremedied and continues to have an adverse effect on the interests of the
investor beneficiaries for 60 days after the receipt of a notice of the failure is given by the
investor beneficiaries to the servicer; if the notice is given by the investor beneficiaries it will
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be on the instruction of a group of holders of medium term notes or certificates representing
more than fifty per cent. of the total face value of the medium term notes or certificates
outstanding of any outstanding series adversely affected;

{2) delegation by the servicer of its dutles under the beneficiaries semvicing agreement to any
other entity, except as permitted by the beneficiaries servicing agreement;

{3) any relevant representation, warranty or certification made by the servicer in the beneficiaries
servicing agreement ¢r in any certificate delivered urnder the beneficiaries servicing agreement
was incorrect when made, which has a material adverse effect on the Interests of the investor
beneficiaries of any outstanding series; this failure will only be a servicer default if it remains
unremedied and centinues to have an adverse effect on the interests of the investor
beneficiaries for 60 days after the receipt of a notice of the failure is given; the notice of the
failure will be given by either (1) the receivables trustee to the servicer, or (2) the investor
beneficiaries tc the receivables trustee and the servicer; if the notice is given by the investor
beneficiaries it will be on the instruction of holders of the series 05-2 medium term note
certificate representing more than fifty per cent. of the total face value of the series 05-3
medium term note certificate outstanding of any outstanding series adversely affected;

(4) any of the following:

&  the servicer agrees to or takes any corporate action to appoint a receiver, administrator,
administrative receiver, trustee or similar officer of it or of all of its revenues and assets;
or

e an order of the court is made for its winding-up, dissolution, administration or re-
organisation that has remained in force undischarged or unstayed for 60 days; or

® & receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, trustee or similar officer of it or all of
its revenues and assets, is appointed; and

{5) any of the following:

® a duly authorised officer of the servicer admits in writing that the servicer is unable to
pay its debts as they fali due within the meaning of Section 123(1) of the Insolvency Act
1986; or

¢ the servicer makes a general assignment-for the benefit of or a composition with its
creditors or it valuntarily suspends payment of its obligations with a view to the general
readjustment or rescheduling of its indebtedness.

In the case of (1), (2) or {3) above the grace period will be 60 business days. The grace period is
the extra number of days before a servicer default can be calied, allowing the servicer to remedy a
servicer default that has been caused by so-called acts of God or uncentrellable circumstances.
These circumstances are called force mgjeure events and are listed in the beneficiaries servicing
agreement.

Within two business days after the servicer becomes aware of any servicer default, the servicer
must notify the beneficiaries, each rating agency, the security trustee and any enhancement
provider as soon as possible in writing, The beneficiaries must give each rating agency notice of
any removal of the servicer or appointment of a successor servicer.

Investor beneficiaries acting on the instructions of holders of medium term notes or certificates
representing in total more than two-thirds of the total face value of medium term notes or
certificates then outstanding of each series adversely affected by any default by the servicer or the
transferor in the performance of its obligations under the beneficiaries servicing agreement and any
other relevant documents, may waive the default unless it is a failure to make any required
deposits, or payments of Interest or principat for the adversely affected series.

After the servicer receives a termination notice and a successor servicer is appointed, the duties of
acting as servicer of the receivables under the beneficiaries servicing agreement will pass from the
then servicer to the successor servicer, The beneficiaries servicing agreement contains the
requirements for the transfer of the servicing role, including the transfer of authority over
collections, the transfer of electronic records and the disclosure of information,

After It receives a termination notice, the servicer wiil continue to act as servicer until agreed by it
and the Beneficiaries. The beneficiaries must try to appoint a successor servicer that is an eligible
servicer.
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If the receivables trustee cannot appoint a successor servicer and the servicer delivers a certificate
that says it cannot in good faith cure the servicer default, then the receivables trustee will start the
process of selling the receivables. The beneficiaries wlll notify any enhancement providers of the
proposed sale of the recelvables by the receivables trusies to a third party and wiil provide each
enhancement provider an opportunity to bid on purchasing the receivables.

The proceeds of the sale will be deposited in the Trust Accounts for distribution to the
beneficiaries as set out in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and the
serles supplements.

An “eligible servicer” means an entity that, when it is servicer:

e is servicing a portfolic of consumer revolving credit or charge card accounts or other
consumer credit accounts:

is legally quatified and has the capacity to service the designated accounts;

is qualified or licensed to use the software that the servicer is then currently using to service
the designated accounts or obtains the right 1o use, or has its own, software that is adequate
to perform its duties under the beneficiaries servicing agreement; and

#»  has, in the opinion of each rating agency, demonstrated the ability to service, professionally
and competently, a portfclio of similar accounts in accordance with custornary standards of
skill and care.

Termination of Appointrment of Trust Cash Manager

The appointment of the transferor as trust cash manager under the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement and the appointment of any person as joint trust cash manager or to
replace anyone then acting as the trust cash manager - called a "successor trust cash manager” -
will terminate when a trust cash manager default occurs.

"Trust cash manager default” means any one of the follpwing events:

(1) any failure by the trust cash manager to direct the making of any payment, transfer or
deposit or to give instructions or notice to the receivables trustee pursuant to an agreed
schedule of collections and allocations; any failure by the trust cash manager to advise the
receivables trustee to make any required drawing, withdrawal, or payment under any credit
enhancement; these events will be considered failures if they do not happen within five
business days after the date that they were supposed to happen under the terms of the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement or any other relevanl document;

{2) failure on the part of the trust cash manager duly te observe or perform in any respect any
other covenant or agreement of the trust cash manager centained in the declaration of trust
and trust cash managerent agreement, or any other relevant document, that has a material
adverse effect on the interests of the ihvestor beneficiaries of any outstanding series; this
failure will constitute a servicer default only if it remains unremedied and continues to have a
material adverse effect on the interests of the investar beneficiaries for 60 days after the
receipt of a notice of the failure is given; the notice of the failure will be given by either {1)
the receivables trustee to the trust cash manager, or (2} the investar beneficiaries ta the
receivables trustee and the trust cash manager; if the notice s given by the investor
beneficiaries it will he on the instruction of a group of holders of medium term notes or
certificates representing more than fifty per cent of the total face value of the medium term
notes ar certificates outstanding of any outstanding series adversely affected;

(3) delegation by the trust cash manager of its duties under the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement to any other entity, except as permitied by the declaration of
trust and trust cash management agreement;

{4) any relevant representation. warranty or certification made by the trust cash manager in the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement or in any certfficate delivered
under the declaration of trust and trust cash maragement agreement was jncorrect when
made, which has a material adverse effect on the interests of the investor beneficiaries of any
outstanding series; this failure will be a trust cash manager default only if it remains
unremedied and continues to have a material adverse effect on the interests of the investor
beneficiaries for 60 days after the receipt of a notice of the failure Is given; the notice of the
failure will be given by either (1) the receivables trustee to the trust cash manager, or (2) the
investor beneficiaries to the receivables trustee and the trust cash manager; if the notice is
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given by the investor beneficiaries it will be on the instruction of holders of medium term
notes or certificates representing more than fifty per cent of the total face value of the
medium term nates or certificates cutstanding of any outstanding serles adversely affected;

{5} any of the following:

s the frust cash manager agrees to or takes any corporate action to appoint a receiver.
administrator, administrative receiver, liquidator. trustee or similar officer of it or of all
of its revenues and assets; or

& an order of the court is made for its winding-up, dissolution, administration or re-
organisation that has remained in force undischarged or unstayed for 60 days; or

&  a receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, liquidator, trustee or simiiar officer of it
or ail of its revenues and assets is appointed; and
(6) any of the follawing:
&  a duly authorised officer of the trust cash manager admits in wriling that the trust cash

manager is unable to pay its debts as they fall due within the meaning of Section 123(1)
of the Insolvency Act 1986; or

®  the trust cash manager makes a general assignment for the benefit of or a compesitiont
with its creditors or it voluntarily suspends payment of its obigations with a view to the
general readjustment or rescheduling of its indebtedness.

In the case of (1) above the grace period will be 10 businéss days and in the case of (2). (3} or (4)
above it will be 60 business days. The grace pericd is the extra number of days before a trust cash
manager default will be effective allowing the trust cash manager to remedy a trust cash manager
default that has been caused by so-called acts of God or uncontroflable circumstances. These
circumstances are called force majeure events and are listed in the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement.

Within two business days after the trust cash manager becomes aware of any trust cash manager
default, the trust cash manager must notify the receivables trustee, each rating agency, each
investor beneficiary and any enhancement provider as soon as possible in writing, The receivables
trustee must give each investor benefictary and rating agency notice of any removal of the trust
cash manager or appointment of a successor trust cash manager. The receivables trustee must give
each rating agency notice of any removal of the trust cash manager.

Investor beneficiaries acting on the instructions of holders of medium term notes or certificates
representing in toial more than two-thirds of the total face value of medium term notes or
certificates then outstanding of each series adversely affected by any default by the trust cash
manager or the transferor in the performance of its obligations under the declaration of trust and
trust cash management agreement and any other relevant documents, may waive the default unless
it is a failure to make any required deposits, or payments of interest or pringipai, for the adversely
affected series.

After the trust cash manager receives a termination notice and a successor {rust cash manager is
appointed, the duties of acting as trust cash manager of the receivables under the declaration trust
and trust cash managemnent agreement will pass from the then trust cash manager to the successer
trust cash manager. The declaraticn of trust and trust cash managemment agreement contains the
requirements for the transfer of the trust cash management role, including the transfer of authority
over collections, the transfer of electronic records and the disclosure of informaticn.

After it receives a termination notice, the trust cash manager will continue to act as trust cash
manager until a date agreed by the receivables trustee and the trust cash manager, The receivables
trustee must try to appeint a successor trust cash manager that is an eligibie trust cash manager,

if the receivables trustee cannot appoint a successor trust cash mahager and the trust cash
manager delivers a certificate that says it cannot in good faith cure the trust cash manager default,
then the receivables trustee will start the process of selling the receivables. The receivables trustee
will notify each enhancement provider of the proposed safe of the receivables by the receivables
trustee to a third party and will provide each enhancement provider an opportunity to bid on
purchasing the receivables,

The proceeds of the saie will be deposited in the Trust Accounts for distribution to the
beneficiaries as set out in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and the
series supplements.
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An “eligible trust cash manager” means an entity that, when it is trust cash manager:

is legally qualified and has the capacity to carry out the trust cash management functions as
set forth in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement;

is qualified or licensed to use the software that the trust cash manager is then currently using
to carry out cash management of the receivables or obtains the right to use, or has its own,
software that is adequate te perform its duties under the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement; and

has, in the opinion of each rating agency, demonstrated the ability to professionally and
cormpetently act as a trust cash manager in accordance with customary standards of skill and
care.
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Series 05-3

General

The MTN Issuer is an investor beneficiary of the réeceivables trust. its initial beneficial interest was
conferred under a series supplement called the serles 99-1 supplement (series 99-1 was fully repaid
in Novernber 2002} and subsequent beneficlal interests were conferred under series supplements
calied the series 02-1, series 03-1, series 03-2, series 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1 and
series 05-2 supplements. The MTN Issuer will increase its entitlement under the receivables trust
under a series supplement called the “Series 05-3 Supplement”. The parties to the Series 05-3
Supplement are the receivabies trustee, Barclaycard as the transferor beneficiary, the excess interest
beneficiary, servicer, the trust cash manager and the transferor, and the MTN Issuer as the investor
beneficiary.

The MTN Issuer will increase its beneficial entitlement as investor beneficiary by paying
£1,273,702,000 to the receivables trustee on the cliosing date; we call this amount the “Initial
Investor Interest”. Far the purposes of making calculations about the performance of the undivided
beneficlal interest of series 05-3 in the receivables trust, the Investor Interest will be referable to
notional Classes called “Class A1", "Class A2", “Class B1", *Class B2", “Class C1" and "Class C2".

The MTN Issuer witl receive an investor certificate, This investor certificate will be evidence of the
Initial lnvestor Interest for series 05-3 in the recelvables trust, calculated as referable to Class Al,
Class A2, Class 81, Class B2, Class C1 and Class C2, and will be governed by English law.

The MTN Issuer will confirm the fallowing in the Seéries 05-3 Supplement:

e that its usual place of abode is within the United Kingdom for the purpose of Section
349 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988; and

e that it has a business establishment, for the purposes of Section 9 of the Value Added
Tax Act 1994, in the United Kingdom which is either its sole business establishment,
with na other fixed establishment anywhere else in the world, or is its business or other
fixed establishment at which any services received by it as contemplated in the relevant
documents are most directly used or to be used or, as the case may be, its business or
other fixed establishment which is most directly concerned with any services supplied by
it as contemplated in the relevant documents.
Series 05-3 will be included in group one, which included series 99-1 (now repaid) and which
includes series 02-1, series 03-1, series 03-2, series 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1 and
series 05-2 and will not be subordinated to any other investor beneficiary or series. See " Shared
Principal Coffections” for the ramifications of series 05-3 being included in group one.
Following execution of the series 05-3 supplement the MTN lssuer will acquive from Barclays Bank
PLC as excess interest beneficiary that part of the rights of Barclays Bank PLC to the excess interest
attributable to series 05-3.

Beneficial Entitlement of the MTN Issuer to Trust Property other than in respect of the Excess Interest
In order to understand the beneficial entitlement of the MTN Issuer to the property of the
receivables trust you will need to understand the fellowing definitions.

The “Class A1 Floating Allocation”, the "Class AZ Floating Allocation”, the Class B1 Floating
Aliocation”, the "Class B2 Floating Allocation™ the “Class C¥ Floating Allocation” and the “Class C2
Floating Allocation” wifl each be calcuiated the same way and will be equal to, far gach notional
Class and for each monthly period {other than in respect of the first monthly period}. the following
fraction expressed as a percentage:

the Adjusted Investor Interest for the relevant national Class

Adjusted Investor Interest

where these amounts are calculated on the close of business on the last day of the monthly period
prior to the transfer date.

The floating allocation for each notional Class for the first monthly period will be calculated as
follows:

the Jnitial Investor Interest for the reievant notional Class

Initial Investor Interest
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“Adjusted Investor interest” means the sum of the Class A Adjusted Investor Interest, the Class B
Adjusted Investor Interest and the Class € Adjusted Investor Interest,

"Class A Adjusted Investor Interest” means the Class A1 Adjusted investor Interest and the Class A2
Adjusted investor Interest.

“Class A lnvestar Charge-Off" means the Class Al Investor Charge-Off and the Class A2 investor
Charge-Off.

"Class A Initial investor Interest” means the Class A1 Initial Investor Interest and the Class A2 Initial
tnvestor Interest.

"Class A Investor Interest” means the Class Al Investor fnterest and Class AZ Investor Interest

"Class Al Initial Investor Interest” means the sterling equivalent of €650,000,000 using the fixed
exchange rates in the Class A1 swap agreement.

"Class Al Investor Interest’ means at any time an amount equal to:
{1y the Ciass A Initial Investor Interest, minus

(2) the total principal payments made to the MTN Issuer for the purposes of caiculation treated
as referable to the Class A1 Investor interest from the property of the receivables trust, minus

(3) the total amount of Class A1 Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, EE

(4) the total amount of any reimbursements of Class AT Investor Charge-Offs on all prior transfer
dates.

The Class At Investor Interest, however, may not be reduced befow zero.

"“Class Al Adjusted Investor Interest” means at any fime an amount equal to the Class A1 Mwestor
Interest minus an amount equal to the pro rata proportion of Class Al (nvestor Interest to Class A
Investor Interest times the balance on deposit in the Principal Funding Account, but not more than
the Cfass A1 Investor Interest.

"Class AT Investor Charge-Off” means a reduction in the Class Al investor Interest on any transfer
date by the amount, if any, by which the Class A1 Investor Default Amount exceeds the total
amount of Class A1 Available Funds, Excess Spread, Reallocated Class B Principal Collections and
Reallocated Class C Principal Collections, the Class C Investor Interest and the Class B Investor
Interest, in each case available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class Al Investar
Default Amount.

“Class A2 Initial Investor Interest” means £700,000.000.
“Class A2 Investor Interest” means at any time an amount equal to:
{11 the Class A2 Initial Investor Interest, minus

(2) the total principal payments made to the MTN Issuer for the purposes of calculation treated
as referable to the Class A2 Investar Interest fram the property of the receivables trust, minus

(3) the total amount of Class A2 Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, plus

(4) the total amount of any reimbursements of Class A2 Investor Charge-Offs on ali prior transfer
dates.

The Class AZ Investor Interest, however, may not be reduced below zero.

"Class AZ Adjusted Investor Interest” means at any time an amount equal to the Class A2 Investor
Interest minus an amount equal to the pro rofe proportion of (lass A2 Investor Interest to Class A
Investor Inierest times the balance on deposit in the Principal Funding Account, but not more than
the Class A2 Investor Interest,

“Class A2 Investor Charge-Off' means a reduction in the Class A2 investor Interest on any transfer
date by the amaunt, if any. by which the Class A? Investor Defauit Amount exceeds the total
amount of Class A2 Available Funds, Excess Spread, Reallocated Class B Principal Collections and
Reallocated Class C Principal Collections, the Class C Investor Interest and the Class B Investor
Interest, in each case available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class A2 Investor
Default Amount.

“Class B Adjusted |nvestor Interest” means the Class B1 Adjusted Investor Interest and the Class B2
Adjusted Investor Interest.
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“Class B Investor Charge-Off' means the Class B1 Investor Charge-Off and the Class B2 Investor

Charge-GOff.

"Class B Initial Investor Interest” means the Class B Initial Investor Interest and the Class B2 Initial

Investor Interest.

“Class B Investor Interest” means the Class B1 Investor Interest and Class B2 Invester Interest.

“Class B1 Initial Investor Interest” means the sterling equivalent of €72,500,000 using the fixed

exchange rate in the Class B1 swap agreement.

"Class B1 Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amount equal to:

(1) the Class B1 Initial Investor Interest, minus

(2) the tota! principal payments made to the MTN lIssuer, for the purposes of calculation treated
as referable to the Class Bt investor Interest from the property of the receivables trust, minus

(3) the total amount of Class B1 Investor Charge-Qifs for all prior transfer dates, minus

{4) the total amount of Reallocated Class BY Principal Collections allocated on all prior transfer
dates that have been used to fund the Class A Required Amount, excluding any Reallocated
Class B1 Principal Collections that have resulted in a reduction in the Class C Investor [nterest,
minus

(5) an amount equal to any reductions in the Class B1 Investor Interest on all prior transfer dates
to fund the Class A Investor Default Amount, E.I.‘.".S.

(6) the total amount of Excess Spread allocated and available on all prior transfer dates to
reimburse amounts deducted under (3}, (4} and (5) abave,

The Class B1 Investor Interest, however, may not be reduced below zero.

“Class B1 Adjusted Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amecunt equal o the Class Bl Investor
Interest minus an amount equal to the pro rata proportion of Class B1 investor Interest to Class B
investor Interest of the balance on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the Class
A Investor |nterest, but not more than the Class B1 Investor Interest.

"Class BY investor Charge-Off' means a reduction in the Class B1 investor interest on any transfer
date by the amount, if any. by which the Class B1 Investor Default Amount exceeds the total
amount of Excess Spread, Reallocated Class C Principal Collections and the Class C Investor Interest,
in each case available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class B1 Investor Default
Amount.

"Class B2 Initial Investor interest” means £15,000,000.

"Class B2 Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amount equal to:

(1) the Ciass B2 fnitia! Investor Interest, minus

(2) the total principal payments made to the MTN Issuer, for the purposes of calculation treated
as referable to the Class B2 Investor interest from the property of the receivables trust, minus

(3) the total amount of Class B2 Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, minus

(4) the total amount of Reallocated Class B2 Principal Collections alfocated on all prior transfer
dates that have been used to fund the Class A Required Amount, excluding any Reallocated
Class B2 Principal Collections that have resulted in a reduction in the Class C Investor Interest,
minus

(5} an amount equal to any reductions in the Class B2 Investor Interest on all prior transfer dates
to fund the Class A Investor Default Amount, plus

(6) the total amount of Excess Spread allocated and available on all prior transfer dates to
reimburse amounts deducted under (3), (4) and (5} above.
The Class B2 Investor Interest, however, may not be reduced below zero.

“Class B2 Adjusted Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amount equal to the Class B2 Investor
Interest minus an amount equai to the pro rato propartion of Class B2 Investor Interest to Class B
Investar Interest of the baiance on depasit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the Class
A Investor Interest, but not more than the Class B2 Investor Interest,

“Class B2 Investor Charge-Off" means a reduction in the Class B2 Investor Interest on any transfer
date by the amount, if any, by which the Class B2 Investor Default Amount exceeds the total
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amount of Excess Spread, Reallocated Class C Principal Collections and the Class C Investor Interest,

In each case avallable and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class B2 Investor Default

Amount.

"Class C Adjusted Investor fnterest” means the Class C1 Adjusted Invéstor Interest and the Class C2

Adjusted Investor Interest

“Class C Investor Charge-Off” means the Class C1 Investor Charge-Off and the Class C2 [nvestor

Charge-Off.

"Class C Initial Investor Interest” means the Class C1 Initlal fnvestor Interest and Class (2 Initial

Investor interest

“Class C Investar Interest” means that Class C1 Investor |nterest and the Class €2 Investor Interest.

“Class C1 Initial Investor |nterest” means the sterling equivalent of €68,000,000 using the fixed

exchange rate in the C1 swap agreement.

“Class €1 Investor Interest” means at any time an amount equal to:

(1) the Cass C1 Initial Invéster Interest, minus

(2) the iotal principal payments made to the MTN lssuer for the purposes of calculation treated
as referable to the Class C1 Investor Interest from the property of the receivables trust, minus

(3) the total amount of Class C1 Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, minus

(4) the total amount of Realfocated Class B Principal Collections aflocable to the Class C1 Investor

Interest and Reallocated Class Ct Principal Collections on all prior transfer dates that have
been used to fund the Class A Required Amount or the Class B Required Amount, minus
(5) an amount egual to any reductions in the Class C1 Investor Interest on ail prier transfer dates
to fund the Ciass A investor Default Amount and the Class B investor Default Amount, plus
(6) the total amount of Excess Spread allocated and available on all prior transfer dates to
reimburse amounts deducted under (3), {4) and (5) above.
The Class C1 investor Interest, however, may not be reduced below zero.
“Class C1 Adjusted Investor Interest’” means, at any time, an amount equal to the Class C1 Investor
interest minus an atmount equal to the pro ratq proportion of Class {1 Investor Interest to Class C
Investor Interest of the balance on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the sum
of the Class A investor Interest and the Class B Investor Interest, but not more than the Class (1
Investor Interest.
“Class C1 Investor Charge-Off" means a reduction in the Class C1 Investor Interest on any transfer
date by the amount, if any, by which the Class C1 Investor Default Amount exceeds the amaunt of
Excess Spread available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class C) Investor Default
Amount.

“Class C2 Initial Investor Interest” means £18,000,000.

“Class C2 investor Interest” means at any time an amount equal to:

{1) the Class C2 Initial investor Interest, minus

(2)  the total principal payments made to the MTN lIssuer for the purposes of cafculation treated
as referable to the Class €2 Investor Interest from the property of the receivables trust, minus

(3) the total amount of Class C2 Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, minus

(4) the total amount of Reallocated Class B Principal Collections ailocable to the Class C2 investor
imterest and Realiocated Tieass €2 Principal Collections on alh prior iransfer dates that have
been used to fund the Class A Required Amount or the Class B Required Amount, minus

{5y an amount equal to any reductions in the Class C2 Investor Interest on all prior transfer
dates to fund the Class A Investor Default Amount and the Class B Invester Defauit Amount,
plus

(6) the total amount of Excess Spread allocated and avallable on all prior transfer dates to

reimburse amounts deducted under (3}, (4) and (5) above.

The Class C2 Investor Interest, however, may not be reduced below zero.

“Class €2 Adjusted Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amount equal to the Class C2 Investor
Interest minus an amount equal to the pro rote proportion of Class C2 Investor Interest to Class C
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lnvestor Interest of the balance on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the sum
of the Class A Investor Interest and the Class B Investor Interest, but not more than the Class C2
investor Interest.

"Class C2 Investor Charge-Off" means a reduction in the Class C2 Investor Interest on any transfer
date by the amount, if any, by which the Class C2 Investor Default Amount exceeds the amount of
Excess Spread available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class C2 Investor Default
Amount,

“Initial Investor Interest” means the sum of the Class A Initial Investor Interest, the Class B Initial
Investor Interest and the Class C Initial Investor Interest.

“Investor Interest” means the sum of the Class A Investor Interest, the Class B Invester Interest and
the Class C Investor Interest.

The beneficial entitlement of the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary for series 05-3 to eligible
principal receivables - which includes principal collections that are the property of the receivables
trust bui excludes the armount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account - is equal to the
proportion that the Adjusted Investor Interest bears to the amount of eligible principal receivables
assigned or purported to be assigned to the receivables trust at any time, However, the beneficial
entittement for each notianal Class will not exceed the Class A Adjusted Investor Interest, the Class
B Adjusted Investor Interest or the Class C Adjusted Investor Interest, as appiicable, at any time.

The beneficial entitlement of the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary for series 05-3 to finance
charge collections during any menthly period is equal to the proportion that the floating allocation
for each notional Class bears to the investor percentage of finance charge collections for such
monthly period credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger from time to time during that
montbly period. However, the beneficial entitlement will not exceed the sum of the monthly
required expense amount, the investor servicing fee, the investor trust cash management fee and
the lhvestor Default Amount for any notional Class of series 05-3 during any monthly period.

The beneficial entifement ¢f the MTN lssuer as the investor beneficiary for series 05-3 at any time
to any other property of the receivables trust not separately held or segregated for apy other
beneficiary or series wiil be equal to the proportion that the aggregate of the Class A Adjusted
investor Interest, the Class B Adjusted Investor Interest and the Class C Adjusted Investor Interest
bears to the amount of eligible principal receivables from time to time assigned or purported to be
assigned to the receivables trust. The MTN issuer will not be entitled to the benefit of any credit
enhancement for any notional Class available only for any other beneficiary, series other than series
05-3 or Classes within a series other than series 05-3, except to the extent it is an investor
heneficiary for another series.

The MTN Issuer will be beneficially entitled to ail monies held in any Trust Account other than:

® the Trustee Collection Account - except for the distribution ledger for each netional
Class; or

®  the Trustee Acguisition Account;

that are expressly segregated by separate account or by ledger entry or otherwise, as allocated to
the MTN Issuer.

Allocation, Calculation and Distribution of Finance Charge Collections to the MTN lssuer

On each day on which collections are transferred to the Trustee Coliection Account during the
Revolving Period, the Controlled Accumulation Period and, if applicable, the Regulated Amartisation
Period or the Rapid Amortisation Period, the receivables trustee will credit to the Finance Charge
Collections Ledger for series 05-3 an amount calculated as follows:

A xB
Where:

A = the Floating Investor Percentage; and
B = the total amount of finance charge caliections processed on that date.
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“Floating Investor Percentage” means, for any monthly period, the following fraction expressed as a
percentage

A
the greater of B or C

Where:
A = the Adjusted nvestor Interesy;

B = the total balance of eligible principal receivables in the receivables trust plus the
Lnavailable Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger

C = the sum of the numerators used to calculate the floating investor percentages for all
outstanding series.

These amounts will be calculated for any monthly period other than the first monthly period as of
the last day of the prior monthly period. For the first monthly period, they will be cafculated as of
the closing date. The Floating Investor Percentage will never exceed 100 per cent.

Notwithstanding the above, for a monthly period in which an addition date occurs, B in the
fraction used to calculate the Floating Investor Percentage will be:
e for the period from the first day of the monthly period to the addition date, the total .
palance of eligible principal receivables in the receivables trust plus the Unavailabie
Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger at the
close of business on the last day of the prior rmonthly period; and

e for the period from the addition date through the last day of the monthly period, the
total balance of eligitte principal receivabies in the receivables trust plus the Unavailable
Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on the
addition date - taking into account the eligible principal receivables added to the
receivables trust If, in any monthly period the Investor Interest would be zero if the
payments to be made on the Distribution Date in that maonthly period were made on the
last day of the prior monthly period, the Fleating Investor Percentage will be zero.

Class Al investor Interest
To understand the calculations and information delivered by the receivables trustee regarding the
amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN Issuer that for the purposes of
calcufation is treated as referable to Class A1 on any transfer date, vou need to understand the
following definitions and cash flows.
The “"Class A1 Monthly Required Expense Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of the
following items:
® a pro rata proportion (based on the proportion of Class Al lnvestor Interest to Class A
Investor Interest) aof the Class A Trustee Pavment Amount plus any unpaid Class A
Trustee Payment Amount from previous transfer dates; see “-~ Trustee Payment
Amount”™;
®  a pro roto proportion (based on the proportion of Class A1 Investor Interest to Class A
Investor Interest) of the MTN lssuer Costs Amount;

the Class Al Monthly Finance Amount;

the Class A1 Deficiency Amount;
the Class Al Additional Finance Armount; and

a pro rata proportion (based on the proportion of Class Al Investor Interest to Class A
Investor Interesty of 4 (or '/, with respect to the first two transfer dates as from the
closing date} of the Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount.

“Class A1 Monthly Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Days in Caiculation Period . N The Class Al
365 (366 in a leap year) < 1he Class Al Finance Rate % Debt Amount

The “Class A1 Finance Rate” for any Calculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated to replace the screen rate, (a) in respect of the first Calculation Period. the linear
interpolation of Z-month and 3-manth sterling LIBOR as set on the closing date: {b) in respect of
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the second Calcuiation Period, the linear interpelation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as
set on the Closing Date; and {c) in respect of subsequent Calculation Petiods, 3-month sterling
LIBOR as set on the Distribution Date in each of lanuary, April. luly and October, in each case for
pounds sterling in the London interbank market, plus 0.1050 per cent,

“Class A1 Deficiency Amount” s the excess, if any, of the Class A1 Monthly Required Expense
Amount for the prior transfer date — disregarding for this purpose the Class A1 Trustee Payment
Amount and the MTN Issuer Costs Amaunt — over the funds referable to Class A1 actually credited
to the Class A1 Distribution Ledger for payment of the Class Al Monthly Required Expense
Amount on that transfer date.

“Class A1 Additional Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as fellows:

Any unpaid Class Al
Deficiency Amount
on the prior transfer date

Days in Calculation Period The Class Al Finance Rate
365 (366 in a leap year) pius 2.0 per cent.

The first “Distribution Date” will be 15 December 2005 or, if that day is not & business day, the
next business day after the 15th, and each subsequent Distribution Date will be the 15th day of
each calendar manth, or if that day is not a business day, the next business day after the 15th.

“Calculation Period” means, for any Distribution Date, the period from and including the previcus
Distribution Date or, in the case of the first Distribution Date, from and including the closing date,
to but excluding that Distribution Date.

“Class A1 Debt Amount” means the Class Al Initial Investor Interest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN [ssuer referable to the Class Al Investor interest from the property of
the receivables trust. On the series (05-3 termination date, the Class A Debt Amount wiil be zero.

"Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount™ means the amount equal to any Quarteriy interest accruat {or,
with respect 1o the Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount to be paid on the first interest Pavment Date,
interest accrued during the first two monthly periods) which is due and payable (including any
amount outstanding, if any) under the expenses loan agreement.

“MTN Issuer Costs Amount” means the amounts certified by the security trustee as being required
to pay the fees, costs and expenses of the MTN Issuer accrued and due and payable on a transfer
date. This amount includes the fees, costs and expenses of the security trustee and any receiver
appointed pursuant to the security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement, plus,
any fees, costs and expenses remaining unpaid from previous transfer dates including in each case,
any part of such fees, costs and expenses as represents VAT (in any).

“Class Al Avaiiable Funds” for any monthly period equals the sum of the following amcunts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthly period:

® apro rota proportion (based upon the proportion of Class AT Adjusted Investor Interest
to Class A Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class A Floating Allgcation of finance
charge collections allocated to series 05-3;

& apro roto proportion {based upon the proportion of Class A1 Adjusted Investor Interest
to Class A Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class A Floating Allocation of Acquired
Interchange allocated to series 05-3;

. for any monthly period during the Controlled Accurmulation Period before payment in
full of the Class A1 investor Interest, a pro rotg amount (in the proportion that Class Al
Investor Interest bears to Class A Investor Interest} of the Principal Funding Investment

Proceeds - up to a maximum amount equai to the Class Al Covered Amount; see -
Principal Funding Account”; and
® a3 pro rata proportion (in the proportion that Class Al Investor Interest bears to Class A
investor Interest) of any amounts withdrawn from the Reserve Account; see “'- Reserve
Account”.
The amount of Acquired Interchange allocated to series 05-3 for any monthly period wili be the
product of the Acquired Interchange and the Floating Investor Percentage. This allocated Acquired
Interchange will be credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class A Available Funds from the
Finance Charge Collections Ledger, and they will be distributed in the following order:
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(1) a pro rata proportion (based upon the proportion of Class Al Investor interest to Class A
Investor Interest) of the Class A Trustee Payment Amount plus a pro rata  amount (based
upon the proportion of Class Al investor Interest to Class A Investor Interest) of any unpaid
Class A Trustee Payment Amounts from prior transfer dates will be used by the by the
receivables trustee to satisfy the Trustee Payment Amounts;

(2) a pro ratg proportion (based upon the proportion of Class Al Investor Interest to Class A
Investor (nterest) of the MTN Issuer Costs Amounts will be credited to the Class A}
Distribution Ledger;

(3} the sum of the Class A1 Monthly Finance Amount, the Class Al Deficiency Amount, the Class
A1l Additional Finance Amount and '/ (or '/ with respect to the first two transfer dates as
from the dosing date) of the pro rate proportion (based upon the proportion of Class Al
Investor Interest to Class A Investor Interest} of the Quarterly Loan Expense amourt will be
credited to the Class Al Distribution Ledger;

(4) the Class Al servicing fee and Class Al cash management fee and any due and unpaid Class
Al servicing fees or Class Al cash management fees from prior transfer dates will be
distributed to the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable;

(5) an amount equal to the Class A1 Investor Default Amount will be allocated to Class A1 and
treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collections referable to Class AT and credited to the
Principa! Coilections Ledger;

(6} the bafance - called "Class A1 Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
allocated as described in - Excess Spread.” On each Distribution Date, all amounts credited
to the Class Al Distribution Ledger for the amounts in (2) and (3) above will be deposited in
the Series 05-3 Distribution Account. The amount in (2} and (3) above is cailed the “Ciass A1l
Monthly Distribution Amount”.

The “Series 65-3 Distribution Account” is a bank account in the name of the MTN Issuer that will

be used to deposit amounts distributed to the MTN Issuer for the series 05-3 investor certificates

from the receivables trust.

The "Class Al servicihg fee” is that portion of the servicing fee attributable to Class A1 {on a pro

rutg  basis). The “Class Al cash management fea" is that portion of the trust cash management

fee attributable to Class A (on a pro ratg  basis).

The "Class A1 Distribution Ledger” is a ledger for Class A1 in the Trustee Collection Account. See

"~ Distribution Ledgers™.

Class A2 investor Interest
To understand the calculations and information delivered by the receivables trustee reqarding the
amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN Issuer that for the purposes of
calculation is treated as referable to Class A2 on any transfer date. you need to understand the
following definitions and cash flows.
The “Class A2 Monthly Required Expense Amount™ for any transfer date will be the sum of the
lollowing items:
e apro rata proportion {based upon the proportion of Class A2 investor Interest to Class
A Investor Interest) of the Class A Trystee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class A
Trustee Paymenl Amount from previpus transfer dates; see " Trusiee Payment
Amount’”;
8  apro rata proportion (based upen the proportion of Class A2 Investor Interest to Class
A Investor Interest) of the MTN Issuer Costs Amount;

the Class A2 Monthly Finance Amount;
the Class A2 Deficiency Amount;
the Class A2 Additional Finance Amount; and

a pro rata preportion (based upon the proportion of Class A2 Investar Interest to Class
A Investor Interest) of /3 (or '/z with respect to the first two transfer dates as from the
closing date} of the Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount.

"Class A2 Monthly Finarce Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:
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Days in Calculation Period The Ciass AZ Debt
The Class A2 Finance Rat
365 (366 in a leap year) o oo /o TIMANCE A Amount

The "Class A2 Finance Rate” for any Calculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated to replace the screen rate, {a} in respect of the fwst Calculation Period, the linear
interpolation of Z-month and 3-menth sterling LIBOR as set on the closing date; {b) in respect of
the second Calculation Pericd, the linear Interpelation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as
set on the Closing Date; and (c) in respect of subsequent Calculation Periods, 3-month sterling
LIBOR as set on the Distribution Date in each of January, April, July and October, in each case for
pounds sterling in the London interbank market, plus 0.08 per cent.

“Class A2 Deficiency Amount” is the excess, If any. of the Class A2 Monthly Required Expense
Amount for the prior transfer date - disregarding for this purpose the Class A2 Trustee Payment
Amount and the MTN Issuer Costs Amount — over the funds referable to Class A1 actually credited
to the Class AZ Distribution Ledger for payment of the Class A2 Monthly Required Expense
Amount on that transfer date. )

“Class A2 Additional Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Any unpaid Class A2
«  Deficiency Amount
on the prior transfer date

Days in Calculation Period The Class A2 Finance Rate
365 (366 ina leap year) plus 2 per cent.

"Class A2 Debt Amount” means the Class A2 Initial Investor Interest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN Issuer referable to the Class A2 Investor Interest from the property of
the receivables trust. On the series 05-3 termination date, the Class A2 Debt Amount will be zero,

"Class A2 Available Funds” for any monthly period equals the sum of the following amgunts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthly period:

® 2 pro rote proportion (based upon the proportion of Class A2 Adjusted investor interest
to Class A Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class A Floating Allocation of finance
charge collections allocated to series 05-3;

® apro rate proportion (based upon the proportion of Class A2 Adjusted Investor Interest
to Class A Adjusted Investor Interest} of the Class A Floating Allocation of Acquired
Interchange allocated to series 05-3;

e  for any monthly period during the Controlled Accumulation Peried before payment in
full of the Class A2 Investor Interest, a pro rata proportion (in the proportion that Class
A2 Investor Interest bears to Class A Investor Interest) of the Principal Funding
Investment Proceeds - up to a maximum amount equal to the Class A2 Covered
Amount; see "~ Principal Funding Account™; and

® apfo rata proportion (in the proportion that Class A2 Investor Interest bears to Ciass A
Investor Interest) of any amounts withdrawn from the Reserve Account; see “~ Reserve
Account.”

The amount of Acquired Interchange allocated to series 05-3 for any monthly period will be the
product of the Acquired Interchange and the Floating Investor Percentage. This allocated Acquired
Interchange wil} be credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class A2 Available Funds from the
Finance Charge Collections Ledger, and they will be distributed in the following order:

(1) a pro ratg proportion (based upon the proportion of Class AZ nvestor Interest to Class A
Investor Interest) of the Class A Trustee Payment Amount plus a pro rotc amount (based
upon the proportion of Class A2 investor Interest to Class A Investor Interest} of any unpaid
Class A Trustee Payment Amounts from prigr transfer dates wili be used by the receivables
trustee to satisfy the Trustee Payment Amounts;

{2) a pro rate proportion (based upon the proportion of Class A2 Investor Interest to Class A
investor Interest) of the MTHN lssuer Costs Amounts will be credited to the Class A2
Distributicn Ledger:
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(3} the sum of the Class A2 Monthly Finance Amount, the Class A2 Deficiency Amount, the Class
A2 Additional Finance Amount and /5 (ar '/, with respect to the first two transfer dates as
from the clasing date) of the pro rota proportion (based upon the proportlon of Class A2
Investor Interest to Class A lnvestor Interest) of the Quarterly Loan Expense Amount will be
credited to the Class A2 Distribution Ledger;

(4) the Class A2 servicing fee and Class A2 cash management fee and any due and unpaid Class
A2 servicing fees or Class A2 cash management fees from prior transfer dates will be
distributed to the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable;

{5) an amount equal to the Class A2 Investor Defauit Amount will be allocated to Class A2 and
treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collections referable 1o Class A2 and credited to the
Principal Collections Ledger; and

(6} the balance - called “Class A2 Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
allocated as described in “- Excess Spread”.

On each Distribution Date, all amounts credited 10 the Class A2 Distribution Ledger for the
amounts in (2) and (3) above will be deposited into the Series 05-3 Distribution Account. The
amount in {2) and (3) above is called the “Class A2 Monthly Distribution Amount”.

The “Class AZ servicing fee” is that portion of the servicing fee attributable to Class AZ (on a pro
rata  basis). The “Class A2 cash management fee” is that portion of the trust cash management
fee attributable to Class A2 (on a pro rale basis).

The “Class A2 Distribution Ledger” is a ledger for Class AZ in the Trustee Collection Account. See
"~ Distribution Ledgers”.

Class B1 Investor Interest

To understand the calcufations and information delivered by the receivables trustee regarding the
amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN Issuer that for the purposes of
calculation is treated as referable to Class B1 on any transfer date, vou need to understand the
following definitions and cash flows.

The “"Class B1 Monthly Required Expense Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of the
fallowing items.

® apro rota proportion (based upon the proportion of Class B1 Investor Interest to Class
B investor nterest) of the Class B Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class B
Trustee Payment Amount from previous transfer dates; see “- Trustee Payment
Amount'

&  the Class B1 Monthily Finance Amaount:
& ihe Class B1 Deficiency Amount: and
&  the Class B1 Additional Finance Amount.

“Class 81 Monthly Finante Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Days in Calcuiation Period
365 {366 in a leap year)

The “'Class B Finance Rate" for any Calculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated to replace the screen rate, (a) in respect of the first Calculation Period, the linear
interpalation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as set on the closing date; (b) in respect of
the second Calculation Period, the linear interpolation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as
set on the Closing Date; and () in respect of subsequent Calculation Periods, 3-month sterling
LIBOR as set on the Distribution Date in each of January, April, July and Qctober, in each case for
pounds sterling in the London interbank mar-et, plus 0.3670 per cent

The Class B1 Finance Rate  x  The Class B1 Debt Amount

“Class B1 Deficiency amount” is the ewcess if any, ot the Class B! tloisthly Required Expense
Ameunt for the prior transfer date — anregarding for tis purpose the Class B1 Trustee Payment
Amount — over the funds referable to Class B} actually crecited to the Ciass A2 Distribution Ledger
for pavment of the Class Bl Monthly Required Expense Amount on that transfer date.
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"Class B1 Additional Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as foliows:

Days in Calculation Peripd ; Any unpaid Class B1
¥ 5 The Ciass B1 Finance Rate Deficiency Amaunt on

365 (366 for a leap year) plus 2 per cent. the prior transfer date

“Class B1 Debt Amount” means the Class B1 Initial |nvestor Interest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN Issuer referable to the Class B1 Investor Interest from the property of
the receivables trust, On the series 05-3 termination date, the Class B1 Debt Amount wiil be zero.

“Class B1 Avaifable Funds” for any monthly period equais the sum of the following amounts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthly period:

® a pro rgta proportion (based upan the proportion of Class B1 Adjusted Investor Interest
to Class B Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class B Floating Allocation of finance charge
collections allocated to series 05-3; and

e 3 proroto proportion (based upen the proportion of Class B1 Adjusted Investor interest
to Class B Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class B Floating Allocation of Acquired
Interchange allccated to series 05-3.

0n each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class B1 Available Funds from the
Finance Charge Collections Ledger, and they will be distributed in the following order:

(1) a pro rata proportion (based upon the proportion of Class B1 Investor interest to Class B
Investor Interest) of the Class B Trustee Payment Amount plus a pro rate ameunt (based
upon the proportion of Class B1 Investor Interest to Class B Investor Interest) of any unpaid
Class B Trustee Payment Amounts from prior transfer dates will be used by the receivables
trustee to satisfy the Trustee Payment Amounts;

(2) the sum of the Class B1 Monthly Finance Amount, the Class B1 Deficiency Amount, and the
Class B1 Additlonal Finance Amount will be credited to the Class 81 Distribulion Ledger;

(3) the Class B1 servicing fee and Class B1 cash management fee and any due and unpaid Class
B1 servicing fees or Class B1 cash management fees from prior transfer dates will be
distributed 1 the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable; and

(4) the balance - called “Class Bl Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
allocated as described in “- Excess Spread”.

On each Distribution Date, afl amounts credited to the Class B1 Distribution Ledger for the
amounts in (2) and (3) above will be deposited into the Series 05-3 Distribution Account, The
amount n (2) and (3) above is called the "“Class B1 Monthly Distribution Amount”.

The “Class B1 servicing fee” Is that portion of the servicing fee attributable to Class B1 (on a pro
rata  basis). The "Class 81 cash rrianagement fee" is that portion of the trust cash management fee
attributable to Class B1 {on a pro rata  basis).

The “Class B1 Distribution Ledger” is a ledger for Class Bf in the Trustee Collection Account. See
" Distribution Ledgers”.

Class B2 Investor interest

To understand the calculations and tnformation delivered by the receivables trustee regarding the

amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN Issuer that for the purposes of

calculation is treated as referable to Class B2 on any fransfer date, you need to understand the

folfowing definitions and cash flows.

The “Class B2 Menthly Required Expense Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of the

{ollowing items:

®  apro ratg proportion {based upon the proportion of Class B2 Investor Interest to Class

B Investor Interest) of the Class B Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class B
Trustee Payment Amount from previous transfer dates; see “- Trustee Payment
Amount”;
the Class B2 Monthly Finance Arnount;

the Class B2 Deficiency Amount; and
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& the Class B2 Additional Finance Amount
“Class B2 Monthly Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Days in Calculation Period
365 (366 in a leap year)

The "Class B2 Finance Rate" far any Calculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated to repiace the screen rate. (a} in respect of the first Calculation Period, the linear
interpolaticn of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as set on the closing date; (b} in respect of
the second Calculation Period, the linear interpolation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as
set on the Closing Date; and (c} in respect of subsequent Calculation Periods, 3-month sterling
LIBOR a5 set an the Distribution Date in each of lanuary, April. uly and October, in each case for
pounds sterling in the London interbank market, plus 0.25 per cent

“Class B2 Deficiency Amount” is the excess, if any, of the Class B2 Monthly Required Expense
Amount for the prior transfer date - disregarding for this purpose the Ciass B2 Trustee Payment
Amount - over the funds referable to Class BZ actually credited to the Class B2 Distribution Ledger
for payment of the Class B2 Monthly Required Expense Amount on that transfer date.

“Class 32 additional Finance Amount’ means the amount calculated as follows:

The Class B2 Finance Rate x  The Class B2 Debt Amount

Days in Calculation Period . Any unpaid (fass B2
¥s . The Ciass B2 Finance Rate Deficioncy Amount on

365 (366 in a feap year) plus 2 per cent. the prior transfer date

“Class B2 [ebt Amount” means the Class B2 Initial Investor Interest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN !ssuer referable to the Class B2 Investor Interest fram the property of
the receivables trust. On the series (5-3 termination date, the Class B2 Debt Amaunt will be zero.

“Class 82 Available Funds” for any monthly period equals the sum of the following amounts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthly period,

& a pro ratg proportion (based upen the proporticn of Class B2 Adjusted Investor interest
to Class B Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class B Floating Aliocation of finance charge
collections allocated to series 05-3; and

® apro rate proportion (based upon the proportion of Class B2 Adjusted Investor Interest
to Class B Adiusted Investor Interest) of the Class B Floating Alocation of Acquired
Interchange allocated to series 05-3.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class B2 Available Funds from the
Finance Charge Collections Ledger, and they wil! be distributed in the following crder:

(1) & pro rata proportion {based upon the proportion of Class B2 investor Interest to Class B
Investor Interest) of the Class B Trustee Payment Amount plus a pro rata  amount {based
upon the propertion of Class B2 Investor Interest to Class B Investor Interest) of any unpaid
Class B Trustee Payment Amounts from prior transfer dates will be used by the receivables
trustee to satisfy the Trustee Payment Amounts;

(2) the sum of the Class B2 Monthly Finance Ameount, the Class B2 Deficlency Amount, and the
Class B2 Additional Finance Amount will be credited to the Class B2 Distribution Ledger;

(3} the Class B2 servicing fee and Class B2 cash management fee and any due and unpaid Cass
B2 servicing fees or Class B2 cash management fees from oprior transfer dates will be
distributed to the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable; and

(4) the balance - cailed “Class B2 Excess Spread” - will be part of Dxcess Spread and will be
allocated as described in - Excess Spread"”.

On each Distribution Date, all amounts credited to the Class 82 Distribution Ledger for the
amounts in (2) and (3) above will be deposited into the Series 05-3 Distribution Account The
amount in (2} and {3) above is called the "Class B2 Monthly Distribution Amount”.

The “Class 82 servicing fee” is that portion af the servicing fee attributable to Class B2 (on a pro
rata  basis). The "Class B2 cash managemenl fee” is that portion of the trust cash management fee
attributable to Class B2 (on a pro rata  basis).
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The “Class B2 Distribution Ledger” is a ledger for Class B2 in the Trustee Collection Account. See
"~ Distribution Ledgers".

Class C1 Investor Interest

To understand the calculations and information delivered by the receivables trustee regarding the

amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN issuer that for the purposes of

calculation is treated as referable to Class Ci on any transfer date, you need to understand the

following definitions and cash flows.

The "Class C1 Mcnthly Required Expenseé Armount” for any transfer date will be the sum of the

following items:

e apro rata proportion (based upon the proportion of Class C1 Investor Interest to Class

C Investor Interest) of the Class C Trustee Payment Amount pius any unpaid Class C
Trusiee Payment Amount from previous transfer dates; see “- Trustee Payment
Amount”;

e  the Class C1 Monthly Finance Armount;
the Class (1 Deficiency Amount; and
the Ciass €1 Additional Finance Amount.
“Class C1 Monthly Finance Amount™ means the amount calculated as follows:

Days in Calculation Period
365 {366 in a leap year)

The “Class C! Finance Rate" for any Calculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated o replace the screen rate, (a) in respect of the first Calculation Period, the linear
interpelation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as set on the closing date; (b) in respect of
the second Calculation Period, the linear interpolation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as
set on the Closing Date: and {c} in respact of subsequent Calculation Pericds, 3-month sterling
LIBOR as set on the Distribution Date in 2ach of lanuary, April, July and October, in each case for
pounds sterling in the London interbank market, plus 0.5341 per cent.

The Class C1 Finance Rate =« The Class C1 Debt Amount

“Class C1 Deficiency Amount” is the excess, i any, of the Class C1 Monthly Reguired Expense
Amount for the prior transfer date - disregarding for this purpase the Class Ci Trusiee Payment
Amount — over the funds referable to Class C1 actually credited to the Class C1 Distribution Ledger
for payment of the Class C1 Maonthly Required Expense Amount on that transfer date.

“Class C1 Additional Finance Amount’ means the amount calculated as follows:

Days in Calculation Period The Class C3 Finance Rate N Any unpaid Class C1 Defciency
365 (366 in a leap year) plus 2 per cent. Amount on the prior transfer date

“Class €1 Debt Amount” means the Class €1 Initial investor Interest minus the totad principal
payments made to the MTN Issuer referable to the Class C1 Investor Interest from the property of
the receivables trust. On the series 05-3 termination date, the Class C1 Debt Amount wili be zero
{together, the Class C1 Debt Amount and the Class C2 Debt Amount are the “Class C Debt
Amount”).

“Class C! Available Funds” for any manthly period equais the sum of the following amounts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthty period:

® apro rota proportion (based upon the proportion of Class C1 Adjusted Investor Intérest
to Class C Adjusted Investor Interest} of the Class C Floating Allocation of finance charge
collections aliocated to series 05-3; and

e apro ratg proportign (based upon the proportion of Class C1 Adjusted Investor Interest
to Class C Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class C Floating Allocation of Acquired
Interchange allocated to series 05-3.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class C1 Avaliable Funds from the
Finance Charge Collections Ledger, and they will be distributed in the following order:
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{1}y a pro rata proportion (based upon the proportion of Class C1 investor Interest to Class €
Investar Interest) of the Class C Trustee Paymert Amount plus a pro rata  amount {based
upen the proportion of Class C1 Investor Interest to Class C Investor Interest) of any unpaid
Class C Trustee Payment Amounts from prior transfer dates will be used by the recelvahles
trustée to satisfy the Trustee Payment Amounts;

(2) the Class Ci servicing fee and Class €1 cash management fee and any due and unpaid Class
C1 servicing fees or Class C1 cash management fees from prior transfer dates wili pe
distributed to the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable; and

(3) the balance - called "Class C1 Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
allocated as described in - Excess Spread”.

On each Distribution Date, all amounts credited to the Class Ci Distribution Ledger for the Class

C1 Monthly Gistribution Amount, as described in - Excess Sprecd”, will be deposited into the

Series 05-3 Distribution Account.

The “Class C1 servicing fee" is that portion of the servicing fee attributable to Class C1 (on a pro

rata basis). The "Class C1 cash management fee” is that portion of the trust cash management fee

attributable to Class C1 (on a pro rote  basis).

The "“Qlass C1 Distribution Ledger” is a ledger for Class €1 in the Trustee Collection Account, See

"~ Distribution Ledgers”.

Class C2 Investor Interest
To understand the calculations and Information delivered by the receivables trustee regarding the
amount of finance charge callections distributable to the MTN !ssuer that for the purposes of
calculation is treated as referable to Class C2 on any transfer date, vou need to understand the
following definitions and cash flows.
The “Class €2 Monthiy Required Expense Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of the
following items
& A pro rata proportion (based upon the proportion of Class (2 Investor interest to Class
C Investor Interest) of the Class C Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class €
Trustee Payment Amount from previous transfer dates; see "~ Trustee Payment
Amount”™;

& the Class €2 Monthly Finance Amount;
the Class C2 Deficiency Amount; and
the Class C2 Additional Finance Amount.
"Class €2 Monthly Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows;

Davs in Calculation Period
3E5 (366 in a leap year)

The “Class €2 Finance Rate” for any Calculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated to replace the screen rate, (a) in respect of the first Calculation Period, the linear
interpolation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as set on the closing date; (b) in respect of
the second Calculation Period, the linear interpolation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR as
set on the Closing Date; and {c) in respect of subsequent Calculation Pericds, 3-month sterling
LIBOR as set on the Distribution Date in each of lanuary, April, luly and October, in each case for
pounds sterling in the London interbank market, plus 0.45 per cent.

The Class CZ Finance Rate  x  The Class C2 Debt Amount

"Class €2 Deficiency Amount” is the excess, if any, of the Class C2 Monthly Required Expense
Amount for the prior transfer date - disregarding for this purpose the Class C2 Trustee Payment
Amourt - over the funds referable to Class C2 actually credited to the Class C2 Distribution Ledger
for payment of the Class C2 Monthly Required Expense Amount on that transfer date.

"Class CZ Additional Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Days in Calculation Period The Class C2 Finance Rate N Any unpaid Class C2 Deficiency
365 (366 in a leap year) plus 2 per cent, Amounts on e prior transfer date
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“Class C2 Debt Amount” means the Class €2 Initial Investor interest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN Issuer referable to the Class C2 Investor Interest from the property of
the receivables trust. On the series 05-3 termination date, the Class €2 Debt Amount will be zero
(together, the Class C1 Debt Amount and the Class C2 Debt Amount are the "Class C Debt
Amount™).

“Class C2 Available Funds” for any monthly period equals the sum of the following amounts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthly period:

e apro rate proportion (based upen the proportion of Class C2 Adjusted Investor Interest
to Class C Adjusted Investor Interest} of the Class C Floating Altocation of finance charge
collections allecated to series 05-3; and

e @ pro rata proportion (based upon the proportion of Class C2 Adjusted Investor interest
to Class C Adjusted Investor Interest) of the Class C Floating Allccation of Acquired
Interchange aliocated to series 05-3,

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class C2 Available Funds from the
Finance Charge Collections Ledger, and they wil! be distributed in the following order:

(1) a pro rata proportion (based upon the proportion of Class C2 Investor Interest to Class C
Investor Interesty of the Class C Trustee Payment Amount plus a pro rata amount (based
upon the proportion of Class CZ Investor Interest to Class C Investor Interest) of any unpaid
Class C Trustee Payment Amounts from prior transfer dates will be used by the receivables
trustee to satisfy the Trustee Payment Amaunts;

{2) the Class 2 servicing fee and Class C2 cash management fee and any due and unpaid Class
CZ servicing fees or Class C2 cash management fees from prior transfer dates will be
distributed to the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable; and

(3) the balance — called “Class €2 Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
allocated as described in - Excess Spreod”.

On each Distribution Date, alf amounts credited to the Class 2 Distribution Ledger for the Class
€2 Monthly Distribution Amount, as described in "~ Excess Spreod”, wilf be deposited into the
Series 05-3 Distribution Account.

The "Class €2 servicing fee” is that portion of the servicing fee atiributable to Class C2 (on a pro
rota basis). The "Class €2 cash management fee” is that portion of the trust cash managemert fee
attributable to Class CZ {on a pro rata basis),

The “Class C2 Distribution Ledger” is a ledger for Class C2 in the Trustee Collection Account. See
“— Distribution Ledgers"™.

Revolving Period

The “Revolving Period™ far series 05-3 is the period from the closing date to the start of the
Controlled Accumulation Period or, if earlier, the start of the Rapid Amortisation Period or the
Regulated Amortisation Period.

During the Revolving Period, principal collections calculated as referable daily to the Class A
Investor Interest will be used by the receivables trustee as Shared Principai Collections and, to the
extent not used as Shared Principal Collections, to make payments to the transferor:
e 1o accept new offers of receivables made by the transferor to the receivables trustee,
and
- to make payments to the transferor for future receivables assigned by the transferor to
the receivables trustee by offers that have already been made and accepted.
Principal collections calculated as referable to the Class B fnvestor Interest and the Class C Investor
Interest will be used by the receivables trustee as described in the previpus paragraph on the next
following transfer date to the extent not required to fund shortfalls for the Class A lnvestor Interest
and — for principal collections calculated as referable to the Class C Investor interest - the Class B
Investor Interest.

Controlled Accumulation Period

The “Contrelied Accumulation Peried” for series 05-3 is the period scheduled to begin on the close
of business on 30 September 2009 and ending when the Investor Interest is paid in full, unless a
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Pay Qut Event occurs and the Regulated Ameartisation Perlod or the Rapid Amortisation Period
begins. If the Regulated Amortisation Perlod or Rapid Amortisation Period begins before the start
of the Controlled Accumulation Period, there wili not be a Controlled Accumulation Period for
serles 05-3. The start of the Controlled Accumulation Period may be delayed until no later than the
ciose of business on 31 August 2010, See “- Postponement of Controlled Accumulation Period”.

During the Controlled Accumulation Perlod the principal collections allocated to the Investor
Interest for series 05-3, up to the Controlled Deposit Amount, will be accumulated by the
receivables trustee n a trust account called the "Principal Funding Account” for distribution to the
MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary for series 05-3 on the 15 October 2010 Distribution Date —
called the “series 05-3 scheduled redemption date”. Any principal cellections allocated to the
Investor Interest for series 05-3 over the amount that will be deposited in the Principal Funding
Account will be used by the receivables trustee first as Shared Principal Collections and then to
make payments to the transferor as described above under “— Revoling Period™.

The “Controlled Deposit Amount” for any transfer date for the Contrelled Accumulation Period or
the Regulated Amortisation Period will be £106,141,833, which equals the Initlal Investor Interest
divided by 32, or for a Regulated Amortisation Period, if greater, may be an amount not exceeding
1/12 of the total sum of all investor interests of all series in group one - except Companion Series
- that are scheduled to be in their revolving periods. If the start of the Controlled Accumulation
Petiod is delayed as described in “~ Postponement of Controlled Accurnulation Period”, the
Contrelled Deposit Amount wil! be greater than £106,141,833. This higher amount will be
determined by the servicer based on the principal payment rates on the designated accounts and
on the investor interests of series in group one — except Companion Series — that are scheduled to
be in their revolving periods. In any case, during the Controlled Accumulation Period, the
Controlled Deposit Amount will be the amount that, if deposited In the Principal Funding Account
on each transfer date for the Controlled Accumuiation Period, will cause the balance of the
Principal Funding Account to equal the Invesior Interest on the series 05-3 scheduled redemption
date. The Controlled Deposit Amount for any transfer date will include the amount of any shortfal
in payment of the Controlled Deposit Amount for the previous transfer date.

Regulated Amortisation Period

A "Regulated Amortisation Period” will start on the day, if there is one, that any of the following
Series 05-3 Pay Out Events occur, each of which we refer to as a “Regulated Amortisation Trigger
Event”:

e the average Portfolio Yield for any three consecutive monthly periods is less than the
average Expense Rate for those periods or, on any determination date before the end of
the third manthly period from the clesing date, the Portfolio Yield is less than average
Expense Rate for that period; or

®  either.

(1) over any period of thirty consecutive days, the Transferor Interest averaged
over that pericd is less than the Minimum Transferor Interest for that period
and the Transferor Interest does not increase on or before the tenth business
day following that thirty day period to an amount so that the average of the
Transferor Interest as a percentage cof the Average Principal Receivables for
such thirty day period, computed by assuming that the amount of the
increase of the Transferor Interest by the last day of that ten business day
period, as compared to the Transferor Interest on the last day of the thirty
day period. would have existed in the receivables trust during each day of the
thirty day period, is at least equal to the Minimum Transferor Interest; or

(2) on the last day of any monthly period the total balance of eligible principal
receivables is less than the Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables, adjusted
for any series having a Companion Series as described in the supplement for
that series and the Companion Series, and the total balance of ellgible
principal receivables fails to increase 1o an amount equal to or greater than
the Minimum Aggregste Principal Receiwables on or before the tenth business
day following that last aay,

The Regulated Amartisation Period will continue until the earlier of:
& the start of the Rapid Amortisation Period; and
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®  the series 05-3 termination date.

During the Regulated Amortisation Peried the amount of principal collections allocated to the
Investor Interest for series 05-3, up to the Controlled Depasit Amount, will be paid each month to
the MTN Issuer first for the Class A Investor Interest, second for the Class B Investor Interest and
third for the Class C Investor Interest until the sertes (5-3 termination date. Any principal
collections allocated ta the Investor Interest for series 05-3 over the Controlled Deposit Amount
paid to the MTN Issuer will be used by the receivables trustee first as Shared Principal Colfections
and then to make payments to the tramsferor as described above under "- Revoling Perlod”.

Rapid Amortisation Period
A "Rapid Amortisation Period” will start on the first day of the monthly period next following the
day cn which any Pay Cut Event other than a Regulated Amortisation Trigger Cvent occurs,
The Rapid Amortisation Period wili continue until the earlier of:
e the series 05-3 termination date; or

. the dissolution of the receivables trust following the occurrence of an Insolvency Event;
see “The Receivables Trust: Trust Pay Out Events”.

During the Rapid Amortisation Period, principal collections zallocable to the Investor Inferest of
series 05-3 will be paid each month to the MTN Issuer first for the Class A Investor Interest,
second for the Class B Investor interest and third for the Class C Investor Interest until the series
05-3 termination date.
The “series 05-3 termination date” is the earlier of the Distribution Date on which the Investor
Interest has been reduced to zero and the 15 October 2012 Distribution Date,

Allocation, Calculation and Distribution of Principal Collections to the MTN Issuer

During the Revolving Period, principal collections will be allocated to the Investor Interest on the
basis of the Floating Investor Percentage. During the Controlled Accumulation Period, the Regulated
Amortisation Period and the Rapid Amortisation Peried, principal collections will be allocated to
the Investor Interest on the basis of the Fixed investor Percentage. The amount of principal
collectlons aliocated to the Investor Interest at any time will be credited to the Principal Collections
Ledger for series 05-3, The principal coflections credited to the Principal Collections Ledger from
time to time that will be allocated to the MTN Issuer will be:

e  during the Revalving Period, equal to the total of the ficating allocations for each Class;

e  during the Controlied Accumulation Period, the Regulated Amortisation Period and the
Rapid Amortisation Period, equal to the total of the fixed allocations for each Class.

“Fixed Investor Percentage” means, for any monthly period, the following calculation expressed as a
percentage:
A

the greater of B or C

Where:
A = the Investor Interest calculated at close of business on the last day of the Revolving Period;
B = the total balance of eligible principal receivabies in the receivables trust plus the Unavailable
principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger; and
C = the sum of the numerators used to calculate the fixed investor percentages for alt outstanding
series,
tems B and C above will be calculated for any monthly period as of the last day of the prior
monthly period. For the first monthly period, they will be calculated as of the closing date, The
Fixed |avestor Percentage will never exceed 100 per cent.
Notwithstanding the above, for a monthly period in which an addition date occurs, B in” the
fraction used to calculate the Fixed Allocation Percentage above will be:
e for the period from the first day of the monthly period to the addition date, the total
balance of eligible principal recelvables in the receivables trust plus the Lnavailable
Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger at the
close of business on the last day of the prior montkly period; and
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e for the perlod from the addition date 1¢ the last day of the monthly period, the totat
balance of eligible principal receivables in the receivables trust pius the Unavailable
Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on the
addition date, taking into account the eligible principal receivables added to the
receivables trust.

If in any monthly period the Investor Interest would be zero if the payments to be made on the
Distribution Date during that monthly period were made on the last day of the prior monthly
period, the Fixed Investor Percentage wiil be zero.

The ""Class Al Fixed Allocation™, “Class AZ Fixed Ailocation”, the “Class BT Fixed Allocation”, “Class
B2 Fixed Allocation”, the “Class C1 Fixed Allocation” and the “Class (2 Fixed Allocation” will each
be calculated the same way and will be equal to, for each notional Class and for any monthiy
period after the end of the Revolving Period, the following fraction expressed as a percentage:

invester Interest for the relevant notional Class

Investor Interest

This percentage, never to exceed 100 per cent, will be calculated using these amounts on the close
of business on the last day of the Revolving Period.

On each business day during the Revolving Period which Is not a transfer date, the Reinvested
Investor Principal Collections for that day will be distributed in the following priority:

e the Reinvested Investor Principal Collections will he applied as Shared Principal
Collections and allocated to other outstanding series in group one; see “— Shared
Principat Collections™; and

& the balance remaining will be applied as Investor Cash Availabie for Acquisition in the
manner described in “The Receivables Trust: Acquiring Additional Entitlemnents to Trust
Property and Payments for Receivables”.

“Reinvested !nvestor Principal Collections™ means, for any business day:

e principal collections credited to the Principal Collections Ledger identified for series 05-3,

after adjustments for Unavailable Principal Collections during the Controlled

Accumulation Period, the Regulated Amortisation Period and the Rapid Amortisation
Period - for any day called the “Daily Investor Principal Collections™: minus

& an amount equal to the product of the Class B Floating Allocation and the Daily Investor
Principal Collections; minus

® an amount equal to the product of the Class C Floating Allocation and the Daily investor
principal Collections.

“Available Investor Principal Collections™ means, for any monthiy period:

®  the Investor Principal Collections: minus

e the Investor Cash Available for Acquisition thal has been calculated as being available to
be used during that monthly period; minus

e the Reallocated Class € Principal Collections that are required to fund the (lass Al
Required Amount, the Class A2 Required Amount, the Class B1 Reguired Amount and
the Class B2 Regulred Amount; minus

#  the Reallocated Class B Principal Collections for that monthly period that are required to
fund the Class A1 Required Amount and the Class A2 Required Amount; plus

e the Shared Principal Coliections from other series in group one that are allocated to
series 05-3; plus

« for a monthly period in which the Rapid Amortisation Period starts, any previously
identified Investor Tash Available for Acquisition that was not used to acquire
receivables.

“Investor Principal Collections” means, for any monthly period, the sum of:

&  principal collections credited to the Principal Collections Ledger identified for series 05-3,
after adjustments for Unavailable Principal Collections during the Controlled
Accumulation Period, the Regulated Amortisation Period and the Rapid Amortisation
Period; plus
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® amounts treated as Investor Principal Collections up to the Class Al Investor Default
Amount and distributed out of Class At Available Funds, Excess Spread, Reallocated
Class C Principal Coliections and Reallocated Class B Principal Collections; M

& amounts treated as Investor Principal Collections up to the Class A2 Investor Default
Amount and distributed out of Class A2 Available Funds, Excess Spread, Reallocated
Class C Principal Coilections and Reallacated Class B Principat Collections; plus

# amounts treated as Invester Principal Coilections up to the Class Bl Investor Default
Amount and distributed out of Excess Spread and Reallocated Class C Principal
Collections; plus

®  amounts treated as Investor Principal Collections up to the Class B2 Investor Default
Amount and distributed out of Excess Spread and Reallocated Class C Principal
Collections; plus

® amounts treated as Investor Principal Collections up to the Class €1 Investor Default
Amount and distributed out of Excess Spread: plus

® amounts treated as Investor Principal Collections up to the Class £2 Investor Default
Amoeunt and distributed out of Excess Spread; plus

e  Excess Spread treated as Investor Principal Collections used to reimburse Class Al
Investor Charge-Offs and Class A2 Investor Charge-Offs, any reductions in the Ciass B
Investor Interest and any reductions in the Class C Investor Interest; plus

e Llnavailable Principal Collections credited to the Principal Collections Ledger and to be
treated as Investor Principal Collections; see "- Ungvailable Principal Colections”,

Cn each transfer date for the Controlfed Accumulation Period, the Regulated Amortisation Period
or the Rapid Armortisation Period, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class A Monthly
Principal Amount from the Principal Collections Ledger and:
»  for a transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period, deposit it into the Principal
Funding Account; or
. for a transfer date during the Rapid¢ Amcrtisation Period or Regulated Amortisation
Period, credit it, pro rotd and pori passu, to the Class Al Distribution Ledger and the
Class AZ Distribution Ledger.

The “Class A1 Monthly Principal Amount” is the least of:

e apro rata proportion {based upon the proportion that Class Al Investor Interest bears
to Class A Investor Interest) of the Available Investor Principal Collections standing to
the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on that transfer date;

e for each transfer date for the Controfled Accumulation Period or the Regulated
Amortisation Period before the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date, the Controlled
Deposit Amount for that transfer date; and

e the Class AT Adjusted Investor Interest - adjusted to account for any unreimbursed Class
Al Investor Charge-Offs.

The “Class A2 Menthly Principal Amount” is the least of:

® apro ralg proportion (based upon the propertion that Class A2 Investor Interest bears
to Class A Investor Interest) of the Available Investor Principal Collections standing to
the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on that transfer date;

e for each transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period or the Regulated
Amortisation Period before the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date, the Controlled
Deposit Amount for that transfer date; and
o the Class A? Adjusted Investor Interest — adjusted to account for any unreimbursed Class
AZ Investor Charge-Offs.
Together, the Ciass A1 Monthly Principal Amount and the Class A2 Monthly Principal Amount are
referred to as the “Class A Monthly Princlpal Amount”.
The first Distribution Date (1) for the Controlled Accumulation Period, on which an amount equal
to the Class A Investor Interest has been deposited in the Principal Funding Account, or (2) during
the Rapid Amortisatlon Period or the Regulated Amortisation Period. an which the Class A Investor
Interest is paid in full, is called the “Class B Principal Commencement Date".
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Starting with the Class 8 Princlpal Commencement Date, to the extent there are funds remaining
after distributing the Class A Monthty Principal Amount, the receivables trustee will withdraw the
Class B Monthly Principal Amount from the Principal Collections Ledger and:

e for a transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period, deposit it into the Principal
Funding Account; or

e for a transfer date during the Rapid Amortisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation
Perjod, credit it, pro rata and port passu, to the Class B Distribution Ledger and the
Class B2 Distribution Ledger,

The "“Class B1 Monthly Principal Amount” is the least of:

e a pro rata proportion (based upon the proportion that Class B1 Investor Interest bears to
Class B Investor Interest) of the Available Ihvestor Principal Collections standing to the
credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on that transfer date minus, if applicable, the
Class A Monthly Principal Amount;

o for each transfer date for the Controlled Accumulaton Period or the Regulated
Amortisation Period before the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date, an amount equai
to the Controlled Deposit Amount minus, if applicable, the Class A Monthly Principal
Amount; and

e ihe Class B1 Adjusted Investor Interest — adjusted to account for any unreimbursed
reductions in the Class B1 Invester Interest for reasons other than principal payments,

The “Class BZ Monthly Principal Amount” is the least of:

e a pro rate proportion {based upen the proportion that Class 82 Investor Interest bears to
Class B Investor Interest) of the Available Investor Principal Collections standing to the
credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on that transfer date minus, if applicable, the
Class A Monthly Principal Amount;

o for each transfer date for the Contrelled Accumulaton Period or the Regulated
Amortisation Period before the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date, an amount equal
to the Controlled Ceposit Amount minus, if applicable, the Class A Monthly Principat
Amount; and

e the Class B2 Adjusted investor Interest — adjusted to account for any unreimbursed
reductions in the Class B2 Investor Interest for reasons other than principal payments.

Together, the Class B1 Monthly Principal Amount and the Class B2 Monthly Principal Amount are
referred to as the “Class 8 Monthly Principal Amount”,

The first Distribution Date (1} for the Controlled Accumulation Pericd, on which an amount equal
to the sunmt of the Class A Investor Interest and the Class B Investor Interest has been deposited in
the Principal Funding Account. or (2) during the Rapid Amortisation Period or the Regulated
Amortisation Period, on which the Class B Investor Interest is paid in full, is called the “Class C
Principal Commencement Date™.
Starting with the Class C Principal Commencement Date, to the extent there are funds remaining
after distributing the Class A Monthly Principal Amount and the Class B Moenthly Principal Amount,
as applicable, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class C Monthly Principal Amount from the
Principal Collections Ledger and:

e for a transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period, depasit it into the Principal

Funding Account; or

. for a transfer date during the Rapid Amortisatlon Period or the Regulated Amortisation
Period, credit it, pro rota and pari passu, to the Class CT Distribution Ledger and Class
C2 Distribution Ledger.

The “Class €1 Monthly Principal Amount” is the lesser of:

& a pro rota propertion {based on the proportion of Class C1 Iavestor Interest to Class C
Investor Interest) of the Available Investor Principa! Collections standing 1o the credit of
the Principal Collections Ledger on that transfer date minus, if applicable, the Class A
Monthly Principal Amount and the Class B Monthly Principal Amount; and

e the Class C} Adjusted Investor Interest — adjusted to account for any unreimbursed
reductions in the Class C1 Investor Interest for reasons other than principal payments.
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The “Class CZ Monthly Principal Amount” is the lesser of:
® a pro rata proportion (based on the proportion of Class C2 Investor Interest to Class C
Investor Interest} of the Avallable Investor Principal Collections standing to the credit of
the Principal Collections Ledger on that transfer date minus, if applicable, the Class A
Monthly Principal Amount and the Class B Monthly Principal Amount; and
»  the Class (2 Adjusted Investor Interest - adjusted to account for any unreimbursed
reductions in the Class C2 Investor Interest for reasons other than principal payments.

Together, the Class €1 Monthly Principal Amount and the Class C2 Monthiy Principal Amount are
referred to as the “Class C Monthly Principal Amount”.
On the earlier of (1) the first Distribution Date during the Rapid Amortisation Period or the
Regulated Amortisation Period and (?) the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date, and on each
Distribution Date after that, the receivables trustee will distribute the following amounts in the
foilowing priority:
(1) from the Principal Funding Account, an amount equal to the lesser of:

#  the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account; and

e the Class A Investor Interest;

will be deposited in the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for Class A1 and Class A2 pro raota for
each Class to the proportion that each Class Al Investor Interest and Class A2 Investor Interest
respectively bears to Class A Investor Interest and will be owned by the MTN Issuer. The MTN
Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate;

(2) from the Class A1 Distribution Ledger an amount equal to the lesser of .
e the amount credited to the Class AT Distribution Ledger; and

e the Class Al Investor Interest, after taking into account the amounts described in clause
(1) above;
will be deposited to the Series G5-3 Distribution Account for Class A1 and wiil be owned by the
MTN Issuer, The MTN Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the series 05-3
medium term note certificate;

(3) from the Class A2 Distribution Ledger an amount equal to the lesser of:
#  the amount credited to the Class A2 Distribution Ledger; and

e the Cass A2 lnvestor Interest, after taking in account the amounts described in clause
(1} above;
will be deposited to the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for Class A2 and will be owned by the
MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer wiil use this arnount to repay principal outstanding on the series 05-3
medium terrm note certificate;

Starting on the earlier of (1) If the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account exceeds
the Class A Investor Interest, the series 05-3 scheduled redempticn date and (2) during the Rapid
Ammortisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation Period, the Class B Principal Commencement
Date, and on each Distribution Date after that, the receivables trustee will distribute the foliowing
amounts in the following priority:

{1) from the Principal Funding Account, an amount equal to the lesser of:

& the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the Class A
Investor Interest; and

@  the Class B Investor Interest;

will be deposited to the Series 05-3 Distributicn Account for Class B1 and Class BZ pro rata  for
each Class to the proportion that each Class B1 Investor Interest and Class B2 Investor Interest
respectively bears to the Class B Investor Interest and will be owned by the MTN lIssuer. The MTN
Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate;

(2) from the Class B1 Distribution Ledger an amount equal to the lesser of:

¢  the amount credited to the Class B1 Distribution Ledger: and
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»  the Class B1 Investor Interest, after taking into account the amount described in clause
(1) above;
will be deposited in the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for Class B1 and will be owned by the
MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer will use this amount to repay principat outstanding on the series 05-3
medium term note certificate; and

(3) from the Class B2 Distribution Ledger an amount equal to the lesser of:
e the amount credited to the Class BZ Distrlbution Ledyer; and

e the Class B2 Investor Interest, after taking into account the amgunt described In clause
(1) above;

this amount wili be deposited in the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for Class B2 and wiil be
owned by the MTN lssuer. The MTN Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on
the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.
Starting on the earlier of {1) if the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account exceeds
the sum of the Class A Investor Interest and the (iass B Investor Interest. the series 05-3 scheduled
redemption date, and {2) during the Rapid Amartisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation
Period, the Class C Principal Commencement Date, and on each Distribution Date after that, the
receivables trustee will distribute the following amounts in the following priority:

{1) from the Principal Funding Account, an amount equal to the lesser of:

& the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the sum of the
Class A Investor Interest and the Class B Investor Interest; and

& the Class C Investor Interest:
will be deposited in the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for Crass C1 and Class C2 pro rato for
each Class to the proportion that each Class €1 Investior interest and Class C2 Investor Interest
respectively bears to Class C Investor Interest and will be owned by the MTN Issuer. The MTN
Issuer wilf use this amount to repay principal outstanding en the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate.

{2y from the Class C1 Distribution Ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of;
e  the amount credited to the Class C1 Distribution Ledger: and

e the Class Cl Investor interest after taking into account the amount described in clause
(1) above:
will be deposited to the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for Class C1 and will be owned by the
MTN Issuer. The MTN issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the Series 05-3
medium term note certificate.

{3) from the Class C2 Distribution Ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of;
e the amount credited to the Class CZ Distribution Ledger; and

e the Class CZ Investor Interest after taking into account the amgunt described in clause
(1) above;
will be deposited to the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for Class C2 and will ke owned by the
MTN Issuer. The MTN lssuer will use this amount 1o repay principal outstanding on the Series 05-3
medium term note certificate.

Postponement of Conirolled Accumulation Period

The Centrolled Accumufation Period is scheduled to begin on the close of business on 30
September 2009. If the Controlled Accumulation Period Length, which is explained in the next
paragraph, is less than 12 months, the Revolving Period may be extended and the start of the
Controtied Accumutation Period will be postponed. The Centrolled Accumulation Period will, in any
event, begin no later than the close of business on 31 August 2010.

On the determination date right before the Distribution Date in 30 September 2009, and on each
determination date after that, until the Controlled Accumulation Period begins, the servicer will
determine the “"Controlled Accumulation Period Length”. This is the number of months that the
servicer expects will be needed to fully fund the Principal Funding Account no later than the serles
05-3 scheduled redemption date, This calculavon is based on:
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®  the expected menthly principal collections that the servicer calculates will be available to
the investor interests of ail series other than excluded series, assuming a principal
payment rate no greater than the lowest monthly principal payment rate on the
receivables for the tweive months before; and

e the amount of principal expected to be distributable to the investor interests of all series
i group one — other than Companion Serles — that are not expected to be in their
revolving periods during the Controlled Accumulation Period,

If the Controlled Accumulation Period Length is less than twelve manths, the servicer may, at its
option, postpone the start of the Controlled Accumulation Period such that the number of calendar
months in the Controlled Accumulation Period will be at least equal to the Controlled
Accumulation Period Length.

The effect of this is to permit the reducticn of the length of the Controlled Accumutation Period
based on the investor interest of future series that are scheduled to be in their revolving pericds
during the Controlled Accumulation Period and on increases in the principal payment rate
occurring after the closing date. The length of the Controlled Accumulation Period will not be less
than one month,

Unavailable Principal Collections
If:

® during the Controlled Accumulation Period or the Regulated Amortisation Period, the
amount credited to the Principal Collections Ledger identified for series 05-3 during any
monthly period minus the amount of Investor Cash Available for Acquisition calculated
for series 05-3 for that monthly period, exceeds the sum of:

(13 the Adjusted Investor Interest as of the last day of the prior monthly period, after
taking into account any deposits to be made to the Principal Funding Account on
the transfer date for that monthly period. any unreimbursed Investor Charge-Offs
for any Class and any other adjustments to the Investor Interest for that monthly
period; and

{2) any Reallocated Class B Principal Collections or Realiocated Class € Principal
Collections on the transfer date for that monthly period; or

e during the Rapid Amortisation Period, the amount credited to the Principal Collections
Ledger identified for series 05-3 during any monthly period exceeds the sum of:

(1) the Investor Interest as of the last day of the prior monthly period, after taking into
account any deposits tg be made to the Series 05-3 Distribution Account on the
transfer date for that monthly period, any unreimbursed Investor Charge-Offs for
any Class andany other adjustments to the Investor Interest for that monthly
peried; and

{2) anvy Reallocated Class B Principal Collections or Realiocated Class € Principal
Collections on the transfer date for that monthly period

the amount of any excess will be allocated and transferred to the transferor beneficiary only to the
extent that the Transferor interest on that date is greater than zero. If the Transferer Interest on
that date is not greater than zero, the amount will be identified as unavailable transferor principal
collections credited to the Principal Collections Ledger. This sum, together with any unavailabie
investor principal collections that have been credited o the Principal Collections Ledger, will be
identified as “Unavailable Principai Collections”. Unavailable investor principal collections are
principal collections identified for the transfercr beneficiary but not transferred to the transferor
beneficiary because the Transferor Interest at the relevant date is not greater than zero,

Unavailable Principal Collections will, to the extent they arise during the Revolving Period, be
allocated to the transferor beneficiary but will be transferred to the transferor beneficiary only if
and to the extent that the Transferor Interest at that time is greater than zero, On each transfer
date for the Controlled Accumuiation FPeriod, Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid
Amortisation Period, any Unavailable Principal Collections which arise after the end of the
Revolving Period which are credited to the Principal Collections Ledger will be allocated to the
investor beneficiary and in¢luded as investor Principal Collections ta be distributed as Awailable
Investor Principal Collections.
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Shared Principal Collections
Principal collections for any monthly period allocated to the Investor Interest of series 05-3 will
first be used to cover:
s untl the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date, for any monthly period during the
Controlled Accumulation Period, deposits of the Controlled Deposit Ameount to the
Principal Funding Account;

¢ during the Regulated Amortisation Period, deposits of the Controlled Deposit Amount to
the Series 05-3 Distribution Account for series 05-3; and

& during the Controlled Accumulation Period, on the series 05-3 scheduled redemption
date and during the Rapid Amortisation Period, payments to the MTN Issuer for sertes
05-3.
The receivables trustee will determine the amount of principal coilections for any monthly period
allocated to the Investor Interest remaining after covering required distributions to the MTN Issuer
for each Class of series 05-3 and any similar amount remaining for any other outstanding series in
group one. These remaining principal collections are called “Shared Principal Collections”, The
receivables trustee will allocate the Shared Principal Collections to cover any scheduled or
permitted principal distributions to beneficiaries, and deposits to principal funding accounts, If any.
for any series in group one that have not been covered out of the principal collections allocable to
that series. These uncavered principal distributions and deposits are called “Principal Shorifails”.
Shared Principal Cellections will not be used to cover investor charge-offs for any Class of any
series.
If Principal Shortfalls exceed Shared Principal Collections for any menthly period, Shared Principal
Collections will be allocated in proportion among the outstanding series in group one based on the
amounts of Principal Shortfalls for each series. To the extent that Shared Principal Collections
exceed Principal Shortfalls, the balance will in the normal course be paid to the transferor
beneficiary.

Defaulted Receivabies; Investor Charge-Offs

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will calculate the Investor Default Amount for the
previous monthly pericd. The “Investor Default Amount” will be the total of, for each defaulted
account, the product of the Floating Investor Percentage and the default amount.

The “default amount” for any defaulted account wil! be the amount of eligible principal receivables
in the defaulted account on the day the account became a defaulted account.

The Invesior Defaut Amount will be calculated for each notional Class of series 05-3 based on its
floating allocation during the monthly period. These allocations will be calied the “Class A1 Investor
Default Amount”, the “Class A2 Investor Default Amount” (together, the Class A1 Investor Defaul!
Amount and the Class A2 Investor Default Amount are called the “Class A Investor Default
Amount™). the “Class B1 Investor Default Amount”, the "Class B2 Investor Defauft Amount”
{together. tne Class B) Investor Default Amount and the Class B2 Investor Default Amount are
called the “Ciass B Investor Default Amount”), the “Class C)1 Investor Default Amount” and the
“Class C2 investor Defauit Amount” (together, the Class C1 Investor Default Amount and the Class
2 Investor Default Amount are called the "Class € Investor Default Amount™).
On each transfer date, if the Class A Investor Default Amount for the prior monthly period exceeds
the sum of:

®  Class A} Available Funds and Class A2 Available Funds;

®  Excess Spread:

e Reallocated Class C Principal Collections; and

&  Reallocated Class B Principal Collections
in each case, to the extent available to cover the Class A Investor Default Amount, then the Class C
Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount of the excess, but not by more than the remaining
Class A Investor Default Amount. This reduction to the Class € Investor Interest (which will be
applied pro rota as between Class C1 Investor Interest and Class C2 Investor Interest based upon
the proportion that each bears to Class C Investor Interest} wili be made only after giving effect to
reductions to the Class C Investor Interest for any Class C lavestor Charge-Offs, any Reallocated
Class B Principal Collections and Realiocated Class C Princlpal Collections,
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If this reduction would cause the Class C Investor Interest to be a negative number, it will be
reduced to zero. In this case, the Class B Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount by which
the Class C Investor Interest would have been reduced below zero, but not by more than the Class
A Investor Default Amount not covered by a reduction in the (lass C Investor Interest. This
reduction in the Class B Investor Interest (which will be applied pro rote as between Class Bl
Investor Interest and Class B2 Investor Interest based upen the proporticn that each bears to Class
B Investor Interest) will be made only after giving effect to reductions for any Class B Investor
Charge-Offs and Reallocated Class B Principal Collections not covered by a reduction in the Class C
Investor Interest.

If this reduction would cause the Class B Investor Interest to be a negative number, the Class B
Investor Interest will be reduced to zero. In this case, the Class A Investor Interest will be reduced
by the amount by which the Class B investor Interest would have been reduced below zero, but not
by more than the remaining Class A Investor Default Amount not covered by a reduction in the
Class C Investor Interest or the Class B Investor Interest. This reduction will be applied pro rata as
between Class Al Investor Interest and Class A2 Investor Interest based upon the proportion that
each bears to Class A Investor Interest, This is called a “Class A Investor Charge-Off" (and in
respect of Class A1, a "Class Al Investor Charge-Off and. respect of Class A2, a “Class A2 Investor
Charge-Off"') and may have the effect of siowing or reducing the return of principal to the MTN
lssuer calculated in respect of Class A

If the Ciass A Investor Interest has been reduced by any Class A Investor Charge-Offs, it will be
reimbursed on any transfer date by the amount of Excess Spread allocated and available for that
purpose, but not by more than the total amount by which the Class A Investor Interest has been
reduced. See "'- Excess Spreqad”.

On each transfer date, if the Class B Investor Default Amount for the prior monthly period exceeds
the sum of:

e Excess Spread; and

e  Reallocated Class C Principal Collections, in each case to the extent available to cover the
Class B Investor Default Amount, then the Class C Investor Interest will be reduced by
the amount of the excess, but not by more than the remaining Class B Investor Default
Amount. This reduction to the Class C Investor Interest will be applied pre rata as
between Class {1 Investor interest and Class (2 Investor Interest based upon the
propartion that each bears te Class € Investor interest and will be made only after giving
effect to any reductions to the Class C investor Interest for any Class C investar Charge-
Cffs, any Reallocated Class B Principal Collections, any Reallocated Class C Principal
Collections and any reductions in the Class C Investor Interest to cover the Class A
Investor Default Amount.

If this reduction would cause the Class C Investor Interest to be a negative number, it will be
reduced to zero. in this case, the Class B Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount by which
the Class C Investor interest would have been reduced below zero, but not by more than the
remaining Class B Investor Default Amount not covered by a reduction to the Class C Investor
Interest, This reduction will be applied pro rate as between Class B1 investor Interest and Class B2
Investor Interest based upon the proportion that each bears to Class B Investor Interest. This is
called 2 “Class B Investor Charge-Off* {and in respect of Class B1, a "Class B1 Investor Charge-Off
and, respect of Class B2, a "Class B2 investor Charge-Off") and may have the effect of slowing or
reducing the return of principal to the MTN Issuer calculated in respect of Class B,

If the Class B Investor interest has been reduced for any reasons other than the payment of
principal, it will be reimbursed on any transfer date by the amount of Excess Spread allocated and
avallabie for that purpose, but not by more than the total amount by which the Class B Investor
Interest has been reduced. See “- Excess Spread’.

On each transfer date, if the Class C Investor Default Amount for the prior monthly periad exceeds
the amount of Excess Spread available to cover the Class € Investor Default Amount, the Class C
Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount of the excess, but not by more than the Class C
investor Default Amount. As between Class C1 and Class (2, such reduction wil be applied pro
rote  based upon the proportion that each of Class €1 and Class C2 bears to Class C. This is called
a "Class C Investor Charge-Off* (and in respect of Class C1, “Class C1 Investor Charge-Off and, in
respect of Class C2, a “Class 2 Investor Charge-Off) and may have the effect of slowing or
reducing the return of principal to the MTN Issuer calculated in respect of Class C.
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If the Class C Investor Interest has been reduced for any reasons other than the payment of
principal, it will be reimbursed on any transfer date by the amount of Excess Spread allocated and
available for that purpose, but not by more than the total amount by which the Class C Investor
Interest has been so reduced. See "- Excess Spreod”,

“Reallocated Class B Principal Collections” means, for any transfer date, the principal collections
allpcable to the Class B Investor Interest for the related monthly period in an amount not to
exteed the Ulass A Required Amount, after applying Excess Spread and Reallocated Class C
Principal Cellections to cover the Class A Required Amount. Reallocated Class B Principal
Collections cannot exceed the Class B Investor Interest after giving effect to any unreimbursed Class
B tnvestor Charge-Offs. Reallocated Class B Principal Collections will reduce the Class B Investor
Interest.

"Reallocated Class B1 Principal Collections” means the pro rata proportion of the Reallocated Class
B Principal Collections allocable to the Class B1 Investor interest based upon the proportion that
the Class B1 Investor Interest bears to the Class B Investor Interest.

“Reallocated Class B2 Principal Collections” means the pro rata proportion of the Realiocated Class
B Principal Collections allocabie to the Class B2 Investor Interest based upon the proportion that
the Class B2 Investor Interest bears to the Class B Investor Interest.

“Reallocated Class C Principal Collections” means, for any transfer date, the principal collections
allocable 10 the Class C Investor Interest for the related monthly period in an amount not to
exceed the Class A Required Amount and the Class B Required Amount after applying Excess
Spread to cover the Class A Required Amount and the Class B Required Amount. Reallocated Class
C Principal Collections cannot exceed the Class C Investor Interest after giving effect to any
unreimbursed Class C Investor Charge-Offs. Reallocated Class C Principal Collections will reduce the
Class C Investor Interest.

“Reallocated Class C1 Principal Collections™ means the pro roto proportion of the Realiocated Class
C Principal Coltections allocable to the Class C1 Investor Interest based upon the proportion that
the Class €1 Investor tnterest bears to the Class € investor Interest.

“Reallocated Class C2 Principal Collecticns™ means the pro rata proportion of the Reallecated Class
C Principal Collections allocable to the Class C2 Investor Interest based upon the propartion that
the Class C2 Investor interest bears to the Class C Investor Interest.

The "Class Al Required Amount” for any transfer date will be the amount, if any, by which the
sum of:

e the Class A1 Monthly Required Expense Amount;

e the total amount of the Class Al servicing fee and the Class A1 cash management fee
for the prior monthly period and any due and unpaid Class Al servicing fees and Class
Al cash management fees: and

e the Class Al Investor Defaylt Amount,
exceeds the Class Al Available Funds.

The “Class A2 Required Amount” for any transfer date will be the amount, if any, by which the
sum of:

s the Class AZ Monthly Required Expense Amount:

e the total amount of the Class A2 servicing fee and the Class A2 cash management fee
for the prior monthly period and any due and unpaid Class A? servicing fees and Class
A2 cash management fees; and

s the Class A2 Investor Default Amount,
exceeds the {lass A2 Avaitable Funds.

Together, the Class Al Required Amount and the Class A2 Required Amount are called the “Class
A Required Amount”.

The "Class B1 Required Amount™ for any transfer date will be the sum of (1) the amount, if any,
by which the sum of

e the Class B1 Monthly Required Expense Amount; and
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e the total amount of the Class B1 servicing fee and the Class B1 cash management fee
for the prior monthly period and any due and unpaid Class B1 servicing fees or Class B1
cash management fees,

exceeds the Class B1 Available Funds, and (2) the Ciass B Investor Default Amount.

The “Class B2 Required Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of (1) the amount, if any,
by which the sum of:

® the Ciass B2 Monthly Required Expense Amount; and

e the totzl amount of the Class B2 servicing fee and the Class B2 cash management fee
for the prior monthly period and any due and unpaid Class B2 servicing fees,or Class B2
cash management fees,

exceeds the Class B2 Available Funds. and (2) the Class B2 Investor Default Amount.

Excess Spread

“"Excess Spread” for any transfer date will be the sum of Class A1 Excess Spread, Class A2 Excess
Spread, Class 81 Excess Spread, Class 82 Excess Spread, Class C1 Excess Spread and (lass (2 Excess
Spread.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will apply Excess Spread to make the following
distributions in the following priority:

(1) an amount equal to the agaregate of the Class A1 Required Amount and the Class A2
Required Amount, if any, will be used to fund, pro rata and pari passu, the Class Al
Required Amount ard the Ciass A2 Required Amount; if the aggregate of the Class Al
Reguired Amount and the Class A2 Required Amount is more than the amount of Excess
Spread, Excess Spread will be applied, pro rote and pari passi, in the order of priority in
which Class Al Available Funds and Class A2 Available Funds are to be distributed;

(2) an amount equa! to the aggregate amount of Class A1 Investor Charge-Offs and Class A2
Investor Charge-Offs that hiave nat been previously reimbursed will be used pro rata and pari
passy, 1o reinstate the Class Al Investor Interest and the Class AZ Investor Interest, treated as
a portion of fnvestor Principal Collections allocated to Class A1 and Class AZ, respectively, and
credited to the Principal Collections Ledger;

(3) an amount equal to the aggregate of the Class B1 Required Amount and the Class B2
Required Amount, if any, will be used to fund, pro rate and pari passu, the Class B1 Required
Amount and the Class B2 Required Amount; if the aggregate of the Class B1 Required
Amount and the Class B2 Required Amount is more than the amount of Excess Spread, Excess
Spread will be applied, pro rata and porl pessu, in the order of priority in which Class Bl
Available Funds and Class B2 Available Funds are to be distributed;

{#) an amount equal to the total amount by which the Class B Investor Interest have been
reduced below the Class B Initial Investor Interest for reasons other than the payment of
principal — but not in excess of the aggregate amount of such reductions which have not
been previously reimbursed - will be used to reinstate, pro ratd and pari passu, the Class B
Investor Interest and the Class B2 Investor Interest, treated as a portion of Investor Principal
Collections and credited to the Principal Collections Ledger;

{5) an amount equal to the sum of the Class C1 Monthly Finance Amount, the Class C1
Deficiency Amount, the Class C1 Additional Finance Amount, the Ciass C2 Monthly Finance
Amount, the Class (2 Deficlency Amount and the Ciass (2 Additional Finance Amount -
<alled the “Class C Monthly Distribution Amount” — will be credited, pro rate and pori passu,
to the Class C1 Distribution Ledger and the Class C2 Distribution Ledger;

{6) an amount equal to the aggregate of the Class C1 Investor Default Amount and Class (2
Investor Default Amount wili be allocated, pro rate and pari possu, to Class C1 and Class 2
and treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collections aliocated to Class €1 and Class C2
and credited to the Principal Coilections Ledger;

(7} an amount equal to the total amount by which the Class C Investor Interest has been reduced
below the Class C investor Interest for reasons other than the payment of principal - but not
in excess of the total amount of the reductions that have not been praviously reimbursed -
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will be used te reinstate, pro rata and por! passu, the Class C1 Investor interest and the Class
(2 Investor Interest, treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collectlons and credited to the
Principal Collections Ledger;

(8) on each transfer date from and after the Reserve Account Funding Date, but before the date
on which the Reserve Account terminates, an amount up to ihe excess, if any, of the
Required Reserve Account Amount over the amount on deposit in the Reserve Account will
be deposited into the Reserve Account;

(9) on each Distribytfon Date prior to the Class C Release Date, if the available amount on
depasit in the Spread Account is less than the Required Spread Account Ameunt, an armount
up to any excess will be deposited into the Spread Account;

(10) an amount equal to any Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amount for serfes 05-3 will be paid to

the transferor ang will then tease 10 be property of the receivables trust;

the Series 05-3 Extra Amount wili be paid into the Series 05-3 Distribution Account and witl

be owned by the MTN Issuer;

(12} on the series 05-3 termination date, an amount equal to the principal calculated as payable in

accordance with the expenses loan agreement will be paid into the Series 05-3 Distribution

Account: and

the balance, if any, after giving effect to the payments made under paragraphs {1) through

above will be paid to the MTN Issuer as assignee of the excess interest beneficiary and will

then cease to be property of the receivables trust.

(11
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Extra Amount
The “Series 05-3 Extra Amount” is calculated as follows:

Days in Note Calculation
period

365 (366 in a leap year)

x 0.02 per cent, b The Investor Interest

Aggregate Investor indemnity Amount

By each transfer date, the receivables trustee will calculate the Aggregate tnvestor tndemnity
Amount for each outstanding serfes. The "“Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amount” is the sum aof all
vestor Indernrity Amounts for the related monthly period.

An “Investor Indemnity Amount” means for any series, the amount of any Transferor Section 75
Liability claimed from the receivables trustee by the transferor under the trust section 75
indemnity allocated to that series, calculated as folows:

Transferor Section 75 Liability X Floating Investor Percentage for that series

The "Transferor Section 75 Liability” is the hability that the transferor has for any designated
account because of Section 75 of the Consurmer Credit Act. The Transferor Section 75 Liability
cannot exceed the original outstanding face amount of the principal receivable relating to the
wransaction giving rise to the liability. See "Risk Factors: Apphication of the Consumer Credit Act
1974 May Impede Coflection Efforts and Could Cause Early Redemption of the notes or a Loss on
your notes'”.

Aggregate tnvestor Indemnity Amounts for series 05-3 wil} be payabie only if amounts are available
from Excess Spread to pay them. See “— Excess Spread”. If Excess Spread available on any transfer
date is not enough to pay the Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amount for series 05-2 otherwise
payable on that date, the excess will be cerried forward and paid on subsequent transfer dates 1o
the extent amounts of Excess Spread are available to pay them.

Principal Funding Account

The receivables trustee will estabiish and maintain the Principal Funding Account at a Qualified
Institution - currently Barclays Bank PLC at its branch located at 1234 Pavilion Drive Northampton
NN4 75G - as a segregated Trust Account held for the benefit of the MTN 1ssuer as the investor
beneficiary for series 05-3 and the transferor beneficiary. During the Controlled Accumulation
Period, the receivables trustee will transfer the amounts described under - Affocation, Calculation
and Distribution of Principal Coflections to the MTN fssuer” to the Principal Funding Account.
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Funds on deposit in the Principal Funding Account will be invested to the following transfer date
by the receivables trustee in permitted investments. Investment earnings, net of investment losses
and expenses, on funds on deposit in the Principal Funding Account are cafled "Principal Funding
Investment Proceeds™.

Principal Funding Investment Proceeds will be used to pay pro rate and pari passu the Class Al
Covered Amount and the Class A2 Covered Amount,

The “Class A1 Covered Amount” is calculated as follows:

The amount equal to the
pro rata share (based upon

Days in the Calculation Period the proportion that Class
x  The Class Al Finance Rate  x AT bears to Class A) of
365 (366 in a leap year) the amount on deposit in
the Principai Funding
Account

where the amount on deposit in the Principal Funging Account is calculated as of the last day of
the monthly pericd before the monthly period in which the relevant transfer date occurs.

The "“Class A2 Covered Amount” is calculated as follows:

The amount equal to the
pro rata share (based upen

Days in the Caiculation Period the proportion that Class
x  The Class A2 Finance Rate  x Al bears to Class A) of
365 (366 in a leap year) the amount on deposit in
the Principal Funding
Account

Where the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account is calculated as of the last day of
the menthly period before the monthly period in which the relevant transfer date occurs.

An amount equal to the propertion of Principal Funding Investment Proceeds equal to the
proportion that amounts deposited in the Principal Funding Account referable to Class Al hear to
the armnount deposited in the Principal Funding Account up to the Class A1 Covered Amount will be
transferred to the Trustee Collection Account by each transfer date and credited to the Finance
Charge Collections Ledger for application as Class Al Available Funds. An amount equal to the
proportion of Principal Funding Investment Proceeds equal to the proportion that amounts
deposited in the Principal Funding Account referable to Class AZ bear to the amount deposited in
the frincipal Funding Account up tc the Class AZ Covered Amount will be transferred to the
Trustee Collection Account by each transfer date and credited to the Finance Charge Collections
Ledger for application as Class A2 Available Funds.

If on any transfer date during the Controlled Accumulation Period, the Principal Funding
Investrment Proceseds referable to Class Al exceed the Class Al Covered Amount or the Principal
Funding Investrnent proceeds referable to Class A2 exceed the Class A2 Covered Amount, then in
either case, that excess will be paid to the transferor beneficiary. If the Principal Funcing
Investment Proceeds referable to Class Al are less than the Class Al Covered Amount or the
Principal Funding Investment Proceeds referable to Class A2 are less than the Class A2 Covered
Amount in respect of either Class with a shortfall, a withdrawal will be made from the Reserve
Account - to the extent funds are available — and will be deposited in the Finance Charge
Collections Ledger, for application as Class A1 Available Funds and Class A2 Available Funds. as the
case may be. The amount of this withdrawal will be reduced to the extent Excess Spread would be
available for deposit in the Reserve Account. See "~ Reserve Account” and "~ Fxcess Spread™.

Reserve Account

The receivables trustee will establish and maintain 2 reserve account at a Qualified Institution —
currently, Barclays Bank PLC at its branch located at 1 Churchill Place, Londan E14 SHP - as a
Trust Account segregated for the benefit of series 05-3. This account is called the "Reserve
Account”. The Reserve Account wil! be established to assist with the payment distribution of the
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Class A1 Monthly Finance Amount and the Class A2 Monthly Finance Amount to the MTIN issuer
during the Controlled Accumulation Period.

On each transfer date from and after the Reserve Account funding Oate, but before the
termination of the Reserve Account, the receivables trustee will apply Excess Spread in the arder of
priority described in "~ Excess Spread” to increase the amount on deposit in the Reserve Account,
up o the Required Reserve Amount,

The “Reserve Account Funding Date" will be the transfer date thet starts no later than three
months before the start of the Controlled Accumulation Period. This date will be an earlier date if
the Portfolio Yield decreases below levels described in the Series 05-3 Supplement. Ia any case, this
date will be no earlier than 12 months before the start of the Contrafled Accumulation Periad.

The “Required Reserve Amount” for any transfer date on or after the Reserve Account Funding
Date will be:

& 050 per cent. of the Class A Investor Interest; or

®  subject to the conditions described in the next paragraph, any other amount designated by
the transferor beneficiary.

if, on or before the Reserve Account funding Date, the transferor beneficiary designates a lesser
amount, it must provide the servicer and the receivables trustee with evidence that each rating
agency has notified the transferor, the servicer and the receivables trustee that that lesser armount
will not result in the rating agency reducing or withdrawing its then existing rating of any
outstanding related beneficiary debtl. Also, the transferor beneficiary must defiver 10 the recetvables
trustee an officer’s certificate to the effect that, based on the facts known to that officer at that
time, in the reasonable belief of the transferor beneficiary, the designation will not cause a Pay Out
Event to occur or an event that, after the giving of notice or the lapse of time, would cause a Pay
QOut Event to occur. Further, this designation will not be effective without the prior written
agreement of all the other beneficiaries,

On each transfer date. after giving effect to any deposit to be made to, and any withdrawal to be
made from. the Reserve Account on that transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw from
the Reserve Account an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the amount on deposit in the
Reserve Account over the Required Reserve Amount. The receivables trustee will distribute this
amount to the transfecor heneficiary and it will cease to be the property of the receivables trust.

All amounts on deposit in the Reserve Account on any transfer date will be invested by the
receivables trustee in permitted investments to the following transfer date. This will be done after
giving effect to any deposits to, or withdrawals from, the Reserve Account 10 be made on that
transfer date. The inlerest and ather income - net of investment expenses and losses — earned on
the investments will be retained in the Reserve Account if the amount on deposit in the Reserve
Account is less than the Required Reserve Amount. If the amount on deposit is equal to or more
than the Required Reserve Amount, it will be credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger (o
be included, pro rata, in the Class A1 Available Funds and the Class A2 Avatlable Funds.

On each transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period before the series 05-3 scheduled
redemption date and on the first transfer date during the Regulated Amortisation Period or the
Rapid Amartisation Period. the receivables trustee will withdraw an amount from the Reserve
Account and deposit it in the Trustee Collection Account for credit to the Finance Charge
Collections Ledger to be included, in Class A1 Available Funds and Class A2 Available Funds. This
amaunt for each Class Al and (lass A2 will be equal 1o the lesser of:

& the available amount on depoesit in the Reserve Account; and

e the amount, if any, by which the proportion of Class Al Covered Amount or Class A2
Covered Amount is greater than the Principal Funding Investment Proceeds equal to the
proportion that Olass AT Investor interest or Class AZ Investor Interest bears to Class A
Investor Interest. as appropriate.

The amount of this withdrawal will be reduced to the extent Excess Spread would be available for
deposit in the Reserve Account.

The Reserve Account will be terminated following the earliest to occur of:
e  the termination of the receivables trust;
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e the earlier of the first transfer date after the start of the Regulated Amortisation Period or the
Rapid Amortisation Period; and

e the serles 05-3 termination date.

when the Reserve Account terminates, all amounts stili on deposit in the Reserve Account will be

treated as part of the excess interest attributabie to series 05-3 and will be paid to the MTN Issuer

and will no longer be the property of the receivables trust.

Spread Account

The receivables trustee will establish and maintain a spread account at a Qualified Institution —
currently Barclays Bank PLC at #ts branch located at 1234 Pavilion Drive, Northarmpton NN4 75G -
as a segregated Trust Account held for the benefit of the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary
and the transferor beneficiary. This account is called the “Spread Account”, The Spread Account
wifl be used:

® to fund shortfalls in Excess Spread available to pay the Class C Monthly Distribution Amount;
®  on the day called the “Class C Release Date”, which is the earlier of:

{i) the day the Class A Investor Interest and the Ciass B Investor interest are reduced to
zere, and
(2} the series 05-3 termination date,
to fund the amount, if any, by which the Class € Debt Amount is greater than the Class C Investor
Interest: and
& beginning on the Class C Release Date, to fund shortfalls in Excess Spread available to fund
the Class C Investor Defauit Amount
No amounts will be deposited into the Spread Account on the closing date, but if the amount on
deposit In the Spread Account is less than the Required Spread Account Amount, then the Spread
Account will be funded by Excess Spread as described above in item {9) under “~ Excess Spread”.
The “Required Spread Account Amount” will be determined menthly and will be equal to the
Spread Account Percentage times:
¢ during the Revolving period or the Conirofled Accumulation Period, the current Adjusted
Investor Interest, or
e  during the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation Period. the Adjusted
Investor Interest as of the last day of the Revolving Period or, if the Controlled Accumulation
Period has started, as of the last day of the Controlled Accumulation Period.

The Required Spread Account Amount, however, will never exceed the Class C Debt Amount,

The “Spread Account Percentage” will be deterrnined each determination date by the level of the
quarterly excess spread percentage as follows:

Spread Account
Quarterly Excess Spread Percentage Percentage
above 4.5% 0.0%
above 4.0% but equal to or below 4.5% 1.0%
above 3.5% but equal to or below 4.0% 1.5%
above 3.0% but egua! to or below 3.5% 2.0%
equal to or below 3.0% 2.5%

The quarterly excess spread percentage will be calculated on each determination date and will be a
percentage equal to the average of the Portfolio Yields for the three prior months less the average
of the Expense Rates for the same three months,

The quarterly excess spread percentage for the first determination date will be calculated using the
Portfolio Yield for the prior month divided by the Expense Rate for the same month. The quarteriy
excess spread percentage for the second determination date wili be calculated using the average of
the Portfolio Yields for the pricr two months divided by the average of the Expense Rates for the
same two months.

All amounts on deposit in the Spread Account on any transfer date wili be invested by the
receivables trustee in permitted investments to the next transfer date. For purposes of the Spread
Account, permitted investments will include investments rated A-2 by Standard & Poar's, and P-2
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by Moody's. This will be done after giving effect to any deposits to, or withdrawals from, the
Spread Account made on that transfer date. The interest and other investment income - net of
investment expenses and losses ~ earned on the investments will be retained in the Spread Account
if the amount on deposit in the Spread Account is less than the Required Spread Account Amount.
If the amount on deposit in the Spread Account is at least equal to the Required Spread Account
Amount, then it wil! be paid to the transferor beneficiary.

If the Ctass C Monthly Distribution Amount is not fully paid from Excess Spread on any transfer
date, the receivables trustee will withdraw from available funds on depasit in the Spread Account
an amaount equal 1o the shortfall and credit it, pro rata and pard passy, to the Class C1 Distribution
Ledger and the Class C2 Distribution Ledger.

Cn the Class C Release Date, the lesser of:
e the availzble amount on deposit in the Spread Account, and
s the amgunt, If any, by which the Class C Debt Amount exceeds the Class C Investor Interest

will be withdrawn by the receivables trustee and paid to the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary
and treated as principal paid that is referable, pro rate and par passu, to the Class C1 Investor
Interest and the Class C2 Investor Interest. This withdrawal will be made only after giving effect to
any withdrawal made for the purposes described in the preceding paragraph.

Beginning on the Class C Release Date, if the Class C Investor Default Amount is not fully funded
from Excess Spread on any transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw from available funds
on deposit in the Spread Account an amount equal to the shortfall and these funds will be
calculated by reference to Class C and treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collections that is
referable, pro rata and pari passu, to the Class Cl1 Investor Interest and the Class (2 Investor
Interest and so credited to the Principal Collections Ledger. This withdrawa! will be made only after
giving effect to any withdrawal made for the purposes described in the two preceding paragraphs.

Any amount on deposit in the Spread Account that exceeds the Required Spread Account Amount
will be withdrawn by the receivables trustee and will be treated as part of the excess interest
attributable to serfes 05-3 and will be paid to the MTN [ssuer. Also, on the earlier of:

[] the termination of the receivables trust; and
#  the series 05-3 termination date,
any amounts still on deposit in the Spread Account, after making any deposit or withdrawal

described above, will be withdrawn by the receivables trustee and treated as part of the excess
interest attributable to series 05-3 and will be paid to the MTN |ssuer.

Distribution Ledgers

The receivables trustee will establish distribution ledgers for each Class of series 05-3 in the
Trustee Collection Account. Cn each transfer date it will credit and debit amounts to these iedgers
a5 described throughout this section of this prospectus. All amounts credited to the Class Al
Distribution Ledger, the Class A2 Distribution Ledger, the Class B1 Distribution Ledger, the Class B2
Distribution Ledger, the Class Ci Distribution Ledger and the Class CZ Distribution Ledger wili be
regarded as being segregated for the benefit of the MTN issuer.

Trustee Payment Amount
The share of the Trustee Payment Amount payable on any transfer date that is allocable to series
05-3 — called the "Investor Trustee Payment Amount” — wilt be calculated as follows:

Investor Interest for Series 05-3 Trustee
Payment Amount

Total of Investor Interests of series for which
the Trustee Payment Amount was incurred

Total of Invester Interests of series for which the Trustee Payment Amount was incurred

The share of the tnvestor Trustee Payment Amount allocable to the Investor Interest for each Class
is equal to the product of:

s the floating allocation for the relevant Class: and
e the investor Trustee Payment.
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This will be called the “Class Al Trustee Payment Amount”, the "Class AZ Trustee Payment
Amount”, the "Class B1 Trustee Payment Amount”, the “Class B2 Trustee Payment Amount”, the
“Ciass C1 Trustee Payment Amount” and the “Class C2 Trustee Payment Amount”, respectively.

The Investor Trustee Payment Amount for any Class will be payable from amounts available for
distribution for that purpose out of available funds for each Class and Excess Spread. See "-
Allocation, Caolculation and Distribution of Finance Charge Coflections to the MTN Issuer” and “-
Excess Spread”.

The portion of the Trustee Payment Amount not allocated to series 05-3 will be paid from
cashflows under the recelvables frust allocated to other outstanding series, and in no event will
series 05-3 be liabie for these payments.

Quallfied Institutions

If the bank or banks at which any of the accounts listed below are held cease to be a Qualified
Institution, then the receivables trustee will, within 10 business days, establish a new account 1o
replace the affected account or accounts, and will transfer any cash and interest to that new
account or accounts. The accounts referred to above are;

Trustee Collection Account;
Trustee Acquisition Account;
Reserve Account;

Spread Account:

Principal Funding Account; and
Series 05-3 Distribution Account

The receivables trustee may In its discretion elect to move any or ali of these accounts and the
amounts credited to them from the Qualified Institution at which they are kept as at the date of
this document to another or other Qualified Institutions.

"Qualified Institution” means (1) an institution which at all times has a short-term unsecured debt
rating of at least A-1+ by Standard & Poor’s and P-1 by Moody's or (2) an institution acceptable to
each rating agency.

Series 05-3 Pay Out Events
The events described below are called “Series 05-3 Pay-Out Evenls”

{1y failure on the part of the transferor:

¢ to make any payment or deposit required by the terms of the receivables securitisation
agreement within five business days after the date that the payment or deposit s
required to be made; or

& duly fo observe or perform any covenants or agreements of the transfercr in the
receivables securitisation agreement or the Series 05-3 Supplernent that has a material
adverse effect on the interests of the MTN Issuer in respect of series 05-3 and which
continues unremedied for a perlod of 60 days after the date on which written nctice of
the failure, requiring it to be remedied, is given to the transferor by the receivables
trustee, or is given to the transferor and the receivables trustee by the investor
beneficiary for series 05-3 acting on the instructions of holders of the series 05-3
medium term note certificate representing together 50 per cent. or more of the total
balance of the series 05-3 medium termn note certificate outstanding at that time, and
which unremedied continues during that 60 day period to have a material adverse effect
on the interests of the MTN Issuer in respect of series 05-3 for that period;

(2} any representation or warranty made by the transferor in the receivables securitisation
agreement or the Series 05-3 Supplement, ar any information contained in a computer file or
microfiche list required o be delivered by the transferor under the receivables securitisation
agreement:

®  proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when made or when delivered and
continues to be incarrect in any material respect for a period of 60 days after the date
on which written notice of the error, requiring it to be remedied, is given to the
transferor by the receivables trustee, or is given to the transferor and the receivables
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trustee by the investor beneficiary for series 05-3 acting on the instructtons of holders of
the series 05-3 medium term note certificate representing together 50 per cent. or more
of the total balance of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate outstanding; and

e as a result of which there is a material adverse effect on the interests of the MTN Issuer
in respect of series 05-3 and which unremedled continues during that 60 day period to
have a material adverse effect for that period.

Notwithstanding the above, no series 05-3 Pay-Qut Event in relation to (2) shall be deemed to
have occurred if the transferor has complied with its obligations for a breach of warranty as
set out in the receivables securitisation agreement;

(1) the average Portfolio Yield for any three consecutive monthly periods is less than the average
Expense Rate for those periods, or on any determination date before the end of the third
monthly period from the closing date the Portfolio Yield is less than the average Expense Rate
for that pericd;

(4) either;

& oaver any period of thirty consecutive days, the Transferor Interest averaged over that
period is less than the Minimum Transferor Interest for that period and the Transferor
Interest does not increase on or before the tenth business day following that thirty day
period to an amount so that the average of the Transferor Interest as a percentage of
the Average Principal Receivables for such thirty day period, computed by assuming that
the amount of the increase of the Transferor interest by the fast day of the ten business
day period, as compared to the Transferor Interest on the last day of the thirty day
period, would have existed in the receivables trust during each day ef the thirty day
period, is at least equal to the Minimum Transferor Interest; or

& on the last day of any monthly period the total balance of eligible receivables is less
than the Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables, adjusted for any series having a
Companion Series as described in the supplement for that series, and the total balance
of eligible receivables fails to increase tc an amount equal to or greater than the
Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables on or before the tenth business day following
that last day; :

(5) any servicer default or trust cash manager default occurs that would have a material adverse
effect on the MTN Issuer in respect of series 053-3;

(6) the Investor Interest is not reduced to zero on the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date;

(7) the early termination, without replacement, of any of the swap agreements as described in
this prospectus under “The Swap Agreements: Common Provisions of the Swgp Agreements”;

(8} the MTN Issuer is required to withhold or deduct any amounts for or on account of tax on
the pavment of any principal or interest in respect of the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate.

If any event described in paragraphs (1), (2} or (5) occurs then, after the applicable grace period,
either (1} the receivables trustee or (2) the investor beneficiary may declare that a Serles 05-3 Pay
Out Event has occurred if the correct notice has been given. If the investor beneficiary declares
that a Series 05-3 Pay Out Event has occurred, it must have acted on the instructions of holders of
the series 05-3 medium term note certificate representing, together, 50 per cent. or more of the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate ocutstanding at that time. The investor beneficiary must
give a written notice to the transferor, the servicer and the receivables trustee that a Series 05-3
Pay Out Event has occurred. If the receivables trustee declares that a Series 05-3 Pay Out Event
has gccurred, it must give a written notice to this effect to the transferer, the servicer and the
trust cash manager. A Series 05-3 Pay Out Event will be effective as of the date of the relevant
notice, If any event in paragraphs (3), (4). (6), (7) or (B) accurs, a Series 05-3 Pay Out Event will
accur without any notice or other action on the part of the receivables trustee or the investor
beneficiary.
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“Portfolio Yield" means, for any monthly period:
where:

L T 7+ B 1
"

(A+B+C+D)—E
F

x 12

= the finance charge collections allocable to series 05-3;

the Acguired Interchange allocable to series 05-3;

the Principal Funding Investment Proceeds up to the aggregate of the Class Al Covered
Amount and Class AZ Covered Amount;

the amount, if any, to be withdrawn from the Reserve Account that is included in Class Al
Available Funds and Class A2 Available Furnds;

the Investor Default Amount; and
the Investor Interest.

“Expense Rate” means. for any transfer date:

where:
A+B+C
_ % 12
o
A = the sum of the Class A1 Monthly Required Expense Amount, the Class A2 Monthiy Required

B=
C=
D=

Expense Amount, the Class B1 Monthiy Required Expense Amount, the Class B2 Monthly
Required Expense Amount, the Class C1 Monthly Required Expense Amount and the Class (2
Monthiy Required Expense Amount;

the investor servicing fee:
the investor trust cash management fee; and
the Investor Interest.

“Minimum Transferor interest” means 5 per cent. of the Average Principal Receivables. The
transferor may reduce the Minimum Transferor Interest in the following circumstances:

upon 30 days prior notice to the receivables trustee, each rating agency and any
enhancement provider entitled to receive notice under its supplement;

upon written confirmation from each rating agency that the reduction will not result in the
reduction or withdrawal of the ratings of the rating agency for any outstanding related
beneficiary debt, including, for series 05-3, the notes: and

delivery to the receivables trustee and each enhancement provider of an officer's certificate
stating that the transferor reasonably believes that the reduction witl not, based on the facts
known to the officer at the time of the certification, cause, at that time or in the future, a
Pay CGut Event to occur for any investor beneficiary.

The Minimum Transferor Interest will never be less than 2 per cent. of the Average Principal
Receivables.

“Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables” means, an amount equal to the sum of the
numerators used in the caiculation of the investor percentages for principal collections for al
outstanding series on that date, For any series in its rapid accumulation period, as defined in its
supplement, with an investor interest as of that date of determination equal to the balance on
deposit in the principal funding account for that series, the numerator wsed in the calculation of
the investor percentage for principal collections for that eligible series will, only for the purpose of
the definition of Minimum Aggregate Principat Receivables, be zero.

“Average Principal Receivables” means, for any period, an amount equal to:

the sum of the total balance of eligible principal receivables at the end of each day during
that period divided by;

the number of days in that period.

"“Companion Series” means:
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&  each series that has been paired with another series so that the reduction of the Investor
interest of the paired series results in the Increase of the investor interest of the other serles,
as described in the related supplements; and

e  the other series.

Entitlernent of MTN issuer to Series 05-3 Excess interest

Barclays Bank PLC will enter into an “agreement between beneficiaries” with the MTN Issuer under
which Barclays Bank PLC will transfer its excess interest entltlement attributable to series 05-3 to
the MTN Issuer. The portion of the excess interest so transferred will form part of the lnvestor
Interest. The MTN Issuer will pay amounts of excess interest attributable to series 05-3 which it
receives pursuant o the agreement between the beneficiaries to the issuer as “"MTN Issuer
additional interest payments’.

In return for the transfer of the entitiement te the portion of the excess interest relating to series
05-3 the MTN Issuer will agree to pay deferred consideration t0 Barclays Bank PLC. we will refer
te this deferred consideration as “excess entitlement consideration”. The amount of the excess
entitlement consideration in respect of series 05-3 will be equal ta the amount of deferred
subscription price which the MTN lIssuer receives from the issuer in respect of the series 05-3
medium lerm note certificate from time to time.

The issuer will apply any MTN [ssuer additional interest payments received by it in meeting Its due
and payable obligations. Any sums remaining following satisfaction of ail amounts due and payable
by the issuer, which we will refer 1o as “unctilised excess spread”, will be paid to the MTN lssuer
as deferred subscription price for the series 05-3 medium term note certificate for as jong as the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate is in issue.

Your Payment Flows

The first "Interest Payment Date” will be 15 January 2006 or, if that day is not a business day, the
next business day after the 15th, and each subsequent Interest Payment Date will be the 15th day
of each April, July, October and January. or if that day is not a business day, the next business day
after the 15th.

“Note Calculation Period” means, for any Interest Payment date, the period from and including the
previous Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, from and
including the closing date, to but excluding that interest Payment Date.

On each Distribution Date, the receivables trustee will transfer from available funds in the Trustee
Collection Account the sum of:

e the Class A1 Monthly Disuibution Amount,
the Class A2 Monthly Distribution Amount;
the Class BY Monthly Distribution Amount;
the Class B2 Monthly Distribution Amaount;
the Class C1 Monthly Distribution Amount;
the Class CZ Monthly Distribution Amount;

on the series 05-3 termination date, an amount equal to the principal calculated as
payable in accordance with the expenses loan agreement: and

e the excess interest attributable to series 05-3;
and deposit that sum into the Serfes 05-3 Distribution Account held by the MTN Issuer.

The MTN Issuer will credit the amount received in respect of the monthly distribution amounts for
each Class and the portlon of the excess interest attributable to series 05-3 to the MTN Issuer
coupon ledger and wiil record for calculation purposes the amounts treated as referable to each
Class.

The MTN Issuer will then transfer from the Series 05-3 Distribution Account to the extent there
are sufficient funds on deposit:

e first, the costs and expenses of the SITN Issuer for the reievant monthly period:
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second, the lesser of (1) the amounts credited to the MTN Issuer coupon ledger, after
paying or reserving for the MTN Issuer's costs and expenses described in the first bullet
point above and (2} the Interest due and payable on the series 05-3 medium term note

" certificate, excluding the MTN Issuer additional Interest payments, will be deposited in

the Series 05-3 Issuer Account;

third, an amount equal to /3 (or '/, with respect to the first two Distribution Dates as
from the closing date) of the Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount plus, on the series 05-3
termination date, an amount equal to the principal calculated as payable in accordance
with the expenses loan agreement will be deposited in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account;
fourth, an amount equal to 1/2 of the Series 05-3 Extra Amount will be paid to the
MTN Issuer;

fifth, an amount equal to 1/2 of the Series 05-3 Extra Amount will be depcsited in the
Series 05-3 Issuer Account;

sixth, an amount equal to the MIN Issuer additional interest payments will be deposited
in the Series 05-3 issuer Account.

The “Series 05-3 Issuer Account” is a bank account in the name of the issuer that will be used to
depasit amounts distributed to the Issuer on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate from the
MTN Issuer.

The issuer will also establish and maintain coupon ledgers for each Class of notes in the Series 05-
3 Issuer Account. On each Distribution Date the issuer will credit the following amounts to the
following ledgers:

to the Class Al notes coupon ledger of the Series 05-3 Issuer Account an amount equal
to the lesser of (1) a pro rata portion (based upon the proportion that the aggregate
Base Currency PAO of the Class A notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAO of
the Class A notes) of the amount deposited in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account on such
Distribution Date and (2) the sum of the Class A1 Monthly Finance Amount, the Class
A1 Deficiency Amount and the Class A1 Additional Finance Amount;

to the Class A2 notes coupon ledger of the Series 05-3 Issuer Account an ameunt equal
to the lesser of, {1) a pro rate portion (based upon the proportion that the aggregate
Base Currency PAOD of the Class A2 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAQ of
the Class A notes) of the amount deposited in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account on such
Distribution Date and {2) the sum of the Class A2 Monthly Finance Amount, the Class
A2 Deficiency Amount and the Class A2 Additional Finance Amount;

to the Class 81 notes coupon ledger of the Series 05-3 issuer Account an amount equal
to the lesser of {1) a pro roto portion (based upen the proportion that the aggregate
Base Currency PAQ of the Class B1 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAQO of
the Class B notes) af the remaining amount deposited In the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
en such Distribution Date minus the aggregate of amounts credited to the Class Al
notes coupon ledger and the Tlass AZ notes coupon ledger and (2) the Class B1 Monthly
Distribution Amount;

to the Class B2 rotes coupon ledger of the Series 05-3 Issuer Account an amount equal
to the lesser of (1) a pro ruta portion (based upon the proportion that the aggregate
Base Currency PAQ of the Class B2 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAO of
the Class B notes} of the remaining amount deposited in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
on such Distribution Date minus the aggregate of amounts credited fo the Class Al
notes coupen ledger and theé (lass A2 notes coupon ledger and (2) the Class 82 Manthly
Distribution Amount;

to the Class C1 notes coupon ledger of the Series D5-3 issuer Account an amount equal
to the lesser of (1) a pro reta portion (based upon the proportion that the aggregate
Base Currency PAO of the Class C1 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAO of
the Ciass C notes) of the remaining amount deposited in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
on such Distribution Date minus the sum of the amounts credited to the Class A1 notes
couporn ledger, the Class AZ notes coupon ledger, the Class B1 notes coupon ledger and
the Class B2 notes coupon ledger and '/ {or '/ with respect to the first two
Distribution Dates as from the closing date) of the Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount and
(2} the Class C1 Monthly Distribution Amount; and
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e to the Class C2 notes coupon ledger of the Series 05.3 Issuer Account an amount equal
to the lesser of (1) a pro ratc portion {(based upon the proportion that the aggregate
Base Currency PAD of the Class C2 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAO of
the Class T hotesy of the remaining amount deposited in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
on such Distribution Date minus the sumn of the amounts credited tc the Class Al notes
coupon ledger, the Class A2 notes coupon ledger, the Class B notes coupon ledger and
the Class B2 notes coupon ledger and /3 (or '/ with respect to the first two
Distribution Dates as from the closing date} of the Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount ang
(2) the Class €2 Monthiy Distribution Amount,
In addition, the MTN Issuer will pay any amounts received from the issuer as deferred subscription
price to Barclays Bank PLC pursuant to an agreement between beneficiaries.
On each Interest Payment Date, the issuer will pay from the Series 05-3 Issuer Account:
e first, from MTN lIssuer additional interest, the costs and expenses of the issuer for the
relevant MNote Calculation Pericd will be paid or reserved for within the issuer;
® second, the costs and expenses of the isswer for the relevani Note Calculation Period
remaining  after the first item will be paid or reserved for within the issuer
proparticnately to the Class A notes’, the Class B notes’ and the Class € notes' share for
such payment to be used to pay, or reserve for, the costs and expenses of the issuer;

& third, pro rote and por! passy:

{a) an amount equal to the lesser of (1) the amount standing to the credit of the Class
Al notes coupon ledger after paying or reserving for the Class Al notes'
proportionate share of the issuer's costs and (2) other than arnounts payable under
the twelfth item below, expenses and the amounts due and payable to the swap
counterparty under the Class Al swap agreement for the relevant Note Calculation
Period, to the swap counterparty and upon payment to the issuer by the swap
counterparty in exchange therefor, to the holder of the Class A1 note {or, to the
extent that the Class Al swap agreement has been terminated and not replaced,
the lesser of (i) the spot Euro equivalenti of (1) above and (ii} the amount due
under the Class A1 note to the holder of the Class Al note);

(b} an ameunt equal to the amount standing to credit of the Class AZ notes coupon
ledger after paying or reserving for the Class AZ notes’ proportionate share of the
issuer’'s costs to the hoider of the Class A2 note;

e fourth, pro rota and pari passu:

{a) an amount equai to the lesser of (1) the amount standing to the credit of the Ciass
B1 notes coupon ledger after paying or reserving for the Class Bi notes’
proportionate share of the issuer's costs and (2) other than amounts payvable under
the thirteenth item below, the amounts due and payable tc the swap counterparty
under the Class Bl swap agreement for the relevant Note Calculation Period, o the
swap coeunterparty and upon payment to the issuer by the swap counterparty in
exchange therefor, to the holder of the Class B1 note (or, to the extent the Class
Bt swap agreement has been terminated and not replaced, the tesser of (i) the spot
Euro equivalent of {1} above and (fi) the amount due under the Class Bl note to
the holder of the Class B1 note;

(b} an amount equal to the amount standing to the credit of the Class B2 notes
coupon ledger after paying or reserving for the Class B2 notes’ proportionate share
of the issuer's costs 1o the holder of the Class B2 note;

& fifth, the lesser of the remaining amount on deposit in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
and an amount equal 1o the Quarterly Loan Expenses Amount will be paid to the lender
under the expenses loan agreement;

e sixth, pro reta and pori passu:

(a) an amount equal to the lesser of (1) the amount standing to the credit of the Class
CY notes coupon ledger after paying or reserving for the Class C1 notes’
proportionate share of the 1ssuer's costs and (2) other than amounts payabie under
the fourteenth item below, the amounts due and payable to the swap counterparty
under the Class C1 swap agreement in respect of the relevant Calculation Period, to
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the swap counterparty and upon payment to the issuer by the swap counterparty
in exchange therefor to the holder of the Class C1 note (or, to the extent the Class
C1 swap agreement has been terminated and not replaced, the lesser of (i) the spot
euro eqguivalent of (1) above and (i) the amount due under the Class C1 note to
the holder of the Class C1 note;

{b) an amount equal to the amount standing to the credit of the Class C2 notes
coupen ledger after paying ar reserving for the Class C2 notes’ proportionate share
of the issuer’s costs ta the holder of the Ciass €2 note;

& seventh, the lesser of the remaining amount on deposit in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
and an amount aqual to the principal calculated as pavable In accordance with the
expenses loan agreement will be paid to the lender under the expenses loan agreement;

e  eighth, the lesser of the remalning amount on deposit in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
and an amount equal to 1/2 of the Series 05-3 Extra Amount, witl be paid to the issuer;

® ninth, any amounts due from or required to be provided for by the issuer to meet its
liabilities to any taxation authority;

e tenth, any amounts due to third parties under obligations incurred in the course of the
issuer’s business;

e  eleventh, an amount equal to the lesser of the amount on deposit in the Series 05-3
Issuer Account and the amount needed to cover any shortfall with respect to the notes
caused by the imposition of withholding taxes on payments made under the series 05-3
medium term note certificate or the swap agreements;

e twelfth, the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the swap
counterparty pursuant {o the Class Al swap agreement where the Class Al swap
agreement has been terminated as a result of a default by the swap counterparty;

¢ thirteenth, the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the swap
counterparty pursuant to the Class B1 swap agreement where the Class Bl swap
agreement has been terminated as a resuit of a default by the swap counterparty;

e fourteenth, the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the swap
counterparty pursuant to the Class €1 swap agreement where the Class C1 swap
agreement has been terminated as a resuit of a default by the swap counterparty; and

e fifteenth, any amounts remaining will constitute deferred subscription price and will be
paid to the MTN Issuer,

Under the terms of each swap agreement, the swap counterparty will pay to the principal paying
agent on each Interest Payment Date an amount equal to the interest on the applicable Class of
notes, converted into euro, subject to the deferral of interest as described in “Terms ond Conditions
of the Notes" and "The Swap Agreements”; Provided that, in the event that a withholding tax is
imposed on payments due from the Issuer under the swap agreements, the swap counterparty will
be entitled to deduct amounts in the same proportion from payments due from it {which could
result in deferral in respect of payment on the Class A1 notes, the Class B1 notes or the Class C1
notes, as applicable), and the Jssuer shail be entitled to use available amounts of MTN Issuer
additional interest payments in accordance with the above priority of payments {(where any such
shortfalt ranks at the same level in the above priority of payments as the interest on the Class Al
notes, the Ciass B] notes and the Class C1 notes, as applicable, converted at the then spot rate of
exchange for sterling to euro) to make whole any such shortfall in interest paid in respect of the
relevant Class of notes, and the Issuer will pay such converted amount to the principal paying
agent for payment in respect of the relevant Class of notes.

After the termination of the swap agreements, the note trustee will withdraw the amounts on
deposit in the Class Al notes coupon ledger, the Ciass B1 notes coupon ledger and the Class C1
notes coupon fedger and convert those amounts into euro at the then prevailing spot exchange
rate in London, England for sterling purchases of euro and distribute these eurc amounts to the
paying agent to make payments of interest on the Class Al notes, the Class Bl notes and the Class
C1 notes, respectively.

On the earlier of (1) the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date and (2) the first Distribution Date
for the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation Period, and on each Distribution
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Date after that, the receivables trustee will transfer the foltowing amounts and deposit them into
the Serfes 05-3 Distribution Account:

o from the Principal Funding Account, the lesser of (1) the amount in the Principal
Funding Account on that date and {2) the Class A Investor Interest; and

e from the Class A1 Distribution Ledger and the Class A2 Distribution Ledger, the lesser of
(1} during the Rapid Amortisation Period, the aggregate amount in the Class Al
Distribution Ledger and the Class A1 Distribution Ledger or, during the Regulated
Amortisatiens Period, the Cantrolled Deposit Amount, and (2) the Class A Investor
Interest - after taking into account the amount distributed from the Principal Funding
Account as described above.

On the later to occur of the Class B Principal Commencement Date and the series 05-3 scheduled
redemption date and each Distribution Date after, the receivables trustee will transfer the following
amounts and deposit them into the Series 05-3 Distribution Account:

# from the Principal Funding Account, the lesser of (1} the amount on deposit in the
Principai Funding Account in excess of the Class A Investor Interest and (2) the Class B
Investor Interest; and

e  from the Qass B1 Distribution Ledger and the Class B2 Distribution Ledger, the lesser of
the aggregate amount in the Class B1 Distribution Ledger and the Class B2 Distribution
Ledger and the Class B nvestor Interest - after taking Into account the amount
distributed from the Principal Funding Account as described above.

On the later to occur of the Class C Principal Commencement Date and the series 05-3 scheduied
redemption date and each Distribution Date after, the receivables trustee will transfer the following
amounts and deposit them into the Series 05-3 Distribution Account:

[] from the Principaf Funding Account, the lesser of {1) the amount on deposit in the
Principal Funding Account in excess of the sum of the Class A lwvestor Interest and the
Class B Investor Interest and (2) the Class C Investor nterest; and

e from the Class C1 Distribution Ledger and the Class C2 Distribution Ledger, the lesser of
the aggregate armount in the Class C1 Distribution Ledger and the Class (2 Distribution
tedger and the Class T Investor interest - after taking inte account the amount
distributed from the Principal Funding Account as described above.

The MTN issuer will credit the amount received for each Class of Investor Interest to the MTN
Issuer Principal Ledger,

On the eatlier of (1) the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date and (2) the first Distribution Date
for the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation Period, and each Distribution
Date after, the MTN Issuer will transfer for same day value from the Series 05-3 Distribution
Account the amount in the MTN Issuer Principal Ledger and deposit it into the Series 05-3 lssuer
Account

The issuer will credit each amount received from the MTN Issuer Principal Ledger to the
appropriate notes principal ledger. Before the termination of the swap agreements, on the earlier of
(1) the Series 05-3 scheduled redemption date and (2) the first Interest Payment Date for the
Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation Peried, and each Interest Payment Date
after, the issuer will pay:
¢ from the Class Al notes principal ledger, an amount egual io the lesser of (1) the
armount in the Ciass A1 notes principal ledger; and (2) the sterling eguivalent of the
principal due on the Class A1 notes, o the swap courterparty;

o from the Class Bl notes principal ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of (1) the
amount in the Class B1 notes principal ledger and (2) the sterling equivalent of the
principal due on the Class B1 notes, to the swap counterparty: and

e from the Class C1 notes principal ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of (1) the
amount in the Class C1 notes principal ledger and (2) the sterling equivalent of the
principal due on the Class C1 notes, to the swap counterparty.

The swap counterparty will pay to the principal paying agent, in euro, principal for distribution to
the noteholders converted into euro, at the fixed exchange rate, in respect of the Class Al notes,
Class BT notes and Class C1 notes.
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After the termination of the swap agreements, the note trustee will withdraw the amounts on
deposit In the Class A1 notes principal ledger, the Class B1 notes principal ledger and the Cfass C1
notes principal ledger and, to the extent necessary, the amounts on deposit in the Series 05-3
Issuer Account representing MTN Issuer additional interest payments and cenvert those amoumnts
into eurg at the then prevailing spot exchange rate in London, England for sterling purchases of
euro and distribute those euro amounts to the paying agent to make payments of principal first on
the Class A1 notes, then the Class B1 notes and finally the Class C1 notes.

125




The Trust Deed

The principal agreement governing the notes will be the trust deed. The trust deed has four
primary functions:

& it constitutes the notes;

e it sets out the covenants of the issuer in relation to the notes;

. it sets out the enforcement and post-enforcement procedures refating to the notes; and
e it sets out the appeintment, powers and responsibilities of the note trustee,

Each function is summarised below.
The trust deed sets out the form of the notes. It also sets out the terms and conditions of the
ngtes, and the conditions for the issue of individua! note certificates and/or the cancellation of any
notes. It stipulates that the paying agents, the registrar, the transfer agents and the agent bank will
he appointed. The detaifed provisions regulating these appeointments are contained in the paving
agency and agent bank agreement.

The trust deed also contains covenants made by the issuer in favour of the note trustee and the
noteholders. The main covenants are that the issuer will pay interest and repay principal on each
of the notes when due. Covenants are included lo ensure that the Jssuer remains insolvency
remote, and te give the note trustee access to all information and reports that it may need in
grder to discharge its responsibilities in relation to the noteholders. Some of the covenants also
appear in the terms and conditions of the notes, see “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”". The
issuer alsg covepants that it will do ali things necessary to maintain the listing of the notes on the
Official List of the UK Listing Authority and admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange
and to keep in place a registrar, a transfer agent, a paying agent and an agent bank.

The trust deed sets out the general procedures by which the note trustee may take steps to
enforce the security created by the issuer in the deed of charge so that the note trustee can
protect the interests of the noteholders in acCordance with the terms and conditions. The trust
deed gives the note trustee a general discretion to enforce the security, but also provides for
meetings of the noteholders at which the noteholders can determine the action taken by the note
trustee in relation to the enforcement of the notes. The trust deed provides that the Class A
noteholders' interests take precedence for so long as the Class A notes are outstanding, and after
that, the interests of the Class 8 noteholders take precedence aver the interests of Class C
noteholders, until no more Class B notes remain outstanding. Certain basic terms of each Class of
notes may not be amended without the consent of the majority of the holders of that Class of
note, This is described further in the “Terms and Conditions af the notes”,

The trust deed also sets out the priority in which the note trustee will pay out any monies that it
receives under the notes after the security has been enforced. This is also set out in the deed of
charge and the pricrity of payments is summarised in the terms and conditions of the notes.

The trust deed also sets out the terms on which the note trustee is appointed, the indemnification
of the note trustee, the payment it recefves and the extent of the note trustee’s authority to act
beyond its statutory powers under English Law. The note trustee is also given the ability to appoint
a delegate or agent in the execution of any of its duties under the trust deed. The trust deed also
sets out the circumstances in which the note trustee may resign or retire.

The terms of the trust deed supersede the provisions of the Trustee Act 2000 of England and
Wwales.

The trust deed is governed by English Law.
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The Notes and the Global Certificates

The issue of the notes will be authorised by a resolution of the board of directors of the issuer
passed prior to the closing date, The notes will be constituted by a trust deed to be dated the
closing date between the issuer and the note trustee as trustee for, among cthers, the holders for
the time being of the notes. The trust deed includes provisions which ¢nable it to be modified or
supplemented and any reference to the trust deed is a reference also to the document as medified
or supplemented in accordance with its terms,

The material terms of the notes are described in this prospectus. However, the statements set out
in this section with regard to the notes and the giobal nate certificates representing the notes are
subject to the detailed provisions of the trust deed. The trust deed will include the forms of the
global note certificates and the forms of the individual note certificates. A paying agent and agent
bank agreement between the lIssuer, the note trustee, The Bank of New York in London as
“principal paying agent”, the cther paying agents - together with the principal paying agent, called
the "paying agents” - the transfer agent, the registrar and the agent bank, regulates how payments
will be made on the notes and how determinations and netifications will e made. It will be dated
as of the closing date and the parties wifl include, on an ongoing basis, any successor party
appointed in accordance with its terms.

Each Class of notes will be represented by a global note certificate which will be registered in the
name of The Bank of New Yark Depaositary (Nominees) Limited as common depositary for Eurcclear
Bank SA/NV. (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme {"Clearstream,
Luxembourg”).

Beneficial cwners may held their interests in the global note certificates only through Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Eurcclear, as appiicable, or indirectiy through organisations that are participants in
any of those systems. Ownership of these beneficial Interests In a global note certificate will be
shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear (with respect to interests of their participants) and the
records of their participants (with respect to interests of persons other than their participants). By
contrast, ownership of direct interests in a global note certificate will be shown on, and the
transfer of that ownership wili be effected through, the register maintained by the registrar.
Because of this holding structure of the notes, beneficial owners of notes may look only to
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Evroclear, as applicable, or their respective participants for their
beneficial entitlement to those notes. The issuer expects that Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear
will take any action permitted to be tzken by a beneficial owner of notes only at the direction of
one or more participants to whose account the interests in a global note certificate is credited and
only in respect of that portion of the aggregate principal amount of notes as to which that
participant or those participants has or have given that direction.

The global note certificate will become exchangeable in whole, but not in part, for individual note
certificates if (a} Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg is closed for business for a continuous
period of 14 days (other than by reason of legal holidays) or announces an intention permanently
to cease business or (b) any of the circumstances described in condition number 9 (Events of
Default) occurs.

Whenever the global note certificate is to be exchanged for individual note certificates, such
individual note certificates will be issued in an aggregate principal ameunt equal to the principal
amount of the global note certificate within five business days of the delivery, by or on behalf of
the registered holder of the global note certificate, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, to
the registrar of such information as is required 10 complete and deliver such individual rote
certificates {including, without limitation, the names and addresses of the persons in whose names
the individual note certificates are to be registered and the principal amount of each such person’s
holding} against the surrender of the global note certificate at the specified office of the registrar.
Such exchange will be effected in accordance with the provisions of the trust deed and the
regulations concerning the transfer and registration of notes scheduled thereto and, in particular,
shali be effected without charge to any holder or the note trustee, but against such indemnity as
the registrar may require in respect of any tax or other duty of whatsoever nature which may be
levied or imposed in connection with such exchange,

In addition, the global note certificate wili contain provisions that medify the terms and conditions
of the notes as they apply to the notes evidenced by the global note certificate. In particular,
notwithstanding condition number 15 (Noticas), s¢ long as the global note certificate is held on
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behatf of far Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing system (an “Alternative
Clearing System'), notices to holders of notes represented by the global note certificate may be
given by delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or {as the case may
be} such Altemative Clearing System,
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Terms And Conditions Of The Notes

The material terms of the notes are described in the body of the prospectus. The following is a
surmmary of the material terms and conditions of the notes, and is numbered 1 to 17. This
summary does not need to be read with the terms and conditions of the notes in order to learn all
the material terms and conditions of the notes.

The notes are the subject of the following documents:
® atrust deed dated the closing date between the issuer and the note trustee;

e a paying agency and agent bank agréement dated the closing date among the issuer, the
registrar, the principal paying agent and the agent bank, the other paying agents, the transfer
agent and the note trustee;

& a deed of charge dated the closing date among the lender under the expenses loan
agreement, the issuer, the swap counterparty and the note trustee; and

e the Class Al swap agreement, the Class Bl swap agreement and the Class C! swap
agreement. each between the issuer and the swap counterparty.

when we refer to the parties to the docurnents listed above, the reference includes any successor

to that party validly appointed.

Initially the parties will be as follows:

. Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC as issuer;

e  The Bank of New York as principal paying agent and agent bank, registrar transfer agent and
note trustee: and

e  Barclays Bank PLC as lender under the expenses loan agreement and swap counterparty.

You are bound by and deermed to have notice of all of the provisions of the trust deed, the paying
agency and agent bank agreement, the deed of charge, the expenses loan agreement and the swap
agreements, which are applicable to you. You can view drafts of those documents at the principal
place of business of the note trustee or the specified office of any of the paying agents.

1. Form, Denomination, Title and Transfer

(1) The notes are in global registered form. Transfers and exchanges of beneficial interests in
notes represented by global note certificates are made in accardance with the rules and
procedures of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable. The euro notes are being
offered in minimum denominations of €50.000 and integral muitiples in excess thereof of
€10,000 The sterling notes are being offered in minimum denominations of E50,000, and
integral multiples in excess thereof of £10,000.

(2) CGlobal note certificates will be exchanged for individual note certificates in  definitive
registered form only under certain limited circumstances. If individual note certificates are
issued, they will be sertally numbered and issued in an aggregate principal amount equal te
the principal amount outstanding of the relevant global note certificates and in registered
form only,

{3) The registrar will maintain a register in respect of the notes in accordance with the provisions
of the paying agent and agent bank agreement. References in this section to a “holder” of a
note means the persen in whose name such note js for the time being registered in the
register — or, in the case of a joint holding, the first named - and "noteholder” will be
construed accordingly. A “note certificate” will be issued to each noteholder for its registered
holding. Each note certificate will be numbered serially with an identifying number which wil
be recorded in the register.

(4) The registered owner of each note will - except as otherwise required by law - be treated as
the absolute cwner of such note for ail purposes. This will be true whether or not it is
overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or any other interest therein, any
writing on the note certificate - other than the endorsed form of transfer - or any notice of
any previous loss or theft of the note certificate — and no other person will be liabie for so
treating the registered owner,

(5) Subject to the provisions below, a note may be transferred upon surrender of the relevant
note certificate, with the endorsed form of transfer duly completed, at the offices of the
registrar or any transfer agent specified in the paying agent and agent bank agreement,
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(8)

9)

{10)

(1}

(12

(13}

2.

together with such evidence as the registrar or transfer agent may reasonably require to
prove the title of the transferor and the authority of the individuals who have executed the
form of transfer. A note may not be transferred, nowever, unless the principal amount of
notes transferced and - where not all of the notes held by a holder are being transferred -
the principal amount of the balance of notes not transferred are authorised holdings.
“Authorised holdings” means holdings of at least £50,000 by reference to the Base Currency
PAQ of the notes held. Where not all the notes represented by the surrendered note
certificate are the subject of the transfer, a new note certificate in respect of the balance of
the notes will be issued to the transferar.

Within fve business days of surrender of a note certificate, the registrar will register the
transfer in question and deliver a new note certificate of a like principal amount to the notes
transferred to each relevant holder at its office or the office of any transfer agent specified In
the paying agent and agent bank agreement or, at the request and risk of any such relevant
heider, by uninsured first class mail - and by airmai! if the holder is overseas — to the address
specified for the purpose by which commercial banks are open for business, including dealings
in foreign currencies, in the city where the registrar or the relevant transfer agent has its
specified office.

The transfer of a note will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the issuer, the
registrar or any transfer agent but against such indemnity as the registrar or transfer agent
may require for any tax or other duty of any nature that may be levied or imposed in
connection with the transfer.

All payments on the notes are subject to any applicable fisca! or other taws and regulations.
Noteholders will not be charged commissions or eéxpenses on these paymentis.

If the due date for payment of any amount on the notes is not a business day in the place it
Is presented, noteholders will not be entitled to payment of the amount due in that place
unti! the next business day in that place and noteholders will not he entitied to any further
interest or other payment as a result of that delay.

If 2 noteholder holds individual note certificates, payments of principal and interest — except
In the case of a final payment that pays off the entire principal on the ncte — will be made
by, in the case of the Class Al notes, the Class B1 notes and the Class C1 notes, euro-
dengminated cheque and in the case of the Class A2 notes, the Class 82 notes and the Class
C2 nates, sterling-denominated cheque and mailed to the nateholder at the address shawn in
the register. In the case of final redemption, payment will be made only when the naote
certificate s surrendered. ' the noteholder makes an application 1o the registrar, payments
can instead be made by transfer to a bank account.

If payment of principal on a nocte is improperly withheld or refused, the interest that
continues to accrue will stiil be payable as usual.

The issuer £an, at any time, vary or terminale the appointment of any paying agent and can
appoint successor or additional paying agents, registrars or transfer agents. If the issuer does
this it must ensure that it maintains a paying agent in Lenden and a registrar, The issuer will
ensure that at least 3¢ days’ notice of any change in the payving agents, the registrar or the
transfer agent or their specified offices is given to noteholders in accordance with condition
number 15.

Subject as described earlier about the deferral of interest, if payment of interest on a note Is
not paid for any other reascn when due and payable, the unpaid interest will itself bear
interest at the applicable rate until hoth the unpaid interest and the interest on that interest
are paid.

Status

Paymenis on the notes will be made equally amongst all notes of the same Class.

3.

Security and Swap Agreement

The security for the payment of amounts due under your notes, together with the expenses which
validly arise during the transaction, is created by the deed of charge and the pledge agreement.
The security is created in favour of the note trustee who will hold it on your behalf and on the
behalf of other secured creditors of the issuer. The security consists of the following:
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(1)

)

(3}

(4)

{5}
(6)

an assignment by way of first fixed security of the issuer's right. title and interest in and to
the series 05-3 mediumn teren note certificate to the extent not pledged in (6) below;

a charge by way of first fixed sub-charge of all of the issuer's right, titfe and interest in the
security interest created by the MTN Issuer in favour of the security trustee in respect of the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate;

an assignment by way of first fixed security of the issuer's right, title, interest and benefit in
and to the issuer related docurnents except the trust deed and the deed of charge;

an assignment by way of first fixed security of the issuer’s right, title, interest and benefit in
and to all monies credited to the Series 05-3 Issuer Account or to any bank or other account
in which the issuer may at any time have any right, title, interest or benefit;

a first floating charge over the issuer's business and assets not charged under (1}, (2), (3) or
(4) above or pledged under the pledge referred to in (6) below; and

a pledge over the series 05-3 medium term note certificate pursuant to a pledge agreement
between the issuer and the note trustee.

The security is described in detai! in the deed of charge and the pledge agreement,

The deed of charge sets out how money is distributed between the secured parties if the security
is enforced. The order of priority it sets out is as follows:

m

4]

3)

4

(5)

7}
(8)

(9

in no order of priority between them but in proporticn to the respective amounts due, to pay
fees which are due to any receiver appointed under the deed of charge and all amcunts due
for legal fees and other costs, charges, liabilities, expenses, losses, damages, proceedings.
claims and demands which have been incurred by the note trustee under the issuer reiated
documents and/or in enforcing or perfecting title to the security together with interest due
on these amounts;

pro rotg and pard passu:

{a) ‘towards payment of amounts due and unpaid on the Ciass Al notes, to interest then to
principal after, subject to the eleventh item below, having paid any amounts due to the
swap counterparty under the terms of the Class Al swap agreement;

(b} towards payment of amounts due and unpaid on the Class A2 notes, to interest then to
principal after, subject to the eleventh item below;

pro rata and parl pessu:

(a) towards payment of amounts due and unpaid on the Class B1 notes, to interest then to
principal after, subject to the twelfth iterm below, having paid any amounts due to the
swap counterparty under the terms of Class B1 swap agreement;

(b) towards payment of amounts due and unpaid on the Class B2 notes, to Interest then to
principal after, subject to the twelfth item below;

towards payment of amounts of interest due and unpaid under the terms of the expenses
loan agreement;

pro rata and pari passu:

(a) towards payment of amounts due and unpaid on the Class C1 notes, to interest then to
principal after, subject to the thirteenth itern below, having paid any amounts due to the
swap counterparty under the terms of the Class C1 swap agreement;

(b) towards payment of amounts due and unpaid on the Class C2 notes, to interest then to
principal after, subject to the thirteenth item below

after the notes have been paid in full, towards payment of amounts of principal due and

unpaid under the terms of the expenses loan agreement;

towards payment of any sums that the issuer must pay te any tax authority;

towards payment of any sums due to third parties under cbligations incurred in the course of

the issuer’'s business:

towards payment of the deferred subscription price in respect of the series 05-3 medium

term note certificate;

{10) towards payment of any dividends due and unpaid to shareholders of the issuer;
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(11) towards payment of the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the
swap counterparty pursuant to the Class Al swap agreement. where the Class Al swap
agreement has been terminated as a result of a default by the swap counterparty;

(12) towards payment of the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the
swap counterparty pursuant to the Class Bl swap agreement where the Class B1 swap
agreement has been terminated as a resuit of a defauit by the swap counterparty;

{13) towards payment of the amount equal to any termination paymeni due and payable to the
swap counterparty pursuant to the Class (1 swap agreement where the Class Ct swap
agreement has been terminated as a result of a default by the swap counterparty; and

(14) in paymertt of the balance, if any. to the liquidator of the issuer.

The security becomes enforceable when an event of default occurs. These events are described in
condition number 9 below. If an event of default occurs, the redemption of notes will not
necessarily he accelerated as described in cordition nurnber & below,

The issuer will enter into three swap agreements, the material terms of which are described under
the heading "The Swap Agreements” in this prospectus.

4, Megative Covenants of the Issuer
tf any note Is outstanding, the issuer wili not, unless it is permitted by the terms of the issuer
related documents or by the written consent of the note trustee:

& create or permit te subsist any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other security interest,
including anything which amounts to any of these things under the laws of any jurisdiction,
on the whale or any part of Hs present or future business, assets or revenues, including
uncalled capital,

e carry on any business other than relating to the issue of the notes, as described in this
prospectus; in carrying on that business, the issuer will not engage in any activity or do
anything at all except:

(1} preserve, exercise or enforce any of its rights and perform and observe its obligations
under the notes, the deed of charge, the paying agency and ageni bank agreerient, the
trust deed. the expenses loan agreement, each swap agreement, the series 35-3 medium
term hote certificate and the reiated purpose trust, the corporate services agreemeént, the
underwriting agreement, the bank agreement and any bank thandate regarding the
Series 05-3 tssuer Account — collectively called the “issuer related documents™.

(2) use, invest or dispose of any of its property or assets in the manner provided in or
contemplated by the issuer related documents; or

(3} perform any act incidental to or necessary In connection with {1) or (2) above.

e have any subsidiaries, subsidiary business, business of any other kind, employees, premises or
interests in bank accounts other than the Series 05-3 Issuer Account unless the account is
charged to the note trustee on acceptadle terms;

& have any indebiedness. other than indebtedness permitted under the terms of its articles of
association ar any of the issuer related documents;

#  give any guarantee or indemeity for any obdigation of any person:

#  repurchase any shares of its capital stock or declare or pay any dividend or other distributions
to Its shareholders;

& consolidale with ¢r merge with or into any person or liguidate or dissolve on a voluntary
basis;

¢ be a member of any group of companies for the purposes of value added tax;

e waive or consent 1o the modification or waiver of any of the provisions of the issuer related
documents without the prior written consent of the note trustee; or

e  offer to surrender 1o any company any amounts which are available for surrender by way of
group relief.
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5. Interest

Each note will bear interest on its principal amount outstanding from, and including, the closing
date. Interest on the Class A1 notes, the Class B notes and the Class C1 notes is payable in arrear
in eura on each Interest Payment Date. Interest on the Class A2 notes, the Class B2 notes and the
Class C2 notes is payable in arrear in sterling on each Interest Payment Date.

If there is a shortfall between the amounts received by the issuer from the swap counterparty or
otherwise and the amount of interest due on any Class of notes on that Interest Payment Date,
that shortfall will he borne by each note in that Class in a proportion equal to the proportion that
the interest outstanding on the relevant note bears to the total amount of interest cutstanding on
all the notes of that Class. This will be determined on the Intersst Payment Date om which the
shortfall arises. Payment of the shortfali witl be deferred and will be due on the next Interest
Payment Date on which funds are available to the issuer, or, if earlier, the 15 October 2012
Interest Payment Date, from payiments made to it from the swap counterparty or otherwise on that
Interest Payment Date, to make the payment, The shortfall will accrue interest at the rate described
for each Class of note below plus a margin of 2.0 per cent. per annum, and payment of that
interest will alse be deferred and will be due on the next Interest Payment Date on which funds
are available to the issuer to make the payment or, if earlier, on the 15 October 2012 Interest
Payment Date.

Each period beginning on, and including, the Closing Date or any Interest Payment Date and
ending on, but excluding, the next Interest Payment Date is called an interest period. The first
interest payment for the notes will be made on 15 lanuary 2006, or if that day is not a business
day, the next business day after the 15th for the interest period from and including the Closing
Date to but excluding 15 January 2006,

Interest will stop accruing on any part of the principal amount outstanding of a note from the date
it is due to redeem unless payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. If this happens it
will continue to bear interest in accordance with this condition, both before and after any
judgment is given, until whichever is the earlier of the following:

w the day on whith 8l sums due in respect of that note, up to that day, are received by or on
behalf of the relevant noteholder; and

L] the day which is seven days after the principal paying agent or the note trustee has notified
the relevant Class of noteholders, in accerdance with condition number 14, that it has
received all sums due in respect of the relevant Class of notes up to that day, except to the
extent that there is any subseguent default in payment.

The rate of interest applicable to the notes for each interest period will be determined by the
agent bank on the following basis:

On the quotation date for each Class of note, the agent bank will determine the offered quotation
to leading banks in the London interbank market for, (i) in the case of the euro notes, 3-month
EURIBCR or, in the case of the first interest period, the linear interpolation of 2-month and 3-
month EURIBOR and (i) in the case of the sterling notes, 3-month sterling LIBOR or, in the case of
the first interest period, the linear interpolation of 2-month and 3-month sterling LIBOR.

sterfing LIBOR:

(1} The relevant sterling LIBOR will be determined by reference to the British Bankers Association
sterling LIBOR Rates display as quoted on the Moneyline Telerate Service display page
designated 3750. If the display page designated 3750 stops providing these quotations, the
replacement service for the purposes of displaying this information will be used. ' the
replacement service stops displaying the information, any page showing this information will
be used. If there is more than one service displaying the information, the one previously
approved in writing by the note trustee wili be used;

I each case above, the determination wili be made as at or about 11,00 a.m., London time,
on that date. These are called the “sterling screen rates” for the respective sterling Classes.

A "quotation date" means the first day of an interest period.
(2} if, on any quotation date, the sterling screen rate Is unavailable, the agent bank wilt:
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®  request the principal London office of each of four major banks - called “sterling
reference banks” - in the Lendon interbank market selected by the agent bank to
provide the agent bank with its offered quotation to leading banks of the equivalent of
the sterling screen rate on that quotation date in an amount that represents a single
transaction in that market at that time; and

e calculate the arithmetic mean, rounded upwards to four decimal places, of those
quotations;

{3) if on any quotation date the screen rate is unavailable and only two or three of the sterling
reference banks provide offered quotations, the rate of interest for that interest period will be
the arithmetic mean of the quotations as last calculated in (2) above; and

(4) if fewer than two sterling reference banks provide quotations, the agent bank will determine
the arithmetic mean, rounded upwards to four decimal places of the rates quoted by major
banks in London, selected by the agent bank at approximately 11.00 am. London time on the
relevart quotation date, to leading banks for a period equal to the relevant interest period
and in an amount that is representative for a single transaction in that market at that time,
for loans in sterling,

EURIBOR:

{1} The relevant EURIBOR will be determined by reference to the rate for deposit in euro for the
relevant interest period displayed on the Telerate Page 248 as of 11.00 am., Brussels time on
the relevant quotation date. If the display page designated 248 stops providing these
quotations, the replacement service far the purposes of displaying this information will be
used. If the replacement service stops displaying the information, any page shewing this
information will be used If there is more than one service displaving the information, the one
previously approved in writing by the note trustee will be used;

In each case above, the determination will be made as at or about 11.00 a.m., Brussels time,
on that date. These are called the "euro screen rates” for the respective euro Classes.

A “'quotation date” means the second Dusiness day before the first day of an interest period.

(2) if. on any quotaticn date, the screen rate is unavailable, the agent bank will:

e request the principai euro-zome office of each of four major banks - called “euro
reference banks™ - in the euro zone interbank rmarket selected by the agent bank to
provide the agent bank with its offered quotation to leading banks of the equivalent of
the euro screen rate on that quotation date in an amount that represents a single
transaction in that macket at that time: and

e calcufate the arithmetic mean, rounded upwards to four decimal places, aof those
quotations;

(3} if on any guotation date the eurc screen rate is unavailable and only two or three of the euro
reference banks provide offered quotations, the rate of interest for that interest pericd will be
the arithmetic mean of the quotations as last calculated in (2) above: and

{4} if fewer than two euro reference hanks provide guotations, the agent bank will determine the
arithmetic mean, rounded upwards to four decimal places of the rates quoted by major banks
in the euro zone, selected by the agent bank at approxirmately 11.00 a.rn. Brussels time on the
relevant quotation date, to leading banks for a period equal to the relevant interest period
and in an amourt that is representative for a single transaction in that market at that fime,
for loans in eurc.

The rate of interest for each interest period for the Class A1 notes will be the sum of:

s 0.08 per cent. per annum; and

&  the euro screen rate or the arithmetic mean calculated to replace the euro screen rate.

The rate of interest for each interest pericd for the Class A2 notes will be the sum of:

&  0.08 per cent. per annum; and

e the sterling screen rate or ihe arithmetic mean calcuialed to replace tne sterling screen rate,
The rate of interest for each interest period for the Class B notes will be the sum of:

s 0.25 per cent. per annum; and

e the euro screen rate or the arithmetic mean calculated to replace the euro screen rate.
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The rate of interest for each interest period for the Class B2 notes will be the sum of:

@  0.25 per cent. per annum; and

o the sterling screen rate or the arithmetic mean calculated to replace the sterling screen rate.
The rate of interest for each interest period for the Class C1 notes will be the sum of:

¢  0.45 per cent. per annum; and

®»  the euro screen rate gr the arithmetic mean calculated to replace the euro screen rate.

The rate of interest for each interest period for the Class C2 notes will be the sum of:

® 045 per cent. per annum; and

&  the sterling screen rate or the arithmetic mean calculated to replace the sterling screen rate.

If the agent bank is unable to determine the screen rate or an arithmetic mean to replace it, as
described in (2), {3) and {4) the rates of interest for any interest period wil' be as follows:

# for the Class Al notes the rate will be the sum cof 0.08 per cent. per annum and the euro
screen rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the Class A1 notes;

@  for the Class A2 notes the rate will be the sum of 0.08 per cent. per annum and the sterling
screen rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the Class A2 notes;

o for the Class B1 notes the rate will be the sum of 0.25 per cent. per annum and the euro
screen rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the Class B1 notes; and

®  for the Class B2 notes the rate will be the sum of 0.25 per cent. per anrum and the sterling
screen rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the Cass B2 notes;

® for the Class C1 notes the rate will be the sum of 045 per cent. per annum and the euro
screen rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the Class C1 notes; and

e for the Class C2 notes the rate will be the sum of 0.45 per cent. per annum angd the sterling
screen rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the Class C2 notes.

The agent bank will, as soon as it can after the quotation date for each interest peried, calculate
the amount of interest payable on each note for that interest period. The amount of Interest will
be calculated by applying the rate of interest for that interest period to the principal amount
outstanding of that note during that interest period, multiplying the product by the actual number
of days in that interest period divided by (i) 360 (in the case of the eurc notes) and (it} 365, or if
that interest period ends in a leap year, by 366, {in the case of the sterling notes) and rounding to
the nearest euro 0.01, half a cent being rounded upwards {in the case of the euro notes) or to the
nearest pound sterling 0.01, half a penny being rounded upwards (in the case of the sterling
notes).

On each Interest Payment Date, the agent bank will determine the actual amount of interest which
will be paid on the notes on that Interest Payment Date and the amount of any shortfall on the
notes for that interest perfod and the amount of interest on any shortfall which will be paid on
that Interest Payment Date. The amount of any Interest on the shortfall will be calculated by
applying the relevant rate of interest for those notes plus a margin of 2.0 per cent. per anrum, to
the sum of the shortfall and accrued interest on shortfall from prior interest periods which remains
unpaid, multiplying by the actual number of days in the relevant interest period and dividing by (i)
360 (in the case of the euro notes) and (i) 365, or if that interest period ends in a leap year. by
366, {in the case of the sterling notes) and rounding to the nearest euro 0.01, haif 2 cent being
rounded upwards (in the case of the euro notes) or to the nearest pound sterling 0.01, half a
penny being rounded upwards (in the case of the sterling notes).

If, on any Interest Payment Date, the amount available ta the issuer, from the swap counterparty is
insufficient (through shortfall in the amounts available from the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate or otherwise} to pay in full the amount of interest due on a Class of notes, any
cutstanding shortfall and accrued interest on shortfali, due on that Interest Payment Date, that
amount wil! be applied first to the payment of the interest due on that Class of notes, secondly to
the payment of any outstanding shortfal! and thereafter to the payment of any accrued interest on
shortfall for that Class of notes.

The rates and amounts determined by the agent bank will be notified to the issuer, trustee and
paying agent and published in accordance with condition number 15 as scon as possible after
these parties have been notified.
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The issuer, the paying agents, the note trustee, the reference banks, the agent bank and the
noteholders will be bound by the determinations properly made as descriped above and nore of
the reference banks, the agent bank or the note trustee will be liable in connection with the
exercise or non-exerclse by them of their powers, dutles and discretions for those purposes.

If the agent bank fails to make a determination or calculation required as described above, the
note trustee, or its appointed agent, without accepting any liability for It will make the
determination or calculation as described above. If this happens, the determination or calculation
will be deemed to have been made by the agent bank.

The issuer will ensure that there will be four veference banks while there are notes outstanding.

6. Redemption and Purchase
The issuer is anly entitled to redeem the notes as provided in paragraphs (1), (2), (3) and (4)
below.

{1} Scheduled Redemption

Class Al notes:

Unless previously purchased and cancelled or unless the Regulated Amortisation Period or Rapid
Amortisation Period has already started, all Class A1 notes will be redeemed on the series 05-3
scheduled redemption date, wnless there is a shortfall between the amount in the Series 05-3 Issuer
Account referable to the aggregate Base Currency PAQD of the Class Al notes {being the amount
equai to the proportion that the Class Al notes bears to aggregate Base Currency PAC of the Class
A notes on the Scheduled Redemption Date) and the total amount payable to the swap
counterparty under the Class A1 swap agreermnent. If there is such a shortfall, the Class A1 notes
will be redeemed proportionately with the amount in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account referable to
the Class A1 notes after being exchanged under the terms of the Class A1 swap agreement. The
Rapid Amortisation Period will then begin. The payments will be made (pari passu with payments
on the Class A2 notes) In no order of preference proportionately between all Class A1 notes.

Class A2 notes:

Unless previously purchased and cancelled or unless the Regulated Amocrtisation Period or Rapid
Amortisation Period has already started, all Class A2 notes will be redeemed on the series 05-3
scheduled redemption date, unless there is a shortfall between the amount in the Series 05-3 issuer
Account referable to the Class A2 notes {being the amount equal to the proportion that the
aggregate Base Currency PAC of the Class A2 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAO of
the Class A notes on the 5Scheduled Redemption Date) and the total amount due and payable pn
the Class A2 notes. if there is such a shortfall, the Class A2 notes will be redeemed proportlonately
with the amount in the Series 03-3 Issuer Accouni referable to the Class A2 notes. The Rapid
Amortisation Period will then begin. The payments will be made (pari passu with ali payments
made on the Class Al notes) and in no order of preference and proportionately between all Class
AZ notes.

Class B1 notes:

Unless previously purchased and cancelled or uniess the Regulated Amortisation Pericd or the
Rapid Amortisation Period has already started, all Class B1 notes will be redeemed on the series
035-3 scheduled redemption date unless, after payment of all interest and principal due and payable
on the Class A notes, there is a shortfall between the amount in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
referable to the Class BI notes (being the amount equal to the proportion that the aggregate Base
Currency PAO of the Class Bl notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAC of the Class B
notes on the Scheduled Redemption Date) and the amount due and payable o the swap
counterparty under the Class B1 swap agreement. If there is such a shortfall, the Class B notes will
he redeemed proportionately with the amount in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account referable to the
Class B1 notes after being exchanged under the terms of the Class B1 swap agreement. The Rapid
Amortisation Pericd will then begin. The payments will be made {pari possu with paymenis on the
Class BZ notes) in no order of preference and proportionately between all Class 81 notes.

Class B2 notes:

Unless previously purchased and cancelled or unless the Regulated Amortisation Period or Rapid
Amortisation Period has already started, all Class 82 notes will be redeemed on the series 05-3
scheduled redemption date, unless, after payment of all interest and principa! due and payable on
the Class A notes, there is a shortfall between the amount in the Series 05-3 Jssuer Account
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referable ta the Class B2 nates (being the amount equal to the propertion that the aggregate Base
Currency PAO of the Class B2 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAQ of the Class B
notes on the Scheduled Redemption Date) and the total amount due and payable on the Class B2
notes. If there is such a shortfali, the Class B2 notes will be redeemed proportionately with the
amount in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account referable to the Class B2 notes. The Rapid Amortisation
Period will then begin. The payments will be made (pgri passu with all payments made on the
Class B1 notes) in no order.of preference and praportionately between all Class B2 notes.

Class C1 notes;

Untess previously purchase¢ and cancelled or unless the Regulated Amortisation Period or the
Rapid Amortisation Period has already started. all Class C1 notes will be redeemed on the series
05-3 schedufed redemption date unless, after payment of all interest and principal due and payable
on the Class A notes and the Class B notes, there is a shortfall between the amount in the Series
05-3 Issuer Account referable to the Class C1 notes (being the amount equal to the proportion that
the aggregate Base Currency PAO of the Class C1 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAD
of the Class C notes on the Scheduled Redemption Date) and the amount due and payable to the
swap counterparty under the Class C1 swap agreement. If there is such a shortfall, the Class C1
notes will be redeemed proportionately with the arnount in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account
referabie to the Class C1 notes after being exchanged under the terms of the Class C1 swap
agreement. The Rapid Amortisation Period will then begin. The payments will be made (pari passu
with payments on the Class C2 notes) in no order of preference and proportionately between all
Class C1 notes.

Class C2 notes:

Unless previously purchased and canceiled or unless the Regulated Amortisation Period or Rapid
Amoprtisation Period has already started, all Ciass CZ notes will be redeemed on the series 05-3
scheduled redemption date, unless, after payment of ali interest and principal due and payable on
the Class A notes and the Ciass B notes, there is @ shortfall between the amount in the Series 05-3
Issuer Account referable to the Class C2 notes (being the amount equal to the proportion that the
aggregate Base Currency PAO of the Class €2 notes bears to the aggregate Base Currency PAO of
the Class C notes on the Scheduled Redemption Date) and the total amount due and payable on
the Class C2 notes. If there is such a shortfall, the Class C2 notes wiil be redeemed proportionately
with the amount in the Series 05-3 Issuer Account referable to the Class €2 notes. The Rapid
Amortisation Period will then begin. The payments will be made (parf possu with ali payments
made on the Class {1 notes) in no order of preference and proportionately between all Class C2
notes.

If the Rapid Amortisation Period begins as & result of there being insufficient funds to repay
principal and pay interest on the Class A notes, the Class B notes or the Class € nates, as described
above, then on each Interest Payment Date after that, first the Class A notes, second the Class B
notes and third the Class € notes, will be redeemed (pro rate and part possu among the notes of
each Class), to the extent of amounts available toc the issuer, after the appropriate amounts are
exchanged under the swap agreements in respect of the euro notes, for each note of a Class in the
proportion that the Base Currency PAQ of that note bears to the total Base Currency PAQ of the
notes of that Class. This will happen until the earlier of the time when each Class of notes has
been paid in full and the 15 October 2012 Interest Payment Date.

On each Interest Payment Date, the agent bank wilt determine for each Llass of notes the
following:
¢ the amount of principal repayable on each note of that Class; and
s the principal amount outstanding of each note of that Class on the first day of the next
interest period, after deducting any principal payment due to be made on each note of that
Class on that Interest Payment Date.
The amounts and dates determined by the agent bank will be notified to the issuer, the paying
agenis and the note trustee and published in accordance with condition number 14 as soon as
possible after these parties have been notified,
The Issuer, the paying agents, the note trustee and the noteholders will be bound by the
determinaticns properly made as described above and neither the agent bank nor the note trusiee
will be liable for the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions for those
purposes.
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If the agent bank fails to make a determination as described above, the note trustee will calculate
the principal payment or principal amount outstanding as described above, and each of these
determinations or calculations will be deemed to have been made by the agent bank. If this
happens, the determination will be deemed to have been made by the agent bank,

(2} Mandatory Earfy Redemption or Mandotory Safe of Class 8 notes and Class C notes 1o the {ssuer in
relgtion to a Regulatory Coll Event

If the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapld Amortisation Period begins before the series
05-3 scheduled redemption date, on each subsequent Interest Payment Date to such eveni each
Class Al note and Class A2 note will be redeemed {pro rota and pari passu), then each Class Bi
note and Class B2 note will be redeemed (pro ratg and parf passy), and lastly each Class C1 note
and Class C2 note will be redeemed i{pro rata and pari passu). in the proportion that its Base
Currency PAQ bears ¢ the total principal amount outstanding of the notes of that Class, to the
extent of the amount which is deposited into the Series 05-3 lssuer Account towards redemption
of the series 05-3 medium terrn note certificate - after the amounis related to the Class Al notes,
the Class 81 notes and the Class C1 notes have been exchanged for euro under the relevant swap
agreement or by the note trustee in the spot exchange market if the relevant swap agreement has
been terminated. This will happen until the earliest of:

e the date on which the relevant Class of notes has been redeemed in fuli; or
& the 15 Dciober 2012 interest Payment Date.

In addition, if a regulatory call event occurs. the issuer (or any assignee or novatee of the
regulatory call option) shall as soon as practicable following the occurrence of such regulatory call
event by not less than thirty and not more than sixty days prior notice to the note trustee and
noteholders call all, but not some oniy, of the Class B notes and the Class C notes, such call to be
exercisable on the Interest Payment Date following any such notice. On such Interest Payment Date
following any such notice, if you are a holder of Class B notes and/or Class C notes, you are
required to sell all of your Class 8 notes and/or Class C notes (gs applicable) to the issuer {ar any
assignee or novatee of the regulatory call option), pursuant to the optlon granted to the issuer by
the note trustee on your behalf. Such notlce must confirrn that there will be sufficient funds
available to satisfy all obligations in connection with the exercise of such call option. The
regulatory call option is granted 1o acquire all, but not some only, of the then outstanding Class 8
notes and Class C notes, plus accrued interast (If any) on them, for a purchase price equal to the
then par value of the Class B notes and Class € notes. This is calied the "reguiatory call option”. A
“requlatory call event” means the delivery to the jssuer and the note trustee of a notice from
Barclays Bank PLC which states that the requlatory capital treatment far Barclays Bank PLC
applicable in respect of the transaction to which the issuance of the Class B notes and Class C
notes relates has become materiaily impaired by the implementation of the reform of the 1988
Capital Accord (in conjunction with proposals put forward by the Base! Cornmittee on Banking
Supervisicn and to be implemented for credit institutions pursuant to the .EU Capital Adequacy
Directive).

(3} Optional Redemption

The issuer may by not less than thirty and noi more than sixty days prior notice to the trustee and
without the need to obtain the prior consent of the note trustee or the noteholders redeem all of
the remaining notes on the next following Interest Payment Date together with all accrued interest,
deferred interest and additional interest if any if the principal balance of the remaining notes is
less than 10 per cent. of their original principal balance and the note trustee is satisfied that the
issuer will have funds available to it to make the required payment on that Interest Payment Date.

(4)  Final Redemption

If the notes have not previgously been purchased and cancelled or redeemed in full as described in
this condition number 6. the notes wili be finally redeemed at their then principal amourt
outstanding on the 15 October 2012 Interest Payment Date, together with, in each case, all
accrued and unpaid interest, shortfall and interest on shortfall, if any.

The issuer or its parent may buy notes at any price. Any notes that are redeemed or purchased
pursuant to these provisions will be cancelled at that time and may not be reissued or resold,
other than in accordance with the regulatory call option described under cendition number 6(2)
abave, Following any acquisition of Class B notes and Class C notes i connection with the exercise

138




of the regulatory call option, such notes shall be held uncancefied and these conditions shali
continue to apply to such notes.

You are required, at its request, to sell ali of your notes to Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited,
pursuant to the option granted to it by the note trustee, on your behalf. The option is granted to
acquire all, but not seme only, of the notes, plus accrued interest on them, for one penny per note,
on the date upon which the note trustee gives written notice to Gracechurch Card (Holdings)
Limited that it has determined, in its sole opinien, that afl amounts outstanding under the notes
have become due and pavable and there is no reasonable likelihood of there being any further
realisations, whether arising from an enforcement of the note trustee’s security or otherwise, which
would be available to pay all such amounts outstanding under the notes.

This Is called the “post maturity cali option™,

You acknowledge that the note trustee has the authority and the power to bind you in accordance
with the terms and conditions set out in the post maturity call option and, by subscribing or
acquiring, as the case may be, for your note(s), you agree to be bound in this way.

7. Payments

Payments of principal and interest in respect of the notes will be made to the persons in whose
names the globai note certificates are registered on the register at the opening of business in the
place of the registrar's specified office on the fifteenth day before the due date for such payment.
such date is called the “record date”. Payments will be made by wire transfer of immediately
available funds, if the registered holder has provided wiring instructions no less than five husiness
days prior to the record date, or otherwise by check mailed to the address of the registered holder
as it appears in the register at the opening of business on the record date. In the case of the final
redemption, and provided that payment Is made in full, payment will only be made against
surrender of those giobal note certificates to the registrar.

The note trustee will not be responsible for any deficiency which may arise because it is liable to
tax in respect of the proceeds of any security.

Similar provisiens in respect of the indemnification of the security trusiee are set out in the
transaction documents.

8. Taxation

Payments of interest and principal will be made without making any deductions for any tax
imposed by any jurisdiction having power to tax unless a deduction is required by the law of the
rélevant jurisdiction which has power to tax. If a deduction for tax is made, the paying agent will
account te the relevant authority for the amount deducted. Neither the issuer nor any paying
agent is required to make any additional payments to noteholders for any deductions made for tax.

9. Events of Default
If any of the foliowing events occurs and is continuing it is called an “event of default”:

e the issuer fails to pay any amount of principal on the notes within 7 days of the date
payment is due or fails to pay any amount of interest on the notes within 15 days of the date

. payment is due; or
e the jssuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under the notes, the trust
deed, the deed of charge or the paying agency and agent bank agreement other than any
cbligation to pay any principal or interest on the notes, and, except where that failure is
incapable of remedy, it remains unremedied for 30 days after the note trustee has glven
written notice of it to the issuer, certifying that the default is, in its opinion, materially
prejudicial to the interests of the noteholders; or

¢ the early termination, without replacement, of any of the swap agreements as described in
this prospectus under “The Swap Agreements: Common Provisions of the Swap Agreements";
or

e @ judgment or order for the payment of any amount is given against the issuer and continues
unsatistied and unstayed for a period of 30 days after it is given or, if a later date is specified
for payment, from that date; or
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e a secured party or encumbrancer takes possession or a receiver, administrative receiver,
administrator, examiner, manager or other similar officer is appointed, of the whole or any
part of the business, assets and revenues of the issuer or an enforcement action is begun for
unpald rent or execution is levied against any of the assets of the issuer; or

»  the issues becomes insolvent or is unable io pay its debts as they fall due; or

s  an administrator or fiquidator of the issuer or the whole or any part of the business, assets
and revenues of the issuer is appointed, or an applicatlon for an appointment is made; or

e the issuer takes any action for a readjustment or deferment of any of its obligations or makes
a general assignment or an arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its
creditors ar declares a moratorium In respect of any of its indebtedness or any guarantee of
indebtedness given by it: or

&  the issuer stops or threatens to stop carrying on all or any substantial part of its business; or

& an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding up. liquidation or
disselution of the issuer; or

& any action, condition or thing at any time required to be taken, fulfiled or done in order:

(1) to enable the issuer lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and perform and cornply
with Its obligations under and in respect of the notes and the issuer related documents;
or

(2} to ensure that those obligations are legal, valid. binding and enforceable, except as that
enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium.
reorganisation or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of the rights of creditors
generally and that that enforceability may be limited by the effect of gemeral principles
of equity,

is not taken, fulfilied or done; or

e it is or will become unlawful for the issuer to perform or comply with any of its obligations
under or in respect of the notes or the related documents; or

e all or any substantial part of the business, assets and revenues of the issuer is condemned,
seized or otherwise appropriated by any person acting under the authority of any national,
regional or local government: or

e the issuer is prevented by any person acting under the authority of any national, regional or
local government from exercising normal control over all or any substantial part of it
business, assets and revenues.

if an event of default cccurs then the note trustee may give an enforcement notice or appeint 2
receiver if it chooses and if it is indemnified to its satisfaction,

If an event of default occurs then the note trustee shall be bound to give an enforcement notice if
it is indemnified to its satisfaction and it is:

¢ required to by the swap counterparty;

e required to by holders of at least one-quarter of the aggregate Base Currency PAQ of the
Class A notes, if any remain outstanding, and if none remain outstanding, the Class B notes,
and if none of these remain outstanding, the Class C notes; or

e directed by an extraordinary resolution, as defined in the trust deed, of holders of outstanding
Ciass A notes, and if there are none, of holders of outstanding Class B notes, and if there are
none, of holders of outstanding Class C notes.

An “enforcement notice” is a writien notice to the issuer declaring the notes to be immediately
due and payable. When it is given, the notes will become immediately due and payable at their
principal amaunt outstanding together with accrued interest without further action or formatity.
Notice of the receipt of an enforcement notice shall be given to the noteholders as soon as
possible. A declaration that the notes have become immediately due and payable will nat. of itself,
accelerate the timing or amount of redemption of the notes as described in condition number 6.

10. Prescription
Your notes wili become void if they are not presented within the time limit for payment. That time
limit is ten years from their due date. if there is a delay in the principai paving agent receiving the
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funds, the due date, for the purposes of this time limit, is the date on which it notifies you, in
accordance with condition number 15, that it has received the relevant payment.

11. Replacement of Note Certificates

If any note certificates are lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, you can repiace them at
the specified office of the registrar. You will be required to both pay the expenses of producing a
replacement and comply with the Issuer's reasenable requests for evidence, security and indemnity.
You must surrender any defaced or mutilated note certificates before replacements will be issued.

12. Note Trustee and Agents
The note trustee is entitled to be indemnified and relieved from responsibility in certain
circumstances and to be paid its costs and expenses in priority t¢ your claims.

In the exercise of its powers and discretions under the conditions and the irust deed, the note
trustee will consider the interests of the noteholders as a Class and will not be responsible for any
consequence to you individually as a result of you being connected in any way with a particular
territory or taxing jurisdiction,

In acting under the paying agency and agent bank agreement, and in connection with your notes,
the paying agents and the agent bank act only as agents of the issuer and the note trustee and do
not assume any cbligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for or with you.

The note trustee and its related companies are entitled to enter into business transactions with the
issuer, Barclays Bank PLC or related companies of either of them without accounting for any profit
resulting from those transattions.

The issuer can, at any time, vary or terminate the appointment of any paying agent or the agent
bank and can appoint successor or additional paying agents or a successor agent bank. If the issuer
does this it must ensure that it maintains the following:

. a principal paying agent;
®  a paying agent in London:
®  an agent bank; and

® 2 registrar.

Notice of any change in the paying agents, agent bank, registrar or their specified offices shall be
premptly given to you in accordance with candition number 15,

13, Meetings of Noteholders, Modification and Waiver, Substitution and Addition

Meetings of Notehoiders

The trust deed cortains provisions for convening single and separate meetings of each Class of
notehelders to consider matters relating to the notes, including the modification of any provision
of the conditions or the trust deed. Any modification may be made if sanctioned by an
extraordinary resolution,

The quorum for any meeting convened to consider an extraordinary resolution will be two or mare
persons holding or representing a clear majority of the aggregate Base Currency PAQ of the
relevant Class of notes — and in the case of a separate meeting, the Class A notes, the Class B
notes or the Class C notes, as the case may be — for the time being outstanding.

Certain terms Inciuding the date of maturity of the notes, any day for payment of interest on the
notes, reducing or cancelling the amount of principal or the rate of interest payable in respect of
the notes or altering the currency of payment of the notes, require a quorum for passing an
extraordinary resolution of two or more persons holding or representing in total not less than 75
per cent of the tota! Base Currency PAO of the relevant Class of notes. These modifications are
called "Basic Terms Modifications”.

Except where the extraordinary resolution effects a Basic Terms Madification, the interests of the
most senior Class of notes outstanding at the time take precedence over the interests of the
subordinated Classes. The note trustee may only give effect to an extraordinary resolution passed
by the Class C noteholders if it considers that the interests of the Class A notehelders ar the Class
B noteholders will not be materially prejudiced. An extraordinary resolution of the Class 8
noteholders will only be effective if the note trustee considers that it will not be materiaily
prejudicial to the Class A noteholders.
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Subject to the foregoing, any extraordinary resolution duly passed shall be binding on all
noteholders, whether or not they are present at the meeting at which such resolution was passed.
The majority required for an extraordinary resolution shall be 75 per cent. of the votes cast on
that extraordinary resolution.

Modlfication and Waiver

The note trustee may agree, without the consent of the noteholders, (1) to any modification -
except a Basic Terms Modification - of, or to the waiver or authorisation of any breach or
proposed breach of, the notes or any other related agreement, which is not, in the opinion of the
note trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the noteholders or {2) to any modification of
any of the provisions of the terms and conditions or any of the related agreements which, in the
opinion of the note trustee, is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is to correct a manifest or
proven error. Any of those modifications. authorisations or waivers will be binding on the
noteholders and, unfess the note trustee agrees otherwise, shall be promptly notified by the issuer
to the noteholders in accordance with condition number 15.

Substitution and Addition

The note trustee may also agree to the substitution of any other body corporate in place of the
issuer as principal debtor under the trust deed and the notes and in the case of such a substitution
or addition the note trustee may agree, without the consent of the noteholders, to a change of the
law governing the notes and/or the trust deed provided that such change wouid not in the opinion
of the trustee be materially prejudicial to the Interests of the noteholders. Any such substitution or
addition will be premptly notified to the notehalders in accordance with condition aumber 15.

Enforcement

Al any time after the notes become due and repayable and without prejudice 1o its rights of
enforcement in relation o the security, {he note trustee may, #t 15 discretion and without notice,
institute such proceedings as it thinks fit to enforce payment of the notes, including the right to
repayment of the notes together with accrued interest thereon, and shall be bound 10 do so only if
it has been so directed by an extraordinary resolution of the noteholders of the relevant Class. No
extracrdinary resolution of the Class B noteholders or Class € noteholders or any reguest of the
Class B noteholders or Class C noteholders will be effective unless there is an extraordinary
resolution of the Class A noteholders or a direction of the Class A noteholders to the same effect
or none of the Class A notes remain outstanding.

Mo exiraordinary resotution of the Class € notehoiders or any request of the Class € notehoiders
will be effective unless there is an extracrdinary resolution of the Class B noteholders or & direction
of the Class B notehoiders to the same effect or none of the Class B notes remain outstanding.

No noteholder may institute any proceedings against the issuer to enforce jts rights under or in
respect of the nates or the trust deed unless (1} the note trustee has become bound to institute
proceedings and has failed to do so within a reasonabie time and (2} the failure is continuing.
Notwithstanding the previous sentence and notwithstanding any other provision of the trust deed.
the right of any noteholder to receive payment of principal of and interest on its notes on or after
the due date for the principal or interest, or to institute suit for the enforcement of payment of
that interest or principal, may not be impaired or affected without the consent of that noteholder.

i4. Interpretation
In these Conditions:

“Base Currency PAQ" means, in relation to the sterling notes, the principal amount outstanding of
the sterling notes, and, in relation to the eurc notes, the sterling equivatent of the principal
amount outstanding of the euro notes calculated using the relevant Euro Swap Rate or, if the
applicable currency swap agreement is nat then in place, calculated using the then Euro exchange
rate for sterling in the spot exchange market;

“Class Al Euro Swap Rate” means the Euro/sterling exchange rate which has been set
at €1=£0.684;

“Chass B Burc Swap flate” means the Eurp/sterfing exchange rate which has been set at €1-£0.684;
and
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“Class C1 Euro Swap Rate” means the Euro/sterling exchange rate which has been set at €1=£0.684;
and

“Euro Swap Rate” means the Class Al Euro Swap Rate, the Class B1 Eurc Swap Rate and the Class
C1 Euro Swap Rate as the context may require.

15. Notices

Any notice to you will be deemed to have been validly given if published in a leading English
language daily newspaper in London - which is expected to be the Ffinanciol Times — and will be
deemed to have been given on the day it Is first published.

Any notice specifying a rate of interest, an Interest amount, an amecunt of shortfall or interest on
it, principal payment or a principal amount outstanding will be treated as having been duly given if
the information contained in that notlce appears on the relevant page of the Reuters Screen or
other similar service approved by the note trustee and notified to you. The notice wili be deemed
given when it first appears on the screen. If it cannot be displayed in this way, it will be published
as described in the previous paragraph.

Copies of all natices given in accordance with these provisions will be sent to the London Stock
Exchange Company Announcements Office, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear.

16, Currency Indemnity

You can be indemnified against losses you suffer from the use of an exchange rate to convert sums
recovered by you in litigation against the issuer, which is different to the rate you ordinarily use.
You must request this indemnity in writing from the issuer.

This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent cbligation of the issuer and shall give rise
to 2 separate and independent cause of action.

17. Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The notes, swap agreements and trust deed are governed by English Law and the Engfish courts
have non-exclusive jurisdiction in connection with the notes.
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The Swap Agreements

General

The issuer will enter into the Class A1 swap agreement, the Class B1 swap agreement and the Class
C1 swap agreement - <called collectively the “swap agreements”. There is no separate interest rate
cap agreement for any of the notes. In connection with the swap agreements, the swap
counterparty and the Issuer will enter into a collateral support annex in respect of certain
cbligations under the swap agreements.

Under the Class A1 swap agreement between the issuer and the swap counterparty, the issuer will
pay to the swap counterparty:

& an initial payment of euros, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the initial balance of
the Class A1 notes; and

& on each trapsfer date after the closing date, the lesser of (1) the sterling amount equal to the
interest and principal, If any, received by the issuer from the MTN issuer on the series 05-3
medium term note certificate, including any MTN lssuer additional interest payments (to
extent required) and after deducting the costs and expenses of the issuer, and (2) the
amounts due and pavable to the swap counterparty under the Class A1 swap agreement.

The swap counterparty will pav to the issuer:

& an initial payment in sterling, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the euro amount of
the initial balance of the Class A1 notes converted into sterfing at the fixed exchange rate;
and

& on each Interest Payment Date after the closing date, sums in euro equal to the interest
pavable and, if any, principal repavable to holders of the Class Al notes on that Interest
Payment Date, as set out in the terms and conditions of the Class A1 notes.

Under the Class B1 swap agreement between the issuer and the swap counterparty, the issuer will
pay to the swap counterparty:

&  an initial payment of euros, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the initial balance of
the Class 81 notes; and

e on each transfer date after the closing date, the lesser of (1) the sterling amount equal to the
inierest and principal, it any, received by the issuer from the MTN Issuer on the series 05-3
medium term note certificate, including any MTN lssuer additional interest payments and after
deducting the costs and expenses of the Issuer, remaining after giving effect to the payment
made under the Class Al swap agreement described above, and {(2) the amounts due and
payable tc the swap counterparty under the Class Bi swap agreement

The swap counterparty will pay to the issuer:

e an initial payment in sterling, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the euro amount of
the initial balance of the Class B1 notes converted into sterling at the fixed exchange rate;
and

e on each Interest Payment Date after the closing date, sums in euros equal to the interest
payable and principal repayable, if any, to holders of the Class B1 notes on that interest
Payment Date, as set out in the terms and conditions of the Class B1 notes.

Under the Ciass Ct swap agreement between the issuer and the swap counterparty, the issuer will
pay to the swap counterparty;

e  an initial payment of euros, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the initial balance of
the Class C1 notes; and

e on each transfer date after the closing date, the lesser of (1) the sterling amount equal to the
interest and principal, if any, received by the issuer from the MTN Issuer on the series 05-3
medium term note certificate, including any MTN Issuer additional interest payments and after
deducting the costs and expenses of the issuer, remaining after giving effect to the payments
made under the Class Al swap agreement and the Class B1 swap agreement, and (2) the
amounts due and payable to the swap counterparty under the Class Ct swap agreement.

The swap counterparty will pay to the issuer:
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® an initial payment in sterling, on the closing date, in an ameunt equal to the euro amount of
the initial balance of the Class C1 notes converted into sterling at the fixed exchange rate;
and

® on each Interest Payment Date after the ciosing date, sums in euro equal to the interest
payable and principal repayable, if any, to holders of the Class Cl1 notes on that Interest
Payment Date, as set out in the terms and conditions of the Class C1 notes.

Each swap agreement provides that payments made under it are to be reduced in the event that
any amount due and payable to the issuer under the series 05-3 medium term note certificate is
deferred by the MTN Issuer under the terms of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate such
that the issuer does not have sufficient funds to make the scheduled payments under the swap
agreement. This is to prevent that amount in euros being payable by the swap counterparty before
It receives the corresponding sterling amount from the issuer under the relevant swap agreement.
There will be a corresponding increase in the amounts payabie under the relevant swap agreement
to make up this shortfall if the deferred amount is subsequently received by the issuer. The MTN
Isstier will be liable to pay deferred interest on any such deferred amount, and the Issuer will be
liable to pay that deferred interest on to the notehelders in the order of priorities set out in the
terms and conditions of the notes, after converting it into euros under the relevant swap
agreement. You should be aware that if withholding tax is levied en the series 05-3 medium term
note certificate, payments to the issuer will be reduced accordingly. Such reduced payments would
not be treated as deferred amounts — and, accordingly, would not bear deferred interest — and
neither the issuer nor the swap counterparty is obliged to make up the shortfail.

The fixed sterling to eurc exchange rate with respect to the Class A1 notes, which we refer to as
the “Class A1 Euro Swap Rate”, has been set at €1=£0.684. The fixed sterling ta euro exchange rate
with respect to the Class Bi notes, which we refer to as the "Class B1 Euro Swap Rate”, has been
set at €1=£0.684. The fized sterling to eurc exchange rate with respect to the Class 1 notes,
which we refer to as the "Class C1 Euro Swap Rate”, has been set at €1=£0.684.

Commen Provisions of the Swap Agreements

The swap agreements provide that if the short-term unsecured debt rating of the swap
counterparty is withdrawn or reduced below “A-1+" by Standard & Poor’s or P-1 by Moady's or if
the fong-term unsecured debt rating of the swap counterparty is withdrawn or reduced below “A1"
by Moody’s, then within 30 days following that event. the swap counterparty will be required to
take one of the following steps:

e if such downgrade or withdrawa! is by Moody's:

®  transfer its rights and obligations under the swap agreements to a sultabiy rated
replacement counterparty; or

e  opbtain a sujtably rated co-obligor in respect of the obligations of the counterparty under
the swap agreements; or
take such other action as may be agreed with Moody's: or
within 30 days of such downgrade, lodge collateral in an amount determined pursuant
o the credit support annex in support of its obligations under the swap agreements;

provided further that if such Moody's downgrade results in a rating of the swap counterparty
below A3 or Pi, the swap counterparty will use its best efforts to attempt to: {a) transfer its
rights and obligations to a suitably rated counterparty, (b) find a suitably rated co-obligor, or
(c) take such other action as may be agreed with Moody's; pending compliance with (a), (b)
or {c), the swap counterparty will post collateral in an amount determined pursuant to the
credit support annex;

e if such downgrade or withdrawal is by Standard & Poor's:

&  within 30 days of such downgrade or withdrawal, transfer its rights and obligations
under the swap agreements to a suitably rated repfacement counterparty; or

e  within 30 days of such downgrade or withdrawal, obtain a suitably rated guarantee of
the obligations of the swap counterparty under the swap agreerents; or

e  within 30 days of such downgrade, lodge collateral in an amount determined pursuant
to the credit support annex in support of its obligations under the swap agreements; or
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e find any other solution acceptable to Standard & Peor's to maintain the then current
rating of the notes.

Termination of the Swap Agreements
The swap agreements will, or may, in the case of the third bullet point belew, terminate on the
earliest of:

& the Distribution Date on which there is no further obligation to make a payment under the
series 05-3 medium term note certificate;

e the 15 October 2012 interest Payment Date; and
# the occurrence of an early swap termination event as described below.

The swap agreements may be terminated earfy in the following circumstances - each called an
“early swap termination event':

*  at the option of one party, if there is a failure by the cther party to pay any amounts due
under the swap agreement;

e if an event of default under the notes occurs and an enforcement notice in respect thereof is
delivered by the note trustee or if there is no further obligation to make a payment under
the sertes 05-3 medium term note certificate before the series 05-3 scheduled redemption
date or if the series 05-3 interest has been reduced 1o zero;

e upon the occurrence of an insolvency of either party, merger without an assumption of the
obligations under the swap agreements, or changes in law resulting in illagality;

e if as a result of a change in applicable law, withholding taxes would be imposed by any
Jjurisdiction on payments to the issuer under the series 05-3 medium term note certificate or
on any payrents made or required to be made by the swap counterparty to the issuer or by
the issuer to the swap counterparty under the swap agreemnent and there are no reasonable
measures that the swap counterparily or the issuer can take to avold their Imposition; and

¢ the issuer determines that it or the paying agent has or will become obiigated te deduct or
withhold amounts from payments on the related Class of notes to be made to any of the
refated noteholders on the next Interest Payment Date, for tax imposed by any political
subdivision or taxing authority of the United Kingdom on the payments as a result of any
change in its laws ar regulations or rulings, or any change in official position regarding the
application or interpretation of its laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment
becomes effective on or after the date the notes are issued, and there are nc reasonable
measures the issuer can take to avoid the tax or assessment.

The swap agreements may be terminated following the events described in either of the iast twe
bullet points above only if the issuer is directed by an extracrdinary resclution of the holders of
the relevant Class of notes to terminate the relevant swap agreement.

If natice is given to terminate a swap agreement, the issuer or the swap counterparty may be liable
to make a termination payment to the other in respect of the terminated swap agreement. This
termination payment will be calculated and made in sterling. The amount of any termination
payment will be based on the market value of the terminated swap agreement based on market
quotatiens of the cost of entering into a swap transaction with the same terms and conditions that
would have the effect of preserving the respective full payment obligations of the parties. Any such
termination payment could, If the sterling/euro exchange rates have changed significantly. be
substantial.

If an early swap termination event occurs, on each Interest Payment Date thereafter, payments of
interest and principal payable cn the series 05-3 medium term note certificate, including MTN
Issuer additional interest, available to make payments on the notes will be converted into euros by
the note trustee at the then-prevailing spot exchange rate in the City of London for stecling
purchases of euros. The issuer will apply the euro proceeds of that exchange to pay principal and
interest on the notes in the order of priority described under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”,
Any euro amounts so distributed may not be equal ta the euro amounts then due and owing on
the notes. Any euro armounts so converted in excess of principal and interest due and payable on
that Class of notes will be held in the series 05-3 lasuer Account 1o be applied, if needed to cover
any future shortfall in sterling amounts needed for such conversion.
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Taxation

Neither the issuer nor the swap counterparty is cbliged under the swap agreements to gross up if
withholding taxes are imposed on payments made under the swap agreements.

If any withholding tax is Imposed on payments due from the issuer under the swap agreements,
the swap counterparty will be entitled to deduct amounts in the same proportion from subsequent
payments due from it If that happens MTN Issuer additional interest payments, to the extent
available, will be used to cover the shortfall in the payments due from the swap counterparty. If
MTN Issuer additional interest payments are not sufficient to cover the shortfall, amounts available
to the issuer to make payments on the notes will be reduced by the amount so deducted that is
not covered by MTN Issuer additional interest payments. Any reduction will be appiied first to the
Class C1 notes, second to the Class B1 notes and third to the Class AT notes.

If any withholding tax is imposed on payments due from the swap counterparty under the swap
agreements, the issuer will not be entitled to deduct amounts from subsequent payments due from
it and amounts available to the issuer to make payments cn the notes will be reduced by the
amount so withheld by the swap counterparty. To the extent any such withholding exceeds
available MTN Issuer additional interest payments, any reduction will be applied first to the Class
C1 notes, second to the Class B1 notes and third to the Class A1 notes.
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The Medium Term Note Certificate

On the closing date the MTN Issuer witl issue one Interest bearing medium term note certificate to
the issuer — which we call the “series 05-3 medium term note certificate”, The series 35-3 medium
term note certificate will mature for redemption on the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date. The
Bank of New York In London will act as trustee, depositary, issue agent and principal paying agent
in refation to the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.

The series 05-3 medium term note certificate is issued in bearer form under a security trust deed
and MTN Issuer cash management agreement. Under the terms of the security trust deed and MTN
Issuer cash management agreement, Barclays, acting through its corporate lending division at 1
Churchill Place, London E14 5HP, was appoainted as cash manager for the medium term notes and
certificates - called the “MTN Issuer cash manager”.

The medium term notes or certificates will be issued on a non-syndicated continuous basis in
series. Previously the MTN lssuer issued the series 99-1 medium term notes (which were repaid in
November 2002), the series 02-1, the series §3-1, the series 03-2, the series 03-3, the series 04-1,
the series 04-2, the series 05-1 and the series 05-2 medium term notes. Medium term notes or
certificates issued in respect of any series may differ as to principal, interest and recourse to
security. Each series must be constituted by a supplemental deed to the security trust deed and
MTN lIssuer cash managemnent agreement.

Each new series may differ from any other series in its principal terms and the manner, timing and
amounts of distributions made to the holders of that series of medium term notes or certificates.
The MTN issuer wit not issue any further medium term notes or certificates in respect of an
existing series without the prior consent of the holders of the existing rmediurn term notes in that
series, unless the further medium term notes or ceértificates are fungible with the existing ones.

The series 05-3 medium term note certificate will be issued at par with a right of the MTN Jssuer
to receive further payments of subscription price as deferred consideration, which we call “deferred
subscription price”. The MTN Issuer will pay the initial consideration received for the series 05-3
medium term note certificate to the receivables trustee for the purpose of the receivables trust
which will permit the MTN Issuer to acquire an undivided beneficiai interest in the receivables
trust See "The Receivables Trust” and “Use of Proceeds”. The initial principal amount of each
undivided beneficial interest acquired is the initial Investor Interest for each Class of investor
certificates. These will be issued to the MTN Issuer by the receivables trustee. See “Series 05-3:
General’.

The abdlity of the MTN Issuer to meet its obligations to pay principal of and inlerest on the series
05-3 medium term note certificate will be entirely dependent on the receipt by it of funds from
the series 05-3 investor certificates and excess interest attributable to series 05-3.

The MTN Issuer and the security trustee will have no recourse to Barclays other than:

&  dgainst Barclaycard as transferor urdler the receivables securitisation agreement for any
breach of representations and obligations in respect of the receivables; and

& against Barclaycard as MTN Issuer cash manager under the security trust deed and MTN
Issuer cash management agreement for any breach of abligations of the MTN Issuer cash
manager.

On the closing date, the MTN Issuer will declare an English law express purpose trust in respect of
any funds received by it from the investor certificate and excess interest attributable to series 05-3.
This trust will create a right in equity in favour of the holder of the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate to require these funds to be applied in making payments on the series 05-3 medivm
term note certificate,

The obligations of the MTN Issuer and certain other rights of the MTN lssuer under each series of
medium term notes or certificates and under the documents relating to them, will be secured
under the security trust deed and MTN issuer cash management agreement, by security interests
over the investor certificates, The security for each series will be granted by the MTN lIssuer in
favour of the security trustee. if the net proceeds of the enforcement of security for a series
following a mandatory redemption - after meeting the expenses of the security trustee, the paying
agents, the depository and any receiver — are insufficient to make all payments due on the medium
term notes or certificates of that series, the assets of the MTN Issuer securing other serles of
medium term notes or certificates will ot be available for payment of that shortfali.
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If the security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement is enforced, the monies

paid to the MTN Issuer by the receivables trustee on each transfer date will be applied:

¢ first to meet payments due to any receiver appointed under it or to the security trustee and
all amounts due for legal fees and other costs, charges, liabllities, expenses, losses, damages,
praceedings, claims and demands which have been incurred under the relevant documents
and in enforcing the security, together with interest due on these amounts; then

& to the extent not met above, to meet the costs, charges, liabiiities, expenses, losses, damages,
proceedings, claims and demands of the security trustee; then

¢ to meet payments of premium (if any), interest and principai on the relevant series of
medium term notes or certificates; then

* io meet payments due by the MTN lssuer to any taxation autherity, then

® to meet payment of sums due te third parties under obligations incurred in the course of the
MTN Issuer’s business; then

e to meet payment of any dividends due and unpaid to shareholders of the MTN Issuer; then

® to pay all amounts of MTN Issuer additional interest payments {If any);

& o pay all amounts of excess entitiement consideration; then

® to pay any balance to the liquidator of the MTHN Issuer.

The interest rate on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate will be determined by the agent
bank in accordance with the serles 05-3 medium term note certificate conditions. This is done by
reference to the screen rate or other rate set by the agent bank (a) in respect of the first
Calculation Period, the linear interpofation of 2-menth and 3-month sterling LIBOR as set on the
closing date; (b) in respect of the second Calculation Period, the linear interpolation of 2-month
and 3-month sterling LIBOR as set on the Closing Date; and (c) in respect of subsequent
Calculation Periods, 3-month sterling LIBOR as set on the Distribution Date in each of lanuary,
April, July and October, in each case for pounds sterling in the Landon interbank market, plus a
margin. The marginn will be 0.1228 per cent. per annum for the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate. The interest rate for the first interest period will be determined on the closing date,
Interest in respect of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate will be payable in arrear in
sterling on each Interest Payment Date. Interest on the serles 05-3 medium term note certificate
will be paid monthly on eack Distribution Date falling during or upan the expiry of each quarterly
interest period.

Excess interest received by the MTN Issuer under the agreement between beneficiaries will be paid
as MTN Issuer additional interest payments on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate
concurrently with the interest payments on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.

If any withholding or deduction for any taxes, duties. assessments or government charges is
imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed on payments of principal or interest, including MTN
issuer additional interest, on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate by any jurisdiction or
any political subdivision or authority in or ef any jurisdiction baving power tc tax, neither the MTN
Issuer nor the principal paying agent wilt be required to make any additional payments to holders
of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate for that withholding or deduction.

The oceurrence and continuation of the following events is called an MTN issuer event of default:

&  the MTN Issuer fails to pay any amount of principal of the series 05-3 medjum term note
certificate within 7 days of the due date for its payment or fails to pay any amount of
interest on the series 05-3 medium term note certificate within 15 days of its due date; or

¢ the MTN Issuer fails to perform or chserve any of its cther obligations under the series 05-3
medium term note certificate, the series 05-3 MTN Issuer supplement, or the security trust
deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement and, except where the failure is incapable
of remedy, it remains unremedied for 30 days, in either case, after the security trustee has
given written notice to the MTN Issuer, certifying that the failure is, in the opinion of the
security trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the series 05-3 medium term note
certificate holders; or

®  the early iermination, without replacement, of any of the swap agreements as described in
this prospectus under “The Swop Agreements: Commion Provisions of the Swap Agreements’”;
or
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e a judgment or order for the payment of any amount is given against the MTN Issuer and
continues unsatisfied and unstayed for a period of 30 days after the date it is given or the
date specified for payment, if later; or

+ a secured party takes possession or & recelver, administrative receiver, adminisirator,
examiner, manager or other similar officer Is appointed, of the whole or any part of the
undertaking, assets and revenues of the MTN Issuer or an enforcement action is begun for
unpaid renat or executions ievied against any of the assets of the MTN Issuer; or

s the MTN Issuer becomes insoivent or is unable to pay its debts as they fall due or an
administrator or liquidator of the MTN Issuer or the whole or any part of its business, assets
and revenues is appointed, or application for any appeintment Is made, or the MTN lssuer
takes any action for a readjustment or deferment of any of its obligations or makes a general
assignmenl Or an arrangement of composition with or for the benefit of s creditors or
declares a moratorium in respect of any of its indebtedness or any guarantee of indebtedness
given by it or ceases or threatens to cease to carry on all or any substantial part of its
business; or

e an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding up, liquidation or
dissotution of the MTN Issuer; or

& any action, condition or thing at any time required to be taken, fulfifled or carried out in
order to (i) enable the MTN Issuer lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and perform and
comply with its obligations under and in respect of the medium term notes or certificates and
the documents relating 1o them or {ii) to ensure that those obligations are legal, valid,
binding and enforceable, except as the enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy.
insolvency, moratorium, reorganisation or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of the
rights of creditors generally and as that enforceability may be limited by the effect of general
principles of equity, is not taken. fulfilled or, as the case may be, carried out: or

o it is or will become unfawful for the MTN Issuer to perform or comply with any of its
obligations under gr in respect of the medium term notes or certifcates or the documents
relating to them; or

e all or any substantial part of the business, assets and revenues of the MTN Issuer is
condemned, seized or otherwise appropriated by any person acting under the authority of any
national, regional or local government or the MTN Issuer is prevented by any of these people
from exercising normal control gver all or any substantial part of its business assets and
revenues,

If an MTN Issuer event of default occurs then the security trustee will be bound to give an
enforcement notice if it is indermnified 10 its satisfaction and it is:

& required to by helders of at least one-gquarter of the aggregate principal amount outstanding
of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate; or

e directed by an extraordinary resolution, as defined in the security trust deed and MTN [ssuer
cash management agreement, of holders of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.

An MTN Issuer enforcement notice is a written notice to the MTN Issver declaring the series 05-3
medium term note certificate to be immediately due and payable. When it is given, the series 05-3
medium term note certificate will become immediately due and payable at its principal amount
outstanding together with accrued interest without further action or formality. Notice of the
receipt of an MTN Issuer enforcement notice shall be given to the holders of the serjes 05-3
medium term note certificate as soon as possible. A declaration that the series 05-3 medium term
note certificate has become immediately due and payable will net, of itself, accelerate the timing or
amount of redemption of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate.

when reference is made to the MTN Issuer cash manager it includes any successor to Barclays as
MTN lIssuer cash manager. The security trust deed and MTN issuer cash management agreement
provides that, as MTN issuer cash manager, Barclays will service and administer the Series 05-3
Distribution Account.

Barclays, and any successor MTN issuer cash manager to the MTN Issuer, will be entitled to receive
the fee inclusive of VAT, if any, for acting as MTN Issuer cash manager, payable by the MTN Issuer
from amounts received as MTN issuer Costs Amounts from the Series 05-3 Distribution Account.
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| The MTN Issuer cash manager may not resign, apart from in certain circumstances. The resignation
of the MTN fssuer cash manager shall only became effective ence 2 replacement has assumed ail of
the responsibilities of the MTN lssuer cash manager set out in the security trust deed and MTN
Issuer cash management agreement
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Material Legal Issues

insolvency Act 2000

The UK Insolvency Act 2000 received Royal Assent on 30 November 2000. The Act amends Part |
of the UK Insolvency Act 1986 so that the directars of a company which meets certain eligibility
criteria can take steps to obtain a moratorium preventing any creditor from enforcing security or
taking proceedings to recover its debt for the period in which the moratorium is in force.

The relevant provisions of the Act came into force on 1 January 2003. However, prior to bringing
the provisions into force, the Secretary of State of the United Kingdom amended the eligibility
criteria by way of statutory Instrument In such a way that special purpose vehicles such as the
Issuer and the MTHN Issuer can no longer be considered to be eligible companies.

The Enterprise Act

The UK Enterprise Act received Royal Assent on 7 November 2002 and came into force on
15 September 2003, Pursuant to the UK Enterprise Act, unless a floating charge was created prior
to 15 September 2003, or falls within one of the exemptions contained in the UK Enterprise Act,
the holder of a gualifying floating charge will be prohlbited from appointing an administrative
receiver te a company and consequently, the ability to prevent the appointment of an
administrator to such company will be lost.

A floating charge that the issuer and the MTN Issuer wili grant pursuant to the terms of the Deed
of Charge and the Security Trust Deed respectively is a qualifying floating charge for the purposes
of the UK Enterprise Act and will be entered into after 15 September 2003 and as such, unless
excepted, the trustee will be prevented from appointing an administrative receiver in respect of the
tssuer and/or the MTN Issuer. However, this qualifying fioating charge will falf within the “capital
market arrangement” exception 1o the prohibition of the appointment of an administrative receiver
and accordingly the trustee will still be able to appoint an administrative recejver pursuant to the
Security Trust Deed in respect of the MTN Issuer and pursuant to the Deed of Charge in respect of
the issuer,
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Material Legal Aspects Of The Receivables

Consumer Credit Act 1974

A slgnificant number of the credit transactions that occur on a designated account will be for
items of credit extended to a cardholder for an amount up to £25,000. The Consumer Credit Act
applies to these transactions and, in whale or in part, the credit or charge card agreement
establishing each designated account. This has certain consequences for the designated accounts,
including the folfowing:

Enforcement of impreperly executed or modified card egreements

if a credit or charge card agreement has not been executed or modified in accordance with the
Consumer Credit Act, it may be unenforceable against & cardholder without a court order - and in
some instances may be completely unenforceable, As is common with many other UK credit and
charge card issuers, some of Barclaycard's credit and charge card agreements do not comply in all
respects with the Consurmer Credit Act or other related legislation. As a result, these agreements
may be unenforceable by Barclaycard against the cardhoiders. The transferor gives no guarantee
that a cowrt order could be cbtained if required. With respect to those credit or charge card
agreements which may not be compliant, such that a court order could not be obtained,
Barclaycard estimates that this would appily to less than 1 per cent. of the aggregate principal
receivables In the designated accounts on 31 December 2004, Barclaycard does not anticipate any
material increase in this percentage of receivables in the securitised portfelio. In respect of these
accounts that do not comply with the Consumer Credit Act it will still be possible to collect
payments and seek arrears from cardholders who are falling behind with their payments. The
transfercr will have no obligation to repay or account to a cardholder for any payments received
by a cardhalder because of this non-compliance with the Consumer Credit Act. However, if losses
arise on these accounts, they will be written off and borne by the investor beneficiary and
transferor beneficiary based on their respective interests in the receivables trust.

Liabilfty for supplier's misrepresentation or breach of contract

Transactions involving the use of a credit or charge card in the United Kingdom may constitute
transactions under debtor-creditor-supplier agreements. A debtor-creditor-supplier agreement
includes an agreement where the creditor, with knowledge of its purpose, advances funds to
finance a purchase by the debtor of goods or services from a supplier.

Section 75 of the Censumer Credit Act provides that, if the supplier is in breach of the contract -
whether such contract is express or implied by law - tetween the supplier and a cardholder in
certain debtor-creditor-supplier agreements or if the supplier has made a misrepresentation about
that contract, the creditor may alse be liable to the cardholder for the breach or misrepresentation,
The liability of the transfercr for a desighated account is called a “Transferor Section 75 Liability",
In these circumsiances, the cardholder may have the right to reduce the amount owed to the
transferor under his or her credit or charge card account. This right would survive the sale of the
receivables to the receivables trustee. As a result, the receivables trustee may not receive payments
from cardholders that it might otherwise expect to receive. As a result, the receivables trustee may
not receive the full amount otherwise owed by a cardholder. However, the creditor will not be
liable where the cash price of the item or service supplied concerning the clairn is £100 or less, or
greater than £30,000.

The receivables trustee has agreed to indemnify the transferor for any loss suffered by the
transferor arising from any claim under section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act This indemnity
cannot exceed the original outstanding principal baiance of the affected charges on the designated
account.

The receivables trustee's indernnity will be payable from excess spread on the receivables. Any
amounts that Barclaycard recovers from the supplier will reduce Barclaycard's loss for purposes of
the receivables trustee’s indemnity. Barclaycard wil! have rights of indemnity against suppliers
under section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act. Barclaycard may aiso be able to charge-back the
transaction In dispute to the supplier under the operating regulations of VISA or Mastercard.

If Barciaycard's loss for purposes of the receivables trustee's indernnity exceeds the excess spread
available to satisfy the loss, the amount of the excess will reduce the Transferor Interest
accordingly.
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Transfer of Benefit of Recelvables
The tramsfer by the wansferor to the receivables trustee of the bemefit of the receivables ts
governed by English law and takes effect in equity only.

Notlce to the cardholders of the assignment to the recelvables trustee would perfect the legal title
of the receivables trustee to the receivables. The receivables trustee has agreed that notice will not
be given to cardholders, unless the transferor's long-term senior unsecured indebtedness as rated
by Moody's or Standard & Poor’s were to fali below Baa2, BBE or BBB respectively. The lack of
notice has several fegal conseguences.

Until notice is given to the cardhclders, each cardholder will discharge his or her obligations under
the designated account by making payment to the transferor, Notice to cardholders would mean
that cardholders shouid no longer make payment to the transferor as creditor under the card
agreement but shoutd instead make payment to the receivables trustee as assighee of the
receivables. If notice is given, and a cardhoider ignores It and makes payment to the transferor for
its own account, that cardholder would nevertheless still be bound to make payment to the
receivabies trustee. The transferor, having transferred the benefit of the recelvables to the
receivables trustee, is the bare trustee of the receivables trustee for the purposes of the collection
of the receivables that are the property of the receivables trust and s accountable to the
receivables trustee accordingly.

Before the insolvency of the transferor, until notice is given to a cardholder who is a depositor or
other creditor of the transferor, equitable set-offs may accrue in favour of that cardholder against
his or her gbligation to make payments under the card agreement to the transferor. These rights
of set-off may result in the receivables trustee receiving less monies than anticipated from the
receivables.

The transfer of the benefit of receivables to the receivables trustee has been and will continue to
be subject both to any prior equities that have arisen in favour of the cardhelder and to any
equities that may arise in the cardholder's favour after the assignment. Where notice of the
assignrnent §s given 1o a cardholder, certain rights of set-off may not arise after the date of the
notice.

Under the terms of the receivables securitisation agreement, the transferor represents that each
recetvable assigned to the receivables trust is an eligibie recéivabie - uniess the receivable is
specified as being an ineligible receivable. The eligibility criteria include that each receivable
constitutes the legal, valid and binding cbligations of the cardholder enforceable - unless they are
not in comptiance with the Consumer Credit Act in whith case they may only be enforceable with
a court order aad, in a small number of cases, may be unenforceabie — against the cardholder in
accordance with its terms. They also include that each receivable is not, save as specifically
conternplated by any rule of English law, currently subject to any defence, dispute, set-off or
counterclaim or enforcement orders apart from in the limited cases described in the previous
sentence.

Motice to the cardholder wouid perfect the transfer 50 that the receivables trustee wpuid take
priority over any interest of a later encumbrancer or transferee of the transferor’s rights who has
no notice of the transfer to the receivables trustee.

Notice to the cardholder would prevent the card agreement from being amended by the transferor
or the cardhalder without the consent of the receivables trustee,

Lack of notice to the cardholder means that, for procedural purposes, the receivables trustee will
have 1o join the transferor as a party to any legal actlon that the recelvables trustee may want to
take against any cardholder.
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United Kingdom Taxation Treatment Of The Notes

Overview
The summary set out below describes the material Urnited Kingdom withholding tax, stamp duty
and stamp duty reserve tax consequences of acquiring, helding and disposing of the notes.

The comments below are based on United Kingdom law and practice at the date of this prospectus.
They relate only to the position of persons who are the absolute beneficial owners of their notes
and may not apply to certain classes of persons, including dealers and persons who own the notes
as trustee, nominee or ctherwise on behalf of another person.

The comments below do not necessarily apply where the interest or any other income on the
notes is deemed for United Kingdom tax purposes to be the income of a person other than the
absolute beneficial owner of the notes in question, for example where a persen ordinarily resident
in the United Kingdom transfers assets to a non-resident company for the purpose of avoiding
United Kingdom tax.

It is suggested that any notehclders who are in deubt as to their pasition consult their professional
advisers.

In the following paragraphs, "HMRC" means HM Revenue & Custorns, which is the central United
Kingdom taxing authority.

Taxation of Interest Paid

The notes will constitute "quoted Eurobonds’ provided that they are and continue to be listed on 2
recognised stock exchange. On the basis of the United Kingdom HMRC's published interpretation of
the relevant legislation, securities which are to be Tisted on a stock exchange in a country which is
a member state of the European Union or which is part of the European Economic Area will satisfy
this requirerment if they are listed by a competent authority in that country and are admitted ta
trading on a recognised stock exchange in that country; securities which are to be listed on a stock
exchange in any cther country will satisfy this requirement if they are admitted to trading on a
recognised stock exchange in that country. The London Stock Exchange is & recognised stock
exchange for these purposes. Whilst the notes are and continue to be quoted Eurcbonds, payments
of interest on the notes may be made without deduction or withholding for or on account of
United Kingdom income tax irrespective of whether the notes are in global or definitive form.

in ali cases falling cutside the exemption described above, interest on the notes may fall to be paid
under deduction of United Kingdom income tax at the lower rate, currently 20 per cent., subject to
such relief as may be avaitable for example, under the provisions of any applicable double taxation
treaty. Alternatively, there is in certain circumstances an exemption for certain payments between
certain companies and partnerships, The latter exemption can apply where (inter alia) the person
beneficially entitled 1o the interest is () a company resident in the United Kingdom, {ii) a company
not resident in the United Kingdom which carries on a trade in the United Kingdom through a
permanent establishrient and which is required to bring the interest into account in computing its
profits chargeable to United Kingdom corporation tax or (iii) a partnership each member of which
is & company falling within (i} or {ii) above.

Provision of Information

Helders should note that where any interest on notes is paid to them, or {0 any person acting on
their behalf, by the issuer or any person in the United Kingdom acting on behalf of the issuer,
called a “paying agent”, or is received by any person in the United Kingdom acting on behalf of
the relevant holder, other than solely by clearing or arranging the clearing of a cheque, called a
“collecting agent”, then the issuer, the paying agent or the collecting agent as the case may be,
may in certain circumstances be required to supply to HMRC details of the payment and certain
details relating to the holder, including the holder's name and address, These provisions will apply
whether or not the interest has been paid subject to withholding or deduction for or on account of
United Kingdom income tax and whether or not the holder is resident in the United Kingdom for
United Kingdom taxation purposes. Where the helder is not so resident, the details provided to
HMRC, in certain cases, may be passed by HMRC to the tax authorities of the jurisdictlon in which
the holder is resident for taxation purposes.
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European Unien Directive on the Taxation of Savings Income

Under EU Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, each Member State is
required from 1 July 2005, to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of
payments of interest or other similar income paid by a person within its jurisdiction to or collected
by such a person for, an individual resident in that other Member State; however, for a transitional
period, Austria, Belgium and Luxernbourg may instead apply a withholding system in relation io
such payments, deducting tax at rates rising over time to 35%. The transitional period is to
terminate at the end of the first full fiscal year following agreement by certain non-EU couniries to
the exchange of information relating to such payments.

Also with effect from 1 July 2005, a number of non-EU couniries, and certain dependent or
associated territories of certain Member States (including Jersey), have agreed to adopt similar
measures (either provision of information or transitional withholding) in refation to payments made
by a person within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a person for, an individual resident in a
Member State. In addition, the Member States have entered into reciprocal provision of Information
or transitional withholding arrangements with certain of those dependent or associated territaries
in relation to payments made by a person in a member state to, or collected by such a person for,
an individual resident in one of those territories.

Otker Rules Relating to United Kingdom Withhoiding Tax

1. Where interest has been paid under deduction of United Kingdom income tax, holders who
are not resident in the United Kingdom may be able to recover all or part of the tax
deducted if there is an appropriate provision in any applicable doubie taxation treaty.

2. The references to “interest” above mean “interest” as understood in United Kingdom tax law.
The statements above do not take any account of any different definitions of “interest” or
“principal” which may prevail under any other law or which may be created by the terms and
conditions of the notes ¢r any related documentation.

3. The above description of the United Kingdom withholding tax position assumes that there wiil
be ne substitution of the issuer and does not consider the tax consequences of any such
substitution.

4.  The notes may be issued at an issue price of less than 100 per cent. of their principal
amount. Any discount element on any of these notes will not be subject to any United
Kingdom withholding tax pursuant to the provisions mentioned above, but may be subject to
reporting requirements as outlined above.

Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax

No United Kingdom stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax is payable on the issue or transfer of a
note provided that the note does net at any time carry (1) a right ta interest, the amount of
which exceeds a reasonable commercial return on the nominal amount of the capital of the note
or (2) a right on repayment to an amount which exceeds the nominal amount of the capital of the
note and is not reasonably comparabie with what is generally repayable, in respect of a similar
neminal amount of capital, under the terms of issue of loan capital listed on the Officiai List of the
UK Listing Authority and admitted to trading on theé London Stock Exchange.
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Underwriting

The issuer has agreed to sell and the underwriters have agreed to purchase the principal amount
of the notes listed in the table below. The terms of these purchases are governed by an
underwriting agreement between the issuer and Barclays Bank PLC for itself and as representative
far all of the underwriters.

Principal

Amount of

the Class Al

Underwriters of the Closs Al notes notes
Barclays Bank PLC €533,000.000
BNP Paribas . €19,500,000
Goldman Sachs & Co. €19,500,000
Morgan Stanley €19,500,000
UBS Investment Bank €19,500,000
Merrill Lynch & Co. €19,500,000
Citigroup €19,500,000
Total €650,000,000
Principal

Amount of

the Class A2

Uinderwriters of the Class A2 notes notes
Barclays Bank PLC £574,000,000
BNP Paribas £21,000.000
Goldman Sachs & Co. £21.000,000
Morgan Staniey £21.000,000
UBS Investment Bank £21,000,000
Merrill Lynch & Co. £21,000,000
Citigroup £21,000,000
Total £700,000,060
Principal

Amount of

the Class 81

Underwriter of the Class Bl notes notes
Barclays Bank PLC €72,500,000
Principal

Amount of

the Class B2

Underwriter of the Class B2 notes notes
Barclays Bank PLC £15,000,600
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Princlpot
Arnount of
the Class C1

Undepwriter of the Class (1 notes notes
Barclays Bank PLC £68,000,000

Principat
Amount of
the Class C2

Underwriter of the Closs C2 notes notes
Barclays Bank PLC £18.000.000

The price to the public and underwriting discounts and commissions {I} as a percentage of the
principal balance of the Class A1 notes will be 100 per cent. and 0.175 per cent., respectively; (i)
as a percentage of the principal balance of the Class A2 notes will be 100 per cent. and 0.175 per
cent., respectively; (ill) as a percentage of the principal balance of the Class B1 notes will be 100
per cent. and 0.275 per cent., respectively, {iv} as a percentage of the prinCipal balance of the Class
B2 notes will be 100 per cent. and 0.275 per cent., respectively; (v) as a percentage of the principal
batarnce of the Class C1 notes will be 100 per cent and 0.400 per cenl., respectively; and (vi) as a
percentage of the principal balance of the Class C2 notes will be 100 per cent. and 0.400 per cent,
respectively;

Barclays Bank PLC, as representative of the underwriters of the (iass Al notes and the Class A2
notes has advised the issuer that the underwriters propese initialty to offer the Class A1 notes and
the Class A2 notes to the public at the respective public offering prices stated on the cover page
of this prospectus, ang to some dealers at those prices, less a concession of up to 0.105 per cent
for each Class Al notes and up to 0.105 per cent. for each Class A2 notes. The underwriters may
allow, and those dealers may reallow, concessions of up to 00525 per cent. of the principal
balance of the Class A1 notes and 0.0525 per cent. of the principzl balance of the Class A2 notes
to some brokers and dealers

Barclays Bank PLC has advised the issuer that it proposes initially to offer the Class B1 notes and
the (lass B2 notes to the public at the respective public offering prices stated ¢n the cover page of
this prospectus. and 1o some dealers al those prices, less a concession of up 1o 0.12 per cent. for
each Class B notes and up 10 0.12 per cent, for each Class B2 note. Barclays Bank PLC may allow,
and those dealers may reallow, concessions of up to 0.06 per cent of the principal balance of the
Class 81 note and 0.06 per cent. of the principal balance of the Class B2 notes to some brokers
and dealers.

Barclays Bank PLC has advised the issuer that it proposes initially to offer the Class C? notes and
the Class C2 notes to the pubiic at the respective public offering prices stated on the cover page of
this prospectus, and to some dealers at those prices, less a concession of up o 0.18 per cent. for
each Class C1 notes and 0.18 per cent. for each Class C2 note. Barclays Bank PLC may aliow, and
those dealers may reallow, concessions of up te 0.09 per cent. of the principal balarnce of the Class
€1 notes and 0.09 per cent. of the principal balance of the Ciass C2 notes to some brokers and
dealers.

Additionat offering expenses are estimated to be £3 255019,

United States of America

The notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or any US State
Security law, and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of, US. persons, except in certain transactions exempt from the registration requirements of
the Securlties Act and applicable State Security laws,

Each of the underwriters has agreed that, except as permitted by the underwriting agreement, it
will not offer or sefl the notes (i) as part of its distribution at any time or (il) otherwise until 40
days after the later of the commencement of the offering and the date of issuance of the notes,
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.5. persons, and it will have sent
to each dealer to which it sells notes during the distribution compliance period a confirmation or

158




other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sale of the notes within the United States
or to, or for the account or benefit of, US. persons. Terms used in this and the previous
paragraphs have the meanings given to them by Reguiation S,

The notes are heing cffered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on
Regulation S,

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement. of the offering of the notes, an offer or sale of
the notes within the United States by a dealer, whether or not such dealer is participating in the
offering, may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

United Kingdom
Each underwriter has represented and agreed with the issuer that:

{l)y it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000, called the "FSMA™ with respect to anything done by it in relation to the
notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom; and

(ii} it has only communicated or caused to be communicated, and will only communicate or
cause to be communicated, any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity -
within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA - received by it in cannection with the issue
or sale of the notes, in circumstances in which Section 21{1) of the FSMA does not apply to
the issuer.

The Netherlands

The notes rnay not be offered, sold, transferred or delivered, as part of their initial distribution, or
at any time thereafter, directly or indirectly, other than to individuals or lega! entities in The
Netherfands who or which trade or invest in securities in the conduct of a profession or trade
within the meaning of section 2 of the exemption regulation to the Netherlands Securities Market
Supervision Act 1995 as amended from time to time ("Vristellingsregeling Wet toezicht
effectenverkeer 19957), which includes banks, securities firms, insurance companies, pension funds,
investment institutions, central governments, large international and supranational organizations,
other institutional investors and other parties, including treasury departments of commercial
enterprises, which are regularly active in the financial markets in a professional manner.

Spain

Each underwriter represents and agrees that the notes may not be offered or seld in Spain other
than by institutions authorised under the Securities Market Law 24/1988 of 28 july (Ley 24/1988,
de 28 de Julio, del Mercado de Valores), and Royal Decree B67/2001 of 20 Iuly on the Legal
Regime Applicable to Investment Services Companies (Real Decreto 867/2001), de 20 Julio, sobre e
Regimen juridico de las empresas de servicios de inversion), to provide investment services in
Spain, and in compliance with the provisions of the Securities Market Law and any other applicable
legislation.

Republic of Italy
Each underwriter has represented and agreed that the notes are not to be offered or sold in the
Republic of Italy.

General

The underwriters have represented and agreed that they have complied and will comply with all
applicable laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which they purchase, offer, sell or
deliver notes or possess them or distribute the prospectus and will obtain any consent, approval or
permission required by them for the purchase, offer, sale or delivery by them of notes under the
laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which they are subject or in which they make
such purchases, offers, sales or deliveries and the issuer shall have no responsibility for them.
Furthermore, they will not directly or indirectly offer, sell or deliver any notes or distribute or
publish any prospectus, form of application, offering circular, advertisement or other offering
material except under circumstances that will, to the best of their knowledge and belief, result in
compliance with any applicable laws and regulations, and all offers, sales and deliveries of notes by
themn will be made on the same terms.
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The underwriters have agreed that no invitation may be made to the public in |ersey to subscribe
for the notes.

Neither the issuer nor the underwriters represent that notes may at any time lawfully be soid in
comptiance with any application registration or other reguirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant
to any exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating such sale.

With regard to each issue of notes, the underwriters will be required to comply with such other
additional or modified restrictions, if any, as the issuer and the underwriters shall agree.

The underwriters will, unless prohibited by applicable law, furnish to each person to whom they
offer or sel! notes a copy of the prospectus as then amended or supplemented or, uniess delivery
of the prospectus is required by applicable law, Inform each such person that a copy will be made
available upon request. The underwriters are not authorised to give any information or ta make
any representation not contained in the prospectus in connection with the offer and sale of notes
to which the prospectus relates.

This prospectus may be used by Barclays Bank PLC — the transfercr, servicer and trust cash
manager — for offers and sales related to market-making transactions in the nates. Barclays Bank
PLC may act as principal or agent in these transactions. These sales will be made at prices relating
to prevailing market prices at the time of sale. Barclays Bank PLC has no obligation to make a
market in the notes, and any market-making may be discontinued at any time without notice.

Barclays Bank PLC will be the initial transferor, the servicer, the cash manager for the receivables
trust and the series 05-3 medium term note certificate, the transferor beneficiary and excess
interest beneficiary, the swap counterparty and the lender under the expenses loan agreement.
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Ratings Of The Notes

It is a condition to issuing the Class A notes that they be rated in the highest rating category by
two internationally recognised rating agencies.
It is a condition to issuing the Class B nates that they be rated at least “A” or its equivalent by
twe Internationally recognised rating 2gencles.
It is a condition to issuing the Class C notes that they be rated at least "BBB” or its equivalent by
two internationally recognised rating agencies.
Any rating of your notes by a rating agency will indicate:
s 15 view on the likelihood that you will recslve timely interest payments and principal

payments by the series 05-3 termination date; and
e its evaluation of the receivables and the avaifability of the credit enhancement for your notes.
What a rating will not Indicate is:

o the likelthood that principal payments will be paid on a scheduled redemption date before the
series 05-3 termination date;

the likelihcod that a Pay Out Event will occur;

the likelihcod that a withholding tax will be imposed an netehoiders;
the marketability of your notes;

the market price of your notes; or

e  whether your notes are an appropriate investment for you,

A rating will not be a recommendation to buy, sell or held the notes. A rating may be lowered or
withdrawn at any time.

The issuer will request a rating of the notes from two internationally recognised rating agencies.
Rating agencies other than those requested could assign a rating to the notes, and their rating
could be lower than any rating assigned by a rating agency chosen by the issuer.

Experts
The financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC and subsidiary at 31 December 2004 and 31
December 2003 and for the year ended 31 December 2004, the pericd ended 31 Decernber 2003
and for the year ended 14 December 2002 included in this prospectus have been so included in
reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting
firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The balance sheet of Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 10y PLC as at 17 October 2005 included in
this prospectus, has been so included in refiance on the repory of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm, givenn ¢n the authority of said firm as experts in
auditing and accounting. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has given, and not withdrawn, its consent to the inclusion in this
document of its report on the balance sheet of Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC as at 17
QOctober 2005 and its report on the consolidated financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC
and its Subsidiary at 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2003, and for the year ended 31
December 2004, the period ended 31 December 2003 and the year ended 14 December 2002 In
the form and context In which they are included and has authorised the contents of these parts of
this prospectus which comprise their reports for the purpeses of paragraph 5.5.4R(2)() of the
Prospectus Rules. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are responsible for its above mentioned reports
dated 17 October 2005 and 6 June 2005, respectively, as part of this prospectus and declare that
they have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information contained in these reports are,
to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to
affect its import. This declaration is included in the prospectus in compliance with item 1.2 of
Annex VIl and item 1.2 of Annex 1X of the Prospectus Ruies.

Legal Matters

Matters of English law relating to the validity of the issuance of the notes will be passed upon for
the issuer by Clifford Chance LLP, Londan, England. Weil, Cotshal & Manges has acted as counsel
to the underwriters with respect to the offering of the notes pursuant to this prospectus.
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Reports To Noteholders

The servicer will prepare maonthly and annual reports that will contain information about the notes.
The financial information contained in that part of the listing particulars will not be prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, Unless and until individual nhote
certificates are issued, the reports wili be sent to the depository as holder of the notes. Ne reports
will be sent to you.

Listing And General Information

The listing of the notes on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and admission to trading of
the notes on the regulated market af the London Stock Exchange is expected 1o be gramted before
the closing date subject only to the issue of the notes. The listing of the noles wifl not become
effective if any of the notes are not issued. Before official listing, however, dealings in the notes
wiil be permitted by the London Stock Exchange in accordance with its rules.

The trust cash managers functions include producing the monthfy investor reports required by the
series 05-3 supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement. These
monthly investor reports will be available on Bloomberg and will be disclosed to the issuer and the
BTN Issuer.

The issuer confirms that the securitised assets backing the issue of this series of notes have
characteristics that demonstrate capacity to produce funds to service any payments due and
payable on this series of notes. However, investars are advised that this confirmation is based on
the information available to the issuer at the date of the prospectus and the relevant final terms
and may be affected by future performance of such securltised assets. Consequently, investors are
advised to review carefully the disclosure in the prospectus together with any amendments or
supplements thereto and other documents incorporated by reference in the prospectus and, in
relation to any series, the relevant final terms,

The MTN Issuer cenfirms that the securitised assets backing the issue of this series of medium
termt notes have characteristics that demonstrate capacily to produce funds to service any
payments due and payable on this series of medium term notes. Howevet, investors are advised
that this confirmation is based on the information availabie to the MTN Issuer at the date of the
prospectus ang the relevant final terms and may be affected by future performance of such
securitised assets. Consequently, investars are advised te review carefully the disclosure in the
prospectus together with any amendments or supplements thereto and other documents
incorporated by reference in the prospectus and, in relation to any series, the relevant final terms,

The financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC and subsidiary have not been prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to the procedure
of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 160672002 and there may be material differences in the
financial information if this regulation were to be applied to the historical financial information.
These differences weuld arise due 1o the differences between the International Financial Reporting
Standards adopted pursuant te the procedure of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 and US
accounting standards, which Barclaycard Funding PLC has adopted in the preparation of s
financial statements included in this prospectus.

As Barclaycard Funding PLC is not required to comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards, no fmpact analysis has been performed to quantify these differences; however, the
folfowing significant areas would be affected:

® 1AS 18, "Revenue”;

® |AS 32, "Financial Instruments: Discfosure and Presentation”;

e  [AS 38, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’;
& A3 27, “Consoildated and Separate Financiai Statements”; and
e  SIC 12, "Consalidation — Special Purpose Entities”.

1AS 18 specifies timing for recognition of revenue including the recognition of dividend distribution
only when the shareholder’s right to receive the payment is established, which may differ from the
present accounting policy adopted by the company.

IAS 32 requires specific disclosures and presentation of financial instruments and IAS 39 contains
specific rules relating to the recognition and measurement of financial assets and labilities
including derivatives and hedging instruments that may be different to the current accounting rules
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applied by Barclaycard Funding PLC. Should these standards be applied to the financial assets and
liabilities of Barclaycard Funding PLC the balance sheet valuations and classifications may differ to
how they are currently recorded.

1AS 27 and SIC 12 require consolidated financial statements to include all subsidiaries that are
controlled by the parent. Control is defined as the power to govern the financlal and aperating
policies of an entitiy so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The application of 1AS 27, SIC 12
and |1AS 39 {derecognition} would more than likely require the assets and liabilities and the special
purpose entites relating to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) through to {No. 7) transactions to be
retained on balance sheet and consolidated respectively. This differs from the present accounting
treatment whereby the derecognition of assets and liabilities and non-consclidation of qualifying
special purpose entities were achieved under SFAS 140.

Barclaycard Funding PLC has produced financial statements for year ended 31 December 2004 and
the period ended 31 December 2003 which have been prepared in accordance with UK CAAP,
Pursuant to section 228{1){b) of the Companies Act 985, these financial statements are non-
consolidated financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC.

ISINs

ISIN
Class Al notes X50232360445
Class AZ notes X50232361336
Class B1 notes XS0232362144
Class B2 notes X50232362656
Class C1 notes X50232363209
Class CZ notes X50232364355
Loan Note Certificate ) X50233306459

Litigation and Change in Circumstances

The issuer is not, nor has it been, involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings
(including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer is aware)
which may have, or have had since 10 August 2005 (being the date of incorporation of the issuer)
a significant effect on its financial pesition or profitability,

The MTN Issuer is not, nor has it been, involved in army governmental, legal or arbitration
proceedings {including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer
is aware) which may have, or have had for the twelve months preceding the date of this
prospectus a significant effect on fts financial position or profitability.

Significant or Material Change

There has been (i) no significant change in the financial or trading position of the issuer and (ii)
no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the issuer. since 10 August
2005.

Save as described in the section herein calied “The MTN Issuer” at page 40 (with respect to the
prospective issuance of the series 05-3 medlum term note certificate), there has been (i) no
significant change in the financial or trading position and (if) no material adverse change in the
financial position or prospects of the MTN Issuer, since 31 December 2004,

There has been (i) no significant change in the financial or trading position of the receivables
trustee and (i) no material adverse change in the financial position er prespects of the receivables
trustee, since 29 September 1999,

Docurnents Available for Inspection

Copies of the following documents (and prior to the Closing Date, where indicated, draft copies in
substantially agreed form) may be inspected until the series 05-3 scheduled redemption date at the
offices of Clifford Chance LLP, 10 Upper Bank Street, London E14 5li, England during usual business
hours on any weekday, apart from Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, by electronic means:

& master definitiocns schedule;
e recefvables securitisation agreement;
e declaration of frust and trust cash management agreement;
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series 05-3 suppiement to declaration of trust and trust cash management;
beneficiaries servicing agreement;

agreement between beneficiaries

trust section 75 indemnity;

security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement;

series 05-3 MTN Issuer supplement to security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management
agreement;

expenses loan agreement;

Class A1 swap agregment;

Class Bt swap agreement;

Class C1 swap agreemeny;

corporate officers agreement;

underwriting agreement;

paying agency and agent bank agreement;

trust deed;

deed of charge;

pledge agreement

post maturity call option;

form of Class Al giobal note certificate;

form of Class AZ global note certificate:

form of Class B1 global note certificate;

form of Class 82 global note certificate;

form of Class 1 global note certificate;

form of Class C2 global note certificate;

form of Class Al individual note certificate;

form of Class A2 individual note certificate;

form of Class B1 individual note certificate;

form of Ctass B2 individual note certificate;

form of Class €1 Individual note certificate;

form of Class €2 individual note certificate;

memorandum and articles of association of the issuer;

report of independent registered public accounting firm on the issuer;
memorandurn and articles of association of the MTN lssuer;

deed of novation;

regulatory call option;

report of the independent registered public accounting firm on the MTN lssuer;
memgrandum and articles of association of the receivables trustee; and
consolidated audited accounts of the MTN issuer for each of the three vears preceding the
publication of this prospectus.
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ISSUER

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC
1 Churchill Place
London E14 5HP

INITIAL TRANSFEROR SERVICER AND TRUST

CASH MANAGER RECEIVABLES TRUSTEE
Barclays Bank PLC Gracechurch Receivables Trustee Ltd
1234 pavillion Drive 26 New Street

Northampton NN4 75G St. Helier, Jersey JE2 3RA

NOTE TRUSTEE AND SECURITY TRUSTEE

The Bank of New York
One Canada Square
London E14 SAL

PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT REGISTRAR
The Bank of New York The Bank of New York
One Canada Square One Canada Square
Lendon E14 S5AL London E14 SAL
LEGAL ADVISERS
To the Issuer, the MTN Issuer, To the Recejvables Trustee as to
the Recejvables Trustee and Borclays Jersey low
as to Englisk iow and United States low Bedell Cristin
Clifford Chance LLP 26 New Street
10 Upper Bank Street St. Helier, lersey JE2 3RA
Lendon £14 5]
Ta the underwriters as to £nglish fow ond To the Note Trustee ond the Security Trustee
Uniited States faw as to English law and United Stetes law
Weil, Gotshal & Manges Lovells
One South Place Atlantic House
London EC2ZM 2WG 50 Holborn Viaduct

London EC1A 2FC

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Issuer and the MTN Issuer To the Receivables Trustee
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Southwark Towers Twenty Two Colomberie
32 London Bridge Street St Helier,
Londan SE1 95Y jersey JE1 4XA

AUTHORISED ADVISOR
Barclays Bank PLC
5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf
London E14 4B8
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Index Of Terms For Prospectus

Acquired Interchange 59
additien date 56
additional accounts 36
Adjusted Investor Interest 86
Aggregate investor indemnity Amount 112
aggregate investor interest 70
agreement between beneficiaries 113
Available Investor Principal Collections 102
Average Principal Receivables 119
Barclaycard Cperating Account 72
Barclaycard Proceeds Account 73
Barclays 7
Base Currency PAD 142
Basic Terms Maodifications 141
business day 57
Catculanion Period 91
cancelled account 57
Class A Investor Charge-Off 109
Class A1 85
Class A} Additional Finance Amount 9
Class A1 Adjusted Investor Interest 86
Class A1 Available Funds 91
Class A1l cash management fee 52
Class A1 Covered Amount 113
Class A1 Debt Amount N
Class A1 Deficiency Amount 91
Class Al Distribution Ledger 52
Class A1 Excess Spread a2
Class A1 Euro Swap Rate 142
Class A1 Finance Rate 90
Class A1 Fixed Allocation 102
Class A1 Floating Allocation 85
Class A1 Initial Investor Interest 86
Class A1 Investor Charge-Off 86
Class A1 Investor Default Amount 108
Class A1 Investor Interest 86
Class A1 Monthly Distribution Amount 92
Class A1 Monthly Finance Amount El
Class A1 Monthly Principal Amount 103
Ciass A1 Monthly Required Expense Amount 30
Class Al Required Amount 110
Class A1 Servicing Fee 92
Class A1 Trustee Payment Amount 116
Class A2 35
Class AZ Additional Finance Amount a3
Class A2 Adjusted Investor Interest 86
Class A2 Available Funds 93
Class A2 cash management fee 93
Class A2 Covered Amount 113
Class A2 Debt Amount 93
Class A2 Deficiency Amount 93
Class A2 Distribution Ledger 94
Class AZ xcess Spread 23
Class A2 Finance Rate 93
Class AZ Fixed Allocation 102
Class A2 Floating Allocation 85
Class AZ Initial Investor Interest 86
Class A2 Investor Charge-Off B6
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Class A2 Investor Default Amount
Class A2 Investor Enterest

Class A2 Monthly Distribution Amount
Class A2 Monthly Finance Amount
Class AZ Monthly Principal Amount
Class A2 Monthly Required Expense Amount
Class A2 Required Amount

Class A2 Servicing Fee

Class A2 Trustee Payment Amount
Class B Investor Charge-Off

Class B1

Class 81 Additional Finance Amount
Class 81 Adjusted Investor Interest
Class B} Available Funds

Class B) cash management fee

Class B1 Debt Amount

Class B1 Deficiency Amount

Ciass B1 Distribution Ledger

Class B1 Euro Swap Rate

Class B Excess Spread

Class B Finance Rate

Class BT Fixed Allocation

Class B1 floating Allacation

Class B1 Initial Investor Interest

Class B1 Investor Charge-Cff

Class B1 Investor Default Amount
Class B1 Investor Interest

Class B1 Monthly Distribution Amount
Class B1 Monthly Finance Amount
Class B! Monthly Principal Amount
Class B1 Monthly Required Expense Amount
Ciass B) Required Amount

Class B1 servicing fee

Class B1 Trustee Payment Amount
Class B2

Class B2 Additicnal Finance Amount
Class B2 Adjusted Investor Interest
Ciass B2 Available Funds

Class B2 cash management fee

Class B2 Debt Amount

Class B2 Deficiency Amount

Class B2 Distributicn Ledger

Class B2 Excess Spread

Class B? Finance Rate

Class B2 Fixed Allocation

Class B2 Floating Aliocation

Class B2 Initial investor Interest

Class B2 Investor Charge-Off

Class B2 Investor Default Amount
Class B2 Investor Interest

Class B2 Monthly Distribution Amount
Class B2 Manthly Finance Amount
Class B2 Monthly Principal Amount
Class B2 Monthly Required Expense Amount
Class B2 Required Amount

{lass B2 servicing fee

Class B2 Trustee Payment Amount
Class C investor Charge-Off

Class C Monthly Distributicn Amount
Class € Manthly Principal Amount
Class € Principal Commencement Date
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103
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110
94

116

109
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142
95
94

102
85
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110
55
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Class C1 Release Date

Class C1

Class C1 additional Finance Amount
Class C1 Adjusted Investor Interest
Class C1 Avaltable Funds

Class Ci cash management fee
Class C1 Debt Amount

Class C1 Deficiency Amount

Class C1 Distribution Ledger

Class C1 Euro Swap Rate

Class C} Excess Spread

Class C1 Finance Rate

Class C1 Fixed Allocation

Class C1 Floating Allocation

Class C1 Initial Investor Interest
Class C1 investor Charge-Off

Class C1 investor Default Amount
Class €1 Investor Interest

Class C1 Monthly Finance Amaount
Class C1 Monthly Principal Amount
Class C1 Monthly Required Expense Amount
Class €1 servicing fee

Class C1 Trustee Payment Amount
Class (2

Class C2 Additional Finance Amount
Class CZ Adjusted Investor Interest
Class €2 Available Funds

Class C2 cash management fee
Class C2 Debt Amount

Class CZ Deficiency Amount

Class C2 Distribution Ledger

Class C2 Excess Spread

Class C2 Finance Rate

Class C2 Fixed Allocation

Class €2 Floating Allocation

Class €2 Initial Investor Interest
Class C2 lavestor Charge-Off

Class C2 Investor Default Amount
Class €2 Investor Interest

Class C2 Monthly Finance Amount
Class C2 Monthly Principal Amount
Ctass C2 Monthly Required Expense Amount
Class C2 servicing fee

Class C2 Trustee Payment Amount
closing date

collecting agent

Companion Series

Controlied Accumulation Period
Controlled Accumulation Period Length
Controlled Deposit Amount

Daily Investor Principal Collections
default amount

defaulted account

defaulted receivable

deferred subscription price
designated account

Discount Gption Receivables
Discount Percentage

Distributien Date

early swap termination event
eligible account
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97
88
57
58
97
97
98

142
93
97

102
85
83
88

108
87
a7

104
97
58

116
85
98
88
9%
9%
99
98
99
99
98

102
85
38
89

108
88
98

105
98
99

116
37

155

115
99

106

100

102

108
57
61

148
56
58
58
91

146
60




eligible receivable

Eliglble Receivables Pool

eligible servicer

eligible trust cash manager
enforcement notice

Euro Swap Rate

euro reference banks

event of default

excess entitlement consideration
Excess Interest

Excess Spread

Expense Rate

expenses loan agreement

Finance Charge Collections Ledger
finance charge receivables

Fixed Investor Percentage
Floating Invester Percentage
FSMA

Future Receivables Transfer
HMRC

ineligible receivables

initial closing date

initial Investor Interest

Insolvency Events

interest

interchange

Interest Payment Date

Investor Cash Available for Acquisition
investor certificate

Investor Default Amount

Investor !Indemnity Amount
Investor Interest

Investar Percentage

Investor Principal Coltections
investor servicing fee

investor trust cash management fee
Investor Trustee Payment Amount
issuer refated documents
Maximum Additien Amount
Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables
Minimum Transferor Interest
MTN Issuer

MTN Issuer additional interest payments
MTN Issuer cash manager

MTN Issuer Costs Amount

notice of assignment

paying agent

Pay Out Event

permitted additional jurisdiction
permitted investments

pool selection date

Portfolio Yieid

post maturity call option

pounds

pounds sterling

Principal Collections Ledger
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Appendix A
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Sharehoiders of:
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10} PLC (“the Company) as at 17 October 2005 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, This
finaricial statement is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an gpinion on this financial staternent based on our audit. We conducted our audit of this
statement in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the balance sheet is free of material misstatement, An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the balance sheet,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by maragement, and
evalyating the averall balance sheet presentation. We believe that our audit of the balance sheet
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
London, England

17 October 2005
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Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 17 OCTOBER 2005

Current assets
Cash

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Common stock {50,000 shares authorised, £1.00 par value. issued and
autstanding, 50,000 shares comprising 2 fully paid shares and 49,998
called and quarter paid}

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

Notes

(3)

The notes on the following page form an integral part of this statement

B-1
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Appendix C
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 10) PLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
17 OCTOBER 2005

1. Accounting policies

The financial information of Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 10) PLC (the "Company”) has been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America {"US GAAP”) and in Pounds sterling {“£"} which is the Company's functional currency,
The financial statements are reported in accordance with US GAAP. These are not the Company's
statutory financial statements for the period from 10 August 2005 (incorporation date) to
17 October 2005. No statutory financial statements have been prepared or delivered to the
registrar of companies for any period since incorporation on 10 August 2005.

2, Trading activity

The Company did not trade during the period frem incorparation on 10 August 2005 to 17 October
2005 nor did it receive any income nor did it incur any expenses or pay any dividends.
Consequently, no statement of income, statement of changes of shareholders’ equity or statement
of cashflows has been prepared. The Company's business is the issuing of the notes and
transactions incidental thereto.

3. Share Capital

The Company was incorporated on 10 August 2005 with an authorised share capitai of £50,000,
comprising 50,000 ordinary shares of £1 each. 2 ordinary shares were allotted for cash, and fully
paid, on incorporation. The name of the Company was changed from Sequingrove PLC to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10} PLC by way of a special resolution passed on 30 September
2005 with effect from 3 October 2005. One share is held by Gracechurch Card {Holdings) Limited
and one share is held by SFM Corporate Services Limited as share trustee under the terms of a
share dectaration of trust. The shares in Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited are in turn held by
SFM Corporate Services Limited as share trustee under the terms of a trust for charitable purposes
on 30 September 2005. A further 49,398 ordinary shares of the Company were allotted to
Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited.
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Barclaycard Funding PLC
and
subsidiary

Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended
December 31, 2004,
period ended
December 31, 2003
and the year ended

December 14, 2002
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Appendix D
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

In our opinion, the accompanying conselidated balance sheet and the related consolidated
statement of income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Barclaycard
Funding PLC and Subsidiary (the “"Group”) as at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 33, 2004, period
ended December 31, 2003 and the year ended December i4, 2002 in conformity with accounting
principles generaily acceptec in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Group's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overal! financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Londen, England
6 June 2005
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Appendix E
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND DECEMBER 31, 2003

2004 2003
Notes  12/31/2004  12/31/2003
£ £
Assets
Cash 8, 1t 280583 601,315
Accrued finance charges receivable 1 18,104 10,995
Other assets 6, 11 14,886 6,876
Total assets 313,573 619,186
Liabilities and shareholders equity
Liabilitles
Accruals and other liabilities 6,11 264,549 576,599
Total Habilities 164,549 576,539
Minority interest 13,519 13,519
Sharehaolders' equity
Common stock, £3 par value; 50,000 shares authorized,
issued, 2 called up and fully paid and 49.998 called and
quarter paid 7 12,502 12,502
Retained earnings 23.003 16,566
Total sharehalders’ equity 35,505 29,068
Tatal liabilities and sharehalders' equity 313,573 619,186

The accompanving note in Appendix ¥ are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements,
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Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

Appendix E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 31 2003 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 14, 2002

Revenues

Interest income

Servicing fees

Reallsed foreign exchange gain
Other Income

Total revenue

Expenses

interest expense

Realised [oss on derivatives
Servicing fees
Administration expenses

Total expenses

Income befere provision for income
taxes
Less: Provision for income taxes

Net Income before minority interest
Minority interest, net of income taxes

Net income

Notes

8
8

oo Co oo

2004 2003 2002

£ £ £

270,450 273,109 24634224
21603736 11,670,803 4575734
— — 54588608

— — 11,667

[]

21874086 11943912 83810233
— 14772 74.077.409

— — 54583230
21,603,736 11,670,803 4,575,734
61,255 141,058 541,838
21664591 11,826633 83778211
209,195 117,279 32,022
(62,758} {32,103) (6,850}
146,437 85,176 25172
— 9764 (8,455)

146,437 94,940 16,717

The accompanying note in Appendix F are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Appendix E
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2004, PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 14, 2002

2004 2003 2002

Notes £ £ £

Net income for the period . 146,437 94,940 16,7217
Retained earnings brought forward 16,566 21,626 17,409
Dividend (140,000)  {100,000) {12,500}
Retained earnings carried forward 23,003 16,566 21,626
Common stock brought forward 7 12,502 12,502 12,502
Common stock carried forward 12,502 12,502 12,502
Total shareholders' equity 35,505 29,068 34,128

The accompanying note in Appendix F are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Barclaycard Furding PLC and Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004,
PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 14, 2002

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile riet income
to net cash {used in}/provided by
operating activities

Minarity Interest

{Increase) in accrued finance charges
receivable

{Increase)/Decrease in other assets

Increase/{Decrease) in accrued
interest payable

(Decrease)/Increase in accruals and
other liabilities excluding
dividends

Total Adjustments

Net cash (used in)/provided by
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Investor Interest

Sale of Investor Interest

Intercompany deposit redeemed
from Barclays Bank PLC

Net cash provided by investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of intercompany note

Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Cash paid for:
Interest
Taxes

Appendix E

Notes 2004 2003 2002
£ £ £

146,437 94,940 16,717

- (9.764) 8,455

1" (7.109) (1.649) (9.346)

6, 1 (8.010) (6.876) 396,535
— (222191
6,11 {352,050} 376,884 (1,367.855)
{367,169} 358,595 {3,204,124)
(220,732) 453,535 (3,187,407}

4 {B09,718,073) (1,864,653,618)  (643,624.895)

4 809,718,073  1,864,653,618 643,624,845

5 — — 607,050,000

— —_— £07,050,000

5 — — (607,055,377
{100,000} (12,5000 —

(100,000) (12.500)  {607,055,377)

(320,732) 441,035 {3.192,784)

601,315 160,280 3.353.064

280,583 601,315 160,280

— 14,772 28,002,153

40,688 3,388 332

The accompanying note in Appendix F are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Appendix F
Barclaycard Funding PLC and subsldiary
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Barclaycard Funding PLC (the "Company”) was incorporated on August 13, 1990. The Company
commenced business on November 22, 1999. Barclaycard Funding PLC and its Subsidiary,
Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 1) PLC (“Subsldiary”). collectively comprise the “Group”.

The principal purpose of the Group Is to raise financing via the purchase of a beneficial interest in
a pool of credit card receivables, which is sold to a debt issuer,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting pelicies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

fa} Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP") and in Pounds sterling ("£"), the
currency of the United Kingdom, which is the Group's operating currency. The financial statements
are reported in accordance with US GAAP due to the Group's reporting requirements under the
United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Securities Exchange Act™). These
financial staterments are not statutory financial statements and a statement in accordance with
section 235 of the United Kingdom's Compantes Act ("UKCA™) for the consolidated group is not
given. The individual UK statutery financial statements for Bartlaycard Funding PLC and
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC for the period ended December 31, 2003 and year ended
December 14, 2002, have been filed with the registrar of companies in the United Kingdom.

(8} Consofidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC
and Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC. Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC is a spectal-
purpose vehicle established by Barclays Bank PLC sofely to issue asset backed note denomirated in
United States Dollars (see footngte 5), the proceeds of which were remitted to Barclaycard Funding
PLC in exchange for a corresponding medium term note. Because the only purpose of Gracechurch
Card Funding (No. 1} PLC is to raise financing for the Group, its financial statements are
consclidated with those of Barclaycard Funding PLC, in accordance with the requirements of FIN
46-R (foctnote 2n).

The tota! share capital issued by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC is owned by Gracechurch
Card (Holdings) Limited, and its earnings and losses allocable thereto are reported as minority
interest in the accompanying consolidated incomte statement, and assets and liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Any distributable profits which Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC generates is pavable to
Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited, Up until, March 17, 2003 Gracechurch Card (Heldings)
Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of Royal Exchange Trust Company Limited. On March 17,
2003, the shares in Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited were transferred to SFM Corporate
Services Limited under the terms of a trust for charitable purposes (the “Trust”).

Lasses which Gracechurch Card Funding (Mo, V) PLC incurs are allocated firstly 1o the Trust's equity
at risk, which is comprised of the Trust's initial capital investment {via Gracechurch Card {Holdings)
Limited ) plus any distributable profits receivable, reflected as minority interest, Losses in excess of
the Trust's equity at risk are allocated to the note holders.

{c} Asset Derecognitlon

Where Barclaycard Funding PLC is a transferor of financial assets tc a Special Purpose Entity
("SPE™), the assets sold are derecognized and the SPE is not consolidated on its balance sheet
when the assets are: (1) legally isolated from the Group’s creditors, (2} the accounting criteria for a
sale are met, and (3) the SPE is a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) under Statement of
Financial Accounting 5Standards ("SFAS") 140. When an SPE does not meet the formal definition of
a QSPE, the decision whether or not to conselidate depends on the applicable accounting principles
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for non-QSPEs, including a determination regarding the nature and amount of investment made by
third parties in the SPE.

{d) Foreign Currency Translotion

All foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into Pounds sterling at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the period. Interest income and expense denominated in foreign currencies
are translated inte Pound sterting at the exchange rates in force when the transaction occurred.
Foreign currency translation effects are reflected on the face of the income statement. Foreign
currency transactions are economically hedged into Pounds sterling to offset exposure to
fuctuating currency exchange rates. Although these instruments offset exposures they do not
qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS Ne. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
hedging activities”.

fe}  Derfvatives

The derivative instrument was a cross currency swap, and was used by the Group to minimize
currency risk associated with its financing activities denominated in United States Dollars (USD).
Although this instrument was a hedge from an economic perspective, it did not qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133 due ta the fack of decumentation requitements under SFAS No.
133, The derivative was recorded on the balance sheet at fair value with changes reflected in the
income statement. The derivative was transacted simultaneously with the purchase or issuance of
the undertying funding instrument. The swap was not heid for trading purpeses and matured in
2002.

{f)  Finance Charges

Finance charges receivable are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on an accrual
basis, Finance charges are primarily refated to interest and other charges on the intercompany note
{footnote 6) and relevant charges on the Investor Certficates (footnote 4).

{g) interest Expenses
Interest expenses are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on an accruals basis.
Interest expenses primarily relate to the intercempany note.

{h}  Servicing Fee
The Company receives a servicing fee from the Receivables Trust and pays Barclays Bank PLC for
services associated with the management of receivables and administration of associated cash flows.

(i} Income Toxes

Income taxes for the Group are paid to the tax authorities in the United Kingdom. There are no
deferred taxes for the periods presented in the financial statements. The tax charge is based on an
effective UK corporation tax rate of 30%.

() Distribution Poiicy
Distributions to shareholders are accounted for when approved by the Board of Directors.

(k}  Issue Costs
The portion of the direct costs assoctated with the issue of the note by the Subsidiary that are
attributable to the Group are capitalized and are amortized over the expected life of the note,

{  Funding instruments
Asset backed note are stated at amortised cost restated at the exchange rate prevailing at the
balance sheet date.

(m} Use of Estimotes

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies at the
balance sheet date and the reported amount of revenues and expenses in the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from the estimates used In the financial staternents.

{r) Recent Accounting Developments
{iy Comsotidation of Variable Interest Entities
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In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No.46 “Consolidation of Variable interest Entities -
An interpretation of ARB No. 51”7 (“FIN 46"). The pronouncement was revised in
Decernber 2003 and re-issued as FIN 46-R. This pronouncement meodifies the framework
for determining consolidation of certain entities that meet the definition of a variable
interest entity ("VIE"). This is met where the entity either does not have sufficlent equity
of the appropriate nature to support Its expected losses, or its equity investors lack
certain characteristics which would be expected to be present within a controlling
financial interest. Entitles which do not meet this definition would continue to apply the
voting interest model.

The provisions of FIN 446-R are immediately effective for VIES created after January 31,
2003. The standard must be applied to all entities beginning In the first fiscal year after
June 15, 2003. The Company has adopted FIN 46-R and the adoption did not have a
material effect on the Group's financial position or results of operations.

FIN 46-R reguires transitional disclosure, which includes the maximum risk of loss an
entity can incur in refation to VIEs thai it has a signhificant interest in. The maximum
exposure to loss represents a "worst case” scenario in the event that ali such vehicles
simultanecusly fail. it does not provide an indication of ongoing exposure, which is
managed within the Group’s risk management framework,

Barclaycard Funding PLC Is involved with variable interest entities Gracechurch Card
Funding {Mo. 1} PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 2) PLC, Gracechurch Card Fundimg
{No. 3} PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 4) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 5}
PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 6) PLC and Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC.

The proceeds of the series 99-1 note were used by Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 1}
PLC to purchase, respectively, corresponding series of medium term note issued by
Barclaycard Funding PLC. The purchase was deemed a financing transaction between the
two parties and consequenily the financial statements of Gracechurch Card Funding (No.
1) PLC were consolidated into those of Barclaycard Funding PLC, The series 99-1 note
are no longer in issue (see footnote 5).

The proceeds of the series 02-1, 03-1, 03-2, 03-3, 04-1 and 04-2 notes were used by
Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC,
Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC, Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 5) PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 6} PLC and Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 7) PLC
respectively to each purchase from Barclaycard Funding PLC one limited recourse
medium term note certificate, being an equitable right in the investor interest. The
structure of these transaction achieved the QSPE status under US CAAP and hence
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 2) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 4) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 5) PLC
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 6) PLC and Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 7) PLC are
not consolidated.

The variable interest entities that the Company is involved with are used to raise
financing via the purchase of a beneficial interest in a pool of credit card receivables.

The total assets of these vehicles as at December 31, 2004 are £3,341,988,242
(December 31, 2003 : £2/524,067 873) of which £13,519 {December 33, 2003 : £13 519
are already corsolidated by the Croup under US GAAP. As at December 31, 2004
maximum exposure to loss is £3,326 475,079 (December 31, 2003 : £2,512,778,653).

Accounting for Certatn Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “"Accounting for Certain Financial
Instrurnents with Characteristics of both Liabllities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity, and imposes certain additional disclosure
requirements. SFAS No.150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified
after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective July 1, 2003, and does not have a material
impact on the Company’s consoiidated financial statements.
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3. Change in Fiscal Year

During the period to 31 December 2003, the Company's Board of Directors approved a change in
the fiscal year end of the Company from December 14 to December 31 to aligh the fiscal year end
with that of Barclays Bank PLC. As the period from December 15, 2002 to December 31, 2002 is
less than one month it has been covered in the annual report for December 31, 2003.

In compiling the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consofidated
statement of cashfiows for the year to December 31, 2003 the opening balances are as at
December 15, 2002,

4. Derecognition of assets and liabilities

Gracechurch Cord Funding (No. 2) PLC

Cn Cctober 24, 2002, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC purchased for £643,624,895 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £643,624,895 to
the Receivables Trustee (the “Trustee"), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Ihvestor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the "Receivables) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bapk PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard,

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 2) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. Z) PLL. The Group has nc obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The Investor Certificate is repayable on October 15, 2007. The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,
2004,

The £643,624,895 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e  First interest period October 24 to December 15 2002, interest rate applicable was the
average of ane and two month Libor plus 0.19345%

®  Second interest period, month to fanuary 15 2003, interest rate applicable was one month
Libor plus 0.19345%

e Third and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable Is 3-month Libor plus
0.19345%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC

On April 8, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 3) PLC purchased for £637,064,407 the beneficial
interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse medium term
note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £637,064.407 to the Receivables
Trustee (the “Trustee™), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate, in order ta fund
the purchase of credit card receivables {the "Receivables”) by the Trustee from Barclaycard, a
division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional beneficial interest
in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the Receivables acquired
from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in conmection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 3) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 3) PLC. The Greup has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The Investor Certificate s repayable on March 15, 2008. The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,
2004,

The £637,064,407 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e First interest pericd April 8 to June 15 2003, interest rate applicable was the average of two
ang 3-month Libor plus 0.20214%
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e  Third and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable is 3-month Libor plus
0.20214%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC

On June 19, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC purchased for £599,448,507 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £599,448507 to
the Receivables Trustee (the “Trustee"), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the "Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC, This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust, The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard,

The Croup passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as putlined pelow. AL the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor Interest from the Trustee to Cracechurch Card
Funding (Na. 4) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.
The investor Certificate is repayable on lune 15, 2006. The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,
2004.

The £595,448,507 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e First interest period June 19 1o August 15 2003, interest rate applicable was the average of
one and two month Libor plus 0.14069%

e  Second interest period to September 15, 2003, interest rate appiicable is one month Libor
plus 0.14069%

o Third and subsequent manthly interest periods, interest rate applicable is 3-month Libor pius
0.14069%

Cracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 5) PLC

On September 18, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5) PLC purchased for £628,140,704 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £628,140.704 to
the Receivables Trustee (the “Trustee'}, an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the "Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barctaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This paymeni to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding {(No. 5} PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group wilt pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding {No. 5) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The investor Certificate is repayable on August 15, 2006. The receivables and the limited recourse

medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,

2004,

The £628,140,704 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e First interest period September 18 to November 15 2003, interest rate applicable was the
average of one and twoe month Libor plus 0.1129%

& Second and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable is 3-month Libor
plus 0.1129%

Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 6} PLC

On March 11, 2004, Cracechurch Card runding {No. 6} FLC purchased for £404,312,668 the
benefciai interests in a poa! of credit ¢=rd receivables wa the purchase of a limited recourse
mediur term nete Cerbiicate from tile Crowr On the same day. the Lroup paid £404,312,668 to
the Reczivabies Truswee (the "Trustee™). an offsnore trustee, . the fore 3f an Investor Certificate,
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in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables {the "Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6) PLC the rate of return on which s at a variable rate of interest.
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest fram the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding {Mo. 6) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The tnvestor Certificate is repayable on February 17, 2007. The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term nate certificate have heen derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 33,
2004.

The £404,3312,668 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

& First interest period March 11 to May 17 2004, interest rate applicable was the average of
two and 3-month Libor plus 0.1076%

o Second and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable is 3-month Libor
plus 0.1076%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7} PLC

On November 23, 2004, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC purchased for £405405,405 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £405,405405 to
the Receivables Trustee (the “Trustee”), an offshore trustee, in the form of an lavestor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the "Receivables”} by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barcfays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustée secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the Investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 7) PLC, The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The Investor Certificate is repayable on November 15, 2007. The receivables and the limited
recourse medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at
December 31, 2004.

The £405,405,405 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e  First interest period November 23 2004 to fanuary 18 2005, interest rate applicable was the
average of two and 3-month Libor plus .0647%

¢ Second and subsequent menthly interest periods. interest rate applicable is 3-month Libor
plus 0.0647%

The Investor Certificates are secured by a pool of United Kingdom credit card receivables that have
been equitably assigned by Barclays Bank PLC to the Trust. The Trust uses a portion of the interest
and principal payments that it receives on the credit card receivables held by it in trust to repay
principal and interest amounts on the investor certificates.

The payment of interest and repayment of principal on the advance to the Trust is dependent
upon payment of interest and repayment of principal due under the credit card receivables held by
the Trust. and is therefore subject to the risk of non-payment of the credit card receivables.

All of the credit card receivables in the Trust were originated by Barclays Bank PLC and the
faollowing factors help mitigate the risks associated with the failure of customers to settle financial
cbligations:

{1} The use of sophisticated credit scoring systems to underwrite account helder selection.
{2} The extremely well seasoned nature of the pool of credit card receivables.

{3) The high amount of yield generated by the poal.

{4) The geographic spread inherent in the poal.
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Credit card use, payment patterns, amounts of yield on the pool of credit card receivables and the
rate of defaults by cardholders may resuit from a variety of social, legal, political and economic
factors in the United Kingdomn, There can be no assurance that changes in social, iegal, politicai
and economle factors will not have a material effect on the Group's future performance.

5.  Intercompany notes
On November 23, 1999, the Company paid £607,050,000 to the Receivables Trustee. This payment
to the Trustee secured a fractional beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust.

The Receivables were accounted for as an asset on the Barclays Bank PLC's balance sheet and
therefore in substance the Company recorded its payment to the Trustee as intercompany notes.

Interest on the notes was payable up o the redemption date as follows:

£546,345,000 — 3 month sterling LIBOR plus 0.2375%

£30,352,000 - 3 month sterling LIBOR plus 0.53 %

£30,352,000 - 3 month sterfing LIBOR plus 1.00 %

On November 15, 2002 notes amounting to £ 607,050,000 were redeemed in full generating a loss
of £5,377.

The intercompany notes were secured by a pool of United Kingdom credit card receivables that
have been equitably assigned by Barclays Bank PLC to the Trust. The Trust used a portion of the
interest and principal payments that it received on the credit card receivables held by it in trust to
repay principal and Interest amounts on the investor certificate.

The payment of interest and repayment of principal on the advance to the Trust was dependent
upon payment of interest and repayment of principal due under the credit card receivables held by
the Trust, and was therefore subject to the risk of non-payment of the credit card receivables.

All of the credit card receivables in the Trust were originated by Barclays Bank PLC and the
following factors help mitigate the risks associated with the failure of customers to settle financial
obligations:

(1) The use of sophisticated credit scortng systems to underwrite account holder selection,

(2) The extremely weil seasoned nature of the pool of credit card receivables.

(3) The high amount of yleld generated by the pool.

(4)  The geographic spread inherent in the pool.

Credit card use, payment patterns. amounts of vield on the pool of ¢redit card receivables and the
rate of defaults by cardholders may result from a variety of social. legal, political and economic

factors in the United Kingdom. There can be no assurance that changes in social, legal, political
and economic factors will nct have a material effect on the Group's future performance.

6.  Other Assets / Accruals and Other Liabilities
The other assets and accruals and other liabilities balances at December 31, 2004 and Oecember
31. 2003 include the foflowing:

2004 2003
£ £
Other Assets

Prepayments and administrative expenses 14,886 1371
Tax debtor — 5,505
14,886 6,876

Accruals and Other Liabilities
Taxation creditor 62,75% 40,688
Bank Loans interest free — 16,920
Due to Barclays Bank PLC — 256,402
Due to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC — 102,624
Due to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC 49,000 -
Other Accruals 12,790 59,965
Dividend 140,000 100,000

264,549 576,599
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7. Common Stock

2004 2003
F £

Barclaycard Funding PLC
Authorised:
37,500 A ordinary shares of £1 each and 12,500 B erdinary shares of £1 each 50,000 50,000
Issued:
2 A ordinary shares of £1 each aliotted, called up and fully paid 2 2
37,498 A ordinary shares of £1 each allotted and called and quarter paid 9,375 9,375
12,500 B ordinary shares of £1 each allofted and called and quarter paid 3125 3,125
Ordinary shares of £1 each 12,502 12,502

Barclays Bank PLC own 75% of the issued share capital of Barclaycard Funding PLC representing
51% issued voting share capital and 49% entitiement to distributable profits.

Structured Financiai Management Limited own 49% of the issued voting share capital and are
entitled to 51% of the distributable profit.

8.  Related Party Fransactions

The Croup considers related parties to be entities which the Group can significantly influence or
has an ownership interest in that allows it influence to an extent that the other party might be
prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. Examples of related parties include
affiliates of the company; entities for which investments are accounted for by the equity method by
the company; trusts for the benefit of employees, principal owrners of the enterprise; its
managerment: and members of the immediate families of principal owners of the enterprise and its
management,

Parties are considered to be related if one party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediartes, contrels, is controlled by, or is under common control with an enterprise.

Barcosec Limited and Barometers Limited are Barclays 8ank PLC group companies whose business
is the provision of corporate directorship services for Barclays Bank subsidiaries.

The Company enters into various transactions with affiliates. At December 31, 2004 and December
31, 2003, in addition to the intercompany noies, the following are the balances related to
transactions with affiliates:

12/31/2004  12/31/2003

£ £
Assets
Cash - (Barclays Bank PLC) 280,583 601,315
Liabilities
Accruals and Other Liabilities - {Barclays Bank PLC) 68,600 322,322

For the year to December 31, 2004, period to December 31, 2003 and year to December 14, 2002
the following balances relate to transactions with affiliates.

2004 2003 2002
£ £ £

Income / Expense
Interest income - (Barclays Bank PLC) 270,450 273,109 24,634,224
Interest expense - (Barclays Bank PLC) — 14,772 24,077,409
Servicing fees income — (Barclays Bank PLC} 21,603,736 11,670,803 4,575,734
Servicing fees expense - (Barclays Bank PLC) 21,603,736 11,670,803 4,575,734
Realised loss on derivatives - (Barclays Bank PLC) — — 54,583,230

During the year, the Company sold a £404,312,668 investor interest in the Receivables Trust to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. &) PLC and a £405,405,405 investor interest in the Receivables
Trust to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC acting as a conduit for resultant revenue streams,
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accrued £15,476,007 Interest to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6} PLC and £2,070,33¢ interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC.

9. Capltal Commitments and Contingent Llabilities
There were ne outstanding capital commitments, guarantees or contingent liabilities at December
31, 2004 and December 31, 2003.

10. Derivatives and Financial Instruments

The Group enters into cross currency swaps. The purpose of these transactions is to manage the
currency risk arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

‘The net loss/gain refiected is attributable 1o the recognition of gains/losses onh derivatives entered
Inte for hedging purposes (economic hedges). Because the hedge documentation requirements
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” ("SFAS No. 133") were not met, the Croup is required to record the
changes in the fair value of the derivatives in the income statement.

Currency risk - all of the Croup’s assets and associated income are denominated in Pounds sterling,
although some of the asset-backed notes issued by the Subsidiary and associated interest expense
are denominated US dollars. The Group’s policy is to match this currency income and expense by
the use of Cross currency swaps.

Debt Maturity Analysis

2004 2003
£ £
Less than one year — 16,920

11. Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Disclosures in the table befow are in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS"} No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”.

Fair values have been estimated using quoted marked prices where available. Where no ready
markets exist and hence quoted market prices are not available, appropriate technigues are used to
estimate fair values which take account of the characteristics of the instruments, including the
expected future cash flows, market interest rates and prices available for similar instruments, There
werg no instruments listed below that quoted market prices were used to estimate fair value.

The estimated fair value and recorded carrying values of the financiai instruments as of December
31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 are as follows:

12/31/2004 12/31/2004 1273172003 12/31/2003

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount value Amount value
£ £ £ £
Non-trading assets
Cash 280,583 280,583 601,315 661,315
Accrued finance charges receivable 18,104 18,104 10,995 10,995
Qther assets 14,886 14,886 6.876 5,876
Non-trading Liabilities
Accruals and Other liabilities 264,549 264,549 576,599 576,599

The Group had no trading assets or liabilities at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003,
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Other Series Issued and Outstanding

Appendix G

The table below sets forth the principai characteristics of the other series previously issued by
other issuers. in connection with the recelvables trust and the receivables assigned by the
transferor. For more information with respect to any series, any prospective investor should contact
Barclays Capital, 5 The North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London E14 4BB, United Kingdom,
Attention S$ecuritisation Group. Barclaycard will provide, without charge, to any prospective
purchaser of the notes, a copy of the disclosure document for any such other publicly-issued series,

Series 99-1

Class

Class A
Class B
Class C

Total

Clesing DCrate:
Scheduied Redemption Date:

Legal Final Redemption Date:

Series 02-1

Class

Class A
Class B
Class €

Total

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemption Date:

Legal Final Redemption Date:

Series 03-1

Class

Class A
Class B
Class C

Total

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemption Date;

Legal Final Redemption Date:

$1,000.000,000

Sterling
Principal Balance Equivaient’
$900,000,000 £546,345,000
350,000,000 £30,352,500
$50,000,000 £30,352,500
$1,000,000,000 £607,050.000
23 Noavember, 1959
15 November 20022
15 November 2004
Principal Sterling
Bafance Equivatent”
$900,000,600 £579,262,406
350,000,000 £32,181,245
£50,000,000 £32,181,245
£1.000,000,000 £643,624,896
24 Cctober, 2002
15 Qctober 2007
15 Octcber 2009
Principal Sterling
Balarnce Equivalent®
$900,000.000 £573,357,966
$50,000,000 £31,853,220
$50,000,000 £31,853,220
£637,064,907

8 April 2003

15 March 2008

15 March 2010
G-1

interest Rate
One month USD LIBOR + 0.18%

One month USD LIBOR + 0.43%
One month US0 LIBOR +~ 0.90%

frierest Rate
Cne month USD LIBOR + 0.12%

One month USE LIBOR + 0.45%
Cne month USD LIBOR + 1.15%

{nterest Rate

One month USD LIBOR + 0.11%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.37%
One month USD LIBOR + 1.27%



Series 03-2

Class

Class A
Class B
Class C

Totat

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemption Date:

Legal Final Redemption Date:

Series 03-3
Class

Class Al
Class A2
Class B
Class C

Total

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemption Date:

Legal Final Redemption Date:

Series 04-1
Class

Class A
Class B
Class C

Total

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemnption Date:

Legal Fina! Redemption Date:

Princlpal Sterling
Balance Equivoient*
$300,000,000 £539,503,656
$50.000,000 £29,972,425
$50.000.000 £29,972,425
£1,000,000,000 £599,448,507
13 June 2003
15 June 2006
15 June 2008
Principal Sterfing
Balarice Equivalent
$600.000.000 £376,884,422
$300,000.000 E188,442,211
550,000.000 £31,407,035
$50,000,000 £31,407.035
£1,000,000,000 £628,140,704
18 Septernber 2003
15 August 2006
15 August 2008
Principal Sterling
Bafance Equivalent®
$£670,000,000 £363,881,401
£37,500,000 £20,215,633
$37,500,000 £20.215,633
$750,000,000 £404,312,668

4 March 2004
15 February 2007
17 February 2009
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Interest Rote
One month USD LIBOR + 0.05%

One month USD LIBOR + 0.30%
One month USD LIBOR + 1.10%

interest Rate

One month USD LIBOR + 0.05%
2.70%

One month LUSD LIBOR + 0.23%
One meonth USD LIBOR + 0.93%

Interest Rote

One month USD LIBOR + 0.03%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.19%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.45%




]

Serles 04-2

Class

Class A
Class 8
Class C

Total

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemption Date:
Legal Final Redemption Date:

Series 05-1

Closs

Class A
Class B
Class C

Total

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemption Date:
Legal Final Redemption Date:

Series 03-2

Class

Class A
Class B
Class C

Total
Closing Date:

Scheduled Redemption Date:
Legal Final Redemption Date:

Principal Sren'r'ng
Balance Equivalen
£675,000,000 £364,864 865
$37,500,000 £20,270,270
$37,500,000 £20,270.270
$750,000,000 £405,405,405

17 November 2004
15 Novemnber 2007
16 November 2009

Principal Sterfing
Balance Equivaient®
$1,350,000,00¢ £742,288,448
$75,000,000 £41,238,247
$75,000,000 £41,238,247

£1,500,000,000 £824,764,942

21 June 2005

15 June 2008

15 June 20170
Principal Sterling
Balance Eguivalent®
$1,350,000,000 £733,715,591
$75,000,000 £40,761,977
$75,000,000 £40,761,977

$1,500,000,000 £B15,239,545

2{ September 2005
15 September 2008
15 September 2010

Appendix G

Interest Rate

One month USD LIBOR + 0,02%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.19%
One menth USD LIBOR + 0.39%

Interest Rote

One month USD LIBOR + 0.01%
QOne month USD LIBOR + 0.14%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.33%

Interest Rute

One month USD LIBOR + 0.01%
One month YUSD LIBOR + 0.15%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.31%

' sterling equivalent obtalned by convertlng eure to sterfing at the exchange rate of £0.60705 to §1,
2 series 99-1 was repald in full on 15 November 2002
? sterling equivalent obtained by converting eure to sterling at the exchange rate of £0.643625 to $1.
“ sterling equivalent obtained by corverting eurc to sterling at the exchange rate of $1.5657 to £1.

3 sterling equivalent obtained by converting eure to sterling at the exchange rate of $31.552 1o £1.

¥ sterling equivalent obtained by converting euro to steriing at the exthange rate of $1.855 to £1.

? sterling equivalent obtained by converting euro 1o steriing at the exchange rate of §1.85 to €1,

3 sterling equivaient obtained by converting euro to sterling at the exchange rate of $1.8187 to £1.

% sterfing equivalent obtained by converting eura 1o sterling at the exchange rate of $1.83995 te £1.
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Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC
[ssuer

Barclays Bank PLC
Transferor, Servicer and Trust Cash Manager

£650,000,000 Class A1 Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes
£700,000,000 Class A2 Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes
€72,500,000 Class B1 Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes
£15,000,000 Class B2 Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes
€68,000,000CIass €1 Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes
£18,000,000 Class 2 Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes

Prospectus

Underwriters of the Class A Notes
Barclays Capital

Morgan Stanrley BNP Paribas Merrill Lynch & Co.
UBS Investment Bank Goldman Sachs & Co. Citigroup
Underwriter of the Class B Notes and Class C Notes .

Barclays Capital

You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorised
anyane to provide you with different information.

We are not offering the notes where the offer is not permitted.

Dealers will deliver a prospectus when acting as underwriters of the notes and with respect to their
unsold aliotments or subscriptions. In addition, all dealers selling the notes may be required to
deliver a prospectus until 17 January 2005

tmprima de bussy — £92671
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